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PART I

Item 1. Financial Statements (Unaudited)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)

Interest income:

1070 TSRS $ 471 $ 478 $ 935 $ 942
SECUNTIES . ..veeetesietiitett sttt ettt ettt a et a et e s e e se s s e se s s es e e s e s es e s esessesesaenessenentenes 194 225 401 453
TradiNg GSSALS. .....civiiitiirieeet bbb 65 27 113 51
ShOrt-term INVESIMENES ..o 20 16 36 30
(@151 ST STTT 12 11 22 21
Total INTEreSt INCOME......cuiiieiiveeiriee ettt st sa et et e b e te e 762 757 1,507 1,497
Interest expense:
DEPOSITS. ...ttt ettt sttt b bbb e b e e b e e b e e a et e b b 36 56 71 99
ShOrt-term DOITOWINGS .......cueiiiirii e 14 8 23 17
[0 TaTo T (=0 1 1= o 152 166 322 333
(@151 ST STTT (113) 9 (101) 25
TOtal INTEIESt EXPENSE.....eiviivieteiteitietese ettt st s r e be st e e s e e e e e e eresaeeresreeras 89 239 315 474
NEL INTEIESE INCOMIE.....ccieieeeciecee et re e st be e e b e eaeesbeennenreenes 673 518 1,192 1,023
ProviSion fOr Credit I0SSES. ... oo see 85 67 101 88
Net interest income after provision for credit [0SSES.........cccvevvvevvvereserseceece e 588 451 1,091 935
Other revenues:
Credit Cartd fEES ..o 13 21 27 34
Other fees and COMMISSIONS ........coueriiieirereeere e b 182 176 355 346
TIUSE INCOMIE......eceeiteeie ettt et et te s e e s ee s ae e s beeaeesbeeseesbeentesaeeeesneesreeneas 32 31 63 63
TradiNg FEVENUE........couiiiiieteeet et bbb 15 127 148 271
Net other-than-temporary impairment 10SSES™............ooviiveeeeeeieeeeeee s (5) — (7 —
Other securities gains (10SSES), NEL.......cooeireireereerere e (7 23 15 154
Servicing and other fees from HSBC affiliates.........cccvvvvvveveveevicceceeececece e, 51 59 98 113
Residential mortgage banking reVENUE...........ccooiererieneeiee e 22 9 70 55
Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives........... (44) 95 (16) 88
(@107 g oo 3 1= TS 2 25 8 34
TOtAl OtNEI FEVENUES.......c.viiveeticteeete ettt ettt sttt e st et e b e st s sbeeessreeseneneas 261 566 761 1,158
Operating expenses:
Salaries and employee DENEFILS..... ... 223 247 438 499
Support services from HSBC affiliates.........ccvvveereereirincsee s 385 362 739 686
OCCUPANCY EXPENSE, MNMEL......ivieieeiereeeeeeee e sieste st st ste e e beseese e e e e e e e eaessessesbeseas 52 57 109 116
OFNES EXPENSES ...ttt ettt ettt b et e e bbb s bt s bt e b s neenes 216 100 340 233
Total OPErating EXPENSES.....c.eivcvirieriireesteestee e e s e e e e seeteseeresaetesaesesaesestesesteesreeeseens 876 766 1,626 1,534
Income (10SS) BEfOre INCOME taX.....c..coveeeerecerice e (27) 251 226 559
Income tax eXpense (DENEFIL) ....cceueieeceeeee e (206) 71 (57) 196
NEL INCOME .. .uiuieititicce et se e et e e e e s s s s s e $ 179 $ 180 $ 283 $ 363

@ During the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, other-than-temporary impairment ("OTTI") losses on securities held-to-maturity totaling $5 million
and $7 million, respectively, were recognized in other revenues. There were no losses in the non-credit component of such impaired securities reflected in
accumul ated other comprehensiveincome (*AQOCI"), net of tax during the periods. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, therewereno OTTI
losses on securities recognized in other revenues and no OTTI loss on securities were recognized in the non-credit component in AOCI, net of tax.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (UNAUDITED)
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)
NELINCOME.....uivivciiecciere e e ee s s s e $ 179 $ 180 $ 283 $ 363
Net change in unrealized gains (losses), net of tax:
Securities available-fOr-Sale.........ccooeiiiiiiee 175 (585) 305 (735)
Other-than-temporarily impaired debt securities held-to-maturity..........c.cccceeeeee 2 — 3 —
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges...........cvvvvrierercreiecece s (15) 51 (35) 74
Total other comprehensive INCOME (10SS)......ccvrerirerieiereerereereee e 162 (534) 273 (661)
Comprehensive INCOME (10SS) .......ccviiiiiiiie e e sre s $ 341 $ (354) $ 556 $ (298)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)
June 30, December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions, except share
data)

Assets®

Cash aNd dUE FIOM DENKS........cvieiiriieiieecte ettt ettt ettt sttt $ 2325 % 961
Interest bearing depoSitS With DENKS...........uiiiiie et 23,946 19,614
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreementsto reSell.... ..o 2,311 2,119
TTAOING BSSELS ...ttt ettt b et b et b bRt e £ b et e b e e bR b b e Rt s e b e bbb et st bt ettt n et e 25,156 28,894
SECUNTIES AVAHADIETOr-SAIE. ..ottt ettt ettt e et et e e et s s bt e saeesbe e st e e beeateesbesnessneesnessreeas 44,778 54,906
Securities held-to-maturity (fair value of $1.4 billion and $1.5 billion at June 30, 2014 and December 31,

2013, respectively)... 1,205 1,358
LOBINS...c.euvteeetetetese ettt e s et et s s s et e be s e s e s et e ae et e s et s A oA e e s be R e e s R e R e e bR eRe s eRebeRe e s et e Rt e b eReRe s eAeRese s betensaeebene e aseteneneas 72,198 67,695
[IC SR | o o o e = o [l (01 =S SRS 624 606

LLOBINS, NEL ...euvvevetieiteteee st et esesesteteae e eebese e se et esesesseses e s seesesessssetesese et esese s ssebese e s et eneseesesese s e s ebe e seabesensse et ene e snseren 71,574 67,089
Loans held for sale (includes $159 million and $58 million designated under fair value option at June 30,

2014 and December 31, 2013, FESPECHIVEIY).....c.coueiriirieirieerie ettt sb e b et seenenean 500 230
Properties and EQUIPMENT, NEL.........coio et e st s e ne s et e s bt neen s e e e eneneas 250 269
INEANQIDIE ASSELS, NEL ...ttt ettt b e e a et et ae st e se et e e e se b eseebe e ese b eneese s eressanensenen 240 295
70100 111/ | TR 1,612 1,612
(@ 1= =SS (OO 8,321 8,140
TIOLAL BSSEES. .t eeeee et et et eeeeeeue e et euese e eeeese et eeeaeeseeseseeeeeeseseeseseseaseseeeeseeeeseneneeaseeeeeentneeaseneneentneeaneneneetenernenennernanens $ 182,218 $ 185487
Liabilities® -
Debt:

Deposits in domestic offices:
NONINEENESE DEAMNG ...ttt ettt st b e et eae et et e s e e et e s e e st ene e nane $ 32220 $ 29,707
Interest bearing (includes $7.7 billion designated under fair value option at both June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, FESPECHIVEY) ......oueveeereeeeceeeeceeeeceeeee et et sst s tesae s st esaesessesesses s sensssnsesnsesnaesans 65,734 62,903
Depositsin foreign offices:
N ol a1 == 1= T oo [OOSR 1,440 1,364
g1 (=S o= ] oo PO ST 16,127 18,634
QLI N 1= o0 S L OO USROS 115,521 112,608
ShOIT-EITN DOITOWINGS. ...ttt st b et b e et b e e bt se et e be st enesbe e ebeseeneanens 12,906 19,135
Long-term debt (includes $8.3 billion and $7.6 billion designated under fair value option at June 30, 2014
and December 31, 2013, FESPECHIVEIY) ....vuerieerierieeriseissseessie st ssss et sssss st sssessssssssssssessesesssessssessnsasans 24,604 22,847
QL0 = 10 (= o ST 153,031 154,590
LI oL aTo L= 1 LR =TSSR SRS 8,815 10,875
Interest, taxes and OthEr [HADIHTTIES .........cce ittt e e st e st e et e et e et e ertesaeeebeesanesreesreenns 3,388 3,558
JLICO] t= LN oT LTSS 165,234 169,023
Shareholders' equity
[ S L= = 0 I (o o: SRR 1,565 1,565
Common shareholder’s equity:
Common stock ($5 par; 150,000,000 shares authorized; 713 shares issued and outstanding at June 30,

2014 and DECEMDIEr 3L, 2013) ....oiieeeeueireereirerieeeereseesesereseeseesesseseesessenesessesesessssesesesessesenssessesesessesssnnens — —
Additional Paid-in CAPITAL.........eeeiereeeeerreee ettt et ne e e es 14,106 14,106
RELAINEA EAIMINGS. ...ttt b e s bt be e et e b et eb e s b e e e b e e e ae b et e b e e ebe b enesbe s ebe s b e e nee s 1,199 952
Accumulated other comprehensive iNCOME (0SS) .......cviieririeieririeese et se e sean 114 (159)

Total commON SNArENOIAEY" S EQUITY.......ccueiteeitiieeriere ettt et et b b e et b e e nesee b 15,419 14,899
Total SHArENOIAEIS” EOUILY......c.ecuiiteicteeeeec ettt ettt st be bt e e se st e e ebeseenssbe s eneseensebaseenesteneatans 16,984 16,464
Total liabilities and Sharenolders” BQUILY............c.cieviucuie ettt ettt $ 182,218 $ 185487

@ The following table summarizes assets and liabilities related to our consolidated variable interest entities ("VIES") as of June 30, 2014 and December 31,
2013 which are consolidated on our balance sheet. Assetsand liabilities excludeintercompany balancesthat eliminatein consolidation. See Note 16, "Variable
Interest Entities," for additional information.
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June 30,

2014

2013

December 31,

Assets

Liabilities
[ o 10 B = 44 1o = o USRS
Interest, taxes and OthEr [HBDIHTTIES ........c.c.euiueiiirieiiieieieie ettt bbbt bbbttt bbbttt
TOBI TADIITIES ...ttt bbbttt bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbbt

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

(in millions)

3 % 5
157 200
458 502
618 $ 707

92 92
71 93
163 $ 185
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (UNAUDITED)
Six Months Ended June 30,

2014

2013

Preferred stock

(dollars are in millions)

Balance at beginning and €Nd Of PEIIOU ..........cceuiiiririiciesieeesiseete ettt s st et s et s e nseses $ 1565 $ 1,565
Common stock
Balance at beginning and end Of PEITO ..........ciiiiiiiire e — —
Additional paid-in capital
Balance at beginning Of PEMTOG. ..o sa et b e b et e e ae b resbe e s e 14,106 14,123
(17 OSSPSR — (33)
2F = g TR = oo o) 1< o o H USRS 14,106 14,090
Retained earnings
Balance at beginning of period.... 952 1,363
= T o SRR 283 363
Cash dividends declared on Preferred SLOCK ..ot eae (36) (36)
Balance at end of period 1,199 1,690
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Balance at beginning Of PEMIOG........ccuvieiirireriis ettt e e sesse s e e et ene e nsnnnnan (159) 785
Adjustment to add other-than-temporary impairment on securities held-to-maturity due to the consolidation

of avariable interest entity — (67)
Other comprehensive income (10SS), NEL OF 18X .......c.eirirrrieerreeiree e 273 (661)
BalanCe 8l €N OF PEITOM .......cuiuieieeieiieeeer bbbt ne bbbt nen s 114 57
Total common shareholder’s equity . $ 15419 $ 15,837
Total ShAreNOIAEIS” EQUILY ......ccvviveuiecietceeeee ettt ettt b bbb ae et ettt ebebese e bt ene e nene $ 16,984 $ 17,402

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
Six Months Ended June 30,

2014

2013

Cash flows from operating activities
INEE INCOMIE ..ottt b e bkt e bbb bR e e e b b e e e b h e b bR e s b b e Rt b et et bk e st e bt e e
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
PrOVIiSION fOr CrEOIt IOSSES......c.eiuiirieieeieieee ettt sttt eae et be e st s b e b e e st b e e be s e e se s be e eae b eneene s eseseenensenen
Net realized gains on securities availabl €-fOr-SAlE..........ccirieiii e
Realized (gains) 10sses 0n Securities Neld-tO-MEEUTLY .........coeeireririeirreeese e
Net change in other assets and [HaDIlITIES. ........ccciiciiiici e se e
Net changein loans held for sale:
OFgINALTIONS OF IOBNS ......ceieeeiiie ettt b e et b et b e e e st s b et e bt s e e ae st e e ebesbenesbe e ebeseeneabens
Sales and collection Of [0aNS eI FOF SAlE........ooiieee e e
Net changein trading assets and [1aDIlTHIES. ........c.veerriieir e
Lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustments on loans held for SAle.......ccovevveveecencieienceseee e
Loss (gain) on instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives..........cccovveeeveeiencceseceseseeseein
Net cash provided by (used in) Operating aCtIVITIES. ..ottt
Cash flows from investing activities
Net changein interest bearing deposits With DANKS ..o e
Net change in federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreementsto resell.........ocoeeeveeveneceviecsceneenes
Securities available-for-sale:
Purchases of securities availabl€-fOr-Sal€...........oviiiii et
Proceeds from sales of securities available-fOr-Sale..... ...
Proceeds from maturities of securities available-for-Sale...........ooo i
Securities held-to-maturity:
Proceeds from sales of Securities NElA-tO-MELUIILY ..ot
Proceeds from maturities of securities held-t0-MaLUNiLY...........ccceirieiiieieiseec e
Changeinloans:

Net cash provided by (used in) INVESLING BCIVITIES ........cccciiieeiieiciecseese ettt enan
Cash flows from financing activities
= e =g To TR g e (= T ] £SO PTUS
Debt:
Net change in SNOM-LEMM DOMTOWINGS ......c.crvirereirereereire ettt et r et s e r s nnenenens
1SSUBNCE OF [ONG-LEIM AEDL. ...ttt bbbkt b et sn e ene s
Repayment of 10NG-tEIM AEDL ..ottt se b s se b e e nte e
Other increases (decreases) iN Capital SUMPIUS.........c.cirieieiririeicerrie ettt
(DAY 7T0 (< g6 S o= Lo [OOSR
Net cash provided by (used in) fiNaNCING BCHIVITIES. .......ccciuiiiiie e
Net changein cash and dUue from DANKS............coiiiic e
Cash and due from banks a beginning of PEMOM. ..ot
Cash and due from banks at end OF PEFIOM ..........ccvciieiiiieieee et sae e eaens

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

(in millions)

283 $ 363
56 175
101 88
(15) (146)

7 8)
(538) 154
(654) (1,043)
537 1,246
1,678 4,064
— 9

16 (88)
1,471 4,814
(4332) (16522
(192) 1,750
(6,512)  (13,876)
15,999 22,216
1,541 4,745
— 79
153 233
(5,441) (3,616)
692 490
(10) (15)

10 (15)
1,008 (4,531)
2,755 (5,894)
(6,229) 6,046
3,887 2,875
(2,392) (3,289)
— (33
(36) (36)
(2,015) (331)
1,364 (48)
961 1,359
2325 $ 1311
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1. Organization and Presentation

HSBC USA Inc. ("HSBC USA"), incorporated under the laws of Maryland, isaNew York State based bank holding company and
anindirect wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC North AmericaHoldingsInc. ("HSBC North America'), whichisanindirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of HSBC Holdings plc ("HSBC" and, together with its subsidiaries, "HSBC Group"). The accompanying
unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of HSBC USA and its subsidiaries (collectively "HUSI") have been prepared
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") for interim financial
information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X, aswell asin accordance with predominant
practices within the banking industry. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by generally
accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all norma and recurring
adjustments considered necessary for afair presentation of financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the interim
periods have been made. HUSI may also be referred to in these notes to the consolidated financial statements as "we", "us' or
"our". These unaudited i nterim consolidated financial statements should bereadin conjunctionwith our Annual Report on Form 10-
K for theyear ended December 31, 2013 (the"2013 Form 10-K"). Certain reclassifications have been madeto prior period amounts
to conform to the current period presentation.

The preparation of financial statementsin conformity with U.S. GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect
reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Interim results should not be considered
indicative of resultsin future periods.

On January 1, 2014, we adopted new accounting guidance on the presentation of Low Income Housing Tax Credit ("LIHTC")
investments and related tax benefits. See Note 20, "New Accounting Pronouncements,” for further details and related impacts.

During the second quarter of 2014, we concluded certain stateand local tax auditsresulting in the settlement of significant uncertain
tax positions covering anumber of years. Asaresult, we released tax reserves previously maintained in relation to the periods and
issues under review which resulted in anincometax benefit of $183 million during the quarter. In addition, wereleased our accrued
interest associated with the tax reserves rel eased which resulted in a $120 million benefit to interest expense during the quarter.
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2. Trading Assets and Liabilities

Trading assets and liabilities consisted of the following.

June 30,
2014

December 31,
2013

Trading assets:

ULS. TTEASUIY....c.ee ettt sttt ettt et e e b et e sae e e e s he e e e s Re e b e eh e et e ehe e b e e ae e bt eaeeebeennesaeenesneenrens
U.S. Government agency issued OF QUAIENTERM .........cccoueiricerieirieeieesiees st
U.S. Government SpoNS0red ENEIPIISES™ ..........oveweeeeeeeeeeseeeseeseeseesssesseesseessesesesseeseesseessesesesseeseeessens
Obligations of U.S. states and political SUDIVISIONS............coeriiriiiiinieieirere e e
ASSEL DACKEA SECUTIES ...t r et et b e et e te st e e e e e e e e e
Corporate and fOreigN DONAS...........oieieeeeecee ettt s e e e e e eneas
OFNEY SECUNTIES ...ttt ettt h s b e et b b e e e et e e e e ehe e bt e bt ebeebenbesaesbesbese e s e s e e e e ennas
PIECIOUS IMELAIS ......ceieeeetieie ettt ettt st be e e st e e em e e e emeeae s st saeebesbeseessebeseeneenseneeneens
DEITVALIVES ...ttt sttt b e e b ek s e bt et st bt b e st b e me b et e b et bese et e ne et e seebeneebeneeneneas

Trading liabilities:

Securities Sold, NOt YEL PUICHASEH ......c..cueeeeeieese sttt sr e e e neeeeneenens
Payabl €S fOr PraCiOUS MELAIS. ... ..c.iiviiereeeeee ettt st s b e b et b e se e e e e e
1S A7 (=S OSSR

(in millions)

2,717 % 1,344
20 19

115 159

27 25

494 481
6,931 9,099
21 25
10,477 11,751
4,354 5,991
25,156 $ 28,894
71 $ 308
3,037 3,826
5,007 6,741
8,815 $ 10,875

@ Includes mortgage backed securities of $88 million and $133 million issued or guaranteed by the Federal National Mortgage Association ("FNMA") and
$27 million and $26 million issued or guaranteed by the Federal Home L oan Mortgage Corporation ("FHLMC") at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013,

respectively.

At June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the fair value of derivatives included in trading assets has been reduced by $3,128
million and $3,870 million, respectively, relating to amounts recognized for the obligation to return cash collateral received under

master netting agreements with derivative counterparties.

At June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the fair value of derivativesincluded in trading liabilities has been reduced by $2,277
million and $2,116 million, respectively, relating to amounts recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral paid under master

netting agreements with derivative counterparties.

See Note 9, "Derivative Financial Instruments,” for further information on our trading derivatives and related collateral.
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3. Securities

Our securities available-for-sale and securities held-to-maturity portfolios consisted of the following:

Non-Credit
Loss
Component of
Amortized OTTI Unrealized Unrealized Fair
June 30, 2014 Cost Securities Gains Losses Value
(in millions)
Securities available-for-sale:
U.S. TTEASUNY ...eveeeeisieeeteeete st $ 19,506 $ — 3 392 $ (31) $ 19,867
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises:”
Mortgage-backed SECUNtIES ...........ccviveiiiciiciiiciiee, 182 — — (5) 177
Collateralized mortgage obligations ...........ccceceeeriercniene. 39 — — — 39
Direct agency obligations...........ccoeeveerenenennenneseenens 4,114 — 243 (12) 4,346
U.S. Government agency issued or guaranteed:
Mortgage-backed SECUNTIES .......vvvvvrereereeereeeeeeeee e 9,904 — 192 (212) 9,884
Collateralized mortgage obligations ..........cccceceeerieneniene. 4871 — 13 97) 4,787
Obligations of U.S. states and political subdivisions............. 728 — 12 (10) 730
Asset backed securities collateralized by:
Residential MOrtgages.........ccovveeveerieenenenenseneseseeieneas 1 — — — 1
Commercial MOMgagES ......ccoerveriererereeeeie e 85 — 1 — 86
HOME EQUILY ..., 104 — — (10) 94
(@111 SRS 105 — — (12) 94
Foreign debt SECUNTIESD .............oveeeeeeeeseeeee s, 4,503 — 12 (8) 4,507
EQUItY SECUMTIES.....c.civiieeiieiie e 165 — 3 (2) 166
Total available-for-sale SeCUNti€s. .......covvvvvrevererereceeeeeseeens $ 44307 $ — 3 868 $ (397) $ 44,778
Securities held-to-maturity: -
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises:®
Mortgage-backed SECUNTIES ........cceverereerieieee e $ 763 $ — 3% 81 $ — $ 844
U.S. Government agency issued or guaranteed:
Mortgage-backed SECUNTIES ........cceverereerieieee e 47 — 8 — 55
Collateralized mortgage obligations...........coceeeveeereeeenennes 194 — 23 — 217
Obligations of U.S. states and political subdivisions............. 26 — 1 — 27
Asset-backed securities collateralized by residential
MOMJAGES. .. veveveeereererieesreeesesse e sae e stese e e se e sesessessesessesessens 18 — 1 — 19
Asset-backed securities and other debt securities held by a
consOlidated VIE® ..o 255 (98) 53 — 210
Total held-to-maturity SECUNtiES.........cccveveeeeeereeeeeeeceeee $ 1303 $ 98) $ 167 $ — $ 1,372
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Non-Credit
Loss
Amortized Com([))_cl)_r_lrelnt of Unrealized Unrealized Fair
December 31, 2013 Cost Securities Gains Losses Value
(in millions)
Securities available-for-sale:
U.S. TTEASUINY ....veieeiieeesiec sttt aens $27716 $ — 8 391 $ (113) $ 27,994
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises:”
Mortgage-backed SECUNTIES........ccververereeeeeee e 159 — — (14) 145
Collateralized mortgage obligations.........c.ccceeeevvvevrerrenn. 41 — — (D 40
Direct agency obligations..........ccoeeveierieeneceneeneeneeas 4,115 — 225 (16) 4,324
U.S. Government agency issued or guaranteed:
Mortgage-backed SECUties..........covveereineeneereeniens 10,304 — 40 (342) 10,002
Collateralized mortgage obligations.........c.ccceceevvviereceene. 6,584 — 17 (154) 6,447
Obligations of U.S. states and political subdivisions............ 755 — 12 (25) 742
Asset backed securities collateralized by:
Residential MOrtgages..........covveereeeereenieenieeseesenesienens 1 — — — 1
Commercial MOrtgagesS......ccooevevereriereeieeeeieeeeeseseereees 125 — 1 — 126
HOME EQUILY ....cveeeeieeeteeeteeee e 263 — — (36) 227
L@ 111 SRS 100 — — (6) 9%
Foreign debt SECUMtIES ..o 4,607 — 10 (15) 4,602
EqQUItY SECUMTIES ... 165 — 2 (5) 162
Total available-for-sale SECUNtieS........ccovevveeceeiecee e, $54935 $ — % 698 $ (727) $ 54,906
Securities held-to-maturity: -
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises:®
Mortgage-backed SECUNTIES.......ccoeveveveereeeeere e $ 845 $ — % 88 $ — $ 933
U.S. Government agency issued or guaranteed:
Mortgage-backed SECUNTIES........ccovveveveeeeeceee e 52 — 8 — 60
Collateralized mortgage obligations...........c.cccveereernne. 214 — 24 — 238
Obligations of U.S. states and political subdivisions............ 29 — 1 — 30
Asset-backed securities collateralized by residential
MOMJAJES «..vveeevereeeerieresteesie ettt e e e sa e 18 — 1 — 19
Asset-backed securities and other debt securities held by a
CONSOlIAAE VIE ...t 304 (104) 19 — 219
Total held-to-maturity SECUNtIES......ccccevvreerereereeeeeeeeeee e $ 1462 $ (104) $ 141 $ — $ 1,499

@ Includes securities at amortized cost of $189 million and $167 million issued or guaranteed by FNMA at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively,
and $32 million and $33 million issued or guaranteed by FHLMC at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

@ At June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, foreign debt securities consisted of $1,140 million and $1,101 million, respectively, of securities fully backed by
foreign governments. The remainder of foreign debt securities represents public sector entity, bank or corporate debt.

®  Includes securities at amortized cost of $357 million and $398 million issued or guaranteed by FNMA at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively,
and $406 million and $447 million issued and guaranteed by FHLMC at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

@ Relatesto securities held by Bryant Park Funding LLC (“Bryant Park"), avariableinterest entity which was consolidated in the second quarter of 2013. See
Note 16, "Variable Interest Entities" for additional information.
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Thefollowingtablesummarizesgrossunrealized | ossesand rel ated fair valuesasof June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 classified
asto the length of time the losses have existed:

June 30, 2014

One Year or Less Greater Than One Year
Number Gross Aggregate Number Gross Aggregate
of Unrealized Fair Value of Unrealized Fair Value
Securities Losses of Investment Securities Losses of Investment

Securities available-for-sale:

U.S Treasury ................

U.S. Government sponsored enterprises......
U.S. Government agency issued or

guaranteed .................

Obligations of U.S. states and political

subdivisions...............
Asset backed securities.
Foreign debt securities..
Equity securities............

Securities available-for-sale..........ccoccecvevenee.

Securities held-to-maturity:

U.S. Government sponsored enterprises......
U.S. Government agency issued or

guaranteed .................

Obligations of U.S. states and political

subdivisions...............

Securities held-to-maturity...........cccceeeenneee

December 31, 2013

(dollars are in millions)

4 $ 1 $ 741 8 % (30) $ 2,128
18 (1) 41 30 (15) 612
40 (224) 2,317 48 (85) 2,224
14 (1) 90 36 (9) 336
3 (11) 115 7 (10) 100
_ — — 6 (8) 2,470
1 2) 157 — — —
80 $ (240) $ 3,461 135 $ (157) $ 7,870
13 3 — 3 — 49 $ — 3 —
78 — — 826 — 2
1 — 4 — 2
92 3 — % 879 $ — %
One Year or Less Greater Than One Year

Number Gross Aggregate Number Gross Aggregate

of Unrealized Fair Value of Unrealized Fair Value
Securities Losses of Investment Securities Losses of Investment

Securities available-for-sale:

U.S. Treasury ................

U.S. Government sponsored enterprises......
U.S. Government agency issued or

guaranteed .................

Obligations of U.S. states and political

subdivisions...............
Asset backed securities.
Foreign debt securities..
Equity securities............

Securities available-for-sale........coccocvvvveernennee.

Securities held-to-maturity:

U.S. Government sponsored enterprises......
U.S. Government agency issued or

guaranteed .................

Obligations of U.S. states and political

subdivisions...............
Securities held-to-maturity

(dollars are in millions)

2 $ (8)$ 16958 6 $ (31 $ 630
23 (12) 400 20 (19) 356
170 (494) 10,243 5 ) 23
42 (19) 330 5 (6) 65
3 (6) 115 10 (36) 237

— 50 7 (15) 2,916

(5) 154 — — —

262 $ (618) $ 28,250 53 $ (109) $ 4,227
13 $ — 3 — 48 $ — 3 —
79 — — 859 — 2
7 — 4 2 — 1

9 $ — $ 4 209 $ — $ 3

Net unrealized gains and lossesincreased within the available-for-sale portfolio in the six months ended June 30, 2014 dueto sales
of U.S. government agency mortgage-backed securities and other asset-backed securitiesthat werein anet unrealized lossposition
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at December 31, 2013 and a decrease in yields on U.S. Government agency securities and U.S. Treasury securities during the
period.

We have reviewed the securities for which thereisan unrealized loss for other-than-temporary impairment in accordance with our
accounting policies, discussed further below. As aresult of consolidating Bryant Park during the second quarter of 2013, we had
held-to-maturity asset backed securitiesthat were previously determined to be other-than-temporarily impaired which totaled $157
million and $200 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. We do not consider any other debt securities to
be other-than-temporarily impaired at June 30, 2014 as we expect to recover their amortized cost basis and we neither intend nor
expect to be required to sell these securities prior to recovery, even if that equates to holding securities until their individual
maturities. However, additional other-than-temporary impairments may occur in future periodsif the credit quality of the securities
deteriorates.

On-going Assessment for Other-Than-Temporary Impairment On a quarterly basis, we perform an assessment to determine
whether there have been any events or economic circumstances to indicate that a security with an unrealized loss has suffered
other-than-temporary impairment. A debt security is considered impaired if its fair value is less than its amortized cost at the
reporting date. If impaired, we assess whether the unrealized loss is other-than-temporary.

Anunrealized loss is generally deemed to be other-than-temporary and a credit lossis deemed to exist if the present value of the
expected future cash flows is less than the amortized cost basis of the debt security. As a result, the credit loss component of an
other-than-temporary impairment write-down for debt securities is recorded in earnings while the remaining portion of the
impairment loss attributable to factors other than credit lossis recognized, net of tax, in other comprehensive income provided we
do not intend to sell the underlying debt security and it is more likely than not that we would not have to sell the debt security
prior to recovery.

For all securitiesheld in the available-for-sale or held-to-maturity portfolios for which unrealized | osses attributed to factors other
than credit have existed for a period of time, we do not have the intention to sell and believe we will not be required to sell the
securities for contractual, regulatory or liquidity reasons as of the reporting date. Our assessment for credit |0ss was concentrated
on private label asset-backed securities. Substantially all of the private label asset-backed securities are supported by residential
mortgages, home equity loans or commercial mortgages. Our assessment for credit |oss was concentrated on this particular asset
class because of the following inherent risk factors:

*  Therecovery of the U.S. economy has been slow;
e Thehigh levels of pending foreclosure volume associated with a U.S. housing market in the early stages of recovery;
e Alack of significant traction in government sponsored programs in loan modifications;

* A lack of refinancing activities within certain segments of the mortgage market, even at the current low interest rate
environment, and the re-default rate for refinanced loans;

*  Theunemployment rate although improving remains high compared with historical levels;
» Thedeclinein the occupancy rate in commercial properties; and
*  The severity and duration of unrealized loss.

For a complete description of the factors considered when analyzing debt securities for impairment, see Note 5, "Securities' in
our 2013 Form 10-K. There have been no material changes in our process for assessing impairment during 2014.

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, none of our debt securities were determined to have initial other-than-
temporary impairment while the debt securities held by Bryant Park were determined to have changesto their previous other-than-
temporary impairment estimates related to the credit component. The additional credit losses associated with the impaired debt
securities, which reflects the excess of amortized cost over the present value of expected future cash flows, were $5 million and
$7 million during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively, and were recorded as a component of net other-
than-temporary impairment losses in the accompanying consolidated statement of income.

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, none of our debt securitieswere determined to have either initial other-than-
temporary impairment or changes to previous other-than-temporary impairment estimates relating to the credit component, as
such, there were no other-than-temporary impairment |osses recognized related to credit loss.

At June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the excess of discounted future cash flows over fair value, representing the non-credit
component of the unrealized |oss associated with al other-than-temporary impaired securitieswhich isrecognized in accumul ated
other comprehensive income (loss), was $98 million and $104 million, respectively.
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Thefollowing table summarizestherollforward of credit losses on debt securitiesthat were other-than-temporarily impaired which
have previously been recognized in income that we do not intend to sell nor will likely be required to sell:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, 2014 June 30, 2014
(in millions)
Credit losses at the beginning of the PEriod.........cooi i $ 63 $ 61
Increase in credit losses for which an other-than-temporary impairment was
Previously FECOONIZE ........vieieriere ettt st e e e e e neerennenns 5 7
Ending balance of credit losses on held-to-maturity debt securities for which a
portion of an other-than-temporary impairment was recognized in other $ 68 $ 68

COMPrehensive INCOME (I0SS) .....euveeeieerireeerere e eae

At June 30, 2014, we held 18 individual asset-backed securities in the available-for-sale portfolio, of which 5 were also wrapped
by a monoline insurance company. The asset-backed securities backed by a monoline wrap comprised $188 million of the total
aggregate fair value of asset-backed securities of $275 million at June 30, 2014. The gross unrealized losses on these monoline
wrapped securities were $21 million at June 30, 2014. We did not take into consideration the value of the monoline wrap of any
non-investment grade monolineinsurersas of June 30, 2014 and, therefore, we only considered thefinancial guarantee of monoline
insurers on securities for purposes of evaluating other-than-temporary impairment on securities with a fair value of $93 million.
No security wrapped by abelow investment grade monolineinsurance company was deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired
at June 30, 2014.

At December 31, 2013, we held 22 individual asset-backed securities in the available-for-sale portfolio, of which 8 were also
wrapped by a monoline insurance company. The asset-backed securities backed by a monoline wrap comprised $321 million of
thetotal aggregatefair value of asset-backed securities of $448 million at December 31, 2013. The gross unrealized losses on these
monoline wrapped securitieswere $42 million at December 31, 2013. We did not take into consideration the val ue of the monoline
wrap of any non-investment grade monoline insurers as of December 31, 2013 and, therefore, we only considered the financial
guarantee of monoline insurers on securities with a fair value of $98 million for purposes of evaluating other-than-temporary
impairment. No security wrapped by a below investment grade monoline insurance company was deemed to be other-than-
temporarily impaired at December 31, 2013.

As discussed above, certain asset-backed securities in the available-for-sale portfolio have an embedded financial guarantee
provided by monolineinsurers. Becausethefinancial guaranteeisnot aseparate and distinct contract from the asset-backed security,
they are considered as a single unit of account for fair value measurement and impairment assessment purposes. The monoline
insurers are regulated by the insurance commissioners of the relevant states and certain monoline insurers that write the financial
guarantee contracts are public companies. We did not consider the value of the monoline wrap of any non-investment grade
monolineinsurer at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013. In evaluating the extent of our reliance on investment grade monoline
insurance companies, consideration is given to our assessment of the creditworthiness of the monoline and other market factors.
We perform both a credit aswell asaliquidity analysis on the monoline insurers each quarter. Our analysis also compares market-
based credit default spreads, when available, to assess the appropriateness of our monoline insurer’s creditworthiness. Based on
the public information available, including the regulatory reviews and actions undertaken by the state insurance commissions and
the published financial results, we determine the degree of reliance to be placed on the financial guarantee policy in estimating
the cash flows to be collected for the purpose of recognizing and measuring impairment loss.

A credit downgrade to non-investment gradeisakey but not the only factor in determining the credit risk or the monolineinsurer’s
ability to fulfill its contractual obligation under the financial guarantee arrangement. Although a monoline may have been down-
graded by the credit rating agencies or have been ordered to commuteits operations by the insurance commissioners, it may retain
the ability and the obligation to continue to pay claimsin the near term. We evaluate the short-term liquidity of and the ability to
pay claims by the monoline insurers in estimating the amounts of cash flows expected to be collected from specific asset-backed
securities for the purpose of assessing and measuring credit |oss.
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Realized Gains (Losses) Thefollowing tablesummarizesrealized gainsandlosseson investment securitiestransactionsattributable
to available-for-sale securities:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)
GrOSS rAlIZEA QAINS.....c.eiieeeeiieeeie ettt et ettt b et sb e saesr e $ 25 $ 83 $ 68 $ 207
Gross realized |0SSES........cueiiviiii (32) (60) (53) (61)
= = = o o =TT OSSO $ 7 23 $ 15 $ 146

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, we recognized losses of $5 million and $7 million, respectively, due to
other-than-temporary impairment credit losses on securities held-to-maturity, as discussed above. During thefirst quarter of 2013,
we sold six asset-backed securities out of our held-to-maturity portfolio with atotal carrying value of $71 million and recognized
again of $8 million. These sales were in response to the significant credit deterioration which had occurred on these securities
which had been classified as substandard for regulatory reporting purposes and, therefore, these disposals did not affect our intent
and ability to hold our remaining held-to-maturity portfolio until maturity.

Contractual Maturities and Yields The following table summarizes the amortized cost and fair values of securities available-for-
saleand securities held-to-maturity at June 30, 2014 by contractual maturity. Expected maturitiesdiffer from contractual maturities
because borrowers have theright to prepay obligationswithout prepayment penaltiesin certain cases. Securities available-for-sale
amounts exclude equity securities asthey do not have stated maturities. The table bel ow al so reflects the distribution of maturities
of debt securities held at June 30, 2014, together with the approximate taxable equivaent yield of the portfolio. The yields shown
are calculated by dividing annual interest income, including the accretion of discounts and the amortization of premiums, by the
amortized cost of securities outstanding at June 30, 2014. Yields on tax-exempt obligations have been computed on a taxable
equivalent basis using applicable statutory tax rates.
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After One After Five
Within But Within But Within After Ten
One Year Five Years Ten Years Years
Taxable Equivalent Basis Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

(dollars are in millions)

Available-for-sale:

U.S. Treasury.....coeereerecnenesienenenenes $ 1,225 34% $ 14,017 91% $ 2429 290% $ 1,835 3.80%
U.S. Government sponsored
ENEETPIISES ..cvveereeeteeere e — — 1,108 2.62 2450 3.27 777 374
U.S. Government agency issued or
guaranteed..........covveererernneneneeenenes — — 12 423 107 2.65 14,656 2.36
Obligations of U.S. states and political
SubdivisSions .........cccoeeieiiniececes — — 110 3.66 302 332 316 352
Asset backed securities........ocovveerenene — — — — 7 .39 288 3.56
Foreign debt securities...........covvrennee. 554 3.10 3949 194 — — — —
Total amortized COSt.........coeeeveveeiriiieenne $ 1,779 120% $ 19,196 1.24% $ 5295 3.09% $ 17,872 2.61%
Total fair VAIUC.....c.eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 1,781 $ 19,299 $ 5,587 $ 17,945

Held-to-maturity:
U.S. Government sponsored

ENLENPIISES ...vevevceeeieee et $ — —% $ — —% $ 2 777% $ 761 6.14%
U.S. Government agency issued or
guUAranteed..........oeeeeerereeenereneeeneens — — 1 762 2 7175 238 6.49
Obligations of U.S. states and political
SubdivisSions .........cccooeeveiieiecece, 5 528 8 440 6 394 7 504
Asset backed securities.........coovveevenens — — — — — — 18 6.21
Asset backed securities issued by
consolidated VIE ........cccovevvvennencrieenn, — — — — 64 .33 93 .33
Total amortized COSt ........cceceevieveerieiienens $ 5 528% $ 9 479% $ 74 1.05% $ 1,117 572%
Total fair ValUB........ccveeeeeeieeee s $ 5 $ 11 $ 78 $ 1,278

Investments in Federal Home Loan Bank stock and Federal Reserve Bank stock of $130 million and $483 million, respectively,
were included in other assets at June 30, 2014. Investments in Federal Home Loan Bank stock and Federal Reserve Bank stock
of $139 million and $483 million, respectively, were included in other assets at and December 31, 2013.
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4, Loans

Loans consisted of the following:

June 30, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)

Commercial loans:

Construction and Other real ESIALE..........cieiiiiee e e $ 9682 $ 9,034
Business and Corporate DaNKiNG..........ccoeriririnsise e 15,956 14,446
GIODEL BANKING™ ...t ee e s e s s e ee e se s ses e ee e eenesene 24,268 21,625
OthEr COMMEICIAL ... .o st eae et e s resre st e s beseese e te e e s enaeneenes 3,127 3,389
Total COMMEICIAL........cuiiiiiicr s 53,033 48,494
Consumer loans:
Residential MOMQAGES ..........cvoiriiee et e 16,097 15,826
HOME EQUILY MOMJAOES ...c.veveeeteietirieiesieesieesi ettt ettt et s et st be e be e ntens 1,914 2,011
L0 o ] o o USSR 681 854
(@141 e e LS W 4 TSRS 473 510
QI oo 0110 1= SRS 19,165 19,201
LI = I [0 = o SRR $ 72198 $ 67,695

@ Represents large multinational firms including globally focused U.S. corporate and financial institutions and U.S. dollar lending to multinational banking
customers managed by HSBC on a global basis. Also includes loans to HSBC affiliates which totaled $5,080 million and $5,328 million at June 30, 2014
and December 31, 2013, respectively. See Note 13, "Related Party Transactions' for additional information regarding loans to HSBC &ffiliates.

Net deferred origination fees totaled $6 million and $23 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. At June
30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we had a net unamortized premium on our loans of $14 million and $16 million, respectively.
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Age Analysis of Past Due Loans Thefollowingtablesummarizesthepast duestatusof our loansat June 30, 2014 and December 31,
2013. The aging of past due amounts is determined based on the contractual delinquency status of payments under the loan. An
account is generally considered to be contractually delinquent when payments have not been made in accordance with the loan
terms. Delinquency statusis affected by customer account management policies and practices such as re-age, which resultsin the
re-setting of the contractual delinquency status to current.

Past Due
Total Past Due
At June 30, 2014 30-89days 90+days 30 Daysor More Current  Total Loans

(in millions)

Commercial loans:

Construction and other real estate.........ccccooeeeeeeeeeecvee e, $ 7 % 14 $ 21 $ 9661 $ 9,682
Business and corporate banking ..........cccceeeeerrerienerernseenens 7 27 34 15,922 15,956
Global banKing..........coeiiiiiiiiiee e — — — 24,268 24,268
Other COMMENCIAl ......ccovieiiecieceece e 27 — 27 3,100 3,127
Total COMMEICIAl.......cceiieieeeeee e 41 41 82 52,951 53,033
Consumer loans:
Residential MOrtgages.......ccoveerereerieriereeeeeeee e 400 935 1,335 14,762 16,097
Home equity MOrtgages.......cccveerererireriierenesereseeseereseenes 18 54 72 1,842 1,914
Credit Cards......oovceciceceece e 10 11 21 660 681
OthEr CONSUMEY ......eecveiireicteeeree et seeete e sreesre e s s ereesreseares 10 10 20 453 473
TOtaAl CONSUMET ...ttt s e s saae s s saaee s 438 1,010 1,448 17,717 19,165
TOtal 108NS ..o e $ 479 $ 1051 $ 1530 $ 70,668 $ 72,198
Past Due

Total Past Due
At December 31, 2013 30-89days 90+days 30Daysor More Current?  Total Loans

(in millions)

Commercial loans:

Construction and other real estate...........cccceeveveeveevrceenene $ 6 $ 58 % 64 $ 8970 $ 9,034
Business and corporate banking ..o 48 36 84 14,362 14,446
Global banking..........ccooeiiriiieneeee e 8 3 11 21,614 21,625
Other COMMENCIAl .......covviveeieciece et 27 9 36 3,353 3,389
Total COMMECIAl ......ccueeiveeeeeeeee e 89 106 195 48,299 48,494
Consumer loans:
Residential MOrtgages.......cooveereverenenereeeeee e 443 1,037 1,480 14,346 15,826
Home equity MOrtgages........ccveereereerieereneseneeeseeeeseens 28 59 87 1,924 2,011
Credit Cards......uve e 16 14 30 824 854
Other CONSUMET .......cceiveieieieie et 12 13 25 485 510
Total CONSUMEN.........oiuieieiieie ettt e 499 1,123 1,622 17,579 19,201
TOtAl JOANS ......ooviceicieecte ettt $ 588 $ 1229 $ 1,817 $ 65878 $ 67,695

@ Loanslessthan 30 days past due are presented as current.
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Nonaccrual Loans Nonaccrua loans totaled $1,107 million and $1,305 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively. For ananalysisof reservesfor credit |osses, seeNote 5, "Allowancefor Credit L osses." Nonaccrual loansand accruing
receivables 90 days or more delinquent consisted of the following:

June 30, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)

Nonaccrual loans:

Commercial:
Redl Estate:
Construction and 1aNd [0@NS.........cccccuceeririieieesse e $ 17 $ 44
Other 18l ESIALE ......eeeve ettt e e s be e e saeeeesaeesnesaneeea 47 122
Business and corporate banking .........cccceiererereereereereeieeeeesesesesee e ste s e e e seeneeseeeeneens 28 21
GlODEl DBANKING......ceiteee e bbb e — 65
Other COMMENCIAL ......ocviceie et r e e st st besbe et e ereebeennennas 2 2
TOA COMMEITIA ...ttt bbbt 94 254
Consumer:
RESIAENtial MOMGAGES. ... ..evevereeiirteiireeerie ettt bbb 879 949
HOME EUILY MOIMQBOES. ... ccueierierieseisiesieseesteseeseeseeseeseseeseesessessesreseesseseestesseseesenseseensenesneenens 69 77
Total residential MOrtgages@® ... ... 948 1,026
TOtal CONSUMES [OBNS.......oeeeeeeeiee ettt ettt e e te et e st e e eteeeaeeeebeseaseebessabeeseesabeesseesnneesreas 948 1,026
Nonaccrual 10anS held fOr SAlE.........ooeiiiiiee e 65 25
Total NONACCIUING JOANS........cuiieececeeeeee ettt s ae st st s e e et et e e eneeneenas 1,107 1,305
Accruing loans contractually past due 90 days or more:
Commercial:
Business and corporate banking .........cccceveiererierieiieieeeeeeese s 7 5
Other COMMENTIAL ......cocvicee et st b e e te st e et e ereeeeeneennas 1 1
TOtal COMMEICIAL .....cveiee ettt et st et s b sbe b e besbe e besbeebeereenbesaeennas 8 6
Consumer:
Credit Card reCEIVADIES ..o e e et 11 14
OtNEE CONSUIMIES ...ttt ettt ettt st b e et e et e et e ebeesaesaeesbesaaesbesntesbeesbesbeentesseensesaeennes 11 14
TOtAl CONSUMEN [OBNS........cuiiieiieieieieiee ettt sttt ettt et st se et seebeseeseseene e 22 28
Total accruing loans contractually past due 90 days OF MOFE.........ccccceeeeeieiececece e 30 34
Total NONPEITOIMING JOANS..........ccv ettt ettt e e e se st e s tesaeetesteseesrenteseneeneenenns $ 1137 % 1,339

@ At June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, residential mortgage loan nonaccrual balances include $849 million and $866 million, respectively, of loans that
are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell.

@ Nonaccrual residential mortgages includes all receivables which are 90 or more days contractually delinquent as well as loans discharged under Chapter 7
bankruptcy and not re-affirmed and second lien loans where the first lien loan that we own or service is 90 or more days contractually delinquent.

®  Residential mortgage nonaccrual loans for all periods does not include guaranteed loans purchased from the Government National Mortgage Association
("GNMA"). Repayment of these loans are predominantly insured by the Federal Housing Administration and as such, these loans have different risk
characteristics from the rest of our customer loan portfolio.

The following table provides additional information on our nonaccrual loans:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)

Interest income that would have been recorded if the nonaccrual oans had been

current in accordance with contractual terms during the period..........ccceeeveeeincininnnns $ 22 %$ 30% 4 $ 61
Interest income that was recorded on nonaccrual loans and included in interest
iNCOmMe during the PEFIOM .......cceeuiieerecee e e e r e 6 8 14 11
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Impaired Loans A loan is considered to be impaired when it is deemed probable that not all principal and interest amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement will be collected. Probable losses from impaired loans are quantified and
recorded as a component of the overall allowance for credit losses. Commercia and consumer loans for which we have modified
the loan terms as part of a troubled debt restructuring are considered to be impaired loans. Additionally, commercial loans in
nonaccrual status, or that have been partially charged-off or assigned a specific allowance for credit losses are aso considered
impaired loans.

Troubled debt restructurings Troubled debt restructurings ("TDR Loans") represent loansfor which the original contractua terms
have been modified to provide for termsthat are less than what we would be willing to accept for new loans with comparabl e risk
because of deterioration in the borrower’s financial condition.

Modificationsfor consumer or commercial loans may include changesto one or moreterms of theloan, including, but not limited
to, achangeininterest rate, extension of the amortization period, reduction in payment amount and partial forgiveness or deferment
of principal. A substantial amount of our modificationsinvolveinterest rate reductions which lower the amount of interest income
wearecontractually entitled to receivein future periods. Throughlowering theinterest rate and other |oan term changes, we believe
we are able to increase the amount of cash flow that will ultimately be collected from the loan, given the borrower’s financial
condition. TDR Loans are reserved for either based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans
original effective interest rates which generaly results in a higher reserve requirement for these loans or in the case of certain
secured loans, the estimated fair value of the underlying collateral. Once aconsumer loanisclassified asaTDR Loan, it continues
to be reported as such until it is paid off or charged-off. For commercial loans, if subsequent performance is in accordance with
the new terms and such termsreflect current market rates at the time of restructure, they will no longer be reported asaTDR Loan
beginning inthe year after restructuring. Since 2012, there have been no commercial loans that met this criteriaand were removed
from TDR Loan classification.

The following table presents information about receivables which were modified during the three and six months ended June 30,
2014 and 2013 and as aresult of this action became classified as TDR Loans:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)
Commercial loans:
Construction and other real estate $ — % 2% — 3 32
Business and corporate banking..........ccoceoeeerererienene e e 11 5 11 9
Other commercial — — 10 —
TOtal COMMEICIAL.........eceiieieicieieseeeee e s sresresresnens 11 37 21 41
Consumer loans:
ReSIdential MOMGAgES. ......coveverieirieerierteeie e 47 49 81 92
L@ o ] oo 1 1 3 1
TOt@Al CONSUMEY .....ccviieeciecie sttt ettt e sre e e s aeeeesbeetesreenbesreestesreenteeneanseenns 48 50 84 93
1 - RO $ 59 $ 8 $ 105 $ 134

The weighted-average contractual rate reduction for consumer loans which became classified as TDR Loans during the three and
six months ended June 30, 2014 was 1.52 percent and 1.51 percent, respectively, compared with 2.07 percent and 2.06 percent
during thethree and six months ended June 30, 2013, respectively. The wei ghted-average contractual rate reduction for commercial
loans was not significant in either the number of loans or rate.
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The following tables present information about our TDR Loans and the related credit loss reserves for TDR Loans:

June 30, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)

TDR Loans?®:
Commercial loans:
Construction and Other real ESEALE............coiiiee e $ 205 $ 292
Business and Corporate DaNKiNG..........ccoeureireiiniees s 28 21
GlODA DANKING......c.evieet bbb bbb — 51
Other COMIMEICIAL......c.eeeeeceeeeeeese et s s e s aesbestesae st e besteseeneenseneennenens — 25
TOtal COMMEICIAL ..ottt ettt e e sae e e s re e teeaeesbeeaeesbeeasesaeensesanenens 233 389
Consumer loans:
Residential MOMGAgES™..........c..ovvvuervieesecesse s 959 973
(@10 ] oo SRR 8 8
TOLAl CONSUMEY ... .o iteeie s teete ettt et e et e st e e ae e s te et e saeeeesaeeaesaeentesaeenbesseenteesseseeseesseensesaeensesanensens 967 981
TOE TDR LOBNS™ ..o ess s aens s $ 1200 $ 1370

June 30, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)

Allowance for credit losses for TDR Loans®:
Commercial loans:

Construction and OthEr FEAl ESEALE..........cceeeee i sb e e sre e saee e $ 2 $ 16
Business and Corporate DanKinNg...........ccoouaereririrene e s se et be e se e e 5 1
TOtEl COMMENCIEL .....eveie e 7 17
Consumer loans:
RS0 - 10 0= o = 58 68
CIEAIT CAITS.......evieetie ettt bbb e bt et b et b ettt b e nbe 2 2
TOBl CONSUIMIET......ceeeriiis ittt r et r et rer e n e 60 70
Total allowance for credit 10SSeSfOr TDR LOANS.......ccoiiiieeiieeciee ettt ettt sre e sreeeane e sreas $ 67 $ 87
@ TDRLoansareconsidered to beimpaired |oans. For consumer loans, all such loansare considered impaired loansregardlessof accrual status. For commercial
loans, impaired loans include other loans in addition to TDR Loans which totaled $33 million and $92 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively.
@

The TDR Loan balances included in the table above reflect the current carrying amount of TDR Loans and includes all basis adjustments on the loan, such
asunearnedincome, unamortized deferred feesand costson originated | oans, partial charge-offsand premiumsor discountson purchased loans. Thefollowing
table reflects the unpaid principal balance of TDR Loans:
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June 30, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)

Commercial loans:

Construction and OthEr FEAl ESEALE .........c.coirurueererieeiert ettt bbbt bbb bbb s $ 219 % 309
Business and corporate Danking ... 68 60
GlODEI DANKING ... — 51
Other commercial — 28
Total commercia 287 448
Consumer loans:
ReSIAENtIAl MOMGAgES ......cocuiieiiiieiciicic bbb bbb 1,145 1,153
CIOAIT CAIS......veuieeeieeeieieer ettt ettt h ettt s e b et s e ket £ b e b e e b e b e e b e b e Re s e e bR e e b e ket et e b e b e e et e b ettt ene s 8 8
TOBI CONSUITIEN ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt 1,153 1,161
LI = TSSOSO $ 1440 $ 1,609

®  Includes $725 million and $706 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, of loans that are recorded at the lower of amortized cost or
fair value of the collateral less cost to sell.

@ Includes $343 million and $458 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, of loans which are classified as nonaccrual.
®  Included in the allowance for credit losses.

The following table presents information about average TDR Loans and interest income recognized on TDR Loans:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)
Average balance of TDR Loans
Commercial loans:
Construction and other real EStaLe........c.ccccvevereeeiiieecreeece e $ 220 $ 290 $ 244 $ 307
Business and corporate banking...........coeovirvinninnieneeneese s 23 30 22 49
GlobEl BANKING ... e — — 17 —
Other COMMENCIAL ......ocvieieee ettt et e be st ereens 5 29 12 30
Total COMMEICIAL.....c.coveieeeicieee e resresnesre s 248 349 295 386
Consumer loans:
Residential MOMgagES.........curerireirieriere et 948 890 947 906
L= [} o= o SRS 8 12 8 13
TOtAl CONSUMEY ......eeeeicieecte ettt ettt e e s te e e saeeaesreestesaeebesanetesreans 956 902 955 919
Total average balance of TDR LOANS........cccueuioieieieeceeeeeeeteteee et vere e $ 1,204 $ 1251 $ 1,250 $ 1,305

Interest income recognized on TDR Loans
Commercial loans:

Construction and other real EStALe...........cccvcveveeeeeeeceeeeee e $ 2 $ 3 % 8 $ 5

Other COMMENCIE .......cveeeieie e e s tesreens — 1 — 2

Total COMMEICIAL.......c.oieeieceee et st erens 2 4 8 7
Consumer loans:

Residential MOrgagES.........cuvverireerieirieeree e 9 8 18 17

TOtAl CONSUMEY ......eeeeicieecte ettt ettt e e s te e e saeeaesreestesaeebesanetesreans 9 8 18 17

Total interest income recognized 0N TDR LOANS.......ccccvvieeviceriee et $ 11 $ 12 $ 26 $ 24
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The following table presents loans which were classified as TDR Loans during the previous 12 months which for commercial
loans became 90 days or greater contractually delinquent or for consumer loansbecame 60 daysor greater contractually delinquent
during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013;

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013

(in millions)

Commercial loans:

Construction and Other real ESLALE..............cccvevvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et $ — % — 3% 12 —

Total COMMEICIAL......cceeiiieiectieteee et et be e s ae e resaeesreeneas — — 12 —
Consumer loans:

Residential MOMgagES.......ccveveiieriieiese ettt ene s 9 11 17 24

TOtAl CONSUMEY ..ottt ettt ettt et et st te s e s be s e s beeaeesbeeasesbeenseeneensesnnesreennas 9 11 17 24
L1 1 $ 9 % 11 3 29 $ 24

Impaired commercial loans The following table summarizesimpaired commercia loan statistics:

Amount
Amount with without Total Impaired
Impairment Impairment Commercial Impairment
Reserves Reserves Loans(l)(z) Reserve
(in millions)

At June 30, 2014
Construction and other real estate...........ccoveeevevieeicieeeceee e, $ 19 $ 194 $ 213 %
Business and corporate banking............coceerereneneneneereeieseeesenee 32 11 43 8
Global banKing.......ccccoeeeieeeceece e — — — —
Other COMMENCIAL........coveeireirrereere et 2 8 10 2
1 - $ 53 % 213 $ 266 $ 14
At December 31, 2013 -
Construction and other real estate..........ccoeeveeevevieciciecececeeeeeee, $ 122 % 211 $ 333 $ 32
Business and corporate banking............coceerereneneneneeneeeeeeesenee 28 12 40 3
Global BaNKINg.......c.coiiiie e 14 51 65 5
Other COMMEICIAL........coeeirieerere e 1 42 43 —
TOA .ot b e re s $ 165 $ 316 $ 481 $ 40

@ Includesimpaired commercial loans that are also considered TDR Loans which totaled $233 million and $389 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31,
2013, respectively.

@ Theimpaired commercial loan balancesincluded in the table above reflect the current carrying amount of the loan and includes all basis adjustments, such
as partial charge-offs, unamortized deferred fees and costs on originated loans and any premiums or discounts. The following table reflects the unpaid
principal balance of impaired commercial loans included in the table above:

June 30, December 31,
2014 2013
(in millions)
Construction and OthET FEAl ESLALE ..........ucueriririeeieeie sttt se sttt eebe e st ese e besnsesenteneneas $ 232 $ 380
BUSINESS aNd COrPOrate DANKING .......cuevveieieieteieieiet ettt bbbttt b bbbt ebeas 93 91
GlODE] DANKING ...ttt — 123
OLNEr COMIMENTIE ...t 10 47
TOLAL... ettt R ARt $ 33 $ 641
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The following table presents information about average impaired commercial loan balances and interest income recognized on
the impaired commercial loans:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)

Average balance of impaired commercial loans:

Construction and other real EStALE..........ccvvvvereieririeeeiesse e s $ 237 $ 353 $ 269 $ 401
Business and corporate DanKing............coeorerrernenseneereeseee e 36 58 37 74
Global BaNKiNG......ccoeiiiece s s — 18 22 18
Other COMMEITIAL ..ot e e 15 69 24 71
Total average balance of impaired commercial 10ans...........cccovvreeercecennnens $ 288 $ 498 $ 352 $ 564
Interest income recognized on impaired commercial loans: -
Construction and other real ESLALE............ccvvvveverisrsrese s $ 2 $ 4 $ 8 $ 7
Other COMMEITIAL.......eiuiieieierie et sbe e — 2 — 3
Total interest income recognized on impaired commercial loans...............cccveuneee. $ 2 $ 6 $ 8 $ 10

Commercial Loan Credit Quality Indicators The following credit quality indicators are monitored for our commercial loan
portfolio:

Criticized asset classifications Criticized loan classifications are based on the risk rating standards of our primary regulator.
Problem loans are assigned various criticized facility grades. We also assign obligor grades which are used under our alowance
for credit losses methodology. The following facility grades are deemed to be criticized:

«  Special Mention — generally includes loans that are protected by collateral and/or the credit worthiness of the customer, but
are potentially weak based upon economic or market circumstances which, if not checked or corrected, could weaken our
credit position at some future date.

e Substandard —includes loans that are inadequately protected by the underlying collateral and/or general credit worthiness of
the customer. Theseloans present adistinct possibility that we will sustain somelossif the deficienciesare not corrected. This
category also includes certain non-investment grade securities, as required by our principal regulator.

*  Doubtful —includes loans that have all the weaknesses exhibited by substandard loans, with the added characteristic that the
weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full of the recorded loan highly improbable. However, although the possibility
of lossis extremely high, certain factors exist which may strengthen the credit at some future date, and therefore the decision
to charge off the loan is deferred. Loans graded as doubtful are required to be placed in nonaccruing status.

The following table summarizes criticized assets for commercia loans:

Special Mention ~ Substandard Doubtful Total
(in millions)

At June 30, 2014

Construction and other real estate.........coovvvveveecereeeececee e $ 287 $ 208 $ 8 $ 593
Business and corporate banking...........cccooeeeernieneneenceeeee 715 153 4 872
Global DaNKING........ccorimiierreere e s 70 161 — 231
Other COMMEXCIA..........coi e 37 21 1 59
oL OO $ 1,109 $ 633 $ 13 $ 1,755
At December 31, 2013 -
Construction and other real estate.........ccocevveeveecceeecreeceecee e, $ 3B1 $ 346 $ 30 $ 727
Business and corporate banking..........ccocooereienrieneineiensinee e 557 156 2 715
Global banKing........ccoereiereeeee e 367 112 5 484
Other COMMEICIAL......cccoieceeieece e 79 33 — 112
L= OO $ 1,354 $ 647 $ 37 $ 2038

25



HSBC USA Inc.

Nonperforming The following table summarizes the status of our commercial loan portfolio:

Accruing Loans
Performing Nonaccrual Contractually Past
Loans Loans Due 90 days or More Total

(in millions)

At June 30, 2014

Commercial:
Construction and other real estate.........ccccoveveevvcevcevenenene, $ 9,618 $ 64 $ — 3 9,682
Business and corporate banking ..........ccccceeeeeerienenienenennn. 15,921 28 7 15,956
Global banKing..........ccoovvererievereeeee e 24,268 — — 24,268
Other COMMEICIA .......cvveieeie e 3,124 2 1 3,127
Total COMMECIAl .......ocoeeieiicee et $ 52931 $ 94 % 8 $ 53,033
At December 31, 2013
Commercial:
Construction and other real estate..........ccooveeeveieeecveecenen. $ 8,868 $ 166 $ — $ 9,034
Business and corporate banking ............cccconviiiiiininnnn. 14,420 21 5 14,446
Global banKing..........cccceiiveieiieeeece e 21,560 65 — 21,625
Other COMMEICIAl .....c.eeeeveieeeeee e 3,386 2 1 3,389
Total COMMEICIAl........eeiiviieeeie e $ 48234 $ 254 $ 6 $ 48,494

Credit risk profile The following table shows the credit risk profile of our commercial loan portfolio:

Non-
Investment Investment
Grade Grade Total

(in millions)

At June 30, 2014

Construction and Other real EEALE ........ccveevveeiieiceece et $ 7159 $ 2523 $ 9,682
Business and corporate DanKing ... 7,845 8,111 15,956
(€1 To o I o =T a 2q 1 oo TR 21,140 3,128 24,268
Other COMIMETCIAL .....c.vicveeieceece ettt sttt b e e b et e sbeesbesaeesaesneesresnnesaeennens 1,608 1,519 3,127

TOtal COMMIEICIAL ...ttt ettt e et eebe e st e e saeesareesbeeeaneenreas $ 37,752 $ 15281 $ 53,033
At December 31, 2013 -
Construction and Other real EEALE ........coveeviiiee e e $ 6069 $ 2965 $ 9,034
Business and corporate Danking ...........ccceoreeinnncir e 7,279 7,167 14,446
GIODEl DANKING ... s r et e e e e eneas 18,636 2,989 21,625
Other COMIMETCIAL .....c.vieveeieceee ettt et et be e e saeeaeesreeaesreennens 1,583 1,806 3,389

TOtAl COMMENCIA] ...t er e er e $ 33567 $ 14,927 $ 48,49
(1)

Investment grade includes commercial 1oans with credit ratings of at least BBB- or above or the equivalent based on our internal credit rating system.
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Consumer Loan Credit Quality Indicators The following credit quality indicators are utilized for our consumer loan portfolio:

Delinquency The following table summarizes dollars of two-months-and-over contractual delinquency and as a percent of total
loans and loans held for sale ("delinquency ratio") for our consumer loan portfolio:

June 30, 2014 December 31, 2013
Delinquent  Delinquency  Delinquent  Delinquency
Loans Ratio Loans Ratio

(dollars are in millions)

Consumer:
Residential MOrtgages.........ccovvueiivererirecisee e s $ 1,086 6.73% $ 1,208 7.59%
HOME equity MOIMQAgES ......ccceeruerierieetere sttt 59 3.08 68 3.38
Total residential MOrtgages™...........oocuevveeeeeeeeeceeeeeeeeeee e 1,145 6.34 1,276 7.11
Credit CarUS.. ..o 15 2.20 21 2.46
OthEr CONSUMIE ....c.viitiiiitiiesie sttt sb e e se et 15 2.78 19 3.32
TOtAl CONSUMEY .......oceiieeeie sttt ettt e e st eessae e s be e tesae e besae e beereenes $ 1,175 6.10% $ 1,316 6.80%
@

At June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, residential mortgage loan delinquency includes $983 million and $1,074 million, respectively, of loans that are
carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell.

Nonperforming The following table summarizes the status of our consumer loan portfolio:
Accruing Loans

Performing Nonaccrual Contractually Past
Loans Loans Due 90 days or More Total

(in millions)

At June 30, 2014

Consumer:
Residential MOMgagesS ........ccceveveveveeeieeereeeeee et $ 15218 $ 879 $ — $ 16,097
Home equity MOMgages.........coueeereerererereeesiese e 1,845 69 — 1,914
Total residential MOrtQagES........coveveereererrerreeerere e sesee e 17,063 948 — 18,011
Credit Cards.......cocevececeee e 670 — 11 681
OthEr CONSUMEY ....c.vviiviecieecree st et sree e sresssbessesssbessreesaree e 462 — 11 473
TOLAl CONSUMET .....ceveeiteie ettt e st s e e s be e s sba e s sbe e e s snbessanes $ 18,195 $ 9248 $ 22 $ 19,165
At December 31, 2013 - -
Consumer:
Residential MOrtgagesS .....ccocvveerereereereeeeeee e $ 14877 $ 949 $ — $ 15826
HOme equity MOMGagES. .......ccvrveuerreerreenreesrees e 1,934 77 — 2,011
Total residential MOrtgagesS........coveverererenerenererese e 16,811 1,026 — 17,837
(O 0 [ o= (0 TR 840 — 14 854
Other CONSUMIES ......veeveciietecteeete ettt ebeens 496 — 14 510
TOtAl CONSUMET ...ttt ettt sbe s sba e s s sabeesenes $ 18,147 $ 1,026 $ 28 $ 19,201

Troubled debt restructurings See discussion of impaired loans above for further details on this credit quality indicator.

Concentration of Credit Risk At June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, our loan portfolio included interest-only residential
mortgage loans totaling $3,645 million and $3,643 million, respectively. An interest-only residential mortgage loan alows a
customer to pay the interest-only portion of the monthly payment for a period of time which resultsin lower payments during the
initial loan period. However, subsequent events affecting a customer's financial position could affect the ability of customers to
repay the loan in the future when the principal payments are required which increases the credit risk of thisloan type.
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5. Allowance for Credit Losses

The following table summarizes the changesin the allowance for credit losses by product and the related oan balance by product
during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013:

Commercial Consumer
Business
Construction and Home
and Other Corporate Global Other Residential Equity Credit Other
Real Estate Banking Banking Comm’l Mortgages Mortgages Card Consumer Total
(in millions)
Three Months Ended June 30, 2014
Allowance for credit losses — beginning
Of PENTO ... $ 93 $ 129 $ 67 $ 19 $ 156 $ 52 $ 45 $ 13 $ 574
Provision charged (credited) to income.... 6 56 29 9) 7 (8) 4 — 85
Charge offs......cocoevvcerncereeen (5) (6) — — (19) 3) (12) 3) (48)
RECOVENES ... — 1 — 3 5 1 2 1 13
Net (charge offs) recoveries...........ccceuu... (5) (5) — 3 (14) ) (10) 2) (35)
Allowance for credit losses—end of
[T 1o ISR $ 94 $ 180 $ 9% $ 13 $ 149 $ 42 $ 39 $ 11 $ 624
Three Months Ended June 30, 2013
Allowance for credit losses — beginning
OF PENIOT ..o $ 16 $ 9% $ 40 $ 17 $ 192 $ 5 $ 42 $ 15 $ 568
Provision charged (credited) to income.... (14) 15 29 (4 14 13 13 1 67
Charge offS......ccceeeeecceceeceeeea D 9) — — (13) (12) (11 (©)] (48)
RECOVENES ... 9 1 — 4 3 — 1 — 18
Net (charge offs) recoveries... 8 (8) — 4 (120) (11) (10 3 (30)
Allowance for credit losses—end of
[91= 1o o TR $ 110 $ 103 $ 69 $ 17 % 196 $ 52 $ 45 $ 13 $ 605
Six Months Ended June 30, 2014
Allowance for credit losses — beginning
Of PENTO ... $ 08 $ 112 $ 68 $ 20 $ 186 $ 49 $ 50 $ 13 $ 606
Provision charged (credited) to income.... 8 75 36 (13) 9) (6) 9 1 101
Charge offS......cceeeeeceeceeceeeea (24) (11) (8) — (36) (8) (23) (5) (115)
RECOVENES ... 2 4 — 6 8 7 3 2 32
Net (charge offs) recoveries........c..ceuene. (22) ) (8) 6 (28) (1) (20) 3) (83)
Allowance for credit losses—end of
[T 1o [ $ 94 $ 180 $ 9% $ 13 $ 149 $ 42 $ 39 $ 11 $ 624
Ending balance: collectively evaluated
for impairment ... $ 90 $ 172 $ 9% $ 1 $ 93 $ 40 $ 37 $ 11 $ 550
Ending balance: individually evaluated
forimpairment .........ccccoceevevereeeveveeeene 4 8 — 2 56 2 2 — 74
Total alowance for credit losses.............. $ 9% $ 180 $ 96 $ 13 3 149 $ 42 $ 39 $ 11 $ 624
Loans:
Collectively evaluated for impairment.... ¢ 9469 ¢ 15913 $24268 $ 3117 $ 14200 $ 1895 §$ 673 $ 473 $70,098
Individually evaluated for impairment® .. 213 43 . 10 215 19 8 _ 508
Loans carried at lower of amortized cost
or fair valuelesscost to sell ..................... — — — — 1,592 — — — 1,592

Total 10aNS. ... $ 9,682 $ 15956 $24,268 $ 3,127 $ 16097 $ 1,914 $ 681 $ 473 $72,198
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Commercial Consumer
Business
Construction and Home
and Other Corporate Global Other Residential Equity Credit Other
Real Estate Banking Banking Comm’l Mortgages Mortgages Card Consumer Total
(in millions)

Six Months Ended June 30, 2013
Allowance for credit losses — beginning

Of PENTO ..o $ 162 $ 97 $ 41 3 17 $ 210 $ 45 $ 55 % 20 $ 647
Provision charged (credited) to income.... (5) 17 28 4) 11 30 11 — 88

Charge offS.....ccveeerreenreeeeeeee (59) (15) — — (29) (23) (23) 9) (158)

Recoveries 12 4 — 4 4 — 2 2 28
Net (charge offs) recoveries..................... (47) (11) — 4 (25) (23 (21) @) (130)
Allowance for credit losses—end of

315 (oo PR $ 10 $ 103 $ 69 $ 17 $ 196 $ 52 $ 45 $ 13 $ 605
Ending balance: collectively evaluated

for impairment ...........ccceeveveveverererennan $ 84 $ 99 $ 69 $ 17 3 122 $ 49 $ 41 % 13 $ 486
Ending balance: individually evaluated

for impairment .........ccccoceoeeereveeeerenennne. 26 12 — — 74 3 4 — 119
Tota allowance for credit losses.............. $ 110 $ 103 $ 69 $ 17 3 19% $ 52 $ 45 $ 13 $ 605
Loans:
Collectively evaluated for impairment..... $ 8064 $ 12323 $23321 $ 2941 $ 14057 $ 2151 $ 847 $ 574 $64,278
Individually evaluated for impairment® .. 465 68 18 64 212 21 11 — 859
Loans carried at lower of amortized cost
or fair vauelesscost to sall ..o — — — — 1,568 — — — 1,568
Total 10aNS ... $ 8529 $ 12391 $23339 $ 3005 $ 15837 $ 2172 $ 858 $ 574  $66,705

For consumer loans and certain small business loans, these amounts represent TDR Loans for which we evaluate reserves using a discounted cash flow
methodology. Eachloanisindividually identified asaTDR L oan and then grouped together with other TDR L oanswith similar characteristics. Thediscounted
cash flow analysis is then applied to these groups of TDR Loans. Loans individually evaluated for impairment exclude TDR loans that are carried at the
lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell which totaled $725 million and $657 million at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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6. Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale consisted of the following:

June 30, December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)

COMMENCIAI [OBNS ......oocveeiicieee ettt st e e e be et e e te e be s e e sbeeseesheenaesbeeatesbeenbesteentesseansesnnannes $ 396 $ 76
Consumer loans:

RESIAENtIA MOMGAGES ......e.eeveeeterietereeiert ettt bbbt b et b et bbb 38 91

OFNEr CONSUMIET ... .eveie ettt b et e e st e e e e e e e e s e e seesesseetessesae st e beseessententensenseneenes 66 63
TOLAl CONSUMEY ...ttt ettt e e et e et e et eete et e steeteshe e besbeesbesasebeeaeanbeeaseebeenseebeeseereessesaeesteensetennsanes 104 154
Total [0ANS NEIA FOF SAIE.......ceeeceeiitieeee et sttt et e s st e e b e s satesbe s sabessbessaaeesbeas $ 500 $ 230

We originate commercial loans in connection with our participation in a number of syndicated credit facilities. Syndicated |oans
that are originated with the intent of selling them to unaffiliated third parties are classified as commercial loans held for sale. The
fair valueof commercial loansheld for saleunder thisprogram was $159 million and $58 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31,
2013, respectively. We have elected to designate all commercial syndicated |oans classified as held for sale at fair value under the
fair value option. See Note 10, "Fair Value Option," for additional information.

Commercial loans held for sale also includes $43 million of global banking loans at June 30, 2014, which were transferred to held
for saleduring thefirst half of 2014, aswell ascommercial real estate |loanstotaling $194 million and $18 million at June 30, 2014
and December 31, 2013, respectively.

We el al our agency eligible loan originations servicing released directly to PHH Mortgage Corporation ("PHH Mortgage”).
Alsoincluded in residential mortgage loans held for sale are subprime residential mortgage loans with afair value of $23 million
and $46 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, which were acquired from unaffiliated third parties and
from HSBC Finance Corporation ("HSBC Finance") with the intent of securitizing or selling the loans to third parties. Gains and
losses from the sale of residential mortgage loans are reflected as a component of residential mortgage banking revenue in the
accompanying consolidated statement of income.

Loans held for sale are subject to market risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk, in that their value will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market conditions, as well as the credit environment. PHH Mortgage is obligated to purchase agency eligible loans
from us as of the earlier of when the customer locks the mortgage |oan pricing or when the mortgage [oan application is approved.
As such, we retain none of the risk of market changesin mortgage rates for these loans.

Other consumer loans held for sale includes certain student loans which we no longer originate.

Excluding the commercia loans designated under fair value option discussed above, loans held for sale are recorded at the lower
of amortized cost or fair value. While the initial carrying amount of consumer loans held for sale continued to exceed fair value
at June 30, 2014, we experienced a decrease in the valuation allowance for consumer loans held for sale during the six months
ended June 30, 2014 due primarily to loan sales. The valuation allowance on consumer loans held for sale was $46 million and
$77 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The valuation allowance on commercial loans held for sale
was $7 million at June 30, 2014 compared with no allowance at December 31, 2013.
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7. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consisted of the following:

June 30, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)

Mortgage servicing rights:
RESIAENTIAL .......ecveeeeiee ettt e st e e e e e e eseesesaesaenbesaesrenteneeseensensenneneeneas $ 186 $ 227
LO0] 00107 o = USRS 2 10
Total Mortgage SErVICING FIGNES ..ottt e e e e e neens $ 188 $ 237
Purchased credit card relationNShiPS. ... ....coucererererer e e 50 54
Favorable |€aS8 agIrEEMENLS ........cceierereeee ettt s e e seese s e s resbestesae st e besee e eneeneennns 2 4
Total INTANGIDIE ASSELS......ee ettt b e b b e e e et e e $ 240 $ 295

Mortgage Servicing Rights (""MSRs") A servicing asset is a contract under which estimated future revenues from contractually
specified cash flows, such as servicing fees and other ancillary revenues, are expected to exceed the obligation to service the
financial assets. We recognize the right to service mortgage loans as a separate and distinct asset at the time they are acquired or
when originated loans are sold.

MSRs are subject to credit, prepayment and interest rate risk, in that their value will fluctuate as a result of changes in these
economic variables. Interest rate risk is mitigated through an economic hedging program that uses securities and derivatives to
offset changesin thefair value of MSRs. Since the hedging program involvestrading activity, risk isquantified and managed using
anumber of risk assessment techniques.

Residential mortgage servicing rights Residential MSRs are initially measured at fair value at the time that the related |oans are
sold and remeasured at fair value at each reporting date. Changes in fair value of MSRs are reflected in residential mortgage
banking revenuein the period in which the changes occur. Fair valueis determined based upon the application of valuation models
and other inputs. The valuation models incorporate assumptions market participants would use in estimating future cash flows.
The reasonableness of these valuation modelsis periodically validated by reference to external independent broker valuations and
industry surveys.

The following table summarizes the critical assumptions used to calculate the fair value of residential MSRs:

June 30, December 31,

2014 2013
Annualized constant prepayment rate ("CPR™)......cocoiieiierrerere st 13.8% 11.3%
CONSLANE AISCOUNE FBLE.........eeeereeeeerere et s e n et r e neneae 13.3 12.7
Weighted average life (iN YEAIS) ......cvi ittt 4.6 53

The following table summarizes residential MSRs activity:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013

(in millions)

Fair value of MSRs:

Beginning BalanCe ........ccuciiicecccce et $ 205 $ 190 $ 227 $ 168
Additions related t0 108N SAIES........cceieeieeeeeee s — 5 — 11
Changesin fair value due to:
Change in vauation model inputs or assUMPLIONS ........ccoevveerenerenseseneenns (12) 43 (24) 69
CUSLOMES PAYIMENLS .....veeeeieeiirieiereeesr et e ere e sb s e ss e bbb e s s (7 (13) @an (23)
ENAING DAIANCE ...ttt ettt st $ 186 $ 225 $ 186 $ 225

The outstanding principal balance of serviced for others mortgages, which are not included in the consolidated balance sheet,
totaled $25,041 million and $26,951 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
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Servicing fees collected are included in residential mortgage banking revenue and totaled $17 million and $35 million during the
three and six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively, compared with $21 million and $42 million during the three and six months
ended June 30, 2013, respectively.

During the second quarter of 2013, we completed the conversion of our mortgage processing and servicing operations to PHH
Mortgage. Under the terms of the agreement, PHH Mortgage provides us with mortgage origination processing services as well
asthe sub-servicing of our portfolio of owned and serviced for others mortgages with an outstanding principal balance of $42,375
millionand $44,039 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Althoughwecontinueto own both themortgages
on our balance sheet and the mortgage servicing rights associated with the serviced loans at the time of conversion, we now sell
our agency €ligible originations beginning with May 2013 applications to PHH Mortgage on a servicing released basis which
results in no new mortgage servicing rights being recognized.

Commercial mortgage servicing rights Commercial M SRs represent servicing rights associated with commercial mortgage loans
originated and sold to FNMA and FHLMC and are accounted for using the lower of amortized cost or fair value method. During
thefourth quarter of 2013, we decided to sell $8 million of our commercial MSRs and, as aresult, we considered these assets held
for sale at June 30, 2014 and is reflected in other assets on the consolidated balance sheet. As the estimated sales price of these
MSRswas in excess of its carrying amount, these M SRs continue to be carried at amortized cost. In July 2014, we completed the
sale of these MSRsto athird party for $22 million, which will result in the recognition of again of $16 million in the third quarter
of 2014.

Purchased credit card relationships InMarch 2012, we purchased from HSBC Finance the account rel ationships associ ated with
$746 million of credit card receivables which were not included in the sale to Capital One Financial Corporation at afair value of
$108 million. Approximately $43 million of this value was associated with the credit card receivables sold to First Niagara Bank,
National Association. Theremaining $65 million wasincluded inintangible assetsand isbeing amortized over the estimated useful
life of the credit card relationships which is ten years.

8. Goodwill

During the first half of 2014, there were no events or changes in circumstances to indicate that it is more likely than not that the
fair values of any of our reporting units have reduced below their respective carrying amounts.

9. Derivative Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, the derivative instruments entered into are for trading, market making and risk management
purposes. For financial reporting purposes, a derivative instrument is designated in one of the following categories: (a) financial
instruments held for trading, (b) hedging instruments designated as a qualifying hedge under derivative and hedge accounting
principles or (c) anon-qualifying economic hedge. The derivativeinstruments held are predominantly swaps, futures, options and
forward contracts. All derivatives are stated at fair value. Where we enter into enforceable master netting arrangements with
counterparties, the master netting arrangements permit us to net those derivative asset and liability positions and to offset cash
collateral held and posted with the same counterparty.

Thefollowing table presentsthefair value of derivative contracts by major product typeon agrossbasis. Grossfair values exclude
the effects of both counterparty netting aswell as collateral, and therefore are not representative of our exposure. The table below
presents the amounts of counterparty netting and cash collateral that have been offset in the consolidated balance sheet, aswell as
cash and securities collateral posted and received under enforceable credit support agreements that do not meet the criteria for
netting. Derivative assetsand liabilitieswhich are not subject to an enforceable master netting agreement, or are subject to anetting
agreement that we have not yet determined to be enforceable, have not been netted in the table bel ow. Where we have received or
posted collateral under credit support agreements, but have not yet determined such agreementsareenforceabl e, therel ated col lateral
also has not been netted in the table below.
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June 30, 2014 December 31, 2013
Derivative Derivative Derivative Derivative
assets liabilities assets liabilities

(in millions)
Derivatives accounted for as fair value hedges®

OTC-CIEAIEAD ... e e s s s s see s eee s eeseneees $ 20 $ 132 $ 75 $ 20
BIlateral OTCP ...t s s s s ses et es e s see s st eesee s see s 60 254 203 192
INTEFESE FALE CONTIACTS ......c.veeieieceee ettt et s e st e e s te e st e e s be s st e e sbessabeesbeesressreesanes 80 386 278 212

Derivatives accounted for as cash flow hedges®

Bilateral OTC? 1 18 — 3
Foreign eXChange CONTIACES ...........c.ceovcveuieeieececee ettt es 1 18 —
14 —_ 16 —
5 111 16 62
19 111 32 62
Total derivatives accounted fOr as NEAGES..........ccoveveueuieieeeeeeeeeeeee et 100 515 310 277
Trading derivatives not accounted for as hedges®
EXCHANGELIA0EUP ..ot e s ees s e ee s ee st ees e eesssseesaeesseeeeresee s 9 37 82 32
OTC-CEAEAD .......ooo oo ssssessss s sesssssssones 21,454 22,595 24,218 25,468
Bilateral OTCP ...........covovveveeeeereseseeese e sessseessssssssss e ssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssssssssssss s 30,814 30,486 31,097 30,451
INTEIESE FAE CONTIACTS .......eveeeeiieieieeeiete ettt sae e teae e nnesae e ene e 52,364 53,118 55,397 55,951
EXChANGETA0E0P ..............oooooeeviceseeesseeeesesseeeessessess e essssssssssssssessssesessssssssssssss e 29 — 7 16
2T = @ OO 12,745 11,586 15,422 14,565
Foreign eXChange CONTIACTS ...........ccccviceiiiicecces et b e s 12,774 11,586 15,429 14,581
Equity contract - bilateral OTCP . ........ovoieoeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeseeeeseeseeses s eeseseesesnees 1,421 1,418 1,413 1,412
EXChANGETA0E0P ...........oovoooooeeveeseeeeseeeesesveeeessesssss e essssssssssssssesssseeessssssssssssssssse e 3 138 181 6
BilGEral OTCP . .......oooooeceeveeeeeeeees s sssss s s ss s 643 637 1,402 815
Precious Metals CONTIACTS..........ccccviievieieieececece ettt ettt ene e 646 775 1,583 821
OTC-CIEAEID ..ot eess s ss st eessssss e 516 540 576 604
BlAeral OTCP ... sses s ss s sese s 3,283 3,369 4,079 4,104
Credit CONTIACTS ...ttt ettt be s bbbt se et be st ebe e nenens 3,799 3,909 4,655 4,708
Other derivatives not accounted for as hedges®)
Interest rate contracts - DIlateral OTCP ... eee e eee e 604 74 470 91
Foreign exchange contracts - bilateral OTC® ..o seeeseeeees 1 18 — 44
Equity contracts - bilateral OTC® .............ccooooovveioeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e seseeeeeee s 806 102 789 148
Precious metals contracts - Bilateral OTCP ... — 19 — 36
Credit contracts - Bilateral OTC@ ... eeee e eee e ee e eeeee e seeeeeeeen 17 12 9 11
Total derivatives 72,532 71,546 80,055 78,080

Less: Gross amounts of receivable / payable subject to enforceable master netting
AGFEEMENES ) | oo ee e ee e e e seese et s et s e s ee et see e reees 63,522 63,522 68,616 68,616

Less: Gross amounts)(gf cash collateral received / posted subject to enforceable master

netting agreements 3,128 2,277 3,870 2,116
Net amounts of derivative assets / liabilities presented in the balance sheet 5,882 5,747 7,569 7,348
Less: Gross amounts of financial instrument collateral received / posted subject to

enforceable master netting agreements but not offset in the consolidated balance sheet 1,247 2,160 1,641 3,094
Net amounts of derivative assets / labilities ..o $ 4635 $ 3587 $ 5928 $ 4,254

@ Derivative assets/liabilities related to cash flow hedges, fair value hedges and derivative instruments held for purposes other than for trading are recorded
in other assets/ interest, taxes and other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

@ Over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives include derivatives executed and settled bilaterally with counterparties without the use of an organized exchange or
central clearing house. The credit risk associated with bilateral OTC derivatives is managed through master netting agreements and obtaining collateral.
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OTC-cleared derivatives are executed bilaterally in the OTC market but then novated to a central clearing counterparty, whereby the central clearing
counterparty becomes the counterparty to both of the original counterparties. Exchange traded derivatives are executed directly on an organized exchange
that provides pre-trade price transparency. Credit risk is minimized for OTC-cleared derivatives and exchange traded derivatives through daily margining
required by central clearing counterparties.

®  Trading related derivative assets/liabilities are recorded in trading assets/trading liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.
@ Represents the netting of derivative receivable and payable balances for the same counterparty under enforceable netting agreements.
®  Represents the netting of cash collateral posted and received by counterparty under enforceable credit support agreements.

©®  Netting is performed at a counterparty level in cases where enforceable master netting and credit support agreements are in place, regardiess of the type of
derivative instrument. Therefore, we have not attempted to allocate netting to the different types of derivative instruments shown in the table above.

See Note 17, "Guarantee Arrangements, Pledged Assets and Collateral," for further information on offsetting related to resale and
repurchase agreements and securities borrowing and lending arrangements.

Derivatives Held for Risk Management Purposes Our risk management policy requires usto identify, analyze and manage risks
arising from the activities conducted during the normal course of business. We use derivative instruments as an asset and liability
management tool to manage our exposures in interest rate, foreign currency and credit risks in existing assets and liabilities,
commitments and forecasted transactions. The accounting for changes in fair value of a derivative instrument will depend on
whether the derivative has been designated and qualifies for hedge accounting.

We designate derivative instruments to offset the fair value risk and cash flow risk arising from fixed-rate and floating-rate assets
and liabilities aswell as forecasted transactions. We assess the hedging relationships, both at the inception of the hedge and on an
ongoing basis, using aregression approach to determine whether the designated hedging instrument ishighly effectivein offsetting
changesin the fair value or the cash flows attributabl e to the hedged risk. Accounting principles for qualifying hedges require us
to prepare detailed documentation describing the rel ationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, including, but
not limited to, the risk management objective, the hedging strategy and the methods to assess and measure the ineffectiveness of
the hedging relationship. We discontinue hedge accounting when we determine that the hedge is no longer highly effective, the
hedging instrument is terminated, sold or expired, the designated forecasted transaction is not probable of occurring, or when the
designation is removed by us.

Fair Value Hedges In the normal course of business, we hold fixed-rate loans and securities and issue fixed-rate senior and
subordinated debt obligations. The fair value of fixed-rate (U.S. dollar and non-U.S. dollar denominated) assets and liabilities
fluctuates in response to changes in interest rates or foreign currency exchange rates. We utilize interest rate swaps, forward and
futures contracts and foreign currency swaps to minimize the effect on earnings caused by interest rate and foreign currency
volatility.

The changes in the fair value of the hedged item designated in a qualifying hedge are captured as an adjustment to the carrying
amount of the hedged item (basis adjustment). If the hedging relationship is terminated and the hedged item continues to exist,
the basis adjustment is amortized over the remaining life of the hedged item. We recorded basis adjustments for active fair value
hedges which decreased the carrying amount of our debt by less than $1 million and $1 million during the three and six months
ended June 30, 2014, compared with an increase in the carrying amount of our debt of less than $1 million and $1 million during
the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, respectively. We amortized $2 million and $5 million of basis adjustments related
toterminated and/or re-designated fair val ue hedge rel ationshi ps during the three and six monthsended June 30, 2014, respectively,
compared with $3 million and $7 million during the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, respectively. Thetotal accumulated
unamortized basis adjustment amounted to an increase in the carrying amount of our debt of $27 million and $33 million as of
June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Basis adjustments for active fair value hedges of available-for-sale ("AFS")
securities increased the carrying amount of the securities by $162 million and $338 million during the three and six months ended
June 30, 2014, respectively, compared with decreases in the carrying amount of the securities of $445 million and $600 million
during the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, respectively. Total accumulated unamortized basis adjustments for active
fair value hedges of available-for-sale securities amounted to an increase in carrying amount of $281 million as of June 30, 2014
compared with a decrease of $84 million as of December 31, 2013, respectively.
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The following table presents information on gains and losses on derivative instruments designated and qualifying as hedging
instruments in fair value hedges and the hedged items in fair value hedges and their location on the consolidated statement of
income:

Net Ineffective

Gain (Loss)
Gain (Loss) on Derivative Gain (Loss) on Hedged Items Recognized
Interest Income Interest Income
(Expense) Other Income (Expense) Other Income Other Income
(in millions)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2014

Interest rate contracts/AFS Securities................ $ (64) $ (188) $ 9% $ 189 §$ 1
Interest rate contracts/subordinated debt ........... 2 — (€D)] — —
LI = ST $ (62) $ (188) $ % $ 189 $ 1
Three Months Ended June 30, 2013

Interest rate contracts/AFS Securities................ $ (55) $ 397 $ 11 % (380) $ 17
Interest rate contracts/subordinated deb ........... 4 — (25 — —
et $ (51) $ 397 $ % $ (380) $ 17
Six Months Ended June 30, 2014

Interest rate contracts/AFS Securities................ $ (127) $ (407) $ 198 $ 401 $ (6)
Interest rate contracts/subordinated debt ........... 6 (@) (16) 1 —
TOAl o $ (121) $ (408) $ 182 $ 402 $ (6)
Six Months Ended June 30, 2013

Interest rate contracts/AFS Securities................ $ (111) $ 567 $ 225 $ (554) $ 13
Interest rate contracts/subordinated debt ........... 8 @ (30) 1 —
TOAl o $ (103) $ 566 $ 195 $ (553) $ 13

Cash Flow Hedges We own or issue floating rate financial instruments and enter into forecasted transactions that give rise to
variability in future cash flows. Asapart of our risk management strategy, we use interest rate swaps, currency swaps and futures
contracts to mitigate risk associated with variability in the cash flows. Changesin fair value of a derivative instrument associated
with the effective portion of aqualifying cash flow hedge are recognized initially in other comprehensive income. When the cash
flows for which the derivative is hedging materialize and are recorded in income or expense, the associated gain or loss from the
hedging derivative previoudy recorded in accumulated other comprehensiveincome (loss) isreclassified into earningsin the same
accounting periodinwhich the designated forecasted transaction or hedgeditem affectsearnings. If acashflow hedge of aforecasted
transaction is de-designated becauseit is no longer highly effective, or if the hedge relationship isterminated, the cumulative gain
or loss on the hedging derivativeto that date will continueto be reported in accumulated other comprehensiveincome (l0ss) unless
it is probablethat the hedged forecasted transaction will not occur by the end of the originally specified time period as documented
at theinception of the hedge, at which timethe cumulative gain or lossisreleased into earnings. Asof June 30, 2014 and December
31, 2013, active cash flow hedge relationships extend or mature through July 2036. During the three and six months ended June
30, 2014, $2 million and $3 million of losses related to terminated and/or de-designated cash flow hedge relationships were
amortized to earnings from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) compared with losses of $3 million and $7 million
during thethreeand six months ended June 30, 2013. During the next twelve months, we expect to amortize $9 million of remaining
losses to earnings resulting from these terminated and/or de-designated cash flow hedges. The interest accrual related to the
derivative contract is recognized in interest income.
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The following table presents information on gains and losses on derivative instruments designated and qualifying as hedging
instruments in cash flow hedges (including amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ("AOCI")
from all terminated cash flow hedges) and their locations on the consolidated statement of income:;

. . Gain (Loss)
Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss) Location of Gain Recognized
Recognized Reclassed (Loss) in Income
in AOCI on i : From AOCI Recognized on the
Derivative Location of Gain into Income in Income Derivative
(Effective (Loss) Reclassified (Effective on the Derivative (Ineffective
Portion) from AOCI Portion) (Ineffective Portion and Portion)
_  into Income (Effective — ———~ ____ Amount Excluded from —
2014 2013 Portion) 2014 2013 Effectiveness Testing) 2014 2013
(in millions)
Three Months Ended June 30,
Interest income
Foreign exchange contracts....... $ — & — (expense) $ — $ — Otherincome $ — $ —
Interest income
Interest rate contracts................. (25) 84 (expense) (2) ©)] Other income — 1
e 2 [ $(25) $ 84 $ 2% $ — $ 1
Six Months Ended June 30,
Interest income
Foreign exchange contracts....... $ 1 $ — (expense) $ — $ — Otherincome $ — $ —
Interest income )
Interest rate contracts................. (61) 119 (expense) 3) @) Other income — —
LI L $ (60) $119 $ 3 % (7 $ — $ —

Trading Derivatives and Non-Qualifying Hedging Activities Inaddition to risk management, weenter into derivativeinstruments
for trading and market making purposes, to repackage risks and structure trades to facilitate clients’ needs for various risk taking
and risk modification purposes. We manage our risk exposure by entering into offsetting derivativeswith other financial institutions
to mitigate the market risks, in part or in full, arising from our trading activities with our clients. In addition, we also enter into
buy-protection credit derivatives with other market participants to manage our counterparty credit risk exposure. Where we enter
into derivatives for trading purposes, realized and unrealized gains and losses are recognized in trading revenue or residential
mortgage banking revenue. Credit losses arising from counterparty risk on over-the-counter derivative instruments and offsetting
buy protection credit derivative positions are recognized as an adjustment to the fair value of the derivatives and are recorded in
trading revenue.

We have elected the fair value option for certain fixed rate long-term debt issuances as well as hybrid instruments which include
all structured notes and structured deposits and have entered into certain derivative contracts related to these debt issuances and
hybrid instruments carried at fair value. These derivative contracts are non-qualifying hedges but are consi dered economic hedges.
We have also entered into credit default swaps which are designated as economic hedges against the credit risks within our loan
portfolio. In the event of an impairment loss occurring in aloan that is economically hedged, the impairment loss is recognized
asprovision for credit losses while the gain on the credit default swap is recorded as other income. In addition, we also from time
to time have designated certain forward purchase or sale of to-be-announced ("TBA") securitiesto economically hedge mortgage
servicing rights. Changesin thefair value of TBA positions, which are considered derivatives, arerecorded in residential mortgage
banking revenue. Derivative instruments designated as economic hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recorded at
fair value through profit and loss. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are recognized in gain (I0ss) on instruments designated
at fair value and related derivatives, other income or residential mortgage banking revenue while the derivative asset or liability
positions are reflected as other assets or other liabilities.
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Thefollowing table presentsinformation on gains and losses on derivativeinstrumentsheld for trading purposesand their locations
on the consolidated statement of income:

Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized
in Income on Derivatives

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

Location of Gain (Loss) June 30, June 30,
Recognized in Income on Derivatives 2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)
Interest rate CoNtractS........covvevveeeveeeerereenes Trading revenue $ (89 $ (468 $ (32) $ (382
Interest rate CoNtractS........ceeverercererereennen. Residential mortgage banking revenue 22 (34) 37 (41)
Foreign exchange contracts....................... Trading revenue 58 736 83 578
Equity CONtracts...........ccocevccrccrcecccnen Trading revenue — 4 — 2
Precious metals contracts..........cocceeeeeenne. Trading revenue 10 19 18 61
Credit CONractS.......covovveereerererereeresenenns Trading revenue (108) (69) (115) 78
TOE .o $ (107) 188 $ 9 $ 2%

Thefollowing table presentsinformation on gains and losses on derivative instruments held for non-qualifying hedging activities
and their locations on the consolidated statement of income:

Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized
in Income on Derivatives

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

Location of Gain (Loss) June 30, June 30,
Recognized in Income on Derivatives 2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)

Interest rate contracts...........cevvvevenene. Gain (loss) on instruments designated at

fair value and related derivatives $ 111 $ (176) $ 227 $ (238)
Interest rate contracts.............ccceeeeeneee. Residential mortgage banking revenue — 4 — 4
Foreign exchange contracts................. Gain (loss) on instruments designated at

fair value and related derivatives 9 (44) 13 (55)
Equity CONtractS........ccoevevrevreiennenens Gain (loss) on instruments designated at

fair value and related derivatives 258 (75) 339 240
Precious metals contracts.................... Gain (loss) on instruments designated at

fair value and related derivatives 8 (42) 24 (42)
Credit CONracts........covvveveerrereeenennns Gain (loss) on instruments designated at

fair value and related derivatives — 1 1 1
Credit CONractS........covvvreerererrerernennns Other income ) 3 (11) 3
TO@ ... $ 379 $ (3290 $ 593 $ (87)

Credit-Risk Related Contingent Features We enter into total return swap, interest rate swap, cross-currency swap and credit
default swap contracts, amongst others which contain provisions that require us to maintain a specific credit rating from each of
the major credit rating agencies. Sometimes the derivative instrument transactions are a part of broader structured product
transactions. If HSBC Bank USA, National Association's ("HSBC Bank USA") credit ratingswereto fall below the current ratings,
the counterpartiesto our derivative instruments could demand usto post additional collateral. The amount of additional collateral
reguired to be posted will depend on whether HSBC Bank USA isdowngraded by one or more notches and whether the downgrade
isin relation to long-term or short-term ratings. The aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments with credit-risk-related
contingent features that were in aliability position as of June 30, 2014, was $4,701 million for which we have posted collateral
of $3,837 million. The aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments with credit-risk-related contingent features that werein
aliability position asof December 31, 2013, was$5,614 million for whichwehave posted collateral of $5,059 million. Substantially
all of the collateral posted isin the form of cash or securities available-for-sale. See Note 17, "Guarantee Arrangements, Pledged
Assets and Collateral," for further details.
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In the event of a credit downgrade, we currently do not expect HSBC Bank USA’s long-term ratings to go below A2 and A+ or
the short-term ratings to go below P-2 and A-1 by Moody’s and Standard & Poor's ("S&P"), respectively. The following tables
summarize our obligation to post additional collateral (from the current collateral level) in certain hypothetical commercially
reasonable downgrade scenarios. It is not appropriate to accumulate or extrapolate information presented in the tables below to
determine our total obligation because the information presented to determine the obligation in hypothetical rating scenariosis
not mutually exclusive.

Moody’s Long-Term Ratings
Short-Term Ratings Al A2 A3

(in millions)
e SRS $ — % 53 % 182
P e h Rt bR Rt R b e e e e R e e e e 1 53 182
S&P Long-Term Ratings
Short-Term Ratings AA- A+ A

(in millions)
N SRS $ — % — % 52
PP 4 4 56

We would be required to post $5 million of additional collateral on total return swapsif HSBC Bank USA is downgraded by S& P
and Moody’s by two notches on our long term rating accompanied by one notch downgrade in our short term rating.

Notional Value of Derivative Contracts The following table summarizes the notional values of derivative contracts:

June 30, 2014 December 31, 2013
(in millions)

Interest rate:

FULUrES and FOIWEITS. ......cvvevceeciietetee ettt $ 115,127 $ 175,468
SIS ...ttt te ettt et e sa et st et s et st st e st e et e b e e R e e R e e Ee et eReneeReeaeRentene et et ete e ereeas 3,694,301 3,645,085
(07 0]1T0) 13T/ 1 1= o 46,040 85,021
OPLioNS PUICNASEA ...ttt ettt sae b b 61,121 87,735
3,916,589 3,993,309
Foreign Exchange:

Swaps, fULUreS anNd FOMWEAITS ..........ooeiririrere e e 843,970 804,278
(07 0] 1T0] 03T 1 1= o TR 121,210 82,817
(07 0]1T0) 1Sy 0 0o 7= S = o [ 122,574 84,835
S o0 TR 59,786 52,193
1,147,540 1,024,123

Commodities, equities and precious metals:
Swaps, fULUreS anNd FOMWEAITS ..........ooeiririrere e e 47,815 41,123
(07 0] 1T0] 03T 1 1= o TR 12,156 21,531
(07 0]1T0) 1Sy 0 0o 7= S = o [ 10,266 21,723
70,237 84,377
Credit AENVALIVES .....c.ccueeiiiiciie ettt se st e b e e se s senaens 303,034 355,286
101 OO PSP $ 5,437,400 $ 5,457,095
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10. Fair Value Option

We report our resultsto HSBC in accordance with its reporting basis, International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs"). We
typically have elected to apply fair value option accounting to selected financial instruments to align the measurement attributes
of those instruments under U.S. GAAP and IFRSs and to simplify the accounting model applied to those financial instruments.
We elected to apply fair value option ("FVO") reporting to commercial syndicated loans held for sale, certain fixed rate long-term
debt issuances and hybrid instruments which include all structured notes and structured deposits. Changesin fair value for these
assets and liabilities are reported as gain (10ss) on instruments designated at fair value and related derivativesin the consolidated
statement of income.

Loans Weelectedtoapply FVOto certain commercial syndicated loanswhich are originated with theintent to sell and areincluded
as loans held for sale in the consolidated balance sheet. The election allows us to account for these loans at fair value which is
consistent with the manner in which the instruments are managed. Interest from these loans is recorded as interest income in the
consolidated statement of income. Because a substantial majority of the loans elected for the fair value option are floating rate
assets, changesin their fair value are primarily attributable to changes in loan-specific credit risk factors. The components of gain
(loss) related to loans designated at fair value are summarized in the table below. As of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, no
loans for which the fair value option has been elected are 90 days or more past due or on nonaccrual status.

Long-Term Debt (Own Debt Issuances) We elected to apply FV O for certain fixed-rate long-term debt for which we had applied
or otherwisewould elect to apply fair value hedge accounting. The election allows usto achieve asimilar accounting effect without
having to meet the hedge accounting requirements. The own debt issuances elected under FVO are traded in secondary markets
and, as such, thefair valueis determined based on observed pricesfor the specific instruments. The observed market price of these
instruments reflects the effect of changesto our own credit spreads and interest rates. Interest on the fixed-rate debt accounted for
under FV O isrecorded asinterest expense in the consolidated statement of income. The components of gain (loss) related to long-
term debt designated at fair value are summarized in the table below.

Hybrid Instruments Weelected to apply fair value option accountingto al of our hybrid instrumentsissued, inclusive of structured
notesand structured deposits. The valuation of the hybrid instrumentsis predominantly driven by the derivative features embedded
within the instruments. Cash flows of the hybrid instruments are discounted at an appropriate rate for the applicable duration of
the instrument adjusted for our own credit spreads. The credit spreads applied to structured notes are determined with reference
to our own debt issuance rates observed in the primary and secondary markets, internal funding rates, and structured note ratesin
recent executions while the credit spreads applied to structured deposits are determined using market rates currently offered on
comparable deposits with similar characteristics and maturities. Interest on this debt is recorded as interest expense in the
consolidated statement of income. The components of gain (loss) related to hybrid instruments designated at fair value which
reflect the instruments described above are summarized in the table below.

The following table summarizes the fair value and unpaid principal balance for items we account for under FVO:

Unpaid Principal

Fair Value Balance
(in millions)
At June 30, 2014
Commercial SyNdiCAted 10ANS........ccvvveveveiiirieecerirseee et $ 159 $ 159
Fixed rate 1ong-term debt ....... ... 2,063 1,750
Hybrid instruments:
SUCTUrEH dEPOSITS ... s 7,714 7,472
S 0 w10 =0 [ o) (T 6,200 5,787
At December 31, 2013
Commercia SyNdiCaed |08NS...........covveirieirieirieeser et $ 58 $ 59
Fixed rate 1ong-term debt ....... ... 1,893 1,750
Hybrid instruments:
SUCTUrEH dEPOSITS ... s 7,740 7,539
S U w10 =0 [ o) (T 5,693 5,377
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Components of Gain (Loss) on Instruments at Fair Value and Related Derivatives Gain (10ss) on instruments designated at fair
value and related derivatives includes the changes in fair value related to interest, credit and other risks as well as the mark-to-
market adjustment on derivatives related to the financial instrument designated at fair value and net realized gains or losses on
these derivatives. Thefollowing table summarizesthe components of gain (1oss) oninstruments designated at fair valueand rel ated
derivatives related to the changesin fair value of the financial instrument accounted for under FVO:

Long-Term Hybrid
Loans Debt Instruments Total

(in millions)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2014

Interest rate and other components™y............oo.ovveereereereeeeeeessisseeseneons $ — 3 (61) $ (330) $ (391)
Credit risk component@® ..o — (46) 7 (39)
Total mark-to-market on financial instruments designated at fair

VAIUB. ... — (107) (323) (430)
Mark-to-market on the related derivatives.........ocoovveeveevcenccneces — 50 319 369
Net realized gain on the related long-term debt derivatives.................. — 17 — 17
Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair value and related

QENVALIVES.......cocviicic s $ — 3 (40) $ 4 $ (44)
Three Months Ended June 30, 2013
Interest rate and other ComPONENtS™............oouoveeeeeeeeeeeeee s $ — 3 120 $ 204 $ 324
Credit risk component@® ... — 53 54 107
Total mark-to-market on financial instruments designated at fair
(V= 101 TSSO - 173 258 431
Mark-to-market on the related derivatives.........ocooeveeveencenecneces — (128) (224) (352)
Net realized gain on the related long-term debt derivatives.................. — 16 — 16
Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair value and related
AENVALIVES. ...t et be b e nas $ — % 61 $ 4 3 95
Six Months Ended June 30, 2014
Interest rate and other ComPONENtS™...........ooueveeeeieeeeeeee s $ — 3 (143) $ (483) $ (626)
Credit risk component@® ..o — 27) 33 6
Total mark-to-market on financial instruments designated at fair

VAIUB. ... — (170) (450) (620)
Net realized loss on financial inStruments...........c.coevveevererereereereenene. — — — —
Mark-to-market on the related derivatives...........ooooeieveieicneneceee. — 120 450 570
Net realized gain on the related long-term debt derivatives.................. — 34 — 34
Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair value and related

(0 1S V2 LY/ $ — % (16) $ — 3 (16)
Six Months Ended June 30, 2013
Interest rate and other CompPONENtS™............oo.oveeeeeeeeeeeee e $ — 3 183 $ (112) $ 71
Credit risk component@®® ..o 21 11 87 119
Total mark-to-market on financial instruments designated at fair
VAIUB ...ttt e 21 194 (25) 190
Net realized loss on financial instruments.............cocevvcccnnincennns (8) — — (8)
Mark-to-market on the related derivatives.............ocooveveiiiiiciciciinen, — (190) 64 (126)
Net realized gain on the related long-term debt derivatives.................. — 32 — 32
Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair value and related
GENVAIVES. ...ttt rer s s s nenen s s s enen s s s enenen s s s enanns $ 13 $ 36 $ 39 $ 83

@ Asit relates to hybrid instruments, interest rate and other components includes interest rate, foreign exchange and equity contract risks.
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@ During the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, the losses in the credit risk component for long-term debt are attributable to the tightening of our own
credit spreads while the gains during the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 are attributable to the widening of our own credit spreads.

®  During thethree months ended June 30, 2014, thegainsin the credit risk component for hybrid instruments reflect thewidening of credit spreadson structured
deposits partially offset by the tightening of credit spreads on structured notes. During the six months ended June 30, 2014, the gains in the credit risk
component for hybrid instruments are attributable primarily to the widening of credit spreads on structured notes. During the three and six months ended
June 30, 2013, the gainsin the credit risk component for hybrid instruments are attributable primarily to the widening of credit spreads on structured notes.

11.  Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (L0ss)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) includes certain items that are reported directly within a separate component of
shareholders' equity. The following table presents changes in accumulated other comprehensive income balances:

Three Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013
(in millions)

Unrealized gains (losses) on securities available-for-sale:

Balance at beginning Of PEMIOU. ..o $ 112 $ 842
Other comprehensive income (loss) for period:
Net unrealized gains (losses) arising during period, net of tax of $110 million and $(398) million, respectively ............. 171 (571)
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses realized in net income, net of tax of $3 million and $(9) million,
TESPECUVEIY™ ettt eeeeesss RS 4 (14)
Total other comprehensive income (10SS) FOr PEITOM..........ccuiiiiii s 175 (585)
BalanCe @ €N0 OF PEITOU........ccecueeceeirece e 287 257

Unrealized losses on other-than-temporarily impaired debt securities held-to-maturity:

Balance at beginning of period (59) —
Adjustment to add other-than-temporary impairment due to the consolidation of VIE, net of tax of $(48) million................ — (67)
Other comprehensive income for period:

E?ﬁliﬁgicaﬁ on adjustment related to the accretion of unrealized other-than-temporary impairment, net of tax of $1 ,

Total other comprehensive iINCOME FOr PEITOU. ..ottt nb e enen 2 —
Balance at €nd Of PEIIOU. ..ottt (57) (67)
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges:

Balance at beginning Of PEIOQ...........ouuiiiieiiei e (103) (178)
Other comprehensive income (loss) for period:

Net gains (losses) arising during period, net of tax of $(10) million and $35 million, respectively..........c.cocovvrrrrrenine (16) 49
Reclassification adjustment for losses realized in net income, net of tax of $1 million and $1 million, respectively®..... 1 2
Total other comprehensive income (loss) for period (15) 51

Balance at €nd OF PEMOM. ..ot (118) (127)
Pension and postretirement benefit liability:

Balance at beginning and €Nd Of PEITO .........c.ciiiiiiiri ettt ettt ettt 2 (6)
Total accumulated other comprehensive income at end Of PEFIOQ..........cciiiireiiir s $ 114  $ 57
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Six Months Ended June 30, 2014

2013

(in millions)

Unrealized gains (losses) on securities available-for-sale:

Balance at beginning Of PEIIO. ... s $ 18) $ 992
Other comprehensive income (loss) for period:

Net unrealized gains (losses) arising during period, net of tax of $202 million and $(455) million, respectively................... 315 (649)
Reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income, net of tax of $(6) million and $(60) million, respectively™® .... (10) (86)
Total other comprehensive income (10SS) fOr PEMOU.........couiiiiiiii s 305 (735)

Balance at €nd OF PEIIOU........ccuiiii s 287 257

Unrealized losses on other-than-temporarily impaired debt securities held-to-maturity:

Balance at beginning Of PEITOU.........ciiieeireeers ettt sttt se et e e se s s et e e e aesese s eseneseeteseness et e e neesnsenentesesensnsans (60) —
Adjustment to add other-than-temporary impairment due to the consolidation of a VIE, net of tax of $(48) million................ — (67)
Other comprehensive income for period:

rl?n?ﬁtg?zf)lcatl on adjustment related to the accretion of unrealized other-than-temporary impairment, net of tax of $3 2 _
Total other comprenensive iNCOME FOr PEITOU........ceiiiieiririeeerte ettt ettt sa et e e seesnse e seese e nseseneen 3 —

Balance at end of period (57) (67)

Unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges:

Balance at beginning Of PEITOM. ..ot (83) (201)
Other comprehensive income (loss) for period:

Net gains (losses) arising during period, net of tax of $(23) million and $49 million, respectively ... (37) 70
Reclassification adjustment for losses realized in net income, net of tax of $1 million and $3 million, respectively® 2 4
Total other comprehensive inComMe (10SS) FOr PEITOM. .........ccriiererreierereee e (35) 74

Bal@NCe @ €10 OF PEITOU........cucecreeieieereireie ettt (118) (127)

Pension and postretirement benefit liability:

Balance at beginning and end Of PEITO .........ccciiiiiiii e 2 (6)

Total accumulated other comprehensive income at end of period $ 114 57

@ Amount reclassified to net incomeisincluded in other securities gains, net in our consolidated statement of income.

@ Amount reclassified to the carrying value of the debt securitiesis included in securities held-to-maturity in our consolidated balance sheet.

®  Amount reclassified to net incomeisincluded in interest income (expense) in our consolidated statement of income.
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12. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

Defined Benefit Pension Plan The components of pension expense for the defined benefit pension plan recorded in our
consolidated statement of income and shown in the table below reflect the portion of pension expense of the combined HSBC
North America Pension Plan (either the “HSBC North America Pension Plan” or the “Plan”) which has been allocated to us.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)

Service cost — benefits earned during the period...........coo e $ 1 % 1 % 2 $ 2
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation ..o 18 17 36 34
EXPECEd FELUIN ON @SSELS .....cviieeeeeieie ettt s e e (21) (21) (42) (41)
RECOGNIZEA TOSSES ...ttt 9 13 19 26
PENSION EXPENSE ...ttt b et n e r s $ 7% 10 $ 15 $ 21

Pension expense was lower during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 mainly due to lower recognized losses. During
the first quarter of 2014, an additional contribution of $74 million was made to the Plan.

Postretirement Plans Other Than Pensions The components of net periodic benefit cost for our postretirement plans other than
pension are as follows:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)
INEEIESE COSE ...vvvriiscteteise ettt ettt bbbttt bbb anas $ 1 $ — 3 1 % 1
Net periodic postretirement DENEfit COSE ... $ 1 $ — 8 1 $ 1
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13. Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of business, we conduct transactions with HSBC and its subsidiaries. These transactions occur at prevailing
market rates and terms and include funding arrangements, derivative, servicing arrangements, information technol ogy, centralized
support services, banking and other miscellaneous services. All extensions of credit by (and certain credit exposures of) HSBC
Bank USA to other HSBC affiliates (other than Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") insured banks) arelegally required
to be secured by eligible collateral. The following tables and discussions below present the more significant related party balances
and the income (expense) generated by related party transactions:

June 30, December 31,
2014 2013

(in millions)

Assets:
Cash and dUE FrOM DANKS. .......cciuciieeiee ettt be s $ 1347 $ 102
Interest bearing deposits With DanKS ... 1,226 631
TIAOING BSSEES D ......cooeeeeeee e ees s s e 15,993 17,082
0 S 5,080 5,328
ONEE @) ettt 1,168 1,219
TOMAl BSSELS.......veocveoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseees s eeeeseeeseees e sseesses s eesssessees s es s s s ees s sssessaessesseeesssessensnessesessenes $ 24814 $ 24362

Liabilities: -
DTS 101 1 =TT $ 18676 $ 16,936
Trading labilitiES @ ... ees s ees s seesenes 17,543 19,463
S o a1 0 00 (011 1,748 1,514
LONG-TEIM AEDL ...t e ettt be bbb e e 3,983 3,987
(011 11= SRR 511 573
TOtAl HIADITTIES......vovveceeecieesee ettt $ 42461 $ 42,473

@ Includes interest bearing deposits with HSBC Mexico S.A. of $1,100 million and $500 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

@ Trading assets and trading liabilities do not reflect the impact of netting which allows the offsetting of amounts relating to certain contracts if certain
conditions are met. Trading assets and liabilities primarily consist of derivatives contracts.

®  Other assets and other liabilities primarily consist of derivative contracts.



HSBC USA Inc.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)
Income/(Expense):
F 1= =S oo o 1T $ 86 $ 83 $ 123 $ 105
L1 =S o 1= 01 TR (19) (19) 37) (39)
= AT g == T ot T S $ 67 $ 64 $ 86 $ 66

Servicing and other fees from HSBC affiliate:
Fees and commissions:

HSBC FiNance COrPOratioN .........cocoeeoererereneeeesie e ee e seeseseeseeeesesse e sneseas $ 23 $ 26 $ 38 % 47
HSBC Markets (USA) INC. ("HMUS") .....overieeerreecnreeereeeere s 1 4 5 9
Other HSBC @ffiliaeS .......cecveviereeieeeircriee st 12 14 31 30
Other HSBC affiliaf€S INCOME .........ooveriierrreserrrseseeeerre e 15 15 24 27
Total affiliale INCOME......cviieeieieeeie e $ 51 $ 59 $ 98 $ 113
Support services from HSBC affiliates: -
HSBC FiNance COrPOration ...........cccoeerueerenesreneeieseeieseere st s sseessesesnenens $ 3) $ 5 $ 6) $ (9)
HMUS ..ot (51) (54) (104) (106)
HSBC Technology & Services (USA) ("HTSU")..c.ceevrieirnreenecieieseneeens (271) (242) (524) (475)
Other HSBC @ffiliaeS......cveeverreieereirreeerrer s (60) (61) (105) (96)
Total support services from HSBC affiliates..........ccoccvvicicciiccccicccccns $ (385 $ (362) $ (739) $ (686)
Stock based compensation expense With HSBC M...........ooooveiviieeciineciisesesnnns $ (10$ (135 (18 $ (22

@ Employees may participate in one or more stock compensation plans sponsored by HSBC. These expenses are included in Salaries and employee benefits
in our consolidated statement of income. Employees also may participate in a defined benefit pension plan and other postretirement plans sponsored by
HSBC North Americawhich are discussed in Note 12, "Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits.”

Funding Arrangements with HSBC Affiliates:

We use HSBC affiliatesto fund a portion of our borrowing and liquidity needs. Long-term debt with affiliates reflects $4.0 billion
in senior debt with HSBC North America. Of thisamount, $1.0 billionisab year floating rate note which maturesin August 2014
and $3.0 hillion that matures in three equal installments of $1.0 billion in April 2015, 2016 and 2017. The debt bears interest at
90 day U.S. dollar Libor plus a spread, with each maturity at a different spread.

We havethefollowing funding arrangements avail able with HSBC &ffiliates, although there were no outstanding balances at either
June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013:

»  $1,000 million committed line of credit with HSBC Investment (Bahamas) Limited;
*  $500 million committed line of credit with HSBC; and
*  $150 million uncommitted line of credit with HSBC North Americalnc. ("HNAI").

We have a so incurred short-term borrowings with certain affiliates, largely related to metal s activity. In addition, certain affiliates
have also placed deposits with us.
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Lending and Derivative Related Arrangements Extended to HSBC Affiliates:
At June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we have the following loan balances outstanding with HSBC affiliates:

June 30, December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)
HSBC FiNanNCe COMPOIatioN .........c.coiiuiuereueriresiereisesteteessssssesessssssesesesessesessssssssessssssssesesessssesessssssssesens $ 3014 % 3,015
HSBC Markets (USA) Inc. ("HMUS") and SUDSIJI@ries..........cccoeerireeneeeneeeneee e 720 199
HSBC BanK Brasil S.A. ..ottt 1,100 1,000
Other short-term affiliate [ENAING..........coeieieee e 246 1,114

TOLAl BSSELS. ...ttt ettt bbb bbb bbbt R R R bRt b et b e b e $ 5080 $ 5,328

HSBC Finance Corporation - We have extended a $5.0 billion, 364 day uncommitted unsecured revolving credit agreement to
HSBC Finance which allows for borrowings with maturities of up to 15 years. At both June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
$3.0 billion was outstanding under this credit agreement with $512 million maturing in September 2017, $1.5 billion maturing in
January 2018 and $1.0 billion maturing in September 2018. We have al so extended acommitted revolving credit facility to HSBC
Finance of $1.0 billion which did not have any outstanding balance at either June 30, 2014 or December 31, 2013. This credit
facility expiresin May 2017.

HMUS and subsidiaries - We have extended loans and lines, some of them uncommitted, to HMUS and its subsidiaries in the
amount of $6.7 billion and $3.8 billion at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, of which $720 million and $199
million, respectively, was outstanding. The outstanding balances mature at various stages between 2014 and 2017.

HSBC Bank Brasil S.A. - We have extended uncommitted lines of credit to HSBC Bank Brasil in the amount of $1.1 billion and
$1.5 hillion at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, of which $1.1 billion and $1.0 billion, respectively, was
outstanding. The outstanding balances mature at various stages between 2014 and 2016.

We have extended lines of credit to various other HSBC affiliatestotaling $2.3 billion which did not have any outstanding balances
at either June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

Other short-term affiliate lending - In addition to loans and lines extended to affiliates discussed above, from time to time we may
extend loans to affiliates which are generally short term in nature. At June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, there were $246
million and $1,114 million, respectively, of these loans outstanding.

HUSI isalso committed to provide liquidity facilities to backstop the liquidity risk in Regency, an asset-backed commercial paper
conduit consolidated by our affiliate, inrelation to assetsoriginated inthe U.S. region. Thenotional amount of theliquidity facilities
provided by HUSI to Regency was approximately $2.4 billion as of June 30, 2014, which is less than haf of Regency's tota
liquidity facilities.

Aspart of aglobal HSBC strategy to offset interest rate or other market risks associated with debt issues and derivative contracts
with unaffiliated third parties, we routinely enter into derivative transactions with HSBC Finance and other HSBC affiliates. The
notional value of derivative contracts related to these contracts was approximately $1,138.7 billion and $1,210.6 billion at June
30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The net credit exposure (defined as the net fair value of derivative assets and
liahilities) related to the contracts was approximately $953 million and $845 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively. Our Global Banking and Markets busi ness accounts for these transactions on amark to market basis, with the change
invalueof contractswithHSBC affiliates substantially offset by thechangein valueof related contractsenteredintowith unaffiliated
third parties.

Services Provided Between HSBC Affiliates:

Under multiple service level agreements, we provide servicesto and receive services from various HSBC affiliates. Thefollowing
summarizes these activities:

e Servicing activities for residential mortgage |oans across North America are performed both by us and HSBC Finance. As a
result, we receive servicing fees from HSBC Finance for services performed on their behalf and pay servicing feesto HSBC
Finance for services performed on our behalf. The fees we receive from HSBC Finance are reported in Servicing and other
feesfrom HSBC dffiliates. Feeswe pay to HSBC Finance are reported in Support services from HSBC affiliates. Thisincludes
fees paid for the servicing of residential mortgage loans (with a carrying amount of $907 million and $983 million at June 30,
2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively) that we purchased from HSBC Finance in 2003 and 2004.

» HSBC North America'stechnology and certain centralized support servicesincluding human resources, corporate affairs, risk
management, legal, compliance, tax, finance and other shared servicesthat are centralized within HTSU. HTSU also provides
certain item processing and statement processing activities to us. The fees we pay HTSU for the centralized support services
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and processing activitiesareincluded in Support servicesfrom HSBC affiliates. We al so receive feesfrom HTSU for providing
certain administrative servicesto them. The feeswe receive from HTSU are included in Servicing and other feesfrom HSBC
affiliates. In certain cases, for facilities used by HTSU, we may guarantee their performance under the lease agreements.

e Weuse HSBC Global Resourcing (UK) Ltd., an HSBC affiliatelocated outside of the United States, to provide various support
services to our operations including among other areas, customer service, systems, collection and accounting functions. The
expenses related to these services are included in Support services from HSBC affiliates.

*  Weutilize HSBC Securities (USA) Inc. ("HSI") for broker dealer, debt underwriting, customer referrals, loan syndication and
other treasury and traded markets rel ated services, pursuant to servicelevel agreements. Fees charged by HSI for broker dedler,
loan syndication services, treasury and traded markets related services are included in Support services from HSBC affiliates.
Debt underwriting fees charged by HSI are deferred as a reduction of long-term debt and amortized to interest expense over
the life of the related debt. Customer referral fees paid to HSI are netted against customer fee income, which isincluded in
other fees and commissions.

Other Transactions with HSBC Affiliates

We also received revenue from our affiliates for rent on certain office space, which has been recorded as a component of support
services from HSBC affiliates. Rental revenue from our affiliates totaled $13 million and $27 million during the three and six
months ended June 30, 2014, respectively, compared with $13 million and $25 million during the three and six months ended June
30, 2013, respectively.

14. Business Segments

We have four distinct business segments that we utilize for management reporting and analysis purposes, which are aligned with
HSBC's global businesses and business strategy. There have been no changes in the basis of our segmentation or measurement of
segment profit as compared with the presentation in our 2013 Form 10-K.

Our segment results are presented in accordance with IFRSs (anon-U.S. GAAPfinancial measure) on alegal entity basis ("IFRSs
Basis") as operating results are monitored and reviewed, trends are evaluated and decisions about allocating resources, such as
employeesare made almost exclusively onan IFRSsbasissincewereport financial information to our parent, HSBC, in accordance
with IFRSs. We continue to monitor capital adequacy, establish dividend policy and report to regulatory agencieson aU.S. GAAP
legal entity basis.

A summary of the significant differences between U.S. GAAP and |FRSs as they impact our results are presented in Note 25,
"Business Segments,” inour 2013 Form 10-K. There have been no significant changes since December 31, 2013 inthe differences
between U.S. GAAP and IFRSs impacting our results.
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Thefollowing table summarizesthe results for each segment on an IFRSsbasis, aswell as provides areconciliation of total results
under IFRSsto U.S. GAAP consolidated totals:

IFRSs Consolidated Amounts

Adjustments/ IFRSs U.S. GAAP
Reconciling IFRSs Reclassi- Consolidated
RBWM CMB GB&M PB Other Items Total Adjustments®  fications® Totals
(in millions)
Three Months Ended June 30, 2014
Net interest income®........ $ 212 $ 202 $ 109 $ 56 $ 78 $ 4 $ 653 % (16) $ 36 $ 673
Other operating income.... 104 64 151 25 (38) 4 310 (6) (43) 261
Total operating income..... 316 266 260 81 40 — 963 (22) @) 934
Loan impairment
charges™.......oooooccomevee. 21 83 40 — — — 144 (52) (7) 85
295 183 220 81 40 — 819 30 — 849
Operating expenses®........ 298 174 239 61 28 — 800 76 — 876
Profit (loss) before
income tax expense........... $ 3) $ 9 $ 199 $ 20 $ 12 $ —  $ 19 $ (46) $ — $ 27)
Three Months Ended June 30, 2013
Net interest income®........ $ 206 $ 172 $ 125 $ 49 $ (14) $ R $ 53 $ (1) $ 4 $ 518
Other operating income.... 82 77 295 30 68 3 555 12 @) 566
Total operating income..... 288 249 420 79 54 — 1,090 9) 3 1,084
Loan impairment
charges? ..., 21 1 6 — — — 28 19 20 67
267 248 414 79 54 — 1,062 (28) @an 1,017
Operating expenses®....... 300 171 250 67 22 — 810 27 (17) 766
Profit (loss) before
income tax expense........... $ (B $ 7 % 64 ¢ 12 $ 32 $ — $ 252 3 1) $ — $ 251
Six Months Ended June 30, 2014
Net interest income®........ $ 410 $ 38 $ 206 $ 105 $ 65 $ 9 $ 1166 $ (31) $ 57 $ 1,192
Other operating income.... 217 132 445 50 (13) 9 840 (10) (69) 761
Total operating income..... 627 521 651 155 52 — 2,006 (41) (12) 1,953
Loan impairment
charges™......ooveevvvvvvennns 23 9 55 (5) — — 163 (48) (14) 101
604 431 596 160 52 — 1,843 7 2 1,852
Operating expenses®........ 577 332 478 116 53 — 1,556 68 2 1,626
Profit (loss) before
income tax expense........... $ 27 $ 99 $ 118 $ 4 $ (1) $ — $ 287 $ (61) $ — $ 226
Balances at end of -
period:
Total 8SSEtS...ovvvuvvirriiinins $19,169 $26,467 $175330 $8232 $ 826 $ — $230,024 $ (47570) $ (236) $ 182,218
Total loans, net.................. 16,315 25,239 19,957 6,069 — — 67,580 1,693 2,301 71,574
GOOAWll ...ovoorverrierieee. 581 358 — 325 — — 1,264 348 — 1,612
Total deposits........coovwwvnun 29,138 22,135 31,935 11,822 — — 95,030 (3128) 23,619 115,521
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IFRSs Consolidated Amounts

Adjustments/ IFRSs U.S. GAAP
Reconciling IFRSs Reclassi-  Consolidated
RBWM CMB GB&M PB Other Items Total Adjustments®  fications® Totals
(in millions)
Six Months Ended June 30, 2013
Net interest income®....... $ 421 $ 342 $ 234 $ 94 $ (28 $ 7 $ 105 $ (33) $ 5 $ 1,023
Other operating income.... 189 142 677 58 51 7 1,124 38 4 1,158
Total operating income..... 610 484 911 152 23 — 2,180 — 1 2,181
Loan impairment
charges® ..., 53 15 9 1 — — 78 @) 14 88
557 469 902 151 23 — 2,102 4 (13) 2,093
Operating expenses®........ 501 333 480 127 43 — 1,574 @7 (13) 1,534
Profit (loss) before
income tax expense........... $ (34) $ 136 $ 422 $ 24 $ (200 $ — 3 528 % 31 $ — $ 559
Balances at end of
period:
Total aSSetS....ovvrvreiineinnes $19563 $20,799 $197,729 $7499 $ 1,08 $ — $246678 $ (57,199) $ 45 $ 189,524
16,508 19,693 19,975 5,874 — — 62,050 3,144 906 66,100
581 358 480 325 — — 1,744 484 — 2,228
31,855 21,382 35524 12,152 — — 100,913 (5,047) 15,869 111,735

@ Netinterestincome of each segment represents the difference between actual interest earned on assets and interest paid on liabilities of the segment adjusted
for afunding charge or credit. Segmentsare charged a cost to fund assets (e.g. customer loans) and receive afunding credit for funds provided (e.g. customer
deposits) based on equivalent market rates. The objective of these charges/credits isto transfer interest rate risk from the segments to one centralized unit
in Treasury and more appropriately reflect the profitability of segments.

@ Expenses for the segmentsinclude fully apportioned corporate overhead expenses.

®  The provision assigned to the segments is based on the segments’ net charge offs and the change in allowance for credit losses.
@ Represents adjustments associated with differences between IFRSs and U.S. GAAP bases of accounting.

®  Represents differencesin financial statement presentation between IFRSs and U.S. GAAP.
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15. Retained Earnings and Regulatory Capital Requirements

Bank dividends are a mgjor source of funds used for payment by us of shareholder dividends and, along with interest earned on
investments, cover our operating expenses which consist primarily of interest on outstanding debt. Any significant dividend from
HSBC Bank USA would require the approval of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (the "OCC"). Approval is aso
requiredif thetotal of al dividendsHSBC Bank USA declaresin any year exceedsthe cumulative net profitsfor that year, combined
with the profitsfor the two preceding years reduced by dividends attributable to those years. Under a separate restriction, payment
of dividendsis prohibited in amounts greater than undivided profits then on hand, after deducting actual 1osses and bad debts. Bad
debts are debts due and unpaid for a period of six months unless well secured, as defined, and in the process of collection.

The following table summarizes the capital amounts and ratios of HSBC USA and HSBC Bank USA, calculated in accordance
with banking regulationsin effect as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013:

June 30, 2014 December 31, 2013
Capital Well-Capitalized Actual Capital Well-Capitalized Actual
Amount Minimum Ratio®® Ratio Amount Minimum Ratio® Ratio®

(dollars are in millions)

Total capital ratio:

HSBC USA ..o $ 21,009 10.00%  16.01% $ 20,242 10.00%  16.36%

HSBC Bank USA........oooeeveeennee.. 22,603 10.00%  18.03 21,324 10.00 18.03
Tier 1 capital ratio:

HSBC USA .o 15,167 6.00 11.56 14,409 6.00 11.65

HSBC Bank USA ..., 17,011 8.00 13.57 15,763 6.00 13.33
Common equity Tier 1 ratio®:

HSBC USA ... 13,679 4.50 10.42 12,301 500 © 994

HSBC Bank USA........ooovvveeennee.. 17,011 6.50 13.57 15,763 5.00 13.33
Tier 1 leverage ratio:

HSBC USA oo 15,167 4.00 8.28 14,409 300 @ 790

HSBC Bank USA .......oveerveenneee. 17,011 5.00 9.71 15,763 5.00 9.06
Risk weighted assets:

HSBC USA ..o 131,231 123,737

HSBC Bank USA........oooevveeenneee. 125,359 118,285

@ HSBC USA and HSBC Bank USA are categorized as "well-capitalized,” as defined by their principal regulators. To be categorized aswell-capitalized under
regulatory guidelines, abanking institution must have the minimum ratios reflected in the above table, and must not be subject to adirective, order, or written
agreement to meet and maintain specific capital levels.

@ Aspreviously discussed, the minimum regulatory ratios for adepository institution to be well-capitalized will increase in 2015 under Basel 111, and the new
ratios are shown above. Thetotal capital and Tier 1 capital ratios shown above for HSBC USA are the well-capitalized ratios for a bank holding company.
There are no common equity Tier 1 or Tier 1 leverage ratio componentsin the definition of awell-capitalized bank holding company and the ratios shown
are the required minimum ratios beginning in 2015.

©® At December 31, 2013, capital ratios were reported according to Basel | rules and reflect theimpact of the U.S. market risk final rule (known in theindustry
asBasel 2.5).

@ Basel 11l introduces the common equity Tier 1 ratio. For December 31, 2013, the ratios presented are the Tier 1 common ratio calculated under Base! 1.

®  Therewas no Tier 1 common ratio component in the definition of awell-capitalized bank holding company under Basel |. The ratio shown is the required
minimum Tier 1 common ratio, calculated under Basel |, asincluded in the Federal Reserve Board's final rule regarding capital plansfor U.S. bank holding
companies with total consolidated assets of $50 billion or more.

©  Therewasno Tier 1 leverage ratio component in the definition of awell-capitalized bank holding company under Basel |. The ratio shown isthe minimum
required ratio.

In2013, U.S. regulatorsissued afinal ruleimplementingtheBasel |11 capital framework intheU.S. which, for banking organi zations

such as HSBC North America and HSBC Bank USA, took effect January 1, 2014 with certain provisions being phased in over

time through the beginning of 2019. As a result, beginning in 2014, capital ratios are reported in accordance with the Basel 111

transition rules within the final rule.

We did not receive any cash capital contributions from our immediate parent, HNAI during the first six months of 2014. We did
not make any capital contributions to our subsidiary, HSBC Bank USA, during the six months ended June 30, 2014.
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16. Variable Interest Entities

In the ordinary course of business, we have organized special purpose entities ("SPES") primarily to structure financial products
to meet our clients investment needs, to facilitate clients to access and raise financing from capital markets and to securitize
financial assets held to meet our own funding needs. For disclosure purposes, we aggregate SPES based on the purpose, risk
characteristics and business activities of the SPEs. A SPE is a VIE if it lacks sufficient equity investment at risk to finance its
activities without additional subordinated financial support or, as a group, the holders of the equity investment at risk lack either
a) thepower through voting or similar rightsto direct the activities of theentity that most significantly impactsthe entity'seconomic
performance; or b) the obligation to absorb the entity's expected losses, the right to receive the expected residual returns, or both.

Variable Interest Entities We consolidate VIEs in which we hold a controlling financial interest as evidenced by the power to
direct the activities of aVIE that most significantly impact its economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses of, or the
right to receive benefits from, the VIE that could be potentially significant to the VIE and therefore are deemed to be the primary
beneficiary. We take into account our entire involvement in a VIE (explicit or implicit) in identifying variable interests that
individually or inthe aggregate coul d be significant enough to warrant our designation asthe primary beneficiary and hencerequire
us to consolidate the VIE or otherwise require us to make appropriate disclosures. We consider our involvement to be significant
where we, among other things, (i) provide liquidity put options or other liquidity facilities to support the VIE's debt obligations;
(i) enter into derivative contracts to absorb the risks and benefits from the VIE or from the assets held by the VIE; (iii) providea
financial guarantee that covers assets held or liabilitiesissued; (iv) design, organize and structure the transaction; and (v) retain a
financial or servicinginterest inthe VIE.

We are required to evaluate whether to consolidate a VIE when we first become involved and on an ongoing basis. In almost all
cases, aqualitative analysis of our involvement in the entity provides sufficient evidence to determine whether we are the primary
beneficiary. In rare cases, a more detailed analysis to quantify the extent of variability to be absorbed by each variable interest
holder isrequired to determine the primary beneficiary.

Consolidated VIEs The following table summarizes assets and liabilities related to our consolidated VIES as of June 30, 2014
and December 31, 2013 which are consolidated on our balance sheets. Assets and liabilities exclude intercompany balances that
eliminate in consolidation.

June 30, 2014 December 31, 2013
Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
(in millions)
Asset-backed commercial paper conduit:

Interest bearing deposits with banks............cccccevevecicciciecicies 3 — 5 —
Held-to-maturity SECUNTIES ......coveieirierie e 157 — 200 —
OthEr @SSELS ...cviciieieceete ettt b e b s 40 — 45 —
Other HHaDIlItIES. ..o e — — — 3
SUDEOLAL ...t et 200 — 250 3

Low income housing limited liability partnership:
OtNEr BSSELS ....vieeve et et 418 — 457 —
LoNG-term debt..........covieiiiie e — 92 — 92
Other HHaDIlItIES. ..o e — 71 — 90
SUBLOAL .......cvveeecveteee ettt sttt sttt e e e eanae s $ 418 $ 163 $ 457 $ 182
TOA .ottt ettt et e sre et sbe et e sbe e benreens $ 618 $ 163 $ 707 % 185

Asset-backed conduit During 2013, HSBC decided to restructure certain of its asset-backed commercial paper conduit programs
to have only one asset-backed commercial paper conduit providing securitized financing to HSBC clients globally. As part of this
initiative, our commercial paper conduit otherwise known as Bryant Park isno longer transacting new businessand certain existing
Bryant Park customer transactions have been refinanced by an existing commercial paper conduit currently consolidated by HSBC
Bank plc. Bryant Park continuesto exist but only to fund select legacy assetsit currently holds. Upon compl etion of the restructure
in 2013, HSBC Bank USA became the primary beneficiary of Bryant Park at which time Bryant Park became included in our
consolidated results.

Low income housing limited liability partnership In 2009, all low income housing investments held by us were transferred to a
Limited Liability Partnership ("LLP") in exchange for debt and equity while athird party invested cash for an equity interest that
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ismandatorily redeemable at afuture date. The LLPwas created in order to ensure the utilization of future tax benefits from these
low income housing tax projects. The LLP was deemed to be a VIE as it does not have sufficient equity investment at risk to
finance its activities. Upon entering into this transaction, we concluded that we are the primary beneficiary of the LLP due to the
nature of our continuing involvement and, as aresult, consolidate the LLP and report the equity interest issued to the third party
investor in other liabilities and the assets of the LLP in other assets on our consolidated balance sheet. The investments held by
the LL Prepresent equity investmentsin the underlying low income housing partnerships for which the LL P applies equity-method
accounting. The LLP does not consolidate the underlying partnerships because it does not have the power to direct the activities
of the partnerships that most significantly impact the economic performance of the partnerships.

Unconsolidated VIEs We also have variable interests in other VIES that are not consolidated because we are not the primary
beneficiary. The following table provides additional information on these unconsolidated VIEs, including the variable interests
held by us and our maximum exposure to loss arising from our involvementsin these VIEs, as of June 30, 2014 and December 31,
2013:

Variable Interests Variable Interests Total Assets in Maximum
Held Classified Held Classified Unconsolidated Exposure
as Assets as Liabilities VIEs to Loss
(in millions)

At June 30, 2014
Asset-backed commercial paper conduits...........c.cc....... $ 42 $ — 3 12,407 $ 2,354
Structured Note VENICIES ........coeveeeeeeeeee e 2,830 8 6,085 5,929
1 = S $ 2872 $ 8 $ 18,492 $ 8,283
At December 31, 2013
Asset-backed commercial paper conduits..........cccue.e.e.. $ 417 3% — % 17044 $ 2,560
Structured Note VENICIES ........coeveeieieeeeeceeeeeee s 2,272 55 6,190 5,888
LI L $ 2689 $ 5 $ 23234 $ 8,448

Information on the types of variable interest entities with which we are involved, the nature of our involvement and the variable
interests held in those entities is presented below.

Asset-backed commercial paper ("ABCP") conduits Separately from the Bryant Park facility discussed above, we provideliquidity
facilities to Regency, a multi-seller ABCP conduit consolidated by our affiliate. Customers sell financial assets, such as trade
receivables, to Regency, which funds the purchases by issuing short-term highly-rated commercia paper collateralized by the
assets acquired. We, along with other financial institutions, provide liquidity facilitiesto Regency in the form of lines of credit or
asset purchase commitments. These liquidity facilities support transactions associated with a specific seller of assetsto the conduit
and we would only be required to provide support in the event of certain triggers associated with those transactions and assets.
Our obligations are generally pari passu with those of other institutions that also provide liquidity support to the same conduit or
for the same transactions. We do not provide any program-wide credit enhancements to ABCP conduits.

Each seller of assets to an ABCP conduit typically provides credit enhancements in the form of asset overcollateralization and,
therefore, bears the risk of first loss related to the specific assets transferred. We do not transfer our own assets to Regency. We
also do not provide the majority of theliquidity facilitiesto Regency. We have no ownership interestsin, perform no administrative
dutiesfor, and do not service any of the assetsheld by Regency. We are not the primary beneficiary and do not consolidate Regency.
Credit risk related to the liquidity facilities provided is managed by subjecting these facilitiesto our normal underwriting and risk
management processes. The $2,354 million maximum exposure to loss presented in the table above represents the maximum
amount of loans and asset purchases we could be required to fund under the liquidity facilities. The maximum loss exposure is
estimated assuming the facilities are fully drawn and the underlying collateralized assets are in default with zero recovery value.

Structured note vehicles Our involvement in structured note vehiclesincludes derivatives such asinterest rate and currency swaps
and investmentsin the vehicles' debt instruments. With respect to severa of these VIEs, we hold variable interestsin the form of
total return swaps under which we receive the total return on certain assets held by the VIE and pay a market rate of return.

We also hold credit default swaps with these structured note V1 Es under which we receive credit protection on specified reference
assets in exchange for the payment of a premium. Through these derivatives, the VIEs assume the credit risk associated with the
reference assets which are then passed on to the holders of the debt instruments they issue. Because they create rather than absorb
variability, the credit default swaps we hold are not considered variable interests. In limited circumstances, we entered into total
return swapstaking on the risks and benefits of certain structured notesissued by unconsolidated VIEs. The samerisksand benefits
are passed on to third party entities through back-end total return swaps. We earn a spread for facilitating the transaction. Our
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maximum exposure to loss is the notional amount of the structured notes covered by the swap. The maximum exposure to loss
will occur inthe unlikely scenario where the value of the structured notesis reduced to zero and, at the same time, the counterparty
of the back-end swap defaults with zero recovery.

Werecord all investmentsin, and derivative contractswith, unconsolidated structured notevehiclesat fair value on our consolidated
balance sheet. Our maximum exposure to loss is limited to the recorded amounts of these instruments or, where applicable, the
notional amount of the derivatives wrapping the structured notes.

Beneficial interests issued by third-party sponsored securitization entities We hold certain beneficial interests such as mortgage-
backed securities issued by third party sponsored securitization entities which may be considered VIEs. The investments are
transacted at arm's-length and decisionsto invest are based on a credit analysis of the underlying collateral assets or the issuer. We
are a passive investor in these issuers and do not have the power to direct the activities of these issuers. As such, we do not
consolidate these securitization entities. Additionally, we do not have other involvements in servicing or managing the collateral
assetsor providefinancial or liquidity support totheseissuerswhich potentially giverisetorisk of lossexposure. Theseinvestments
are an integral part of the disclosure in Note 3, "Securities," and Note 18, "Fair Value Measurements," and, therefore, are not
disclosed in this note to avoid redundancy.

17. Guarantee Arrangements, Pledged Assets and Collateral

Guarantee Arrangements Aspart of our normal operations, weenter into credit derivativesand various off-bal ance sheet guarantee
arrangements with affiliates and third parties. These arrangements arise principaly in connection with our lending and client
intermediation activities and include standby letters of credit and certain credit derivative transactions. The contractual amounts
of these arrangements represent our maximum possible credit exposure in the event that we are required to fulfill the maximum
obligation under the contractual terms of the guarantee.

The following table presents total carrying value and contractual amounts of our sell protection credit derivatives and major off-
balance sheet guarantee arrangements as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013. Following the table is a description of the
various arrangements.

June 30, 2014 December 31, 2013
Notional/ Notional/
Maximum Maximum
Carrying Exposure to Carrying Exposure to
Value Loss Value Loss
(in millions)
Credit deriVativesD™ ... $ 1,047 $ 149540 $ 545 $ 180,380
Financial standby letters of credit, net of participations?® ...................... — 5,491 — 5,237
Performance (non-financial) guarantees™ ..............cooooeeeomeeeeereeeseceereseeene. — 2,904 — 3172
Liquidity asset purchase agreements™ ...........cooocoovvooeeceeeeeeeeseeeeeeeseeeseee. — 2,354 — 2,560

TOAL e $ 1,047 $ 160,289 $ 545 $ 191,349

@ Includes $36,920 million and $34,856 million of notional issued for the benefit of HSBC affiliates at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
@ Includes $842 million and $865 million issued for the benefit of HSBC affiliates at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

®  For standby letters of credit and liquidity asset purchase agreements, maximum |oss represents |osses to be recognized assuming the letter of credit and
liquidity facilities have been fully drawn and the obligors have defaulted with zero recovery.

@ For credit derivatives, the maximum loss is represented by the notional amounts without consideration of mitigating effects from collateral or recourse
arrangements.

Credit-Risk Related Guarantees

Credit derivatives Credit derivativesarefinancial instrumentsthat transfer the credit risk of areference obligation from the credit
protection buyer to the credit protection seller who is exposed to the credit risk without buying the reference obligation. We sell
credit protection on underlying reference obligations (such as loans or securities) by entering into credit derivatives, primarily in
the form of credit default swaps, with various institutions. We account for all credit derivatives at fair value. Where we sell credit
protectionto acounterparty that holdsthe reference obligation, the arrangement iseffectively afinancial guarantee on thereference
obligation. Under acredit derivative contract, the credit protection seller will reimbursethe credit protection buyer upon occurrence
of acredit event (such as bankruptcy, insolvency, restructuring or failure to meet payment obligations when due) as defined in the
derivative contract, in return for a periodic premium. Upon occurrence of a credit event, we will pay the counterparty the stated
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notional amount of the derivative contract and receive the underlying reference obligation. The recovery value of the reference
obligation received could be significantly lower than its notional principal amount when acredit event occurs.

Certain derivative contracts are subject to master netting arrangements and related collateral agreements. A party to a derivative
contract may demand that the counterparty post additional collateral in the event its net exposure exceeds certain predetermined
limits and when the credit rating falls below a certain grade. We set the collateral requirements by counterparty such that the
collateral covers various transactions and products, and is not allocated to specific individual contracts.

We manage our exposure to credit derivatives using a variety of risk mitigation strategies where we enter into offsetting hedge
positions or transfer the economic risks, in part or in entirety, to investors through the issuance of structured credit products. We
actively manage the credit and market risk exposure in the credit derivative portfolios on a net basis and, as such, retain no or a
limited net sell protection position at any time. The following table summarizes our net credit derivative positions as of June 30,
2014 and December 31, 2013:

June 30, 2014 December 31, 2013
Carrying (Fair) Carrying (Fair)
Value Notional Value Notional
(in millions)
Sell-protection credit derivative positions...........cccoeeeevceveeseesnne, $ 1,047 $ 149540 $ 545 $ 180,380
Buy-protection credit derivative positions...........ccccoeeeeeirienienicnennene (1,056) 153,494 (505) 174,906
NEE POSITIOND ..o $ (9 $ (3954) $ 40 $ 5474

@ positionsare presented net in thetabl e aboveto provide acomplete analysisof our risk exposure and depict theway we manage our credit derivative portfolio.

The offset of the sell-protection credit derivatives against the buy-protection credit derivatives may not be legally binding in the absence of master netting
agreements with the same counterparty. Furthermore, the credit loss triggering events for individual sell protection credit derivatives may not be the same
or occur in the same period as those of the buy protection credit derivatives thereby not providing an exact offset.

Standby letters of credit A standby letter of credit isissued to athird party for the benefit of a customer and is a guarantee that
the customer will perform or satisfy certain obligations under a contract. It irrevocably obligates us to pay a specified amount to
the third party beneficiary if the customer fails to perform the contractual obligation. We issue two types of standby letters of
credit: performance and financial. A performance standby letter of credit isissued where the customer isrequired to perform some
nonfinancial contractual obligation, such asthe performance of a specific act, whereas afinancial standby letter of credit isissued
where the customer's contractual obligation isof afinancial nature, such asthe repayment of aloan or debt instrument. As of June
30, 2014, the total amount of outstanding financial standby letters of credit (net of participations) and performance guarantees
were $5,491 million and $2,904 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2013, the total amount of outstanding financial standby
letters of credit (net of participations) and performance guarantees were $5,237 million and $3,172 million, respectively.

Theissuance of a standby letter of credit is subject to our credit approval process and collateral requirements. We charge feesfor
issuing letters of credit commensurate with the customer's credit evaluation and the nature of any collateral. Included in other
liahilities are deferred fees on standby letters of credit, which represent the value of the stand-ready obligation to perform under
these guarantees, amounting to $41 million and $46 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Also included
in other liabilitiesis an allowance for credit losses on unfunded standby letters of credit of $19 million and $18 million at June
30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the credit ratings of credit risk related guarantees including the credit ratings of counterparties
against which we sold credit protection and financial standby |etters of credit asof June 30, 2014 asanindicative proxy of payment
risk:

Credit Ratings of the Obligors or the Transactions

Average
Life Investment Non-Investment
Notional/Contractual Amounts (in years) Grade Grade Total
(dollars are in millions)

Sell-protection Credit Derivatives”

Single name credit default swaps ("CDS")....ccccocvverererereenn. 25 $ 96,763 $ 18,760 $ 115,523

SrUCTUrEd CDS.....cveevectectecteete ettt bbb 21 11,139 1,565 12,704

Index credit deriVatiVES ......oooeeeviieeeeceee e s 2.8 17,148 194 17,342

Total FELUIN SWaPS.....ccvveveieeieesiesieseeseeieee e sre s 33 3,553 418 3,971
ST o) (0] = RPN 128,603 20,937 149,540
Standby Letters of Credit® ............oooooeeeeeeeeeseeeee e 1.1 6,222 2,173 8,395
L1 = S $ 134825 $ 23110 $ 157,935

@ The credit ratingsin the table represent external credit ratings for classification asinvestment grade and non-investment grade.

@ External ratings for most of the obligors are not available. Presented above are the internal credit ratings which are developed using similar methodologies
and rating scale equivalent to external credit ratings for purposes of classification as investment grade and non-investment grade.

Our internal groupings are determined based on HSBC's risk rating systems and processes which assign a credit grade based on
a scale which ranks the risk of default of a customer. The groupings are determined and used for managing risk and determining
level of credit exposure appetite based on the customer's operating performance, liquidity, capital structure and debt service ability.
In addition, we also incorporate subjective judgments into the risk rating process concerning such things as industry trends,
comparison of performancetoindustry peersand perceived quality of management. We compare our internal risk ratingsto outside
externa rating agency benchmarks, where possible, at the time of formal review and regularly monitor whether our risk ratings
are comparable to the external ratings benchmark data.

A non-investment grade rating of areferenced obligor has a negative impact to the fair value of the credit derivative and increases
the likelihood that we will be required to perform under the credit derivative contract. We employ market-based parameters and,
where possible, use the observable credit spreads of the referenced obligors as measurement inputs in determining the fair value
of the credit derivatives. We believe that such market parameters are more indicative of the current status of payment/performance
risk than external ratings by the rating agencies which may not be forward-looking in nature and, as a result, lag behind those
market-based indicators.

Mortgage Loan Repurchase Obligations

Sale of mortgage loans Intheordinary courseof business, weoriginateand sell mortgageloansand providevariousrepresentations
and warrantiesrelated to, among other things, the ownership of theloans, the validity of theliens, theloan selection and origination
process, and the compliance to the origination criteria established by the agencies. In the event of a breach of our representations
and warranties, we may be obligated to repurchase the loans with identified defects or to indemnify the buyers. Our contractual
obligation arises only when the breach of representations and warranties are discovered and repurchase is demanded. Historically,
these sales had been primarily to government sponsored entities ("GSES") and, as aresult of the settlements discussed in further
detail below, the repurchase exposure associated with these sales has been substantially resolved. In addition, with the conversion
of our mortgage processing and servicing operations to PHH Mortgage in the second quarter of 2013, new agency dligible
originations beginning with May 2013 applications are sold directly to PHH Mortgage and PHH Mortgage is responsible for
origination representations and warranties for al loans purchased.

Duringthefourth quarter of 2013, weenteredinto asettlement with FNM A for $83 millionwhich settled our liability for substantially
all loanssold to FNM A between January 1, 2000 and June 26, 2012. The settlement resulted in arelease of $15 millioninrepurchase
reserves previously provided for this exposure. During the first quarter of 2014, we entered into a similar settlement with the
FHLMC for $25 million, reflected in realized losses in the liability rollforward below, which settled our liability for substantially
all loans sold to FHLMC from January 1, 2000 through 2013. As a result of the settlement and a re-assessment of the residual
exposure, we released $34 million in repurchase reserves. We continue to maintain repurchase reserves for FNMA and FHLMC
exposure associated with residual risk not covered by the settlement agreements.
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The following table provides information about outstanding repurchase demands received from GSEs and other third parties at
June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013:

June 30, December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)
L LSS $ 3 % 41
(@107 TSRS — 3
TOUA™ oottt $ 3 % 44

@ Includes repurchase demands on |oans sourced from our legacy broker channel of $1 million and $26 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013,

respectively.

In estimating our repurchase liability arising from breaches of representations and warranties, we consider historical losses on
residual risks not covered by settlement agreements adjusted for any risk factors not captured in the historical losses.

Thefollowing table summarizes the change in our estimated repurchase liability for loans sold to the GSEs and other third parties
during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 for obligations arising from the breach of representations and
warranties associated with the sale of these loans:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)
Balance at beginning of PEriod ... $ 36 $ 211 $ 9 $ 219
Increase (decrease) in liability recorded through €arnings.........cccocvvevveeerecnecniene — 23 (34) 36
REEIIZE IOSSES ...ttt sttt bbbt 2 17) (31) (38)
Balance at end Of PErOU .......cooirieireireere e $ 34 $ 217 $ 34 $ 217

Our remaining mortgage repurchase liability of $34 million at June 30, 2014 represents our best estimate of theloss that has been
incurred including interest, resulting from various representations and warranties in the contractual provisions of our mortgage
loan sales adjusted for settlements reached with counterparties. Because the level of mortgage |oan repurchase lossesis dependent
upon economic factors, investor demand strategies and other external risk factors such as housing market trends that may change,
thelevel of theliability for mortgage loan repurchase |l osses requires significant judgment. We have seen recent changesin investor
demand trends and continue to eval uate our methods of determining the best estimate of 10ss based on these recent trends. Asthese
estimatesareinfluenced by factorsoutside our control, thereisuncertainty inherent in these estimatesmaking it reasonably possible
that they could change. The range of reasonably possible lossesin excess of our recorded repurchase liability is between zero and
$30 million at June 30, 2014. This estimated range of reasonably possible losses was determined based upon modifying the
assumptionsutilizedin our best estimate of probablelossesto reflect what we believeto bereasonably possibleadverseassumptions.

Written Put Options, Non Credit-Risk Related and Indemnity Arrangements

Liquidity asset purchase agreements We provideliquidity facilitiesto Regency, amulti-seller ABCP conduit consolidated by our
affiliate. Regency finances the purchase of individual assets by issuing commercia paper to third party investors. Each liquidity
facility istransaction specific and has a maximum limit. Pursuant to the liquidity agreements, we are obligated, subject to certain
limitations, to advance funds in an amount not to exceed the face value of the commercial paper in the event Regency is unable
or unwilling to refinance its commercial paper. A liquidity asset purchase agreement is economically a conditional written put
optionissuedtothe conduit wheretheexercisepriceisthefaceval ue of the commercial paper. Asof June30, 2014 and December 31,
2013, we had issued $2,354 million and $2,560 million, respectively, of liquidity facilities to provide liquidity support to ABCP
conduits. See Note 16, "Variable Interest Entities," for further information.

Clearinghouses and exchanges We are amember of various exchanges and clearinghouses that trade and clear securities and/or
derivativescontracts. Under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010, membersof aclearinghouse
may be required to contribute to a guaranty fund to backstop members' obligationsto the clearinghouse. Asamember, we may be
required to pay aproportionate share of the financial obligations of another member who defaults on its obligationsto the exchange
or the clearinghouse. Our guarantee obligations would arise only if the exchange or clearinghouse had exhausted its resources.
Any potential contingent liability under these membership agreements cannot be estimated.
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Pledged Assets Pledged assets included in the consolidated balance sheet consisted of the following:

June 30, December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Interest bearing deposits With DANKS..........ccccceceeicce bbb $ 324 % 355
TTAAING BSSEES™Y.......oooeeeeeeee ettt aes s ses s sesses e enesnnes 3,051 1,296
Securities availabl@-FOr-SAED ...t 15,307 21,346
SECUNIES NEIA-TO-MELUFITY......eoviitiieiee ettt ettt b b e e e 327 362
LOBNSD ...ttt en e 3,732 3,969
ONE BSSES™ ..ot 2,904 2,904
TOUAl coveoveeeeeeeceeee et eee s es ettt es s en st n s ens e $ 25645 $ 30,232

@ Trading assets are primarily pledged against liabilities associated with repurchase agreements.
@ Securitiesavailable-for-sale are primarily pledged against derivatives, public fund deposits, trust deposits and various short-term and long term borrowings,
as well as providing capacity for potential secured borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank and the Federal Reserve Bank.

®  Loansare primarily residential mortgage loans pledged against long-term borrowings from the Federal Home L oan Bank.
@ Other assets represent cash on deposit with non-banks related to derivative collateral support agreements.

Debt securities pledged as collateral that can be sold or repledged by the secured party continue to be reported on the consolidated
balance sheet. Thefair value of securities available-for-sale that can be sold or repledged was $5,342 million and $10,950 million
at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The fair value of trading assets that can be sold or repledged was $3,051
million and $1,296 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Thefair value of collateral we accepted but not reported on the consolidated bal ance sheet that can be sold or repledged was $7,345
million and $4,187 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. This collateral was obtained under security
resale agreements. Of this collateral, $3,522 million and $2,771 million has been sold or repledged as collateral under repurchase
agreements or to cover short sales at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Securitization Activity Inaddition to the repurchase risk described above, we have also been involved as a sponsor/seller of loans
used to facilitate whole loan securitizations underwritten by our affiliate, HSI. In this regard, we began acquiring residential
mortgage loans in 2005 which were warehoused on our balance sheet with the intent of selling them to HSI to facilitate HSI's
wholeloan securitization program which was discontinued in 2007. During 2005-2007, we purchased and sold $24 billion of such
loans to HSI which were subsequently securitized and sold by HSI to third parties. See "Mortgage Securitization Activity and
Litigation" in Note 20, "Litigation and Regulatory Matters," for additional discussion of related exposure.
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Offsetting of Resale and Repurchase Agreements and Securities Borrowing and Lending Agreements

We enter into purchases and borrowings of securities under agreementsto resell (resale agreements) and sales of securities under
agreementsto repurchase (repurchase agreements) identical or substantially the same securities. Resal e and repurchase agreements
are generally accounted for as secured lending and secured borrowing transactions, respectively.

The amounts advanced under resale agreements and the amounts borrowed under repurchase agreements are carried on the
consolidated balance sheets at the amount advanced or borrowed, plusaccrued interest to date. Interest earned on resal e agreements
isreported asinterestincome. Interest paid on repurchase agreementsisreported asinterest expense. We offset resal eand repurchase
agreements executed with the same counterparty under legally enforceable netting agreements that meet the applicable netting
criteria as permitted by generally accepted accounting principles.

Repurchase agreements may require us to deposit cash or other collateral with the lender. In connection with resale agreements,
itisour policy to obtain possession of collateral, which may include the securities purchased, with market value in excess of the
principal amount loaned. The market value of the collateral subject to the resale and repurchase agreementsisregularly monitored,
and additional collateral is obtained or provided when appropriate, to ensure appropriate collateral coverage of these secured
financing transactions.

The following table provides information about repurchase agreements and resell agreements that are subject to offset as of June
30, 2014 and December 31, 2013:

Gross Amounts Not Offset in the
Balance Sheet

Gross Gross Amounts Net Amounts Cash Collateral
Amounts Offset in the Presented in the Financial Received /
Recognized Balance Sheet™® Balance Sheet Instruments @ Pledged Net Amount ©
(in millions)

As of June 30, 2014:
Assets:

Securities purchased under

agreementstoresell ............. $ 7,745 5,434 2,311 2,311 — 3 —
Liabilities:

Securities sold under

repurchase agreements......... $ 11,915 5,434 6,481 6,481 — 3 —
As of December 31, 2013:
Assets:

Securities purchased under

agreementstoresdl ............. $ 4,187 2,068 2,119 2,118 — 3 1
Liabilities:

Securities sold under

repurchase agreements......... $ 14,989 2,068 12,921 12,913 — 3 8

@ Represents recognized amount of resale and repurchase agreements with counterparties subject to legally enforceable netting agreements that meet the
applicable netting criteria as permitted by generally accepted accounting principles.
Represents securities received or pledged to cover financing transaction exposures.

®  Represents the amount of our exposure that is not collateralized / covered by pledged collateral.
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18. Fair Value Measurements

Accounting principles related to fair value measurements provide a framework for measuring fair value that focuses on the exit
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability in the principal market (or in the absence of the principal
market, the most advantageous market) accessible in an orderly transaction between willing market participants (the "Fair Value
Framework™). Where required by the applicable accounting standards, assets and liabilities are measured at fair value using the
"highest and best use" valuation premise. Fair value measurement guidance clarifies that financia instruments do not have
alternative use and, assuch, thefair value of financial instruments should be determined using an “in-exchange’ valuation premise.
However, the fair value measurement literature provides a valuation exception and permits an entity to measure the fair value of
agroup of financial assets and financial liabilities with offsetting credit risks and/or market risks based on the exit price it would
receive or pay to transfer the net risk exposure of agroup of assets or liabilitiesif certain conditions are met. We elected to apply
the measurement exception to agroup of derivativeinstrumentswith offsetting credit risks and market risks, which primarily relate
to interest rate, foreign currency, debt and equity price risk, and commodity pricerisk as of the reporting date.

Fair Value Adjustments The best evidence of fair value is quoted market price in an actively traded market, where available. In
the event listed price or market quotes are not availabl e, val uation techniques that incorporate rel evant transaction data and market
parametersreflecting theattributes of the asset or liability under consideration areapplied. Whereapplicable, fair value adjustments
are made to ensure the financial instruments are appropriately recorded at fair value. The fair value adjustments reflect the risks
associated with the products, contractual terms of the transactions, and theliquidity of the marketsin which the transactions occur.
Thefair value adjustments are broadly categorized by the following major types:

Credit risk adjustment - The credit risk adjustment is an adjustment to a group of financial assets and financia liabilities,
predominantly derivative assets and derivative liabilities, to reflect the credit quality of the partiesto the transaction in arriving at
fair value. A credit valuation adjustment to a financial asset is required to reflect the default risk of the counterparty. A debit
valuation adjustment to afinancial liability is recorded to reflect the default risk of HUSI.

For derivative instruments, we calcul ate the credit risk adjustment by applying the probability of default of the counterparty to the
expected exposure, and multiplying the result by the expected loss given default. We estimate the implied probability of default
based on the credit spread of the specific counterparty observed in the credit default swap market. Where credit default spread of
the counterparty is not available, we use the credit default spread of a specific proxy (e.g. the credit default swap spread of the
counterparty's parent). Where specific proxy credit default swap is not available, we apply a blended approach based on a
combination of credit default swapsreferencing to credit namesof similar credit standing and the historical rating-based probability
of default.

Liquidity risk adjustment - Theliquidity risk adjustment (primarily in the form of bid-offer adjustment) reflects the cost that would
be incurred to close out the market risks by hedging, disposing or unwinding the position. Valuation models generally produce
mid market values. The bid-offer adjustment is made in such away that resultsin a measure that reflects the exit price that most
represents the fair value of the financial asset or financial liability under consideration or, where applicable, the fair value of the
net market risk exposure of agroup of financial assets or financial liabilities. These adjustmentsrelate primarily to Level 2 assets.

Model valuation adjustment - Wherefair val ue measurementsare determined using an internal val uation model based on observable
and unobservable inputs, certain valuation inputs may be less readily determinable. There may be a range of possible valuation
inputs that market participants may assume in determining the fair value measurement. The resultant fair value measurement has
inherent measurement risk if one or more parameters are unobservable and must be estimated. An input valuation adjustment is
necessary to reflect the likelihood that market participants may use different input parameters, and to mitigate the possibility of
measurement error. In addition, the values derived from valuation techniques are affected by the choice of valuation model and
model limitation. When different val uation techniques are avail abl e, the choice of valuation model can be subjective. Furthermore,
the valuation model applied may have measurement limitations. In those cases, an additional valuation adjustment is also applied
to mitigate the measurement risk. Model valuation adjustments are not material and relate primarily to Level 2 instruments.

We apply stress scenariosin determining appropriate liquidity risk and model risk adjustmentsfor Level 3fair valuesby reviewing
the historical data for unobservable inputs (e.g., correlation, volatility). Some stress scenarios involve a 95 percent confidence
interval (i.e., two standard deviations). Other stress scenarios may be performed using highly stressed historical inputs such as
credit spreads experienced during a credit crisis. We al so utilize unobservable parameter adjustments when instruments are valued
using internally developed models which reflects the uncertainty in the value estimates provided by the model.

Fair Value Hierarchy The Fair Value Framework establishes a three-tiered fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1 quoted market price - Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or ligbilities.
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Level 2 valuation technique using observable inputs - Level 2 inputsinclude quoted pricesfor similar assetsor liabilitiesin active
markets, quoted pricesfor identical or similar assetsor liabilitiesin markets that areinactive, and measurements determined using
valuation model swhereall significant inputsare observable, such asinterest ratesand yield curvesthat are observable at commonly
quoted intervals.

Level 3valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs - Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability
and include situations where fair values are measured using valuation techniques based on one or more significant unobservable
input.

Classification within the fair value hierarchy is based on whether the lowest hierarchical level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable. As such, the classification within the fair value hierarchy is dynamic and can be transferred to
other hierarchy levelsin each reporting period. Transfers between leveling categories are assessed, determined and recognized at
the end of each reporting period.

Valuation Control Framework We have established a control framework which is designed to ensure that fair values are either
determined or validated by afunction independent of the risk-taker. To that end, the ultimate responsibility for the determination
of fair values rests with Finance. Finance has established an independent price validation process to ensure that the assets and
liahilities measured at fair value are properly stated.

A valuation committee, chaired by the Head of Business Finance of Global Banking and Markets, meets monthly to review, monitor
and discuss significant valuation matters arising from credit and market risks. The committee is responsible for establishing
valuation policies and procedures, approving theinternal val uation techniques and model s devel oped by the Quantitative Risk and
Valuation Group ("QRVG"), reviewing and approving valuation adjustments pertaining to, among other things, unobservable
inputs, market liquidity, selection of valuation model and counterparty credit risk. Significant valuation risksidentified in business
activities are corroborated and addressed by the committee members and, where applicable, are escalated to the Chief Financial
Officer of HUSI and the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

Where fair value measurements are determined based on information obtained from independent pricing services or brokers,
Finance applies appropriate validation proceduresto substantiate fair value. For price validation purposes, quotationsfrom at | east
two independent pricing sources are obtained for each financial instrument, where possible.

The following factors are considered in determining fair values:

= similarities between the asset or the liability under consideration and the asset or liability for which quotation is received;

= collaboration of pricing by referencing to other independent market data such as market transactions and relevant benchmark
indices,

= consistency among different pricing sources,

= thevauation approach and the methodol ogies used by the independent pricing sources in determining fair value;

= the elapsed time between the date to which the market data relates and the measurement date;

= thesource of the fair value information; and

= whether the security istraded in an active or inactive market.

Greater weight is given to quotations of instruments with recent market transactions, pricing quotes from deal ers who stand ready
to transact, quotations provided by market-makers who structured such instrument and market consensus pricing based on inputs
from a large number of survey participants. Any significant discrepancies among the externa quotations are reviewed and
adjustmentsto fair values are recorded where appropriate. Where the transaction volume of a specific instrument has been reduced
and thefair value measurement becomes|esstransparent, Finance will apply moredetailed proceduresto understand and challenge
the appropriateness of the unobservable inputs and the valuation techniques used by the independent pricing service. Where
applicable, Finance will develop afair value estimate using its own pricing model inputs to test reasonableness. Where fair value
measurementsaredetermined usinginternal val uation models, Financewill validatethefair valuemeasurement by either devel oping
unobservable inputs based on the industry consensus pricing surveys in which we participate or back testing by observing the
actual settlements occurring soon after the measurement date. Any significant valuation adjustments are reported to and discussed
with the valuation committee.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments The fair value estimates, methods and assumptions set forth below for our financial
instruments, including thosefinancial instruments carried at cost, are made solely to comply with disclosuresrequired by generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States and should be read in conjunction with the financia statements and notes
included in this quarterly report.
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The following table summarizes the carrying value and estimated fair value of our financial instruments at June 30, 2014 and

December 31, 2013:

Carrying

Fair

June 30, 2014 Value Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in millions)
Financial assets:
Short-term financial assetS........cccveevvieeireeeserses e $ 26,335 $ 26335 $ 2325 $ 23946 $ 64
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale
BOIEEIMENES. ...ttt e 2,311 2,311 — 2,311 —
Non-derivative trading @SSEtS........cuoeereireireireeresee s 20,802 20,802 2,717 15,006 3,079
DENVALIVES.....c.ocviieeeiiieiisieeesiee sttt ssenes 5,882 5,882 10 5,828 44
SECUNMTIES ..t 46,081 46,150 27,924 18,226 —
Commercial loans, net of allowance for credit losses................... 52,650 54,210 — — 54,210
Commercial loans designated under fair value option and held
FOr SAE .. e 159 159 — 159 —
Commercial loansheld for sale........ccoevivninninre e 237 237 — 237 —
Consumer loans, net of allowance for credit 10Sses..........ccceceeunee. 18,924 16,732 — — 16,732
Consumer loans held for sale:
Residential MOrtgages........coouverererenene e 38 38 — 14 24
Other CONSUMIE .......oiueieiieieieeeeeieee ettt s 66 66 — — 66
Financial liabilities:
Short-term financial liabilities..........cccovveveecescceeccs e, $ 12,987 $ 12,987 $ — $12924 % 63
Deposits:
Without fixed Maturities.........ccoeereireinireree e 105,977 105,977 — 105,977 —
FiXed MatUNTIES ......cceeeieecee e 1,830 1,834 — 1,834 —
Deposits designated under fair value option ...........coeceveeeereeiennne 7,714 7,714 — 5,457 2,257
Non-derivative trading liabilities.........ccoovveireiineinecree 3,808 3,808 656 3,152 —
DENVALIVES. ....cecviieeeisieiiriee ettt sttt senessenes 5,747 5,747 14 5,715 18
LoNg-term debt .........c.covvveiiieccseeee s 16,341 17,022 — 17,022 —
Long-term debt designated under fair value option ............cc........ 8,263 8,263 — 7,525 738
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Carrying Fair
December 31, 2013 Value Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in millions)
Financial assets:
Short-term financial aSSEtS .......c.cveveeeecieeeeeeeeceee e $ 20626 $20626 $ 961 $ 19614 $ 51
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale
20| £ 001 0] £ 2,119 2,119 — 2,119 —
Non-derivative trading aSSetS........cccovvvieveniesesiesseeeeeeeeseeeens 22,903 22,903 1,344 18,924 2,635
DEMIVALIVES. .....ccveieieecieieie ettt sttt st e e aeeaeere s 7,569 7,569 26 7,467 76
SECUNTIES ...viecviiceite et 56,368 56,405 39,553 16,852 —
Commercial loans, net of allowance for credit losses................... 48,186 49,897 — — 49,897
Commercial loans designated under fair value option and held
L0 G = TS 58 58 — 58 —
Commercial loansheld for Sale........coveveveceeciieceecee e 18 18 — 18 _
Consumer loans, net of allowance for credit 10sses ... 18,903 16,051 — — 16,051
Consumer loans held for sale:
Residential MOrtgages.......ccoovvveerieverereseeseereeseeseeeeesese e 91 92 — 36 56
Other CONSUMES ........ceeiiiiiesie ettt e 63 63 — — 63
Financial liabilities:
Short-term financial liabilities..........ccccevveeeieiiicceeec e, $ 19205 $ 19205 $ — $191%4 $ 51
Deposits:
Without fiXxed MatUrtieS......ccevveeeeeeiecceecee e 102,584 102,584 — 102,584 —
FiXed MatUFItIES .....ccveeciecece et 2,284 2,289 — 2,289 —
Deposits designated under fair value option ...........cccceeeeeencnennens 7,740 7,740 — 5,406 2,334
Non-derivative trading liabilities.........c..coovrierieverererececccses 4,134 4,134 308 3,826 —
DEMIVALIVES......oceeieieecieie et st s sa e e sneere s 7,348 7,348 5 7,294 49
LONG-term debt ........covcviveieere s 15,261 15,729 — 15,729 —
Long-term debt designated under fair value option ..........c.cccc...... 7,586 7,586 — 6,686 900

Loan values presented in the table above were determined using the Fair Value Framework for measuring fair value, which is
based on our best estimate of the amount within a range of value we believe would be received in a sale as of the balance sheet
date (i.e. exit price). The secondary market demand and estimated value for our residential mortgage loans has been heavily
influenced by the challenging economic conditions during the past several years, including house price depreciation, elevated
unemployment, changes in consumer behavior, changes in discount rates and the lack of financing options available to support
the purchase of receivables. For certain consumer loans, investors incorporate numerous assumptions in predicting cash flows,
such as future interest rates, higher charge-off levels, slower voluntary prepayment speeds, different default and loss curves and
estimated collateral values than we, as the servicer of these loans, believe will ultimately be the case. The investor's valuation
process reflects this difference in overall cost of capital assumptions as well as the potential volatility in the underlying cash flow
assumptions, the combination of which may yield asignificant pricing discount from our intrinsic value. The estimated fair values
at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 reflect these market conditions. The increase in the relative fair value of our residential
mortgage loans during 2014 is largely due to improved conditions in the housing industry driven by increased property values
and, to alesser extent, lower required market yields and increased investor demand for these types of receivables.

Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis The following table presents information about our assets
and liabilities measured at fair value on arecurring basis as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, and indicates the fair value
hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized to determine such fair value:
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Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis

Gross Net
June 30, 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance Netting® Balance
(in millions)
Assets:
Trading Securities, excluding derivatives:
U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agencies and sponsored enterprises..... $ 2,717  $ 135 $ — $ 2852 % — $ 2852
Obligations of U.S. States and political subdiviSions............c.cocveeereniennne — 27 — 27 — 27
Collateralized debt Obligations............ccvvieeeiriecnneerneeeresee s — — 260 260 — 260
Asset-backed securities:
Residential MOMQagES ........cervreereerieeeeresieee st — 153 — 153 — 153
SHUAENE LOBNS......coiviiiiiiii s — 81 — 81 — 81
Corporate and other domestic debt securities.... — — 2,819 2,819 — 2,819
Debt Securitiesissued by foreign entities:
COMPOFELE......eueereseereetee ettt b ettt eb s — 7 — 77 — 77
Government-backed ... — 4,035 — 4,035 — 4,035
EQUILY SECUMTIES ...ttt s — 21 — 21 — 21
Precious MetalStrading ........c.cocveerreeerenieiree s — 10,477 — 10,477 — 10,477
Derivatives?:
INEErest rate CONIACLS..........c.ouveviririririricrer e 97 52,969 1 53,067 — 53,067
Foreign exchange CoNLractS...........oreerrieeiireeiee s 29 12,731 16 12,776 — 12,776
Equity contracts................ — 2,062 165 2,227 — 2,227
Precious metals contracts 2 644 — 646 — 646
Credit CONMTACES......cvvreererrereerereree e — 3,460 356 3,816 — 3,816
Derivatives netting — — — — (66,650) (66,650)
TOtAl AENVALIVES......cecveveieererire s 128 71,866 538 72,532 (66,650) 5,882
Securities available-for-sale:
U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agencies and sponsored enterprises..... 27,914 11,186 — 39,100 — 39,100
Obligations of U.S. states and political subdiviSions...........ccccoveinininenne — 730 — 730 — 730
Asset-backed securities:
— 1 — 1 — 1
— 86 — 86 — 86
— 94 — 94 — 94
— 94 — 94 — 94
Debt Securitiesissued by foreign entities:
COMPOFELE......veeeereieereetee ettt ettt s e e b en e s — 869 — 869 — 869
Government-backed ... 10 3,628 — 3,638 — 3,638
....................................................................................... — 166 — 166 — 166
........................................................................................................ — 159 — 159 — 159
— — 186 186 — 186
...................................................................................... $ 30,769 $ 103,885 $ 3,803 $ 138457 $ (66,650) $ 71,807
Liabilities: -
Deposits in OMEStIC OFfiCES®..........ovverereeeeeeeeeseeessesesssses e sssssesseenes $ — $ 5457 $ 2257 $ 7714 $ — $ 7,714
Trading ligbilities, excluding derivatives............coceerreenneeenseenenens 656 3,152 — 3,808 — 3,808
Derivatives?:
INLErest rate CONIACLS..........ccovveviiriiiericrs e 37 53,651 1 53,689 — 53,689
Foreign exchange CONLractS.........c.oreerrieeiireerees s — 11,606 16 11,622 — 11,622
EQUILY CONEFACLS.....c.cveveiiieeieieeeie sttt — 1,414 106 1,520 — 1,520
Precious metals contracts . 138 656 — 794 — 794
Credit CONIACLS.........covuiiiiii s — 3,822 99 3,921 — 3,921
DENVatiVES NELIING ...c.cvevenieicieicieecieee e — — — — (65,799) (65,799)
Total derivatives.... 175 71,149 222 71,546 (65,799) 5,747
LONG-tErM AEBt® ... — 7,525 738 8,263 — 8,263
Total HabIlItIES. ... $ 831 $ 87283 $ 3217 $ 91331 $ (65799) $ 25532
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Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis

Gross Net
December 31, 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance Netting® Balance
(in millions)
Assets:
Trading Securities, excluding derivatives:
U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agencies and sponsored enterprises..... $ 1,344 $ 178 % — $ 1522 % — $ 1522
Obligations of U. S. States and political subdiviSions............cccoeecienineene — 25 — 25 — 25
Collateralized debt Obligations...........oeererieieirneireese e — — 254 254 — 254
Asset-backed securities:
Residential MOMgagesS ........c.covreereuirrrieeresieiee s — 159 — 159 — 159
SHUAENE [OBNS ... — 68 — 68 — 68
Corporate and other domestic debt securities. — — 2,260 2,260 — 2,260
Debt Securitiesissued by foreign entities:
COIPOFELE......eeeeeeteteieseeteit ettt ettt b e ne e — 495 — 495 — 495
Government-backed .... — 6,223 121 6,344 — 6,344
EQUILY SECUMTIES ...t — 25 — 25 — 25
Precious MetalStrading ........c.coeeeeveeerininieeseeee s — 11,751 — 11,751 — 11,751
Derivatives®:
INLErest rate CONIACLS..........ccvvviiririiiereieree e 81 56,095 1 56,177 — 56,177
Foreign exchange CONIaCES.........cooveeririrecirnieee e 7 15,291 131 15,429 — 15,429
Equity contracts................. — 2,042 160 2,202 — 2,202
Precious Metals CONIactS ..o 182 1,400 1 1,583 — 1,583
Credit CONIACLS..........cvviiiiiiie s — 4,152 512 4,664 — 4,664
Derivatives netting . — — — — (72,486) (72,486)
TOtAl AENIVALIVES. .....ceeveiecreirieee e 270 78,980 805 80,055 (72,486) 7,569
Securities available-for-sale:
U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agencies and sponsored enterprises..... 39,513 9,439 — 48,952 — 48,952
Obligations of U.S. states and political subdiviSions...........cccceveeneninenne — 742 — 742 — 742
Asset-backed securities:
— 1 — 1 — 1
— 126 — 126 — 126
HOME EQUILY ...ttt — 227 — 227 — 227
Other-.......... — 94 — 94 — %
Corporate and other domestic debt SECUMtIES........c.covvveveirerieirirccieine — — — — — —
Debt Securitiesissued by foreign entities:
COIPOFELE......eeeeeeteeeiereeteitee ettt ettt en e — 881 — 881 — 881
Government-backed ..o 40 3,681 — 3,721 — 3,721
162 — 162 — 162
58 — 58 — 58
— 227 227 — 227
$ 113315 $ 3667 $ 158149 $ (72,486) $ 85,663
Liabilities: -
DePOSits iN dOMESLIC OFfiCES™..........orvveereeeeeeeeeseesseesessseses s ssessssesseeees $ — $ 5406 $ 233 $ 7740 $ — $ 7,740
Trading ligbilities, excluding derivatives............cocoeoenreennneenneenennns 308 3,826 — 4,134 — 4,134
Derivatives?:
INLErest rate CONIACLS..........ccvvviiririiiereere e 34 56,282 — 56,316 — 56,316
Foreign exchange CONIaCES.........ccoveeririricerinieee s 16 14,576 36 14,628 — 14,628
Equity contracts................. — 1,403 157 1,560 — 1,560
Precious Metals CONIactS ..o 7 847 3 857 — 857
Credit CONIACLS..........cvviiiieii s — 4,398 321 4,719 — 4,719
Derivatives netting . — — — — (70,732) (70,732)
TOtAl AENVALIVES. .....ceevreiecreireere e 57 77,506 517 78,080 (70,732) 7,348
LONG-LErM AEBt® .....o..eoe e neees — 6,686 900 7,586 — 7,586

Total liabilities... 365 $ 93424 $ 3751 $ 97540 $ (70,732) $ 26,808

@ Represents counterparty and cash collateral netting which allow the offsetting of amounts relating to certain contracts if certain conditions are met.
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@

Includes trading derivative assets of $4,354 million and $5,991 million and trading derivative liabilities of $5,007 million and $6,741 million as of June

30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, as well as derivatives held for hedging and commitments accounted for as derivatives.

(©)]

information.
€]

®
(6)

See Note 7, "Intangible Assets," for additional information.
Represents structured deposits risk-managed on afair value basis for which we have elected to apply the fair value option.

Includes structured notes and own debt issuances which we have elected to measure on afair value basis.

Transfers between leveling categories are recognized at the end of each reporting period.

Includes certain commercial loans held for sale which we have elected to apply the fair value option. See Note 6, "L oans Held for Sale," for further

Transfers between Levels 1 and 2 Measurements Therewere no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during the three and six months

ended June 30, 2014 and 2013.

Information on Level 3 assets and liabilities The following table summarizes additiona information about changes in the fair
valueof Level 3assetsand liabilitiesduring thethree and six monthsended June 30, 2014 and 2013. Asarisk management practice,
wemay risk managetheLevel 3assetsand liabilities, inwholeor in part, using securitiesand derivative positionsthat are classified
as Level 1 or Level 2 measurements within the fair value hierarchy. Since those Level 1 and Level 2 risk management positions
are not included in the table below, the information provided does not reflect the effect of such risk management activities related
to the Level 3 assets and liabilities.

Total Gains and

(Losses) Included in® Current
Period
Trading Transfers  Transfers Unrealized
Apr. 1, Revenue Other Purch- Issu- Settle- Into Out of Jun. 30, Gains
2014 (Loss) Revenue ases ances ments Level 3 Level 3 2014 (Losses)
(in millions)
Assets:
Trading assets, excluding
derivatives:
Collateralized debt
obligations........ccc..eunne. $ 258 $ 7% - 3% — 3% — 3 5) $ — 3 — $ 260 $ 7
Corporate and other
domestic debt securities... 2,808 — — 11 — — — — 2,819 —
Corporate debt securities
issued by foreign entities. — — — — — — — — — _
Government debt
securities issued by
foreign entities................. 117 3 — — — 1) — (119) — —
Equity securities.............. — — — — — — — — — —
Derivatives, net®:
Interest rate contracts....... 1 — 1) — — — — — — —
Foreign exchange
CONIACES.....vvervvrerreeienene 96 8 — — — (6) — (98) — 4
Equity contracts............... 24 66 — — — (29) 2 4 59 41
Precious metals contracts — — — — — — — — — —
Credit contracts................ 181 (41) — — — 3 — 114 257 (42)
Mortgage servicing rights 205 — (12) — — M — — 186 (12)
Total assets......ccvevivcinnnes $ 3690 $ 43 $ (13) $ 11 3 — 3% (45) $ 2 % (107) $ 3581 $ 2)
Liabilities:
Deposits in domestic
OffiCES o $ (2,244) $ (85 $ — — $ (135) $ 130 $ @7 $ 104 (2,257) $ (34)
Long-term debt................... (732) 4 — — (110) 73 — 27 (738) (22)
Total ligbilities.........coooeo..... $ (2976) $  (81) $ — $ — $ (245 $ 203 $ (27) $ 131 $(2,995) $ (56)
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Total Gains and

(Losses) Included in® Current
Period
Trading Transfers  Transfers Unrealized
Jan. 1, Revenue Other Purch- Issu- Settle- Into Out of Jun. 30, Gains
2014 (Loss) Revenue ases ances ments Level 3 Level 3 2014 (Losses)
(in millions)
Assets:
Trading assets, excluding
derivatives:
Collateralized debt
obligations..........cceeeerenne $ 254 % 14 $ — $ — ¢ — 8 $ — $ — $ 260 $ 14
Corporate and other
domestic debt securities... 2,260 (5) — 564 — — — — 2,819 (6)
Corporate debt securities
issued by foreign entities. — — — — — — — — — —
Government debt
securities issued by
foreign entities................ 121 5 — — — @ — (119) — —
Equity securities.............. — — — — — — — — — —
Derivatives, net®®:
Interest rate contracts....... 1 — 1) — — — — — — €]
Foreign exchange
CONFaCtS.....oveevreireriarians 95 10 — — — (12) — (93) — 5
Equity contracts............... 3 86 — — — (36) 6 — 59 49
Precious metal s contracts ) 2 — — — — — — — —
Credit contracts................ 191 (55) — — — 7 — 114 257 (98)
Mortgage servicing rights® 227 — (24) — — an — — 186 (24)
Total aSSEtS....ovvvvrerrrrereenns $ 3,150 57 $ (25) $ 564 $ — $ (713) $ 6 $ (98) $ 3581 $ (61)
Liabilities:
Depositsin domestic
offices (210) $ — 3 — $ (160) $ 298 $ 95) $ 244 (2,257) $ (51)
Long-term debt 97 — — (153) 120 — 98 (738) (23)
Total liabilities.......ccccevrennee $(3,234) (113) $ — 3 — $ (313) $ 418 § (95) $ 342 $ (2,995) $ (74)
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Total Gains and

(Losses) Included in® Current
Period
Trading Transfers  Transfers Unrealized
Apr. 1, Revenue Other Purch- Issu- Settle- Into Out of Jun. 30, Gains
201 (Loss) Revenue ases ances ments Level 3 Level 3 2013 (Losses)
(in millions)
Assets:
Trading assets, excluding
derivatives:
Collateralized debt
obligations...........ccoevveeene. $ 481 83 $ — $ 216 $ — $ (553) $ — 3 — $ 2271 $ 56
Corporate and other
domestic debt securities... 1,524 21 — 16 — (63) — — 1,498 21
Corporate debt securities
issued by foreign entities. 294 (9) — — — — — — 285 9)
Government debt
securitiesissued by
foreign entities................. 143 @ — — — (0] — — 135 9)
Equity securities.............. 11 ©) — — — (4) — — — @
Derivatives, net®:
Interest rate contracts....... 6 @ (6) — — — — — 1) 7
Foreign exchange
CONEraCtS.....cveveveeeeirriinane 134 (18) — — — (6) (6) — 104 (28)
Equity contracts............... 34 (81) — — — (27) 6 (15) (83) (92)
Credit contracts................ 364 (105) — — — (34) — — 225 (82
Mortgage servicing rights® 190 — 30 — 5 — — — 225 30
Total 8SSEtS...c.ceerverecrerreneas $ 3,181 (124) $ 24 $ 232 % 5 $ (683) $ — $ (15 $ 2615 $ (127)
Liabilities:
Deposits in domestic
OffICES ... $(2,876) 411 $ — 3 — $ 81) $ 110 $ (@) $ 165 (2,448) $ 432
Long-term debit................... (618) (242) — — (59) 68 — 179 (672) (239)
Total ligbilities............. $(3494) $ 169 $ — $ — $ (1400 $ 178 $ (177) $ 344 $ (3120) $ 193
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Total Gains and

(Losses) Included in® Current
Period
Trading Transfers  Transfers Unrealized
Jan. 1, Revenue Other Purch- Issu- Settle- Into Out of Jun. 30, Gains
2013 (Loss) Revenue ases ances ments Level 3 Level 3 2013 (Losses)
(in millions)
Assets:
Trading assets, excluding
derivatives:
Collateralized debt
obligations.......c.cccvreennne. $ 466 $ 118 % — $ 237 % — $ (5% $ — 3 — $ 227 $ 87
Corporate and other
domestic debt securities... 1,861 28 — 31 — (422) — — 1,498 24
Corporate debt securities
issued by foreign entities. 299 (14) — — — — — — 285 (14)
Government debt
securities issued by
foreign entities........c....... 311 15 — — — (191) — — 135 10
Equity securities 9 (5) — — — @) — _ _ (5)
Derivatives, net®:
Interest rate contracts....... 7 1) (@) — — — — — @ ()]
Foreign exchange
CONIacts.......ccovvvernicnnnen, 5 (4) — — — 116 (13 — 104 106
Equity contracts............... ©) (20) — — — (48) 13 (21) (83) (73)
Credit contracts................ 571 (155) — — — (145) (46) — 225 (274)
Mortgage servicing rights® 168 — 46 — 11 — — — 225 51
Total 8SSEtS...c.ceerrereererrenens $ 3690 $ (38) $ 39 $ 268 $ 11 $(1,288) $ (46) $ (21) $ 2615 $ (96)
Liabilities:
Depositsin domestic
OFfICES v $(2,636) $ 370 $ — $ — $ (485 $ 219 % (160) $ 244 (2,448) $ 406
Long-term debit................... (429) (273) — — (270) 119 — 181 (672) (250)
Total liabilities 97 $ — $ — $ (755) $ 338 % (160) $ 425 $ (3120) $ 156

@ Includes realized and unrealized gains and losses.

@ Level 3 net derivativesincluded derivative assets of $538 million and derivative liabilities of $222 million as of June 30, 2014 and derivative assets of
$985 million and derivative liabilities of $740 million as of June 30, 2013.

®  SeeNote 7, "Intangible Assets," for additional information.
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The following table presents quantitative information about the unobservable inputs used to determine the recurring fair value
measurement of assets and liabilities classified as Level 3 fair value measurements as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013:

June 30, 2014

Fair Value
Financial Instrument Type (in millions) Valuation Technique(s) Significant Unobservable Inputs Range of Inputs
Collateralized debt obligations................ 260 Broker quotes or consensus Prepayment rates 1% - 5%
pricing and, where applicable,
discounted cash flows
Conditional default rates 6% - 7%
L oss severity rates 90% - 91%
Corporate and other domestic debt 2,819 Discounted cash flows Spread volatility on collateral assets 1% - 3%
SECUNEIES ..o
Correlation between insuranceclam ~ 80%
shortfall and collateral value
Interest rate derivative contracts.............. —  Market comparable adjusted for Probability to fund for rate lock 5% - 97%
probability to fund commitments
Foreign exchange derivative contracts™ . —  Option pricing model Implied volatility of currency pairs 8% - 14%
Equity derivative contracts™ ................... 59  Option pricing model Equity / Equity Index volatility 9% - 41%
Equity / Equity and Equity / Index 47% - 60%
correlation
Credit derivative contracts...........covueee. 257  Option pricing model Correlation of defaults of aportfolio  49% - 56%
of reference credit names
Issuer by issuer correlation of 83% - 95%
defaults
Mortgage servicing rights.........ccccoeeuenee 186 Option adjusted discounted cash Constant prepayment rates 8% - 46%
flows
Option adjusted spread 8% - 19%
Estimated annualized coststo service  $91 - $333 per
account
Deposits in domestic offices (structured (2,257) Option adjusted discounted cash Implied volatility of currency pairs 8% - 14%
deposits) V@ ... flows
Equity / Equity Index volatility 9% - 41%
Equity / Equity and Equity / Index 47% - 60%
correlation
Long-term debt (structured notes)™@ ..... (738) Option adjusted discounted cash ~ Implied volatility of currency pairs 8% - 14%
flows
Equity / Equity Index volatility 9% - 41%
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December 31, 2013

Fair Value
Financial Instrument Type (in millions) Valuation Technique(s) Significant Unobservable Inputs Range of Inputs
Collateralized debt obligations................ 254  Broker quotes or consensuspricing  Prepayment rates 0% - 5%
and, where applicable, discounted
cash flows
Conditional default rates 5% - 7%
L oss severity rates 90% - 100%
Corporate and other domestic debt 2,260 Discounted cash flows Spread volétility on collateral assets ~ 1%- 3%
SECUNTIES ..t
Correlation between insuranceclaim ~ 80%
shortfall and collateral value
Corporate and government debt 121 Discounted cash flows Correlations of default among a 36% - 63%
securitiesissued by foreign entities.......... portfolio of credit names of
embedded credit derivatives
Interest rate derivative contracts.............. 1 Market comparable adjusted for Probability to fund for rate lock 10% - 99%
probability to fund commitments
Foreign exchange derivative contracts®™ . 95  Option pricing model Implied volatility of currency pairs 11% - 16%
Equity derivative contracts™ ................... 3 Option pricing model Equity / Equity Index volatility 6% - 69%
Equity / Equity and Equity / Index 50% - 58%
correlation
Credit derivative contracts...........ccvueeee. 191  Option pricing model Correlation of defaults of aportfolio  46% - 54%
of reference credit names
Industry by industry correlation of 83% - 95%
defaults
Mortgage servicing rights..........ccoeeeenne 227 Option adjusted discounted cash Constant prepayment rates 5% - 22%
flows
Option adjusted spread 8% - 19%
Estimated annualized coststo service  $91 - $333 per
account
Deposits in domestic offices (structured (2,334) Option adjusted discounted cash Implied volatility of currency pairs 11% - 16%
deposits) V@ . flows
Equity / Equity Index volatility 6% - 69%
Equity / Equity and Equity / Index 50% - 58%
correlation
Long-term debt (structured notes)¥@ ... (900) Option adjusted discounted cash Implied volatility of currency pairs 11% - 16%
flows
Equity / Equity Index volatility 6% - 69%
Equity / Equity and Equity / Index 50% - 58%

correlation

@

@

We are the client-facing entity and we enter into identical but opposite derivatives to transfer the resultant risks to our affiliates. With the exception of
counterparty credit risks, wearemarket neutral . The correspondingintra-group derivativesare presented asequity derivativesandforeign exchangederivatives
inthetable.

Structured deposits and structured notes contain embedded derivative features whose fair value measurements contain significant Level 3 inputs.

Significant Unobservable Inputs for Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Collateralized Debt Obligations (CDOs)

Prepayment rate - The rate at which borrowers pay off the mortgage loans early. The prepayment rate is affected by anumber
of factorsincluding the location of the mortgage collateral, the interest rate type of the mortgage loans, borrowers' credit and
sensitivity to interest rate movement. The prepayment rate of our CDOs portfolio istilted towards the low end of the range.

Default rate - Annualized percentage of default rate over a group of collateral such as residential or commercial mortgage
loans. The default rate and loss severity rate are positively correlated. The default rate of our portfolio is closeto the mid point
of the range.

Loss Severity Rate - Included in our Level 3 CDOs portfolio are collateralized loan aobligations (CLOs) and trust preferred
securities which are about equally distributed. The loss severity rate for trust preferred securities as of June 30, 2014 is about
1.8 timesthat of CLOs.
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Derivatives

= Correlation of Default - The default correlation of agroup of credit exposures measuresthelikelihood that the credit references
within agroup will default together. The default correlation is a significant input to structured credit products such as nth-to-
default swaps. In addition, the correlation between the currency and the default risk of the reference creditsisacritical input
to aforeign currency denominated credit default swap where the correlation is not observable.

= Implied volatility - Theimplied volatility isasignificant pricing input for freestanding or embedded options including equity,
foreign currency and interest rate options. The level of volatility isafunction of the nature of the underlying risk, the level of
strike price and the years to maturity of the option. Depending on the underlying risk and tenure, we determine the implied
volatility based on observable input where information is available. However, substantially all of the implied volatilities are
derived based on historical information. The implied volatility for different foreign currency pairsis between 8 percent and
14 percent whiletheimplied volatility for equity/equity or equity/equity index isbetween 9 percent and 41 percent, respectively
at June 30, 2014. Although implied foreign currency volatility and equity volatility appear to be widely distributed at the
portfolio level, the deviation of implied volatility on a trade-by-trade basis is narrower. The average deviation of implied
volatility for the foreign currency pair and at-the-money equity option are 3 percent and 5 percent, respectively at June 30,
2014.

= Correlations of a group of foreign currency or equity - Correlation measures the rel ative change in values among two or more
variables (i.e., equity or foreign currency pair). Variables can be positively or negatively correlated. Correlationisakey input
indetermining thefair value of aderivativereferenced to abasket of variablessuch asequitiesor foreign currencies. A mgority
of the correlations are not observable, but are derived based on historical data. The correlation between equity/equity and
equity/equity index was between 47 percent and 60 percent at June 30, 2014.

Sensitivity of Level 3 Inputs to Fair Value Measurements

Collateralized Debt Obligations - Probability of default, prepayment speed and loss severity rate are significant unobservable
inputs. Significant increase (decrease) in theseinputswill result in alower (higher) fair value measurement of acollateralized debt
obligation. A change in assumption for default probability is often accompanied by adirectionally similar change in loss severity,
and a directionally opposite change in prepayment speed.

Corporate and Domestic Debt Securities - The fair value measurements of certain corporate debt securities are affected by thefair
valueof theunderlying portfoliosof investmentsused ascollateral and themake-wholeguaranteeprovided by third party guarantors.
The probability that the collateral fair value declines below the collateral call threshold concurrent with the guarantors failure to
perform its make whole obligation is unobservable. The increase (decrease) in the probability the collateral value falls below the
collateral call threshold is often accompanied by a directionally similar change in default probability of the guarantor.

Credit derivatives - Correlation of default among a basket of reference credit namesisasignificant unobservableinput if the credit
attributes of the portfolio are not within the parameters of relevant standardized CDS indices. Significant increase (decrease) in
the unobservable input will result in alower (higher) fair value measurement of the credit derivative. A change in assumption for
default correlation is often accompanied by adirectionally similar changein default probability and lossrates of other credit names
in the basket.

Equity and foreign exchange derivatives - The fair value measurement of a structured equity or foreign exchange derivative is
primarily affected by the implied volatility of the underlying equity price or exchange rate of the paired foreign currencies. The
implied volatility isnot observable. Significant increase (decrease) in theimplied volatility will resultin ahigher (lower) fair value
of along position in the derivative contract.

Significant Transfers Into and Out of Level 3 Measurements During thethreeand six monthsended June 30, 2014, wetransferred
$104 million and $244 million, respectively, of depositsin domestic officesand $27 million and $98 million, respectively, of long-
term debt, which we have elected to carry at fair value, from Level 3to Level 2 asaresult of the embedded derivative no longer
being unobservable as the derivative option is closer to maturity and there is more observability in short term volatility. During
the second quarter of 2014, we transferred $119 million of government debt securitiesissued by foreign governments from Level
3to Level 2 dueto the availability of inputs in the market including independent pricing service vauations. Additionally, during
the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, we transferred $27 million and $95 million, respectively, of depositsin domestic
offices, whichwehaveelected to carry at fair value, fromLevel 2toLevel 3asaresult of achangeintheobservability of underlying
instruments that resulted in the embedded derivative being unobservable.

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, we transferred $165 million and $244 million, respectively, of depositsin
domestic offices and $179 million and $181 million, respectively, of long-term debt, which we have elected to carry at fair value,
from Level 3to Level 2 asaresult of the embedded derivative no longer being unobservable as the derivative option is closer in
maturity and thereis more observability in short term volatility. Additionally, during the three and six months ended June 30, 2013,
we transferred $177 million and $160 million, respectively, of depositsin domestic offices, which we have elected to carry at fair
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value, from Level 2to Level 3 asaresult of achangein the observability of underlying instruments that resulted in the embedded

derivative being unobservable.

Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Non-recurring Basis Certain financial and non-financial assets are measured
at fair value on a non-recurring basis and therefore, are not included in the tables above. These assets include (a) mortgage and
commercial loans classified as held for sale reported at the lower of amortized cost or fair value and (b) impaired loans or assets
that are written down to fair value based on the valuation of underlying collateral during the period. These instruments are not
measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjustment in certain circumstances (e.g., impairment).
Thefollowing table presentsthe fair value hierarchy level within which the fair value of the financial and non-financial assets has
been recorded as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013. The gains (losses) during the three and six months ended June 30,

2014 and 2013 are also included.

Non-Recurring Fair Value Measurements Total Gains (Losses)  Total Gains (Losses)
as of June 30, 2014 For the Three For the Six Months
Months Ended Ended
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total June 30, 2014 June 30, 2014
(in millions)
Residential mortgage loansheld for sale”.. $ — $ 2 $ 24 % 26 $ ) $ 1
Impaired commercial loans? ..................... — — 24 24 4) 3
Consumer 10aNS® ..........oovvveeeeeeeeseceseeses — 107 — 107 (9) (23)
Real estate owned™........ocoevoveveverreeenenann. 21 — — 21 3) 2
Commercial loans held for sale® — 43 — 43 @) 7
Total assets at fair value on a non-recurring

07 SN $ 21 % 152 $ 48 $ 221 § (25) $ (28)
Non-Recurring Fair Value Measurements Total Gains (Losses)  Total Gains (Losses)

as of December 31, 2013 For the Three For the Six Months

Months Ended Ended
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total June 30, 2013 June 30, 2013
(in millions)
Residentiadl mortgage loansheld for sale”.. $ — $ 9 $ 5% $ 65 $ — 3
Impaired commercial loans? .................... — — 108 108 (1) 2
Consumer 10aNS® ..........oovoveeeeeeeeseceseeee, — 492 — 492 (23) (51)
Real estate owned™...........cooo..covmmrrviiinrniinns 20 — — 20 — 2
Total assets at fair value on a non-recurring

DBSIS.....voorveverisisissssieessss e $ 20 % 501 $ 164 $ 68 $ (24) (48)

@ Asof June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the fair value of the loans held for sale was below cost. Certain residential mortgage loans held for sale have
been classified as a Level 3 fair value measurement within the fair value hierarchy as the underlying real estate properties which determine fair value are
illiquid assetsasaresult of market conditionsand significant inputsin estimating fair value were unobservable. Additionally, thefair val ue of these properties

is affected by, among other things, the location, the payment history and the completeness of the loan documentation.

@ Certain commercial |loans have undergone troubled debt restructurings and are considered impaired. As a matter of practical expedient, we measure the
credit impairment of a collateral-dependent loan based on the fair value of the collateral asset. The collateral often involvesreal estate properties that are
illiquid due to market conditions. As aresult, these loans are classified asaLevel 3 fair value measurement within the fair value hierarchy.

®  Represents residential mortgage loans held for investment whose carrying amount was reduced during the periods presented based on the fair value of the

underlying collateral.

@ Real estate owned is required to be reported on the balance sheet net of transactions costs. The real estate owned amounts in the table above reflect the fair

value unadjusted for transaction costs.
®  Represents certain commercial loans that have been transferred to the held for sale portfolio.
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Thefollowingtable presentsquantitativeinformation about non-recurring fair value measurementsof assetsand liabilitiesclassified
with Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013:

As of June 30, 2014

Significant
Fair Value Unobservable Range of
Financial Instrument Type (in millions) Valuation Technique(s) Inputs Inputs
Valuation of third party appraisal on
Residential mortgage loans held for sale............ccccccvevcucrcnnenee. $ 24 underlying collateral Loss severity rates 0% - 100%
Valuation of third party appraisal on
Impaired commercial 10ans.............ccceeveeereeeieeeeeeeeeeee e 24 underlying collateral Loss severity rates  10% - 48%
As of December 31, 2013
Significant
Fair Value Unobservable Range of
Financial Instrument Type (in millions) Valuation Technique(s) Inputs Inputs
Valuation of third party appraisal on
Residential mortgage loans held for sale.........ccccoeovnvcvricnnne, $ 56 underlying collateral Loss severity rates 0% - 100%
Valuation of third party appraisal on
Impaired commercial 10ans............cccoeeveriereeeieeeeeeee e 108 underlying collateral Loss severity rates 1% - 66%

Significant Unobservable Inputs for Non-Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Residential mortgage |oans held for sale primarily represent subprime residential mortgage |oans which were previously acquired
with the intent of securitizing or selling them to third parties. The weighted average loss severity rate for these loans was
approximately 70 percent at June 30, 2014. These severity rates are primarily impacted by the value of the underlying collateral
securing the loans.

Impaired loans represent commercial loans. The weighted average severity rate for these loans was approximately 27 percent at
June 30, 2014. These severity rates are primarily impacted by the value of the underlying collateral securing the loans.

Valuation Techniques Following isadescription of valuation methodol ogies used for assets and liabilities recorded at fair value
and for estimating fair value for those financial instruments not recorded at fair value for which fair value disclosureis required.

Short-term financial assets and liabilities - The carrying amount of certain financial assets and liabilities recorded at cost is
considered to approximate fair value because they are short-term in nature, bear interest rates that approximate market rates, and
generally have negligible credit risk. These itemsinclude cash and due from banks, interest bearing deposits with banks, accrued
interest receivable, customer acceptance assets and liabilities and short-term borrowings.

Federal funds sold and securities purchased and sold under resale and repurchase agreements - Federal funds sold and securities
purchased and sold under resale and repurchase agreements are recorded at cost. A significant majority of these transactions are
short-term in nature and, as such, the recorded amounts approximate fair value. For transactions with long-dated maturities, fair
value is based on dealer quotes for instruments with similar terms and collateral.

Loans - Except for certain commercial syndicated loans, we do not record loans at fair value on arecurring basis. From time to
time, we record impairments to loans. The write-downs can be based on observable market price of the loan or the underlying
collateral value. Inaddition, fair val ue estimates are determined based on the product type, financial characteristics, pricing features
and maturity.

» Mortgage LoansHeld for Sale — Certain residential mortgage loans are classified asheld for sale and are recorded at the lower
of amortized cost or fair value. Thefair value of these mortgage | oansisdetermined based on the val uation information observed
in alternative exit markets, such as the whole loan market, adjusted for portfolio specific factors. These factors include the
location of thecollateral, theloan-to-val ueratio, the estimated rate and timing of default, the probability of default or foreclosure
and loss severity if foreclosure does occur.

*  Syndicated Loans Held for Sale —We record certain commercia syndicated oans which are originated with the intent to sell
at fair value. Where available, market consensus pricing obtained from independent sourcesis used to estimate the fair value
of the syndicated loans. In validating the fair value, we take into consideration the number of participants submitting pricing
information, the range of pricing information and distribution, the methodology applied by the pricing servicesto cleanse the
dataand market liquidity. Where consensus pricing information isnot available, fair valueis estimated using observable market
prices of similar instruments or inputs, including bonds, credit derivatives, and loans with similar characteristics. Where
observable market parameters are not available, fair value is determined based on contractual cash flows, adjusted for the
probability of default and estimated recoverieswhere applicable, discounted at the rate demanded by market participants under
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current market conditions. In those cases, we al so consider thel oan specific attributesand inherent credit risk and risk mitigating
factors such as collateral arrangements.

Commercial Loans—Commercia loansand commercial real estateloans are valued by discounting the contractual cash flows,
adjusted for prepayments and the borrower’ s credit risk, using adiscount rate that reflectsthe current rates offered to borrowers
of similar credit standing for the remaining term to maturity and, when applicable, our own estimate of liquidity premium.

Commercial Impaired Loans — Generally represents collateral dependent commercial loans with fair value determined based
on pricing quotes obtained from an independent third party appraisal.

Consumer Loans — The estimated fair value of our consumer loans were determined by devel oping an approximate range of
value from amix of various sources as appropriate for the respective pool of assets. These sources included estimates from an
HSBC affiliatewhich reflect over-the-counter trading activity, forward | ooking discounted cash flow model susing assumptions
consistent with those which would be used by market participantsin valuing such receivables; trading input from other market
participants which includes observed primary and secondary trades; where appropriate, the impact of current estimated rating
agency credit tranchinglevel swith the associated benchmark credit spreads; and general discussionsheld directly with potential
investors. For revolving products, the estimated fair value excludes future draws on the available credit line as well as other
items and, therefore, does not include the fair value of the entire relationship.

Valuation inputs include estimates of future interest rates, prepayment speeds, default and loss curves, estimated collateral
value and market discount rates reflecting management’s estimate of the rate that would be required by investorsin the current
market given the specific characteristics and inherent credit risk of the receivables. Some of these inputs are influenced by
collateral value changes and unemployment rates. Where available, such inputs are derived principally from or corroborated
by observable market data. We perform analytical reviews of fair value changes on a quarterly basis and periodically validate
our valuation methodol ogies and assumptions based on the results of actual sales of such receivables. In addition, from time
to time, we may engage a third party valuation specialist to measure the fair value of a pool of receivables. Portfolio risk
management personnel provide further validation through discussions with third party brokers and other market participants.
Since an active market for these receivables does not exist, the fair value measurement process uses unobservable significant
inputs specific to the performance characteristics of the various receivable portfolios.

Lending-related commitments - The fair value of commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit and financial guarantees
are not included in the table. The magjority of the lending related commitments are not carried at fair value on arecurring basis nor
are they actively traded. These instruments generate fees, which approximate those currently charged to originate similar
commitments, which are recognized over the term of the commitment period. Deferred fees on commitments and standby letters
of credit totaled $41 million and $46 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Precious metals trading - Precious metals trading primarily includes physical inventory which is valued using spot prices.

Securities - Where available, debt and equity securities are valued based on quoted market prices. If aquoted market price for the
identical security is not available, the security is valued based on quotes from similar securities, where possible. For certain
securities, internally devel oped val uation model sare used to determinefair val ues or validate quotes obtained from pricing services.
The following summarizes the valuation methodology used for our major security classes:

U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agency issued or guaranteed and Obligations of U.S. state and political subdivisions—As
these securities transact in an active market, fair value measurements are based on quoted prices for the identical security or
quoted pricesfor similar securitieswith adj ustmentsas necessary made using observabl einputswhich are market corroborated.

U.S. Government sponsored enterprises — For government sponsored mortgage-backed securities which transact in an active
market, fair value measurements are based on quoted prices for the identical security or quoted prices for similar securities
with adjustments as necessary made using observable inputs which are market corroborated. For government sponsored
mortgage-backed securities which do not transact in an active market, fair value is determined primarily based on pricing
information obtained from pricing services and is verified by internal review processes.

Asset-backed securities, including collateralized debt obligations— Fair value is primarily determined based on pricing
information obtai ned from independent pricing services adjusted for the characteristics and the performance of the underlying
collateral.
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The following tables provide additional information relating to asset-backed securities as well as certain collateralized debt
obligations held as of June 30, 2014:

Trading asset-backed securities:

Rating of Securities:® Collateral Type: Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in millions)
AAA A s Residential mortgages- Alt A.........ccccocoevenee $ 89 $ — 3 89
Residential mortgages - Subprime.................. 59 — 59
Student [0aNS......ccccveeireeeere s 81 — 81
Total AAA Ao 229 — 229
BBB -B ..o Collateralized debt obligations.............ccceuu.e. — 260 260
CCC-Unrated........cccorrverevnrercnnenns Residential mortgages - Subprime.................. 5 — 5

$ 234 $ 260 $ 494

Available-for-sale securities backed by collateral:

Rating of Securities:® Collateral Type: Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in millions)

AAA Al Commercial mortgages..........ccoeeeeeveveveeeennnee. $ 86 $ — 3 86
Home equity - Alt A...oeeeeeee e 94 — 94
Other 94 — 94
Total AAA -Acee e 274 — 274
CCC-Unrated.........ccccoevvvecvverrereenenne, Residential mortgages - Alt A..........cococvvuee. 1 — 1
$ 275 $ — $ 275

@ We utilize Standard & Poor's (“S&P") as the primary source of credit ratings in the tables above. If S& P ratings are not available, ratings by Moody's and
Fitch are used in that order. Ratings for collateralized debt obligations represent the ratings associated with the underlying collateral .

»  Other domestic debt and foreign debt securities (corporate and government) - For non-callable corporate securities, a credit
spread scaleiscreated for each issuer. These spreads are then added to the equivalent maturity U.S. Treasury yield to determine
current pricing. Credit spreads are obtained from the new market, secondary trading levels and dealer quotes. For securities
with early redemption features, an option adjusted spread ("OAS") model is incorporated to adjust the spreads determined
above. Additionally, we survey the broker/dealer community to obtain relevant trade data including benchmark quotes and
updated spreads.

«  Equity securities— Except for those legacy investments in hedge funds, since most of our securities are transacted in active
markets, fair value measurements are determined based on quoted pricesfor theidentical security. For hedge fund investments,
we receive monthly statements from the investment manager with the estimated fair value.

Derivatives — Derivatives are recorded at fair value. Asset and liability positions in individual derivatives that are covered by
legally enforceable master netting agreements, including receivables (payables) for cash collateral posted (received), are offset
and presented net in accordance with accounting principles which allow the offsetting of amounts.

Derivatives traded on an exchange are valued using quoted prices. OTC derivatives, which comprise a majority of derivative
contract positions, areval ued using val uation techniques. Thefair valuefor themajority of our derivativeinstrumentsaredetermined
based on internally developed models that utilize independently corroborated market parameters, including interest rate yield
curves, option volatilities, and currency rates. For complex or long-dated derivative products where market datais not available,
fair value may be affected by the underlying assumptions about, among other things, the timing of cash flows, expected exposure,
probability of default and recovery rates. The fair values of certain structured derivative products are sensitive to unobservable
inputs such as default correlations of the referenced credit and volatilities of embedded options. These estimates are susceptible
to significant change in future periods as market conditions change.

We use the Overnight Indexed Swap (O1S) curves asinputs to measure the fair value of collateralized interest rate derivatives.
Significant inputs related to derivative classes are broken down as follows:
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e Credit Derivatives —Usecredit default curvesand recovery rateswhich aregenerally provided by broker quotesand various
pricing services. Certain credit derivatives may also use correlation inputsin their model valuation. Correlation is derived
using market quotes from brokers and various pricing services.

» Interest Rate Derivatives — Swaps use interest rate curves based on currency that are actively quoted by brokers and other
pricing services. Options will also use volatility inputs which are also quoted in the broker market.

e Foreign Exchange ("FX") Derivatives— FX transactions, to the extent possible, use spot and forward FX rates which are
guoted in the broker market. Where applicable, we also use implied volatility of currency pairs asinputs.

»  Equity Derivatives — Use listed equity security pricing and implied volatilities from equity traded options position.
e Precious Metal Derivatives— Use spot and forward metal rates which are quoted in the broker market.

Asdiscussed earlier, we make fair value adjustmentsto model valuationsin order to ensure that those val ues represent appropriate
estimates of fair value. These adjustments, which are applied consistently over time, are generally required to reflect factors such
as bid-ask spreads and counterparty credit risk that can affect pricesin arms-length transactions with unrelated third parties. Such
adjustments are based on management judgment and may not be observable.

We estimate the counterparty credit risk for financial assets and own credit standing for financial liabilities (the "credit risk
adjustments") in determining the fair value measurement. For derivative instruments, we calculate the credit risk adjustment by
applying the probability of default of the counterparty to the expected exposure, and multiplying the result by the expected loss
given default. We also take into consideration the risk mitigating factors including collateral agreements and master netting
arrangements in determining credit risk adjustments. We estimate the implied probability of default based on the credit spread of
the specific counterparty observedinthecredit default swap market. Where credit default spread of the counterparty isnot available,
weusethe credit default spread of aspecific proxy (e.g. the credit default swap spread of the counterparty’s parent). Where specific
proxy credit default swap isnot available, we apply ablended approach based on acombination of credit default swapsreferencing
to credit names of similar credit standing and the historical rating-based probability of default.

Real estate owned - Fair value is determined based on third party appraisals obtained at the time we taketitle to the property and,
if less than the carrying amount of the loan, the carrying amount of the loan is adjusted to the fair value. The carrying amount of
the property is further reduced, if necessary, at least every 45 days to reflect observable local market data, including local area
sales data.

Mortgage servicing rights - We el ected to measure residential mortgage servicing rights, which are classified as intangible assets,
at fair value. Thefair valuefor the residential mortgage servicing rightsis determined based on an option adjusted approach which
involves discounting servicing cash flows under various interest rate projections at risk-adjusted rates. The valuation model also
incorporates our best estimate of the prepayment speed of the mortgage loans, current cost to service and discount rateswhich are
unobservable. As changesin interest rates is a key factor affecting the prepayment speed and hence the fair value of the mortgage
servicing rights, we use various interest rate derivatives and forward purchase contracts of mortgage-backed securities to risk-
manage the mortgage servicing rights.

Structured notes — Structured notes are hybrid instruments containing embedded derivatives. Structured notes are elected to be
measured at fair value in their entirety under fair value option accounting principles. The valuation of hybrid instruments is
predominantly driven by the derivative features embedded within the instruments. The valuation of embedded derivatives may
include significant unobservable inputs such as correlation of the referenced credit names or volatility of the embedded option.

Cash flows of the funded notes are discounted at the appropriate rate for the applicable duration of the instrument adjusted for our
own credit spreads. The credit spreads so applied are determined with reference to our own debt issuance rates observed in the
primary and secondary markets, internal funding rates, and the structured note rates in recent executions.

Long-term debt — We elected to apply fair value option to certain own debt issuances for which fair value hedge accounting
otherwise would have been applied. These own debt issuances elected under FVO are traded in secondary markets and, as such,
the fair value is determined based on observed prices for the specific instrument. The observed market price of these instruments
reflects the effect of our own credit spreads. The credit spreads applied to these instruments were derived from the spreads at the
measurement date.

For long-term debt recorded at cost, fair value is determined based on quoted market prices where available. If quoted market
pricesarenot available, fair valueisbased on dealer quotes, quoted prices of similar instruments, or internally devel oped valuation
models adjusted for own credit risks.

Deposits — For fair value disclosure purposes, the carrying amount of deposits with no stated maturity (e.g., demand, savings, and
certain money market deposits), which represents the amount payable upon demand, is considered to generally approximate fair
value. For deposits with stated maturities, including structured deposits, fair value is estimated by discounting cash flows using
market interest rates currently offered on deposits with similar characteristics and maturities.
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19. Litigation and Regulatory Matters

The following supplements, and should be read together with, the disclosure in Note 28, "Litigation and Regulatory Matters," in
our 2013 Form 10-K and our Form 10-Q for the three month period ended March 31, 2014 (the "2014 First Quarter 10-Q"). Only
those matters with significant updates and new matters since our disclosure in our 2013 Form 10-K and our 2014 First Quarter
Form 10-Q are reported herein.

In addition to the matters described below, and in our 2013 Form 10-K and our 2014 First Quarter Form 10-Q, in the ordinary
course of business, we are routinely named as defendants in, or as parties to, various legal actions and proceedings relating to
activities of our current and/or former operations. These legal actions and proceedings may include claims for substantial or
indeterminate compensatory or punitive damages, or for injunctive relief. In the ordinary course of business, we a so are subject
to governmental and regulatory examinations, information-gathering requests, investigations and proceedings (both formal and
informal), certain of which may result in adverse judgments, settlements, fines, penalties, injunctions or other relief. In connection
with formal and informal inquiries by these regulators, we receive numerous requests, subpoenas and orders seeking documents,
testimony and other information in connection with various aspects of our regulated activities.

In view of theinherent unpredictability of litigation and regulatory matters, particularly where the damages sought are substantial
or indeterminate or when the proceedings or investigationsare in the early stages, we cannot determinewith any degree of certainty
the timing or ultimate resolution of litigation and regulatory matters or the eventual loss, fines, penalties or business impact, if
any, that may result. We establish reservesfor litigation and regulatory matters when those matters present loss contingencies that
are both probable and can be reasonably estimated. Once established, reserves are adjusted from time to time, as appropriate, in
light of additional information. Theactual costs of resolving litigation and regul atory matters, however, may be substantially higher
than the amounts reserved for those matters.

For the litigation and governmental and regulatory matters disclosed below and in Note 28, "Litigation and Regulatory Matters,"
in our 2013 Form 10-K and in Note 19 "Litigation and Regulatory Matters" in our 2014 First Quarter Form 10-Q asto which a
loss in excess of accrued liability is reasonably possible in future periods and for which there is sufficient currently available
information on the basis of which management believes it can make a reliable estimate, we believe a reasonable estimate could
be asmuch as $1.2 billion for HUSI and its U.S. affiliates. Thelitigation and governmental and regulatory matters underlying this
estimate of possible loss will change from time to time and actua results may differ significantly from this current estimate.

Giventhesubstantial or indeterminate amounts sought in certain of these matters, and theinherent unpredictability of such matters,
an adverse outcome in certain of these matters could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statementsin
particular quarterly or annual periods.

Litigation

Salveson v. JPMorgan Chase et al. (N.D.Cal. No. 13-CV-5816) On May 8, 2014, after being served with the complaint, HSBC
filed a separate motion to dismiss, and both it and HNAH joined the joint motion to dismiss. On June 4, 2014, the Judicial Panel
on Multidistrict Litigation transferred the case to the Eastern District of New York for consolidation with MDL 1720.

Credit Default Swap Litigation On May 23, 2014, defendants filed motions to dismiss plaintiffs second amended, consolidated
complaint. The motion is fully briefed and pending.

Gold and Silver Fix Litigation

Since March 2014, numerous putative class actions have been filed in the US District Courts for the Southern District of New
York, the District of New Jersey and the Northern District of California naming HSBC and a number of other members of The
London Gold Market Fixing Ltd as defendants. The complaintsallege that, from January 2004 to the present, defendants conspired
to manipulate the price of gold and gold derivatives during the afternoon London gold fix in order to reap profits on proprietary
trades. Plaintiffs have filed amotion for transfer with the Judicial Panel on Multi-District Litigation requesting assignment to and
consolidation in the New York District Court. That motion is pending.

In July 2014, putative class actions were filed in the US District Court for the Southern and Eastern Districts of New York naming
HSBC, HSBC Bank plc, HSBC Bank USA and the other members of The London Silver Market Fixing Ltd as defendants. The
complaintsallege that, from January 2007 to the present, defendants conspired to manipulate the price of physical silver and silver
derivatives for their collective benefit in violation of the US Commodity Exchange Act and US antitrust laws. These actions are
at avery early stage.
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Based on the facts currently known, it is not practicable at this time for us to predict the resolution of these private lawsuits,
including the timing and potential impact on us.

Madoff Litigation

In December 2008, Bernard L. Madoff ("Madoff") was arrested for running a Ponzi scheme and a trustee was appointed for the
liquidation of hisfirm, Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LL C ("Madoff Securities"), an SEC-registered broker-dealer and
investment adviser. Various non-U.S. HSBC companies provided custodial, administration and similar services to a number of
fundsincorporated outside the United States whose assets were invested with Madoff Securities. Plaintiffs (including funds, funds
investors and the Madoff Securities trustee) have commenced Madoff-related proceedings against numerous defendants in a
multitude of jurisdictions. Various HSBC companies have been named as defendants in suits in the United States, Ireland,
Luxembourg and other jurisdictions. Certain suits (which include U.S. putative class actions) allege that the HSBC defendants
knew or should have known of Madoff's fraud and breached various duties to the funds and fund investors.

In re Herald, Primeo and Thema Funds Securities Litigation On May 28, 2014, after the United States Supreme Court decided
Chadbourne & Park LLP v. Troice, 134 S. Ct. 1058 (2014), the Second Circuit denied Thema International Fund plc’s petition for
panel rehearing following its affirmance of thedistrict court’sdismissal of al U.S. classaction claims against the HSBC defendants
on forum non conveniens grounds. The petition for rehearing en banc remains pending.

The Madoff Securities trustee filed a suit in the U.S. captioned Picard v. HSBC et al (Bankr S.D.N.Y. No. 09-01364), which also
names certain funds, investment managers, and other non-HSBC entities and individuals, seeking $9 billion in damages and
additional recoveries from HSBC Bank USA, certain of our foreign affiliates and the various other non-HSBC co-defendants. In
July 2011, the district court dismissed the trustee's various common law claims, which in total account for approximately $6.6
billion of the potential exposure in the action, on the grounds that the trustee lacked standing to assert them, and the Court of
Appeals affirmed that decision in June 2013. On June 30, 2014, the Supreme Court denied the trustee's petition for a writ of
certiorari of the Court of Appeal’s decision. The dismissal of the trustee's common law claimsis now final.

Thedistrict court previously returned the trustee's bankruptcy claims to the bankruptcy court for further proceedings, but retained
certain issuesfor further consideration. These claims seek the return of the transfers of funds from Bernard L. Madoff Investment
SecuritiesLLC (“Madoff Securities’) to the feeder fund defendants as well as subsequent transfers of those assets from the feeder
fundsto other defendants, including the HSBC defendants, as preferential and fraudulent transfers under U.S. bankruptcy law. As
to the HSBC defendants, which include HSBC Bank USA, the claims seek recovery of unspecified amounts that the HSBC
defendantsreceived from fundsinvested with Madoff, including amounts that the HSBC defendants received when they redeemed
units held in the various funds. On July 7, 2014, the district court ruled that the U.S. bankruptcy code does not provide the trustee
the right to recover money that was transferred between foreign entities, even if that money ultimately is traceable to Madoff
Securities. Thisdecision issubject to appeal and has not been applied to thefacts of thetrustee's case against the HSBC defendants,
so itsimpact on the trustee's remaining claims is uncertain.

There are many factors that may affect the range of possible outcomes, and the resulting financial impact, of the various Madoff-
related proceedings including, but not limited to, the circumstances of the fraud, the multiple jurisdictions in which proceedings
have been brought and the number of different plaintiffs and defendantsin such proceedings. For these reasons, among others, we
are unable to reasonably estimate the aggregate liability or ranges of liability that might arise as a result of these claims but they
could be significant. In any event, we consider that we have good defenses to these claims and will continue to defend them
vigoroudly.

Benchmark Rate Litigation In May 2014 HSBC, HSBC Bank plc, HSBC USA and HSBC Finance, along with the other U.S.
dollar Libor panel banks, were named as defendants in a lawsuit filed by two mutual funds managed by Prudential Investment
Portfolios seeking unspecified damages as aresult of alleged artificial suppression of U.S. dollar Libor rateswhich plaintiffsallege
resulted in plaintiffs receiving substantially less interest payments in connection with certain transactions entered into with the
defendants. Additionally, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, initsroleasreceiver for several failed banks, filed acomplaint
against the British Bankers Association and the U.S. dollar Libor panel banks, including HSBC, HSBC Bank USA, and The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation, seeking unspecified damagesasaresult of fraudulent artificial suppression of U.S.
dollar Libor rates. These actions have been transferred and/or consolidated with a U.S. dollar Libor Multi-District Litigation
proceeding in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York. HSBC and HSBC Bank plc are defendants in that
proceeding as well. These actions are subject to a stay imposed by the court.

Mortgage Securitization Activity and Litigation

In addition to the repurchase risk described in Note 17, "Guarantee Arrangements and Pledged Assets," HSBC Bank USA hasalso

been involved as a sponsor/seller of loans used to facilitate whole loan securitizations underwritten by HSI. During 2005-2007,

HSBC Bank USA purchased and sold $24 billion of whole loans to HSI which were subsequently securitized and sold by HSI to
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third parties. The outstanding principal balance on these loans was approximately $6.1 billion and $6.5 billion at June 30, 2014
and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Participantsinthe U.S. mortgage securitization market that purchased and repackaged whol el oanshave been the subject of lawsuits
and governmental and regulatory investigationsand inquiries, which have been directed at groupswithin the U.S. mortgage market,
such asservicers, originators, underwriters, trustees or sponsorsof securitizations, and at particul ar participantswithinthese groups.
As the industry's residential mortgage foreclosure issues continue, HSBC Bank USA has taken title to a number of foreclosed
homes as trustee on behalf of various securitization trusts. As nominal record owner of these properties, HSBC Bank USA has
been sued by municipalities and tenants alleging various violations of law, including laws regarding property upkeep and tenants
rights. While we believe and continue to maintain that the obligations at issue and any related liability are properly those of the
servicer of eachtrust, wecontinueto receivesignificant and adverse publicity in connectionwith theseand similar matters, including
foreclosures that are serviced by othersin the name of "HSBC, as trustee.”

Federal Housing Finance Agency, as Conservator for the Federal National Mortgage Association and the Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation v. HSBC North America Holdings Inc. etal. (S.D.N.Y. No. CV 11-6189-L AK) Variousdefendants motions
for summary judgment and other applications have been fully briefed and are currently pending beforethe court. Expert discovery
is scheduled to continue through August 2014. The aggregate unpaid principal balance of the securities was approximately $1.5
billion and $1.6 billion at June 30, 2014 and December 30, 2013, respectively.

In June 2014, the Deutsche Zentral-Genossenschaftsbank AG, New York Branch v. HSBC North America Holdings Inc., et al
(S.D.N.Y. No. 12-CV-4025) and Bayerische Landesbank v HSBC Holdings plc, et al. (Index No. 65481/12) matters each were
resolved by a confidential settlement among the parties. The settlements did not have a material impact on our results.

In May 2014 Commerzbank AG London Branch filed a complaint against nearly 70 different financial institutions, including
HSBC, HSI and HSI Asset Securitization Corporation, seeking unspecified damages as a result of alleged fraud and fraudulent
concealment committed by the defendants in the securitization of residential mortgages and the sale of those securities to the
plaintiff. Commerzbank had previously filed a summons with notice against the same defendants in December 2013. This action
isat an early stage.

In June 2014, alawsuit was filed in New York State court against HSBC Bank USA, as trustee of approximately 264 identified
trusts (the "Trusts'). Similar lawsuits were filed simultaneously against other non-HSBC financial institutions that served as
mortgage securitization pool trustees. The plaintiffsareinvestorsin the Trusts and include, among others, BlackRock and PIMCO
funds. The lawsuits were brought derivatively on behalf of the Trusts. The complaint against HSBC Bank USA alleges that the
Trustshave sustained lossesin collateral value of over $32 billion. Thelawsuit seeksunspecified damagesresulting from an alleged
breach of the Trust Indenture Act, breach of fiduciary duties, and negligence. This action is at an early stage.

Shareholder Derivative Action On May 7, 2014 a shareholder of HSBC (who is not a shareholder of HSBC Bank USA, HNAH
or HSBC USA) filed a sharehol der derivative action, captioned Michael Mason-Mahon v. Douglas J. Flint, et al. (New York State
Supreme Court, Nassau County, Index No. 602052/2014), purportedly on behalf of HSBC, HSBC Bank USA, HNAH and HSBC
USAinNew York State Supreme Court against thedirectors, certain officersand certain former directorsof those HSBC companies
alleging that those directors and officers breached their fiduciary duties to the companies and caused a waste of corporate assets
by allegedly permitting and/or causing the conduct underlying the DPA. Thisactionisat avery early stage, but the ultimate outcome
of the action is not expected to have a material impact on HUS.
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20. New Accounting Pronouncements

Unrecognized Tax Benefits In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued an Accounting Standards
Update ("ASU") that provides guidance on financial statement presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit when a net operating
loss (“NOL") carryforward, a similar tax loss, or atax credit carryforward exists in the same tax jurisdiction. The ASU requires
an entity to present the unrecognized tax benefit as a reduction of the deferred tax asset for an NOL or tax credit carryforward
whenever the NOL or tax credit carryforward would be available to reduce the additional taxable income or tax due if the tax
positionisdisallowed. However, the ASU requiresan entity to present an unrecognized tax benefit on the balance sheet asaliability
if certain conditions are met. The new guidance is effective for all annual and interim periods beginning January 1, 2014. The
adoption of this guidance did not have an impact on our unrecognized tax benefit liability.

Accounting for Investments in Qualified Housing Projects In January 2014, the FASB issued an ASU which permits, but does
not require, an investor to amortizeits Low Income Housing Tax Credit ("LIHTC") investmentsin proportion to the allocated L ow
Income Housing Federal tax benefits and present such tax benefits net of investment amortization in theincometax line. The ASU
is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2014 to be applied retrospectively with early adoption permitted. We
elected to early adopt the ASU on January 1, 2014 due to its improvement in the presentation of the economic benefits of this
investment class. The early adoption of the ASU required the previous period to also be restated and resulted in a reduction to
operating expenses of $21 million and $42 million in both of the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively,
with a corresponding increase to income tax expense. There was no overall impact to net income.

Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entity In April 2014, the FASB issued
an ASU which changes the criteria for determining whether a disposition qualifies for discontinued operations presentation and
requires enhanced disclosures about discontinued operations and significant dispositions that do not qualify for discontinued
operations reporting. Under the ASU, only disposals representing a strategic shift in operations, such as a disposal of a major
geographic area, amajor line of business, a major equity method investment or other major parts of an entity, are required to be
presented as discontinued operations. The ASU will be effective prospectively for all disposals (or classifications as held for sal€)
of components of an entity that occur within annual and interim periods beginning January 1, 2015. Early adoption is permitted,
but only for disposals (or classifications as held for sal€) that have not been reported in financial statements previously issued or
availablefor issuance. The adoption of thisguidanceisnot expected to have asignificant impact on our financial position or results
of operations.

Recognition of Revenue from Contracts with Customers In May 2014, the FASB issued an ASU which provides a principles-
based framework for revenuerecognition that supersedesvirtually al previously issued revenuerecognition guidance. Additionally,
the ASU requires improved disclosures to help users of financial statements better understand the nature, amount, timing, and
uncertainty of revenuethat isrecognized. The core principle of the five-step revenue recognition framework isthat an entity should
recoghize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customersin an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The ASU will be effective for al annual and
interim periods beginning January 1, 2017. The amendments in the ASU should be applied either retrospectively to each prior
reporting period presented or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying this ASU recognized at the date of
initial application. We are currently evaluating the potential impact of adopting this ASU, including determining which transition
method to apply.

Repurchase to Maturity Transactions, Repurchase Financings, and Disclosures In June 2014, the FASB issued an ASU which
changes the accounting for repurchase-to-maturity transactions to secured borrowing accounting and requires secured borrowing
accounting for the repurchase agreement in a contemporaneous repurchase financing arrangement. The accounting changesin the
ASU will be effective for all annual and interim periods beginning January 1, 2015 and will require the changes in accounting for
transactions outstanding on the effective date to be presented as a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of the
beginning of the period of adoption. The ASU aso requires new disclosure about certain transactions accounted for as a sale to
be presented for interim and annual periodsbeginning January 1, 2015, and new disclosure about repurchase agreements, securities
lending transactions, and repurchase-to-maturity transactions that are accounted for as secured borrowings to be presented for
annual periodsbeginning January 1, 2015, and for interim periods beginning April 1, 2015. Weare currently eval uating the potential
impact the adoption of thisASU may have on our financial position and results of operations.

Therewere no additional accounting pronouncementsissued that are expected to have asignificant impact on our financial position
or results of operations.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain matters discussed throughout this Form 10-Q are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. In addition, we may make or approve certain statements in future filings with the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), in pressreleases, or ora or written presentations by representatives of HSBC USA
Inc. ("HSBC USA" and together with its subsidiaries, "HUSI") that are not statements of historical fact and may also constitute
forward-looking statements. Words such as“may”, “will”, “ should”, “would”, “ could”, “ appears’, “believe’, “intends”’, “ expects’,
“estimates’, “targeted”, “plans’, “anticipates’, “goa” , and similar expressionsareintended to i dentify forward-looking statements
but should not be considered as the only means through which these statements may be made. These matters or statements will
relate to our future financial condition, economic forecast, results of operations, plans, objectives, performance or business
developments and will not involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results,
performance or achievements to be materialy different from that which was expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements.

All forward-looking statements are, by their nature, subject to risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control. Our
actual future results may differ materially from those set forth in our forward-looking statements. While there is no assurance that
any list of risks and uncertainties or risk factors is complete, below are certain factors which could cause actual results to differ
materially from those in the forward-looking statements:

e uncertain market and economic conditions, uncertainty relating to the U.S. debt and budget matters, the potential for
futuredowngrading of U.S. debt ratings, adeclinein housing prices, high unemployment, tighter credit conditions, changes
ininterest rates, the availability of liquidity, unexpected geopolitical events, heightened market concerns over sovereign
creditworthiness in over-indebted countries, changes in consumer confidence and consumer spending, and consumer
perception as to the continuing availability of credit and price competition in the market segments we serve;

e changesin laws and regulatory requirements;
e extraordinary government actions as aresult of market turmoil;

e capital and liquidity requirements under Basel 111, the Federal Reserve Board's ("FRB") Comprehensive Capital Analysis
and Review ("CCAR"), and the Dodd-Frank Act stresstesting ("DFAST");

e changesin central banks' policies with respect to the provision of liquidity support to financial markets;

» theability of HSBC Holdings plc ("HSBC" and, together with its subsidiaries, "HSBC Group") and HSBC Bank USA,
National Association ("HSBC Bank USA™") to fulfill the requirements imposed by the deferred prosecution agreements
withtheU.S. Department of Justice, the U.S. Attorney's Officefor the Eastern District of New York, andthe U.S. Attorney's
Office for the Northern District of West Virginia, our agreement with the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, our
other consent agreements as well as guidance from regulators generally;

e damage to our reputation;
» theability to attract and retain customers and to retain key employees,

» theeffectsof competitioninthe marketswherewe operateincluding increased competition for non-bank financial services
companies, including securities firms;

« afailurein or abreach of our operation or security systems or infrastructure, or those of third party servicers or vendors,
« third party suppliers and outsourcing vendors' ability to provide adequate services;

e our ability to meet our funding requirements;

e our ability to cross-sell our products to existing customers;

* increasesin our alowance for credit losses and changesin our assessment of our loan portfolios;

e changes in Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") and International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB")
accounting standards;

»  continued heightened regulatory scrutiny with respect to residential mortgage servicing practices, with particular focus
on loss mitigation, foreclosure prevention and outsourcing;

e changesto our mortgage servicing and foreclosure practices,
» changesin the methodology for determining benchmark rates;
« heightened regulatory and government enforcement scrutiny of financial markets, with a particular focus on foreign
exchange;
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» the possibility of incorrect assumptions or estimates in our financial statements, including reserves related to litigation,
deferred tax assets and the fair value of certain assets and liabilities;

»  changesin bankruptcy lawsto alow for principal reductions or other modifications to mortgage |oan terms;

e additional financia contribution requirements to the HSBC North America Holdings Inc. ("HSBC North America")
pension plan;

» unexpected and/or increased expenses relating to, among other things, litigation and regulatory matters; and

» theother risk factors and uncertainties described under Item 1A, “Risk Factors,” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2013 (*2013 Form 10-K").

Forward-looking statements are based on our current views and assumptions and speak only as of the date they are made.We
undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect subsequent circumstances or events. You should,
however, consider any additional disclosures of aforward-looking nature that arise after the date hereof as may be discussed in
any of our subsequent Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q or Current Reports on Form 8-K.
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Executive Overview

HSBC USA is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC North America, which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
HSBC. HUSI may also bereferred to in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
("MD&A") as"we", "us" or "our".

Current Environment The U.S. economy continued itsgradual recovery during thefirst half of 2014. While consumer confidence,
buoyed by healthy job growth, began to increase during the second quarter of 2014 and recover from the impact of the severe
winter weather experienced across many partsof the United Statesduring thefirst quarter, it remained flat compared with December
31, 2013 as wage growth prospects and prolonged high gasoline prices continued to impact consumer sentiment. During the first
half of 2014, the Federal Reserve Board announced further reductionsinitsbond buying stimulus program and updated itsguidance
on short-term interest rates, putting less weight on the unemployment rate and indicating that it would look at ‘a broad range of
economicindicators’ in deciding whento start raising short-term interest rates. The prolonged period of low interest rates continues
to put pressure on spreads earned on our deposit base.

While the economy continued to add jobsin the first half of 2014, the pace of new job creation continued to be slower than needed
to significantly reduce the number of long-term unemployed. While the unemployment rate in the U.S. fell 60 basis points since
year-end to 6.1 percent at June 30, 2014 as more people began to find work, there are a significant number of U.S. residents who
are no longer looking for work and are not reflected in the U.S. unemployment rates. Unemployment has continued to have an
impact on the provision for credit losses in our loan portfolio and in loan portfolios across the industry. Concerns about the future
of the U.S. economy, including the pace and magnitude of recovery from the recent economic recession, consumer confidence,
fiscal policy, volatility in energy prices, credit market volatility including the ability to resolve various global financial issuesand
trendsin corporate earningswill continueto influencethe U.S. economic recovery and the capital markets. In particular, continued
improvement in unemployment rates, asustained recovery of the housing markets and stabilization in energy pricesremain critical
components of abroader U.S. economic recovery. These conditionsin combination with the impact of recent regulatory changes,
including the on-going implementation of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (the "Dodd-
Frank Act" or "Dodd-Frank™), will continue to impact our resultsin 2014 and beyond.

While the housing market in the U.S. continues to recover, the strength of recovery varies by market. The listing of foreclosed
properties for sale has slowed price gains in 2014. In addition, certain courts and state legislatures have issued rules or statutes
relating to foreclosures and scrutiny of foreclosure documentation has increased in some courts. Also, in some areas, officialsare
requiring additional verification of information filed prior to the foreclosure proceeding. The combination of these factors has led
to asignificant backlog of foreclosuresin several jurisdictions which will take time to resolve.

Performance, Developments and Trends The following table setsforth selected financia highlights of HSBC USA for the three
and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 and as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(dollars are in millions)
NEL INCOME ...ttt e et e et e e et e e e e aee e eeneeeesnbeeeeseeesnnnes $ 179 $ 180 $ 283 $ 363
Rate of return on average: -
QLI =SS =TSRSS 4% A% 3% A%
Total common shareholder’ S EQUITY .........coevreirieeneese e 4.2 4.0 3.3 4.1
NS AT 1= = g o 1 1.66 1.30 1.48 1.30
EffICIENCY FAHIO......eiteieeetete ettt et et e sb e 93.8 70.7 83.3 70.3
Commercial et Charge-ff Fatio™ ...........oveoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseee e .05 (.04) 13 25
Consumer Net charge-Off FEHOW ... 59 70 56 80

@ Excludes loans held for sale.
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June 30, December 31,
2014 2013

(dollars are in millions)
Additional Select Ratios:

Allowance as apercent Of I0ANSY ..o e ee e e es e se e e s s s se e s seees e .86% 90%
Commercial allowance as apercent 0f 10ANS™ ..........c..oweveeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeseee e seeees s sseee s seenees 72 64
Consumer allowance as aPercent Of 10BNSY..........c.oveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e s seeee e sn e 1.26 155
Consumer two-months-and-over contractual deliNQUENCY .........ovorirrerieinieireereeseesees s 6.10 6.80
LOBNS 1O HEPOSIES FAHOWP ...ttt ee e s e s e se et ee s ee e ssese s seeesreeesesseeeees 83.02 79.16
Tier 1 capital tO riSk WEIGNLEH BSSELS.... ..o i e 11.56 11.65
ComMON €QUILY TIEr L 1AHOM ... ..eoveeeeeeeeeeee ettt 10.42 0.94
Total capital t0 riSk WEIGOLE BSSELS......ciiviireeiree e 16.01 16.36
Total shareholders equity t0 tOtal BSSELS.........coereiiiiriee e e e 9.32 8.88

Select Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and interest bearing deposits With DanKS...........cccoeiiicnn e $ 26,271 $ 20,575
TraOING BSSELS.....c.oiiiiiir e s 25,156 28,894
SeCUrities aval lall E-fOr-SAlE ......oouieece e e e eneas 44,778 54,906
Loans:

(00001001 (o =!I F0T= 1 53,033 48,494

CONSUMES [OBNS......uiiitiecieeitee et e site e et e sttt e e teeete e sbeesseebeesabeeaseesabeesbeasaseesbessasesnbessabeenseesaseesseesanenstens 19,165 19,201
LI =N o R 72,198 67,695
D= o101 | £ TP O PSRRI 115,521 112,608

@ Excludes loans held for sale.

@ Represents period end loans, net of allowance for loan losses, as a percentage of domestic deposits equal to or less than $100,000.

® Basel 111 introduces the common equity Tier 1 ratio. For December 31, 2013, the ratio presented is the Tier 1 common ratio calculated under Basel 1.

Net income was $179 million and $283 million during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively, compared with
net income of $180 million and $363 million during the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, respectively. Net incomeduring
the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 was significantly impacted by atax reserve release as aresult of the settlement of
certain state and local tax audits which resulted in an income tax benefit of $183 million. Income (loss) before income tax was a
loss of $27 million in the three months ended June 30, 2014 and a gain of $226 million in the six months ended June 30, 2014
compared with income before income tax of $251 million and $559 million during the three and six months ended June 30, 2013,
respectively. The decrease inincome (loss) beforeincometax was driven by lower other revenuesdriven by lower trading revenue
aswell aslower gains on security sales, higher operating expenses driven by higher litigation expenses and a higher provision for
credit losses, partially offset by higher net interest income. Our resultsin all periods were impacted by the changein thefair value
of our own debt attributable to credit spread for which we have elected fair value option which distorts comparability of the
underlying performance trends of our business. The following table summarizestheimpact of thisitem on our income (loss) before
income taxes for all periods presented:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)
Income (loss) before income tax, as reported .........ccevvvveeeveveses s $ (@7 $ 251 $ 226 $ 559
Fair value movement on own fair value option debt attributable to credit spread..... 46 (53) 27 (11)
Underlying income before income tax™ ............c.ooeeeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 19 $ 198 $ 253 $ 548

@ Represents anon-U.S. GAAPfinancial measure.
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Excluding the impact of the change in the fair value of our own debt attributable to credit spread for which we have elected fair
value option accounting in the table above, our underlying income before income tax for the three and six months ended June 30,
2014 decreased $179 million and $295 million, respectively, compared with the prior year periods aslower other revenues, higher
operating expenses and a higher provision for credit losses were partially offset by higher net interest income.

During the six months ended June 30, 2014, we continued to reduce legacy and other risk positions as opportunities arose. The
following table provides a summary of the significant valuation adjustments associated with these legacy positions that impacted
revenue for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)
Insurance monoline structured credit Products™ ..o, $ @$ 21$ 12 44
Other structured credit ProdUGES™................eveceveeeseessesesessesssssess e (15) 2 2 38
B o= 0= T g (=) S $ (19 23 $ 14 $ 79

@ Reflected in Trading revenue in the consolidated statement of income.

See "Results of Operations' for a more detailed discussion of our operating trends. In addition, see "Balance Sheet Review" for
further discussion on our receivable trends, "Liquidity and Capital Resources' for further discussion on funding and capital and
"Credit Quality" for additional discussion on our credit trends.

During thefirst half of 2014, we revised certain estimates used in our commercial |oan collective impairment calculation to better
reflect inherent lossesin agrowing loan portfolio. Thisresulted in an increase to our alowance for credit osses of approximately
$93 million ($68 million of which was recorded in the second quarter) for these loans. We are continuing to refine aspects of our
commercia loanallowancecalculationand, asaresult, there could befurther adjustmentsto our credit | ossestimatesfor commercial
loans in future periods. While we have seen significant loan growth in our target markets, our commercial loan risk appetite and
business model remain unchanged.

During the second quarter of 2014, we concluded certain stateand local tax auditsresulting in the settlement of significant uncertain
tax positions covering anumber of years. Asaresult, we released tax reserves previously maintained in relation to the periods and
issues under review which resulted in anincometax benefit of $183 million during the quarter. In addition, wereleased our accrued
interest associated with the tax reserves rel eased which resulted in a $120 million benefit to interest expense during the quarter.

We continue to focus on cost optimization efforts to ensure realization of cost efficiencies. To date, we have identified and
implemented various opportunities to reduce costs through organizational structure redesign, vendor spending, discretionary
spending and other general efficiency initiatives. Additional cost reduction opportunitieshave beenidentified and arein the process
of implementation. Workforce reductions, some of which relate to our retail branch divestitures, have resulted in total full-time
equivalent employees being reduced by 38 percent since December 31, 2010. Workforce reductions are also occurring in certain
shared services functions other than compliance, which we expect will result in additional reductions to future allocated costs for
these functions. These efforts continue and, as aresult, we may incur restructuring chargesin future periods, the amount of which
will depend upon the actions that ultimately are implemented.

In October 2013, our Board of Directors approved a sale of our London Branch precious metals custody and clearing business to
HSBC Bank plc. Asthe sale of this business is between affiliates under common control, we expect the consideration received in
excess of our carrying value will result in an increase to additional paid-in-capital, net of tax, of approximately $50 million upon
close. The cash saleiscurrently expected to be completed in the second half of 2014. At June 30, 2014, assetsand liabilitiesrelated
to this business totaled approximately $10.5 billion each, while revenue associated with this business was approximately $18
million and $26 million during the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Wewill continue to operate our metals
trading business which is unaffected by this decision.

We continue to evaluate our overall operations as we seek to optimize our risk profile and cost efficiencies aswell asour liquidity,
capital and funding requirements. This could result in further strategic actions that may include changes to our legal structure,
asset levels, cost structure or product offerings in support of HSBC's strategic priorities.
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Basis of Reporting

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States ("U.S. GAAP"). Unless noted, the discussion of our financial condition and results of operationsincluded in MD&A are
presented on a continuing operations basis of reporting. Certain reclassifications have been madeto prior year amountsto conform
to the current year presentation.

In addition to the U.S. GAAPfinancial results reported in our consolidated financial statements, MD& A includes referenceto the
following information which is presented on anon-U.S. GAAP basis:

International Financial Reporting Standards (*"'IFRSs"") Because HSBC reportsfinancial information in accordancewith IFRSs
and IFRSs operating results are used in measuring and rewarding performance of employees, our management also separately
monitors net income under IFRSs (a non-U.S. GAAP financial measure). The following table reconciles our net income on a
U.S. GAAP basis to net income on an IFRSs basis.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)
Net inCOME — U.S. GAAP DESIS ....coeiveeieiriririeieeseres et sese e sees $ 179 $ 180 $ 283 $ 363
Adjustments, net of tax:
| FRSs reclassification of fair value measured financial assets during 2008............ — (7 @ a7)
IS U ] 1= ST — (1) 2 4
LOBN IMPAITMNENE .. ..c.eiveeeiteeisteieteseee st seete s re st sae s stesesee e ste e sbeesbeseeteseesesenteseesenens (19) 18 4 11
PrOPEITY ettt b e b 2 2 2 4
PENSION COSES.....veieiiieiirieesie sttt st sttt sttt sttt sttt st seebeseebenea 3 3 11 7
Litigation @CCTUAL ......cveueiveeieieieieceie ettt sttt st s besaebeseerennas 49 (7) 52 (7)
@141 TR (6) (9) (15 (22)
NEt INCOME — IFRSS DESIS .....ceevirieiirieiirieere e 204 175 330 327
Tax expense (benefit) — IFRSS DaSIS.......cccverrierinierieieree e (185) 77 43 201
Profit before tax — IFRSSDaSsiS........cooviurueiirecerree e $ 19 $ 252 $ 287 $ 528

The significant differences between U.S. GAAP and IFRSs impacting our results presented in the table above are discussed in
more detail within "Basisof Reporting” in our 2013 Form 10-K. There have been no significant changes since December 31, 2013
in the differences between U.S. GAAP and I FRSs impacting our results.
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Balance Sheet Review

We utilize deposits and borrowings from various sources to provide liquidity, fund balance sheet growth, meet cash and capital
needs, and fund investments in subsidiaries. The following table provides balance sheet totals at June 30, 2014 and increases

(decreases) since December 31, 2013:

Increase (Decrease) From

December 31, 2013

June 30, 2014 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Period end assets:
ShOrt-terM INVESIMENES .....eeivieei ettt se e st ste e sre e $ 28,582 $ 5,888 259 %
[0 LS T 71,574 4,485 6.7
LOANS NEld fOr SAIE.....ccueeeeceee e 500 270 *
LG o o = S5 £ 25,156 (3,738) (12.9)
= o U = TS 45,983 (10,281) (18.3)
(O 1 91C =SS £ SRS 10,423 107 1.0
$ 182218 % (3,269) (1.8)%
Funding sources:
LI 0 = 001 L TSRS $ 115521 $ 2,913 26 %
Trading liabilitiES .....ccveeee e eneas 8,815 (2,060) (18.9)
Short-term BOITOWINGS ......cveieiecie et 12,906 (6,229) (32.6)
LONG-TErM AEDL. ... s 24,604 1,757 7.7
All Other HabIilITIES ...vocveeieceece e e e 3,388 (170) (4.8)
SharehOlders’ EQUILY........cccivieiiieerere et s 16,984 520 32
$ 182218 $ (3,269) (1.8)%

* Not meaningful.

Short-Term Investments Short-term investments include cash and due from banks, interest bearing deposits with banks, federal
funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements. Balances will fluctuate from period to period depending upon our
liquidity position at the time. Overall balances increased since December 31, 2013 as we managed our short-term investments to

maximize earnings while retaining liquidity.
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Loans, Net The following summarizes our loan balances at June 30, 2014 and increases (decreases) since December 31, 2013:

Increase (Decrease) From
December 31, 2013

June 30, 2014 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

Commercial loans:

Construction and Other real ESEALE........ceeiviieeecee e $ 9682 $ 648 7.2%
Business and corporate banking .........cc.ccoeoeeeereereeieriene e 15,956 1,510 10.5
GIOBE DANKING™ ... ee e se e 24,268 2,643 12.2
Other COMMErCIal 108NS........cooviieiiirise et 3,127 (262) (7.7
Total COMMECIAl JOANS.......c.eeeieiieecetee ettt et et e e eebeesteenseesareens 53,033 4,539 9.4
Consumer loans:
Residential MOMQAgES .......ciuirtirerie ettt st et 16,097 271 17
HOME EQUILY MOMGBOES .....eeverertereetereete ettt s b e s 1,914 (97) (4.8)
Total residential MOMGAgES.......cccveeeiri et e et st sa e enens 18,011 174 1.0
CrEdit CAIUS. ...t bbbt b 681 (173) (20.3)
OthEr CONSUMIET .......ecvieeieictes e sie st e e see e e e e e ese s e ssessessesaestesaeseessen e seeseeneeneenneneenens 473 (37) (7.3)
TOtal CONSUMEN [0BNS........ciiieieiieisiee ettt sttt et e st 19,165 (36) (-2
TOAl [OBNS....ceeeetiiieei ittt sttt sttt se st e e st e st e e et e seeteseetesaesesaesesaeseanas 72,198 4,503 6.7
Allowance fOr Credit I0SSES.........ciiiiiiiriiree e 624 18 3.0
[0 7= 0T o = TSRS $ 71574 $ 4,485 6.7%

@ Represents large multinational firms including globally focused U.S. corporate and financial institutions and U.S. dollar lending to multinational banking
customers managed by HSBC on a global basis. Also includes loans to HSBC affiliates which totaled $5,080 million and $5,328 million at June 30, 2014
and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Commercial loan balances increased compared with December 31, 2013 due to new business activity, largely in global banking
and business and corporate banking, which reflects our continued focus on expanding our core offerings and proactively targeting
companies with international banking requirements in key growth markets. These increases were partially offset by pay downs
and managed reductions in certain exposures.

Total residential mortgage |oans increased modestly compared with December 31, 2013 as an increase in residential mortgages
was partially offset by a decrease in home equity mortgages. We continue to sell newly originated conforming loans to PHH
Mortgage and target new residential mortgage |oan originations towards our Premier and Advance customer relationships.

Prior to 2013, real estate marketsin alarge portion of the United States were affected by stagnation or declinesin property values
for anumber of years. As aresult, while the loan-to-value ("LTV") ratios for our mortgage loan portfolio have deteriorated since
origination, we have recently seen agenera improvement in the LTV s for our loan portfolio. The following table presents LTV's
for our mortgage loan portfolio, excluding subprime residential mortgage loans held for sale.

LTVs at LTVs at
June 30, 2014M@ December 31, 2013%®

First Lien Second Lien First Lien Second Lien
LTV < B0%0..ui ittt sttt et ee et s st enae st enne s 89.4% 69.9% 87.4% 65.0%
809 S LTV < 90%0....cuuiitieiecieeie ettt st 54 13.2 6.0 14.1
909 S LTV < 100%0.....ccueeeieeeeereeeenereeeseeseeseeseeseesneessesneessesnsenes 31 8.2 38 95
LTV > 100%0.....cceeieieeieciesie sttt ee e sre s s snae e enne s 2.1 8.6 2.9 11.3
Average LTV for portfolion......ccocveereineineseeseeseese e 59.6 64.3 61.4 67.3

@ LTVsfor first liens are calculated using the loan balance as of the reporting date. LTV's for second liens are calculated using the loan balance as of the
reporting date plus the senior lien amount at origination. Current estimated property values are derived from the property's appraised value at the time of
loan origination updated by the change in the Federal Housing Finance Agency's (formerly known as the Office of Federal Housing Enterprise Oversight)
house pricing index ("HPI") at either a Core Based Statistical Area ("CBSA") or state level. The estimated value of the homes could differ from actual fair
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values due to changes in condition of the underlying property, variations in housing price changes within metropolitan statistical areas and other factors. As
aresult, actual property values associated with loansthat end in foreclosure may be significantly lower than the estimates used for purposes of thisdisclosure.

@ Current property values are calcul ated using the most current HPIs available and applied on an individual loan basis, which resultsin an approximate three
month delay in the production of reportable statistics. Therefore, the information in the table above reflects current estimated property values using HPIs as
of March 31, 2014 and September 30, 2013, respectively.

Credit card receivable balances decreased compared with December 31, 2013 reflecting seasonal paydowns.

Other consumer loans decreased since December 31, 2013, reflecting the discontinuation of student loan originations and the run-
off of our installment loan and auto finance portfolios.

Loans Held for Sale Thefollowingtablesummarizesloansheldfor saleat June 30, 2014 and increases (decreases) since December
31, 2013

Increase (Decrease) From
December 31, 2013

June 30, 2014 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Total COMMENCIAl [0ANS........cviveeiiieecicee s $ 396 $ 320 *
Consumer loans:
Residential MOMgagES.......c.ceervererieierieiirieeriee sttt e eb e 38 (53) (58.2%
OthEr CONSUMIET .......octeieeieeeeesie e stes e e seeseeae e e e se s e ssessessessesresseseesnesseseeseens 66 3 4.8
Total CONSUMEN [0ANS .....cueeeieieeeeetee et re b sresrenas 104 (50) (32.5)%
Total 10aNS el FOr SAE.......cuieceeeeeceeee e $ 500 $ 270 *

* Not meaningful.

Commercial loans held for sale increased compared with December 31, 2013. Commercia syndicated loans that are originated
with theintent of selling them to unaffiliated third parties are classified as commercial loans held for sale and are recorded at fair
value as we have elected to designate these loans under fair value option. The fair value of commercial loans held for sale under
this program was $159 million and $58 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Commercial loans held for sale also includes $43 million of global banking loans at June 30, 2014, which were transferred to held
for sale during thefirst half of 2014, aswell as commercial real estate loans of $194 million and $18 million at June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively.

Residential mortgage loans held for sale decreased compared with December 31, 2013. We sell al our agency eligible loan
originations servicing released directly to PHH Mortgage. Also included in residential mortgage loans held for sale are subprime
residential mortgage loans of $23 million and $46 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, which were
acquired from unaffiliated third parties and from HSBC Finance Corporation ("HSBC Finance") with theintent of securitizing or
selling the loans to third parties.

Other consumer loans held for sale includes certain student |oans which we no longer originate. The increase since December 31,
2013 wasdueto anincreaseinthefair value of theloansattributable to improved economic conditions aswell asincreased investor
demand for student loans.

Excluding the commercial loans designated under fair value option discussed above, loans held for sale are recorded at the lower
of amortized cost or fair value. The valuation allowance on consumer loans held for sale was $46 million and $77 million at
June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The vauation allowance on commercial loans held for sale was $7 million
at June 30, 2014 compared with no allowance at December 31, 2013.
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Trading Assets and Liabilities Thefollowingtablesummarizestrading assetsandliabilitiesbalancesat June 30,2014 andincreases
(decreases) since December 31, 2013:

Increase (Decrease) From
December 31, 2013

June 30, 2014 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Trading assets:
SECUNMEIES™ ...ttt ee s ee e eeeeae $ 10325 $ (827) (7.4)%
Precious MELalS.........ccviuiiiciiicic e 10,477 (1,274) (10.8)
DENIVALIVES®.......oooveeeeeeeeeeessemssssssssssssssesesssse s ssssssssssssssssssssess 4,354 (1,637) (27.3)
$ 25,156 $ (3,738) (12.9)%
Trading liabilities:
Securities sold, NOt et PUrChased..........cccoeereiirennere e 771 463 *
Payables for preCious MEtals ...........cccocvvnciinc s 3,037 (789) (20.6)
DEMVAHVES® ... seeeee e ee s eee e es e s sessess e seseseees 5,007 (1,734) (25.7)
$ 8,815 $ (2,060) (18.9)%

* Not meaningful.

@ IncludesU.S. Treasury securities, securitiesissued by U.S. Government agencies and U.S. Government sponsored enterprises, other asset-backed securities,
corporate and foreign bonds and debt securities.

@ At June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 the fair value of derivatives included in trading assets has been reduced by $3,128 million and $3,870 million,
respectively, relating to amountsrecognizedfor theobligationtoreturn cash coll ateral received under master netting agreementswith derivativecounterparties.

©® At June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 the fair value of derivativesincluded in trading liabilities has been reduced by $2,277 million and $2,116 million,
respectively, relating to amounts recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral paid under master netting agreements with derivative counterparties.

Securitiesbalancesdecreased since December 31, 2013 largely dueto decreasesin foreign sovereign guaranteed positions, partially
offset by increasesin U.S. Treasury and corporate bond positions. Securities positions are held to mitigate the risks of interest rate
products issued to customers of domestic and emerging markets. Balances of securities sold, not yet purchased increased since
December 31, 2013 due to an increasein short U.S. Treasury positions related to hedges of derivativesin the interest rate trading
portfolio.

Precious metal s trading assets decreased since December 31, 2013 due primarily to adecreasein unallocated metal inventory that
resulted from client activity. The lower payable for precious metals compared with December 31, 2013 was primarily due to a
decreasein unallocated metal balancesheld on behalf of clients. Both of the decreasesin precious metal strading assetsand precious
metals trading liabilities were partially offset by an increase in spot rates during the first half of the year.

Precious metal positions may not represent our net underlying exposure as we may use derivatives contracts to reduce our risk
associated with these positions, the fair value of which would appear in derivatives in the table above.

Derivative asset and liability balances decreased since December 31, 2013 mainly from market movementsasval uations of foreign
exchange, interest rate, credit and commodity derivatives all declined.

Securities Securitiesinclude securitiesavailable-for-sale and securities hel d-to-maturity. Balanceswill fluctuate between periods
depending upon our liquidity position at the time. The decline in balances since December 31, 2013 largely reflects the sales of
U.S. Treasury, government agency mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securitiesas part of acontinuing strategy to re-balance
the securities portfolio for risk management purposes based on the current interest rate environment.

Other Assets Other assetsincludesintangibles and goodwill. Other assetsincreased modestly since December 31, 2013 as higher
outstanding balances related to the settlement of precious metal stock positions were largely offset by adeclinein net deferred tax
assets and lower derivative balances associated with hedging activities.
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Deposits The following summarizes deposit balances by major depositor categories at June 30, 2014 and increases (decreases)
since December 31, 2013:

Increase (Decrease) From
December 31, 2013

June 30, 2014 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Individuals, partnerships and COrPOrations ............ccocreerieereresieneseseseseee e $ 93,791 $ 2,562 2.8%
Domestic and foreign banks...........coeieieieiciececce e $ 20,764 339 1.7
U.S. government and states and political SUDiVISIONS.........ccccoeveeerieineienieenee 711 39 5.8
Foreign governments and official iNStitutions...........cccccvvvvcniincciccse, 255 (27) (9.6)
e = 0 (= o 0L T $ 115521 $ 2,913 2.6%
TOtAl COME ABPOSIEEY.......eoeeeeeeeeeeeee e eee e e e e e ee e seeese s $ 87,564 1,755 2.0%

@ Core deposits, as calculated in accordance with Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council (“FFIEC") guidelines, generally include all domestic
demand, money market and other savings accounts, as well as time deposits with balances not exceeding $100,000.

Deposit balances at June 30, 2014 increased since December 31, 2013 asincreased wholesal e time deposits driven by an increase
in affiliate deposits and new issuances from the launch of awholesale term certificate of deposit issuance program, was partially
offset by a decrease in deposits from individuals, primarily reflected in on-line savings accounts. Total deposits from HSBC
affiliates increased $1,740 million since December 31, 2013. The strategy for our core retail banking business includes building
relationship deposits and wealth management across multiple markets, channels and segments. This strategy involves various
initiatives, such as:
e HSBC Premier, apremium service wealth and relationship banking proposition designed for the internationally-minded
client with a dedicated premier relationship manager. Total Premier deposits increased slightly to $20,930 million at
June 30, 2014 as compared with $20,877 million at December 31, 2013; and
e Expanding our existing customer relationships by needs-based sales of wealth, banking and mortgage products.

We continue to actively manage our balance sheet to increase profitability while maintaining adequate liquidity.

Short-Term Borrowings Short-term borrowings decreased since December 31, 2013 primarily due to the management of our
short-term liquidity positions which resulted in decreased levels of securities sold under agreements to repurchase. Partialy
offsetting the decreases was an increase in commercia paper outstanding.

Long-Term Debt Long-term debt increased compared with December 31, 2013 due primarily to the impact of debt issuances,
partially offset by long-term debt retirements. Debt issuances during the six months ended June 30, 2014 included $2,250 million
of senior debt, which wasissued by HSBC USA in June 2014, and $1,650 million of structured medium-term notes, of which $28
million was issued by HSBC Bank USA.

Incremental issuancesfrom the $40 billion HSBC Bank USA Global Bank Note Program total ed $28 million during the six months
ended June 30, 2014. Total debt outstanding under this program was $4,525 million and $4,535 million at June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively. Given the adequate liquidity of HSBC Bank USA, we do not anticipate the Global Bank Note
Program being heavily used in the future as, among diverse funding sources designed to minimize overall costs, deposits will
continue to be a primary funding source for HSBC Bank USA.

Incremental long-term debt i ssuancesfrom our shelf registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission (*SEC")
totaled $3,873 million during the six months ended June 30, 2014. Total long-term debt outstanding under this shelf was $14,248
million and $11,738 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York ("FHLB") totaled $1,000 million at both June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013. At June 30, 2014, we had the ability to access further borrowings of up to $5,077 million based on the amount
pledged as collateral with the FHLB.

All Other Liabilities All other liabilities decreased slightly compared with December 31, 2013 due primarily to the rel ease of tax
reserves and associated accrued interest related to the conclusion of certain state and local tax audits during the second quarter of
2014, as discussed further under the heading "Income Taxes" in "Results of Operations." These decreases were largely offset by
increased litigation accruals and higher derivative balances associated with hedging activities.
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Results of Operations

Net Interest Income Net interest income isthe total interest income on earning assets less the total interest expense on deposits
and borrowed funds. In the discussion that follows, interest income and rates are presented and analyzed on a taxable equivalent
basisto permit comparisons of yields on tax-exempt and taxabl e assets. An analysis of consolidated average balances and interest
rates on a taxable equivalent basis is presented in this MD& A under the caption "Consolidated Average Balances and Interest
Rates."

The significant components of net interest margin are summarized in the following table:

2014 Compared to
2013
Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2014 Volume Rate 2013
(dollars are in millions)

I nterest income:

Short-term iNVESIMENES ..o s $ 20 $ 3 3 1 $ 16
LI 0 [0 = S5 £ 65 4 34 27
SBCUMTIES. ...ttt bttt st b et b et bbbt se bbbt e b 198 (39) 7 230
COMMECIA [OBNS .......veeieitieie ettt et be e be e e saeeeesbeebesbeebesreens 295 41 (41) 205
CONSUMES [OBNS......c.veueireieereesreneere sttt ettt sttt eb e e sn e 176 (6) 1) 183
OENEY . 12 2 1) 11
TOtal INLErESE INCOME......eitireeieieee e sr e ere e 766 5 1) 762
Interest expense:

DIEPOSITS. ...ttt etk b ettt 36 4 (24) 56
ShOrt-termM DOITOWINGS. ....ccveiiieerie bbb e 14 5 1 8

L ONG-TEIMN DL ...ttt 152 3 a7 166
TAX TADITTIES.....eveeecieeceti bbbt (113) 2 (120) 9
TOtEl INEEIESE EXPENSE.....c.eveteiiirieieiee ettt sttt b e bbb 89 10 (160) 239
Net interest income — taxable equivalent basis............cocovcerreeirnsece e 677 % (5) 159 523
Less: tax equivalent a0jUSIMENE .............cc..rvueeeeereeeeeeeeesesessseessssess s ssesssnsssens 4 - 5
Net interest income — non taxable equivalent basis...............coovvveeoererverissreeeeesserseeenns S 673 $ 518
Yield on total interest arning @SSELS.........cocvrrreoirerrireereresrerese e 1.88% 1.89%
Cost of total interest bearing liabilitieS. ..o .28 81
INEErESt rale SPrEAM. .......vveveeeieeereeee e 160 T 108
Benefit from net non-interest paying funds™ .............coo.oerveerveereeeeeeeee oo .06 22
Net interest margin on average €arning 8SSELS........c.uveveorerrereereresrereseresrereesessreseenes T 1.66% T 130%
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2014 Compared to
2013

Increase (Decrease)

Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 Volume Rate 2013
(dollars are in millions)

Interest income:

Short-termM INVESIMENES ..o e $ 36 $ 4 $ 2 $ 30
TrAING GSSELS.....eueiveieteieete sttt st et et e s et ese st e e be e ete e 113 7 55 51
SECUITTIES. ..ttt ettt b ettt b et b e et se b e e 409 (62) 8 463
COMMESCIE J0ANS ..ottt 582 77 (63) 568
CONSUMES TOBNS......cveueirinieteeetese ettt sttt st st b et bbbt b et b e e e e 353 (10) (11) 374
OENEN ...t 22 3 ) 21
Total iNtErest INCOME........cciuiiiiii s 1,515 19 (11) 1,507
Interest expense:

DEPOSITS. ..t 71 — (28) 99
ShOrt-term DOITOWINGS. .....c.cvieeeieiririete e 23 9 (3) 17
LONG-TEM AEDL. ... s 322 9 (20) 333
TaX TBDIHTTIES. ...t (101) (5) (121) 25
TOtal INTEFESE EXPENSE......iieceieiere ettt sttt s e e e e esessessesrenes 315 13 (172) 474
Net interest income — taxable equivalent basis...........ccccovvceiirveecenense e 1,200 $ 6 $ 161 1,033
Less: tax equiValent ajUSIMENE ............c..evvervrrireeseesss e sssss s s s 10
Net interest income — non taxable equivalent basis...........ccocevevevevecveccicccce e $11—92 $1,023
Yield on total iNterest arning 8SSELS........ccvveirerirererie ettt 1.87% 1.90%
Cost of total interest bearing liaDilities. ... .50 81
FaL =S e (R o= o OSSO 137 1.09
Benefit from net non-interest paying funds™ ............cooo.oevvvervvervoeseseee e 11 21
Net interest margin on average €arning @SSELS.......ccuvvrveerieeseesenesesesesessesessesesseseens T 1.48% 1.30%

@ Represents the benefit associated with interest earning assetsin excess of interest bearing liabilities. The increased percentages reflect growth in this excess.

Net interest income in the second quarter of 2014 reflects a $120 million benefit to tax liabilities interest expense related to the
conclusion of certain state and local tax audits, as discussed further below under the heading " Income Taxes." Excluding theimpact
of thisitem, net interest income increased $35 million and $49 million, respectively, during the three and six months ended June
30, 2014 as compared with the corresponding prior year periods. Compared with the prior year periods, interest income increased
modestly as higher income from trading assets, short-term investments and, in the year-to-date period, commercial loans was
largely offset by lower income from securities and consumer loans, while interest expense decreased reflecting lower expense
from deposits, long-term debt and tax liabilities partially offset by higher expense from short-term borrowings.

Short-term investments Higher interest income during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 was primarily due to higher
average balances.

Trading Assets The increase in interest income during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 reflects the result of rising
market interest rates since the prior year periods and a shift in asset mix to longer term, higher yielding securities. Securitiesin
the trading portfolio are managed as hedges against the derivative activity of our customers, which, in response to the current
interest rate environment, has shifted towards longer term, higher yielding returns.

Securities Interest income decreased during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 due primarily to sales of U.S. Treasury
and government agency mortgage-backed securities which resulted in lower outstanding balances compared with the prior year
periods.

Commercial Loans Interest income was flat during the three months ended June 30, 2014 and was slightly higher during the six
months ended June 30, 2014, as loan growth was largely offset by lower yields on newly originated loans and, to a lesser extent,
loan repricing. Lower yieldsreflect acontinued focus on higher quality lending to reduce credit risk exposurein our loan portfolios.
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Consumer Loans Interest income decreased during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 due primarily to slightly lower
outstanding balances and, in the year-to-date period, lower yields on newly originated loans. Lower yields reflect a continued
focus on higher quality lending to reduce credit risk exposure in our loan portfolios.

Short-term borrowings The increase in interest expense during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 was due to higher
average outstanding borrowings primarily in securities sold under repurchase agreements and federal funds purchased, which
continue to be preferred sources of funding given the current interest rate environment.

Deposits Lower interest expense during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 reflects the impact of lower rates paid on
interest-bearing deposits.

Long-term debt Interest expense was lower during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 due to a shift in mix towards
lower yielding non-subordinated debt partially offset by higher outstanding borrowings.

Tax liabilities Excluding the one-time benefit rel ated to the conclusion of certain state and local tax auditsdiscussed above, interest
expense decreased during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 asthe conclusion of these auditsresulted in lower interest-
bearing tax liability balances.
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Provision for Credit Losses The following table summarizes the provision for credit losses associated with our various loan
portfolios:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

Commercial:
Construction and other real estate.............coovvvrrnierrreeee e $ 6 $ (149 $ 20 *
Business and corporate banking............c.cceeeererenene e e 56 15 41 *
Global BANKING.......coeieee e 29 29 — —
Other COMMETICIAL......c.ciueeiieieiere et 9 4 (5) *
TOtal COMMEICIE ... $ 82 $ 26 3 56 *
Consumer:
Residential MOMgAgES. ........vererrerrereirerreeere e 7 14 (7)  (50.00%
HOME EQUILY MOMGBGES ... .cveeeeieerireeierieiesiee et (8) 13 (22) *
Credit card reCalVADIES........oovieers e 4 13 9) (69.2)
OLNEN CONSUMES ...ttt sttt sttt sttt bbb — 1 (1) (100.0)
TOEl CONSUMEY ......ciiereiiirrreeese et 3 41 (38) (92.7)
Total provision for Credit [0SSES.........ovviireieereee s $ 8 $ 67 $ 18 26.9 %
Provision as a percentage of average loans, annUalized..............co.coovverrvernrenneene. - 05%  04%

Increase (Decrease)

Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

Commercial:
Construction and other real eState...........coevvreereiree e $ 8 $ 5 $ 13 *
Business and corporate banking...........cocccverenninnensieneces s 75 17 58 *
Global PANKING.......coeiieeer e e 36 28 8 28.6
Other COMMENTIAI ..o (13) 4 (9) *
TOtal COMMENTIA] ...ttt $ 106 $ 36 $ 70 *
Consumer:
Residential MOMQAgES. .........cerrerieieirerieieeeresie et bbb 9 11 (20) *
HOME EQUILY MOMQA0ES . ....cov ittt bbb (6) 30 (36) *
Credit Card reCaVADIES..........ccoiriirece e e 9 11 2 (182
OthEr CONSUIMEY ... 1 — 1 *
TOLAl CONSUMET ...ttt sttt b e e b e eb e sn b sn e sr e nneneas (5) 52 (57) *
Total provision for Credit I0SSES.........ovieieee s $ 101 $ 88 % 13 14.8 %
Provision as a percentage of average loans, annualized..............co...covverrveerereenne. - 03% 03w

* Not meaningful.

Our provision for credit losses increased $18 million and $13 million during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014,
respectively, driven by higher provisions for credit lossesin our commercial loan portfolio, partially offset by alower provisions
for credit losses in our consumer loan portfolio. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, we increased our credit
loss reserves as the provision for credit losses was higher than net charge-offs by $50 million and $18 million, respectively.

In our commercia portfolio, the provision for credit losses increased $56 million and $70 million during the three and six months
ended June 30, 2014, respectively. During thefirst half of 2014, werevised certain estimatesused in our commercial |oanimpairment
calculation resulting in anincremental provision for credit losses of approximately $93 million ($68 million of which wasrecorded
in the second quarter) for these loans. Excluding the impact of thisitem, our commercial provision for credit |osses decreased $12
million and $23 million during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively. The decrease in both periods reflects
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lower provisions for risk factors primarily associated with global banking large loan exposures and, in the year-to-date period
emerging markets loan exposures, as well as continued improvements in economic and credit conditions which led to lower
nonperformingloansand criticized asset levels, partially offset by loan growth, largely inglobal banking and businessand corporate
banking.

The provision for credit losses on residential mortgages including home equity mortgages decreased $28 million and $56 million
during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively. The decrease was driven by an improvement in home prices
as well as continued improvements in economic and credit conditions including lower dollars of delinquency on accounts less
than 180 days contractually delinquent and improvementsin |oan delinquency roll rates. Theseimprovementswere partially offset
in the three month period by increased | oss estimates associated with the remediation of certain mortgage servicing activities and
higher losses associated with advances made on behalf of borrowers.

The provision for credit losses associated with credit card receivables decreased $9 million and $2 million during the three and
six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively, reflecting improved economic conditions, including lower dollars of delinquency,
improvementsin delinquency roll rates and lower receivable levels.

Our methodology and accounting policies related to the allowance for credit losses are presented in our 2013 Form 10-K under
the caption "Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates’ and in Note 2, "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and New
Accounting Pronouncements." See "Credit Quality" in this MD&A for additional discussion on the allowance for credit losses
associated with our various loan portfolios.
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Other Revenues The following table summarizes the components of other revenues:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Credit Card fEES........coiirr $ 13 $ 21 $ (8) (38.1)%
Other fees and COMMISSIONS.........coiuiiiiiici s 182 176 6 34
THUSE INCOMIE ...ttt bbbttt 32 31 1 3.2
TradiNG FEVENUE.....c.ceceeiiiee ettt 15 127 (112) (88.2)
Net other-than-temporary impairment 0SSES ..........coeeerreeeennne e (5) — (5) *
Other securities gains (I0SSES), NEL........ccorueuerirereieere e 7 23 (30) *
HSBC affiliate income:
Fees and COMMISSIONS..........uovirieerireerereeeree e 36 44 (8) (18.2)
Other affiliate INCOME.......c.iiieiiicirie e 15 15 — —
Total HSBC affiliat@ iNCOME........ccrueiiuiiririeieieieiririeisie e seeeeeeas 51 59 (8 (13.6)
Residential mortgage banking reVENUE.............ccvcvvreeenreeeeseese e 22 9 13 *
Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives......... (44) 95 (139) *
Other income:
Valuation of loans held for Sal@.........cooviivrrec s ) 6 (7) *
INSUFBINCE......ceeeiteetest et r e nre s 5 3 2 66.7
MiSCEllANEOUS INCOIME..........covieriiiiircee e ) 16 (18) *
Total Other INCOME........c.ciiirciii e 2 25 (23) (92.0)
TOtal OthEr FEVENUES........ccoeecieiee et $ 261 $ 566 $ (305 (53.9)%

Increase (Decrease)

Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Credit CArd fEES......uiuiierict ettt $ 27 $ 34 $ (7) (20.6)%
Other fees and COMMISSIONS............cvrrrirrrrrrerrerere e 355 346 9 2.6
THUSE INCOMIE ...ttt ettt n s 63 63 — —
TradiNG FEVENUE......c.cecvceieree et 148 271 (123) (45.4)
Net other-than-temporary impairment [0SSES .........ccoererrernerese e 7 — 7 *
Other securities gains (I0SSES), NEL........ccvrererrnreee s 15 154 (139) (90.3)
HSBC affiliate income:
Fees and COMMISSIONS.......ccccreirrrereee et 74 86 (12) (14.0
Other affiliate INCOME.......coiieiirieirerere e 24 27 3 (@111
Total HSBC affiliat€ iNCOME........ccceererercirese e 98 113 (15) (13.3)
Residential mortgage banking reVENUE.............cccoeeirennenenenene e 70 55 15 27.3
Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives......... (16) 88 (104) *
Other income:
Valuation of 10ans held for SAl@.......oveirrieirc s — 9 (9) (100.0)
[NSUFBINCE.....ccuiiiiiiiiriere e 8 4 4  100.0
MiSCEllaNEOUS INCOME.......cvirieiireieirirere e — 21 (21) (100.0)
TOtal Other INCOME ....cviicie et 8 34 (26) (76.5)
TOtal OtNEr FEVENUES........ceerceeir s $ 761 $ 1158 $ (397) (34.3)%

* Not meaningful.
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Credit card fees Credit card fees decreased in the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 driven by lower outstanding balances
aswell as lower late fees due to improved customer behavior.

Other fees and commissions Other fees and commissionsincreased in the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 dueto higher
fee based income resulting from increased levels of commercial lending activity, partially offset by lower custodial fees dueto a
decrease in precious metals average inventory held under custody as well as lower average metals prices. The following table
summarizes the components of other fees and commissions:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
ACCOUNE SENVICES ....uveeiietiee ettt e seee s s te e s e ste e sae e s s bb e s sestessssaeessbesssassessssenesasbesesnes $ 78 % 71 7 9.9
Credit faCHITIES ... 53 52 1 19
CUSEOTIAl FEES ...ttt 10 14 4 (28.6)
OLNEY FEES ....evire e 41 39 2 5.1
Total other fees and COMMISSIONS.........ccccevieieiieiiceee e $ 182 $ 176 $ 6 3.4%

Increase (Decrease)

Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
ACCOUNE SENVICES ....veiiiteetee ittt ctee et tee et e ebe s sbeesteesate e sbeesareesbessnseebessabesseesaren $ 148 $ 140 $ 8 5.7%
(@00 1 0 = o 1 L =S 105 104 1 10
Custodial fEES........coviviiiiii 21 32 (11) (349
(@1 0= g == 81 70 11 15.7
Total other fees and COMMISSIONS...........cveeeeiiieiie et $ 355 % 346 $ 9 2.6%

Trust income Trust income was relatively flat in the three and six months ended June 30, 2014.
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Trading revenue Trading revenueis generated by participation in the foreign exchange, rates, credit, equities and precious metals
markets. The following table presents trading related revenue by business activity and includes net interest income earned on
trading instruments, aswell as an allocation of the funding benefit or cost associated with the trading positions. Thetrading related
net interest income component isincluded in net interest income on the consolidated statement of income. Trading revenuesrel ated
to the mortgage banking business are included in residential mortgage banking revenue.

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

TradiNg FEVENUE......c.cvceiierecteie sttt et $ 15 $ 127 $ (1120 (88.2%

NEL INLEFESE INCOME ...t 46 (5) 51 *

Trading related FEVENUE..........ccco ittt $ 61 $ 122 $ (61) (50.00%

Business: -
DENVAIVESY ..ot $ 12 $ 26 $ (14 (539)%
Balance sheet Management ...........ccccucucuicicreeeeee s (6) 7 (13) *
FOreign EXChaNGE .....ccveeeeieetereet et 53 63 (10) (15.9
PreCioUS MELAIS. ..o 3 22 (19) (86.4)
GlObEl DANKING .....ecveiieieicee e — 1 (1) (100.0)
(@107 g 1= (1 [ Q) 3 4 *

Trading related FEVENUE..........ccco i $ 61 $ 122 $ (61) (50.00%

Increase (Decrease)

Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

TradiNG FEVENUE........oouiiteie ettt sttt sttt e et seenennas $ 148 $ 271 $ (123) (45.4)%

NELINLEFESE INCOME ...t 49 (15) 64 *

Trading related rEVENUE............cccciciii s $ 197 $ 256 $ (59 (23.00%

Business Activities: -
DENVAIVES™Y ..ottt $ 72 % 95 $ (3 (242%
Balance sheet ManagemMent ...........ccccucucucirereeieee s (3 4 ) *
FOreign @XChange ... 110 108 2 19
PreCioUS MELAIS. ..ot 21 48 27)  (56.3)
Global Banking .........cccccoviiiiiiiii — 1 (1) (200.0)
Other trading ........ccovreeerrrrrr e (3) — (3 *

Trading related rEVENUE............cccciiii s $ 197 $ 256 $ (59 (23.00%

* Not meaningful.

@ Includes derivative contracts related to credit default and cross-currency swaps, equities, interest rates and structured credit products.

Trading related revenue decreased during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 due to lower revenue from derivatives,
balance sheet management, precious metals and, in the three month period, lower revenue from foreign exchange.

Trading revenue from derivative products decreased during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 due to lower valuation
gains related to structured credit products, reduced debit valuation adjustments, as our own credit spreads tightened compared
with the widening that occurred in the year ago periods, and lower new deal activity on domestic interest rate products. Partially
offsetting these declines was an increase in emerging markets related revenue from higher new deal activity and higher interest
income on securities positions.

Trading revenue related to balance sheet management activities decreased during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014
primarily due to the performance of economic hedge positions used to manage interest rate risk.

Foreign exchange trading revenue decreased during the three months ended June 30, 2014 due to lower trading volumes. This
decrease was more than offset in the in the year-to-date period due primarily to lower interest expense.
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Precious metal s revenue decreased during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 from reduced trade volumes as investor
demand shifted in favor of other assets.

Net other-than-temporary impairment losses During the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, the debt securitiesheld by a
consolidated variable interest entity ("VIE") were determined to have changesto their previous other-than-temporary impairment
estimates with only the credit component of such other-than-temporary impairments recognized in earnings. During the three and
six months ended June 30, 2013, there were no other-than-temporary impairment losses recognized.

Other securities gains (losses), net We maintain various securities portfolios as part of our balance sheet diversification and risk
management strategies. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, we sold $9,144 million and $15,999 million,
respectively, of U.S. Treasury, government agency mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securities as part of a continuing
strategy to re-balance the securities portfolio for risk management purposes based on the current interest rate environment. In the
three and six months ended June 30, 2013, we sold $9,838 million and $22,295 million, respectively, of U.S. Treasury, government
agency mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securities as part of a continuing strategy to re-balance the securities portfolio
for risk management purposes based on the current interest rate environment. The gross realized gains and losses from sales of
securities in both years, which isincluded as acomponent of other securities gains (losses), net above, are summarized in Note 3,
"Securities," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

HSBC affiliate income Affiliate income decreased in the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 due to lower fees associated
withresidential mortgageloan servicing activitiesperformed on behal f of HSBC Finance, lower feesrelated tolending arrangements
extended to other HSBC affiliates and lower income related to certain performance based activity.
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Residential mortgage banking revenue The following table presents the components of residential mortgage banking revenue.
The net interest income component reflected in the tableisincluded in net interest incomein the consolidated statement of income
and reflects actual interest earned, net of interest expense and corporate transfer pricing.

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
NEL INEEMESE INCOME. ...ttt e s s s ste e e st e e s s eae e e s sbaeessabesssssnessarenesas $ 46 $ 4 $ 2 45 %
Servicing related income:
SEIVICING FEEINCOME ...ttt e 17 21 4 (19.0
Changesin fair value of Mortgage Servicing Rights ("M SRs") due to:
Changesin valuation model inputs or assUMPLioNS............ccovceerinncciienens (12) 42 (54) *
CUSLOMES PAYMENES .....cvviiiiiic e (7 (13) 6 46.2
Trading — Derivative instruments used to offset changes in value of MSRs 22 (34) 56 *
Total servicing related INCOME.........cociriiieriee e 20 16 4 25.0
Originations and sales related income:
Gains on sales of residential MOMgAgES .........cvvrrrereererrnreeerere s — 8 (8) (100.0)
Recovery (provision) for repurchase obligations...........ccvoeveireineieseccneen — (23) 23 100.0
Trading and hedging aCtiVity ........cccvorrreeinrseeres s — 4 (4) (100.0)
Total originations and sales related iNCOME............ccoiiciiiiciiicincee e — (12) 11 100.0
Other MOrtgage INCOME........c.cvveriirereererereses et 2 4 (2 (50.0)
Total residential mortgage banking revenue included in other revenues............... 22 9 13 *
Total residential mortgage banking related revenue..........coeeveeerecenecenencnieenn $ 68 $ 53 $ 15 28.3 %

Increase (Decrease)

Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
NEL INEEIrESE INCOME......cecereetiiecieeeerereeee ettt seneees $ 91 $ % $ @ (4.2%
Servicing related income:
SErViCiNg FEEINCOME.......cviiirireeiereere e 35 42 (7 (@16.7)
Changesin fair value of MSRs due to:
Changes in valuation model inputs or assUMPLIONS............ccccceeerereeererenenas (24) 68 (92 *
CUStomMEr PAYMENES ........ceviiieieieie e a7 (23) 6 26.1
Trading — Derivative instruments used to offset changes in value of MSRs 37 (41) 78 *
Total servicing related iNCOME.........cccuiiiicicicic s 31 46 (15) (32.6)
Originations and sales related income;
Gains on sales of residential MOrtgages ..o — 32 (32) (100.0)
Recovery (provision) for repurchase obligations...........ccceeevevineinenenenenenenns 34 (36) 70 *
Trading and hedging @CHVITY .........coieiieiieereeeeee e — 4 (4) (100.0)
Total originations and sales related INCOME...........coevrerieeierieree e 34 — 34 *
Other MOrtgage iNCOIME. ........ooueerererie ettt e e e e sbe b e b b e seeneas 5 9 4 (449
Total residential mortgage banking revenue included in other revenues............... 70 55 15 27.3
Total residential mortgage banking related revenue..........ccooeveeerecenecenecenieenn $ 61 $ 150 $ 11 7.3 %

* Not meaningful.

Net interest income was relatively flat in the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 reflecting lower amortization of deferred
origination costsasaresult of lower portfolio prepaymentsdueto higher mortgage ratesduring the second quarter of 2014 compared
withtheprior year period. Lower amortization offset thelower net interest income resulting from lower spreads on newly originated

101



HSBC USA Inc.

loans. Consistent with our strategy, additions to our residential mortgage portfolio are primarily mortgages to our Premier and
Advance customers, while sales of newly originated conforming loans are sold to PHH Mortgage as discussed further below.

Total servicing related income increased during the three months ended June 30, 2014 due to improved net hedged MSR
performance, partialy offset by lower servicing fees while in the year-to-date period, total servicing related income declined as
servicing fees remained lower and net hedged M SR performance declined. Servicing fees declined in both periods due to alower
averageservicedloan portfolio. Asaresult of our strategic relationship with PHH Mortgage, beginning with May 2013 applications,
we no longer add new volume to our serviced portfolio as all agency eligible loans are now sold on a servicing released basis.
Changesin net hedged M SR performance is driven by changes in the M SR valuations due to updated market based assumptions
such asinterest rates, expected prepayments, primary-secondary spreads and cost of servicing which differ from period to period
along with changesin the value of the underlying instruments used to hedge changesin the fair value of the M SRs. Consequently,
primarily as aresult of declining mortgage rates, our MSR fair value decreased during the three and six months ended June 30,
2014, which was offset by gains on instruments used to hedge changes in the fair value of the MSR.

Originationsand salesrelated incomeimproved inthethreeand six monthsended June 30, 2014 largely duetolower lossprovisions
for loan repurchase obligationsassociated with loans previously sold partially offset by lower gainson sales of residential mortgage
loans. During the three months ended June 30, 2014, we recorded no provision compared with a provision of $23 million in the
year ago period. During the six months ended June 30, 2014, we recorded a recovery of $34 million compared with a provision
of $36 million in the year ago period. Both periods reflects reduction in our estimated exposure associated with repurchase
obligations on loans previously sold. During the first quarter of 2014, we entered into a settlement with the Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation ("FHLMC") for $25 million which settled our liability for substantially all loans sold to FHLMC from
January 1, 2000 through 2013. The settlement and a re-assessment of the residual exposure resulted in a release of reserves. A
similar settlement was entered into with the Federal National Mortgage Association ("FNMA™) in the fourth quarter of 2013. We
continue to maintain repurchase reserves for FNMA and FHLMC exposure associated with residual risks not covered under these
settlement agreements. The lower gains on sales of residential mortgage loans reflects the impact of our agreement with PHH
Mortgage aswell aslower levels of saleableloan volume duein part to higher interest rates compared with the prior year periods.

Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives We have elected to apply fair value option accounting
to commercial syndicated loans held for sale, certain own fixed-rate debt issuances and all of our hybrid instruments issued,
inclusive of structured notes and structured deposits. We al so use derivativesto economically hedgetheinterest rate risk associated
with certain financial instruments for which fair value option has been elected. See Note 10, "Fair Value Option," in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional information including a breakout of these amounts by individual
component.

Valuation of loans held for sale Valuation gains on loans held for sale decreased in the three and six months ended June 30, 2014
due primarily to valuation write-downs on certain commercial loans held for sale, recorded in the second quarter of 2014, aswell
as lower valuation gains on residential mortgage loans held for sale due mostly to lower average balances in the current year
periods. Partially offsetting these decreases were higher valuation gains on certain student loans held for sale attributable to
improved economic and regulatory conditions as well as increased investor demand. Residential mortgage loans held for sale,
which were purchased from third partiesand HSBC affiliates with the intent of securitization or sale, includes subprime residential
mortgage loans with afair value of $23 million and $54 million as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Loans held for sale
arerecorded at thelower of their aggregate cost or fair value, with adjustmentsto fair val ue being recorded asaval uation allowance.
Valuations on residential mortgage loans held for sale that we originate are recorded as a component of residential mortgage
banking revenue in the consolidated statement of income.

Other income Other income, excluding the valuation of loans held for sale as discussed above, decreased during the three and six
months ended June 30, 2014 driven primarily by lower income associated with fair value hedgeineffectivenessrel ated to securities
available-for-sale as well as lower income associated with credit default swap protection on certain commercial loans. Partially
offsetting these decreases was higher income associated with bank owned life insurance.
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Operating Expenses Compliance costs, which remained a significant component of our cost base, totaled $71 million and $145
million in the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively, compared with $73 million and $149 million in the prior
year periods. While we continue to focus attention on cost mitigation efforts in order to continue realization of optimal cost
efficiencies, compliance related costs remain elevated due to the remediation required by regulatory consent agreements.

The following table summarizes the components of operating expenses:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Salary and employee DENEFITS ..o $ 223 $ 247 $ (29 (9.7)%
OCCUPANCY EXPENSE, NEL.......oiuiriiiririiii it $ 52 $ 57 (5) (8.8)
Support services from HSBC affiliates:
Feespaid to HSBC FINANCE ......cccoiiiiiiieieeiee e 3 5 2 (40.0)
Feespaid to HSBC Markets (USA) Inc. ("HMUS")....cceoeveereeere e 51 54 3 (5.6)
Fees paid to HSBC Technology and Services (USA) ("HTSU").....cccceeueee 271 242 29 12.0
Fees paid to other HSBC affillaleS........cvvrreereinirrrceesrecreeneses e 60 61 (1) (1.6)
Total support services from HSBC affiliates.........cooceveieirinininnecenee 385 362 23 6.4
Other expenses:
Equipment and SOftWAIE.........cccerveerieiieesieeeesese st 13 13 — —
= 1] o PSSRSO 21 8 13 *
OULSIOE SEIVICES ...ttt 13 39 (26) (66.7)
Professional fEES ..o 29 29 — —
Postage, printing and OffiCe SUPPHIES .......ccvrerererererieereee e — 2 (2)  (100.0)
Off-balance sheet Credit FESEIVES ... 3 (22) 25 *
FDIC 8SSESSMENT FER....c.ecvieceereee et 26 20 6 30.0
MISCEITBNEOUS......c.eevereires it 111 11 100 *
TOtal Other EXPENSES......covieeeieeiere e 216 100 116 *
Total OPEraliNg EXPENSES. .. cueveverrrrerrrerrrrerrrernrssesesessssseseresssssssssesesssssssnsesesesssnsess $ 876 $ 766 $ 110 14.4 %
Personnel - aVErage NUMDET .............vveiveeeeeeeeseeeeeseesee s sessessee s ssssssss s sneeas ~ 6197 658
EffICIENCY FaLIO....cvieieiiriieti e 93.8% 70.7%
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Increase (Decrease)

Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Salary and employee DENEFitS ... $ 438 $ 499 $ (612) (12.2)%
OCCUPANCY EXPENSE, NEL......ciriereriririsiseseserest sttt sttt 109 116 (7 (6.0)
Support services from HSBC &ffiliates:
Feespaid to HSBC FINANCE........ccceciieie et 6 9 (3) (33.3)
Feespaid to HMUS.........cooi s 104 106 2 (1.9
FEeSPAId tO HTSU ..ottt 524 475 49 10.3
Feespaid to other HSBC affiliates.........coerveieieeeee e 105 96 9 9.4
Total support services from HSBC affiliates........covevveeereicneinenneen 739 686 53 7.7
Other expenses:
EqQUipmMent and SOfIWEIE..........ccvireeiirereeerese e 27 28 (1) (3.6)
IMEBIKELING ...ttt eb e e bbb en e nnenea 30 18 12 66.7
OULSIAE SEIVICES ...ttt 26 65 (39) (60.0)
Professional FEES ........ciiirici e 51 54 (3) (5.6)
Postage, printing and office SUPPHES ......c.ccvrrrereirrnererre e 2 4 2 (50.0)
Off-balance sheet credit reSerVes....... ..o 9 (16) 25 *
FDIC @SSESSMENT FEE......oirrciiiri e 57 42 15 35.7
MISCEITBNEOUS. ......ccveeetireetereet sttt st 138 38 100 *
TOtal Other EXPENSES......coviieiieeiire e 340 233 107 45.9
TOtal OPErating EXPENSES......cueiveverietereetirreerree sttt se b ebese b seebeseeseseeseseesesneneas $1626 $ 1534 $ 92 6.0 %
Personnel - aVerage NUMDES ..............oueeeeeeieeeeeeeeeseeeeeseesse s esesesesesse s 618 6707
EffICIENCY FALIO......veeeieieetiet e 83.3% 70.3%

* Not meaningful.

Salaries and employee benefits Total salaries and employee benefits expense decreased during the three and six months ended
June 30, 2014 primarily due to lower average personnel in addition to lower incentive compensation expense, partially offset in
the three month period by increased staffing associated with capital planning and reporting activities.

Occupancy expense, net Occupancy expense decreased in the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 due largely to lower
rental expense, including the consolidation of office space in Buffalo, NY which was completed in the fourth quarter of 2013.

Support services from HSBC affiliates Support services from HSBC affiliates increased in the three and six months ended June
30, 2014 due, in part, to changing the billing process for certain third-party loan servicing costs from a direct expense in the prior
year to support services from HTSU in 2014. Also contributing to higher support services from HSBC affiliates were higher cost
allocations from various corporate functions as well as increased costs associated with our investment in process enhancements
and infrastructure to improve and modernize our legacy business systems. Compliance costs reflected in support services from
affiliates totaled $68 million and $139 million during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively, compared with
$70 million and $143 million in the year-ago periods. A summary of the activities charged to us from various HSBC affiliatesis
included in Note 13, "Related Party Transactions,” in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Marketing Marketing expensesincreased in the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 driven largely by marketing campaigns
to support the re-launch of HSBC Premier in the second quarter of 2014.

Other expenses Other expensesincreased in the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 due primarily to higher miscellaneous
expense related to certain litigation matters as well as higher FDIC assessment fees, higher loss estimates associated with off-
balance sheet credit exposures as the prior year periods reflect areserve release due to an upgrade of an individual monoline and,
in the year-to-date period, higher expense related to an increase in our expectation of compensatory fees payable to GSEs due, in
part, to the exclusion of these exposures from the FHLMC settlement discussed above. Partially offsetting these increases was a
decline in outside services expense due to moving the billing of certain third-party loan servicing costs from a direct expense in
the prior year to support services from HTSU in 2014.
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Efficiency ratio Our efficiency ratio was 93.8 percent and 83.3 percent during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014,
respectively, compared with 70.7 percent and 70.3 percent during the year-ago periods. Our efficiency ratio was impacted in both
periods by the change in the fair value of our own debt attributable to credit spread for which we have elected fair value option
accounting. Excluding the impact of thisitem, our efficiency ratio for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively,
increased to 89.4 percent and 82.1 percent compared with 74.3 percent and 70.7 percent in the year-ago periods due to a decrease
in other revenues driven by lower trading revenue as well as lower gains on security sales and higher operating expenses driven
by higher litigation expenses, partially offset by an increase in net interest income. In addition, operating expenses continue to
reflect elevated levels of compliance costs.

Income taxes The following table provides an analysis of the difference between effective rates based on the total income tax
provision attributable to pretax income and the statutory U.S. Federal income tax rate:

Three Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013
(dollars are in millions)
Tax expense (benefit) at the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate.................... $ 9 (35.0% $ 88 35.0%
Increase (decrease) in rate resulting from:
State and local taxes, net of federal benefit..........ccovvviiiiiinccnce 3 11.1 13 5.2
Adjustment of tax rate used to value deferred taxes............ccoceevececviieenne, @) (3.7) — —
Other non-deductible / non-taxable itemS@.............ccc..ooevvverrvoeerrisersienenns (3) (11.1) (12) (4.8)
Items affecting Prior PEriods™ ... 7  (25.9) (12) (4.8)
UNcertain tax POSIIONS™...........ccocvurvverecriesesess s (178) (657.7) 4 1.6
Impact of foreign OPErations™ ..............cocovieeeeeeeeeeeee e 2 (7.4 1 0.4
Low income housing tax credit investments®...............ccocooovervvienrvoierrvonnne, (7)  (25.9) ) (3.2)
Change in valuation allowance reServes™”) ..............oovreenreeesnsnreesneesesnns I EN)) — —
(0111 2O I EN)) ©) (1.1
Total income tax expense (DENEFIL) ..o $ (206) (763.00% $ 71 28.3%
Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013
(dollars are in millions)
Tax expense at the U.S. federal statutory incometax rate..........cccocveerererenenes $ 79 350% $ 19 35.0%
Increase (decrease) in rate resulting from:
State and local taxes, net of federal benefit............ccooovricinncccnecs 13 5.8 30 5.4
Adjustment of tax rate used to value deferred taxes™ ..........cccccooevrvierennnene. 60 265 — —
Other non-deductible / Non-taxable itemS@ ............cooovurrrveereeieneeieeneens (4)  (1.8) 9) (1.6)
Items affecting Prior PEriods™ ... (24)  (10.6) (22) (3.9)
Uncertain tax POSItions™...........cocvverreerreeseeessseesssseesesssesssssessesenas (181)  (80.1) 18 3.2
Impact of fOreign OPErationNS® ..............oocvueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseseeesseees s 1 4 4 0.8
Low income housing tax credits investments® ..............coooc.ooreernreeeinreeonnne. (14)  (6.2) (15) (2.7)
Change in valuation allowance reServes” ............ccooovweeeeereenmeesesessesssesnenns 13 5.8 — —
OUNET e — — (6) (1.2)
Total income tax expense (DENEFit).........cocoiiiiiiie $ (57 (25.2)% $ 196 35.1%

@
@)
®

For 2014, the amount relates to the effects of revaluing our deferred tax assets for New York State Tax Reform that was enacted on March 31, 2014.

For 2014 and 2013, the amounts mainly relate to tax exempt interest income.

For 2014, the amount relates to changes in estimates in the amount of state income taxes deductible on the federal income tax return. For 2013, the amount
relatesto corrections to current and deferred tax balance sheet accounts and changesin estimates as aresult of filing the federal and state income tax returns.

For 2014, the amount mainly reflects the resolution and settlement with taxation authorities of certain significant state and local tax audits during the second
quarter of 2014 which is discussed further below. For 2013, the amount relates to changes in state uncertain tax positions which no longer meet the more

likely than not requirement for recognition.

For 2013, the amounts relate to foreign (United Kingdom) tax expense for which no foreign tax credits are allowed.

For 2014 and 2013, reflects early adoption of ASU 2014-01 which permits an investor to amortize its Low Income Housing Tax Credit investments in
proportion to the Low Income Housing tax benefits and present such benefits net of investment amortization in the tax line.
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™ For 2014, the amount rel ates to the establishment of avaluation allowance against our deferred tax assets dueto New York State Tax Reform that was enacted
on March 31, 2014.

During the second quarter of 2014, we concluded certain stateand local tax auditsresulting in the settlement of significant uncertain
tax positions covering anumber of years. Asaresult, we released tax reserves previously maintained in relation to the periods and
issuesunder review whichresultedinanincometax benefit of $183 million during thequarter. Thetotal amount of our unrecognized
tax benefitsrelated to uncertain tax positionswas $27 million at June 30, 2014 compared with $540 million at December 31, 2013.
In addition, we released our accrued interest associated with the tax reserves rel eased which resulted in a $120 million benefit to
interest expense during the quarter. At June 30, 2014 our accrued liability for the payment of interest associated with uncertain tax
positions was $3 million compared with $208 million at December 31, 2013.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits related to uncertain tax positionsis as follows:

(in millions)
BalanCe @ JANUAIY 1, 2004 ...ttt ettt sttt sttt ae bt ae e heeb e s hesRe e E e be A e R e be b e et et et et eaeeneeaeeneerea $ 540
Additions based on tax positions related t0 the CUITENt YEaK .........ccvcveeeeeerece e 16
Reductions based on tax positions related to the Current Year ... (10)
Additions for tax POSItiONS Of PIIOF YEAI'S ......cccvieiirieresestises e seeseeee e s se e stesaeseestesbeseensenseneeeeneeseeseeseesennesns 5
Reductions for tax POSItiONS OF PITOF YEAIS.......co.iiiieie ettt st sae st st see s be st e se e e e e e e s e enesaeenesnens (322)
Reductions related to settlements with taxing aUthOrities...........cocvvcinc e, (202)
BAlBNCE B JUNE 30, 2014 ..o e e e e ee e ee e e e e e e e e e s e ee e ee s ee e es e ees e es e ee e ees e eeeeeee s 27

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the effective income tax rate was $22 million and
$334 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Included in the unrecognized tax benefits are some items the
recognition of which would not affect the effective tax rate, such asthetax effect of temporary differences and the amount of state
taxes that would be deductible for U.S. federal purposes.

On March 31, 2014, New York Governor Cuomo signed legislation overhauling New York’s corporate tax regime as well as other
significant tax changes. Most of these changes take effect for tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2015 and will have a
significant and positive future economic impact on HSBC entitieswith activity taxed in New York State, including us. The changes
resulted in a decrease to our net deferred tax asset of approximately $75 million in the first quarter of 2014.
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Segment Results — IFRSs Basis

We have four distinct business segments that are utilized for management reporting and analysis purposes which are aligned with
HSBC's global businesses and business strategy. The segments, which are generally based upon customer groupings and global
businesses, are described under Item 1, "Business," in our 2013 Form 10-K. There have been no changes in the basis of our
segmentation or measurement of segment profit as compared with the presentation in our 2013 Form 10-K.

Wereport financial information to our parent, HSBC, in accordance with IFRSs. As aresult, our segment results are presented on
an IFRSs basis (ahon-U.S. GAAP financial measure) as operating results are monitored and reviewed, trends are evaluated and
decisions about allocating resources such as employees are made almost exclusively on an IFRSs basis. However, we continue to
monitor capital adequacy, establish dividend policy and report to regulatory agencies on a U.S. GAAP basis. The significant
differences between U.S. GAAP and | FRSs as they impact our results are summarized in Note 23, "Business Segments,” in our
2013 Form 10-K.

Retail Banking and Wealth Management (""RBWM"") Our RBWM segment providesafull range of banking and wealth products
and services through our branches and direct channels to individuals. These services include asset-driven services such as credit
and lending, liability-driven services such as deposit taking and account services and fee-driven services such as advisory and
wealth management. During the first half of 2014, we continued to direct resources towards the development and delivery of
premium service, client needs based wealth and banking services with particular focus on HSBC Premier, HSBC's glabal banking
servicethat wasre-launched in 2014 and offers customersaseamlessinternational service, aswell asHSBC Advance, aproposition
directed towards the emerging affluent client in the initial stages of wealth accumulation.

Consistent with our strategy, additions to our residential mortgage portfolio are primarily to our Premier and Advance customers,
while salesof loans historically consisted primarily of conforming loans sold to GSEsand beginningin May 2013, PHH Mortgage.
In addition to normal sales activity, at times we have historically sold prime adjustable and fixed rate mortgage loan portfolios to
third parties and retained the servicing rightsin relation to the mortgages upon sale. Upon conversion of our mortgage processing
and servicing operations to PHH Mortgage, we now sell our agency eligible originations beginning with May 2013 applications
directly to PHH Mortgage on a servicing released basis which has resulted in no new mortgage servicing rights being recognized
going forward.

The following table summarizes the IFRSs results for our RBWM segment:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

NEL INEEIESE INCOME. ... .eiictieceectee ettt ereebe e st eeeaeeeae s e ebeeeneeenres $ 212 $ 206 $ 6 29 %
Other OpErating INCOME..........coveuirieiirieirieesie sttt st see e e 104 82 22 26.8
Total OPErating INCOME..........ccoouiiiriiereiee e 316 288 28 9.7
Loan impairment ChargeS........cooevrerirerre e 21 21 — —
N[ 00 1< = 1 o [T o0 = 295 267 28 105
OPEratiNg EXPENSES ...c.c.vveuiaerereseeresser et st s b e bt n s s enese s 298 300 2 (7
LOSS BEFOr@ taX ... $ 3) $ 33) $ 30 90.9 %

Increase (Decrease)

Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
NEt INLErest iNCOME........ccviiiiiciiii s $ 410 $ 421 $ (13) (2.6)%
Other OpErating INCOME..........cireuirieiirieeriee ettt be e b 217 189 28 14.8
Total OPErating INCOME........cveiiereereeesesese et te e e e ae e resresresreeeas 627 610 17 2.8
Loan impairment Charges............oocvvcuiiiiiiiciicc s 23 53 (30) (56.6)
N[ Qoo 1= = 1110 [T 00311 604 557 47 8.4
OPErating EXPENSES ......c.cccviiiriiiiie s 577 591 (14) (2.4)
L (LIS I o = (0 = - $ 27 $ 3 % 61 *

* Not meaningful.
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Our RBWM segment reported improved results during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014. Profit (loss) before tax
improved $30 million during the three months ended June 30, 2014, driven by higher interest income and higher other operating
income. Profit before tax improved $61 million during the six months ended June 30, 2014, driven by higher other operating
income, lower loan impairment charges and lower operating expenses, partially offset by lower net interest income.

Net interest income reflects an $11 million release of accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions which were settled with
the taxing authorities in the second quarter of 2014. Excluding this item, net interest income was lower during the three and six
months ended June 30, 2014 due to lower deposit levels partially offset by margin improvements due to active repricing of the
deposit base especially in the non-premier ssgmentswhich reduced our funding costs. Residential mortgage average balanceswere
slightly lower resulting from higher portfolio prepaymentsin the prior year. Also impacting net interest incomein the current year
arelower spreadson newly originated loanswhich reflectscompetitive pressuresand thelower risk profileof our Premier customers.

Other operating income increased in the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 driven by lower provisions for mortgage loan
repurchase obligations associated with previously sold |oans due to arel ease of reservesin the first quarter of 2014 due primarily
to a settlement with FHLM C which settled our liability for substantially all loans sold to FHLMC compared with increases to the
repurchase liability in the prior year periods. Thiswas partially offset by lower gains on sales of mortgage loans and, in the year-
to-date period, lower net hedged mortgage servicing rights results.

In the second quarter of 2013, we recorded an incremental |oan impairment charge of $15 million to reflect an update to the period
of time after aloss event areal estate |loan remains current before delinquency is observed. Excluding thisitem, loan impairment
charges were higher during the three months ended June 30, 2014 driven primarily by increased | oss estimates associ ated with the
remediation of certain mortgage servicing activities and higher losses associated with advances made on behalf of borrowers. In
the year-to-date period, the increased charges during the quarter were more than offset by continued improvements in economic
and credit conditions including lower delinquency levels on accounts less than 180 days contractually delinquent, improvements
in delinquency roll rates and lower charge-offs, including improvements in market value adjustments on loan collateral due to
improvements in home prices.

Operating expenses were lower in the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 primarily due to decreasesin expenses driven by
several cost reduction initiatives relating to our retail branch network, primarily optimizing staffing and administrative areas.
Partially offsetting these improvements were higher risk and compliance costs, and, in the year-to-date period, an increase in our
estimate of compensatory fees payable to GSEs due, in part, to the exclusion of these exposures from the FHLMC settlement
discussed above.

Commercial Banking ("CMB') CMB'sgoal isto be the leading international trade and business bank in the U.S. CMB strives
to execute this vision and strategy by focusing on key markets with high concentration of internationally minded customers. Our
CMB segment serves the markets through three client groups, notably Corporate Banking, Business Banking and Commercial
Real Estate which allows usto align our resourcesin order to efficiently deliver suitable products and services based on our client's
needs. Whether itisthrough commercial centers, theretail branch network, or viaHSBCnet, CM B providescustomerswith products
and services needed to grow their businesses internationally and delivers those products and services through its relationship
managers who operate within a robust, customer focused compliance and risk culture and collaborate across HSBC to capture a
larger percentage of arelationship. Anincreasein the number of relationship managers and product partnersis enabling usto gain
alarger presencein key growth markets, including the West Coast, Southeast and Midwest. Thisstrategy hasalso led to areduction
in certain Business Banking customers who do not have significant international needs.

New loan originations have resulted in a 31 percent increase in quarter-to-date average loans outstanding to Corporate Banking
customers since the second quarter of 2013. The Commercia Real Estate group isfocusing on selective business opportunitiesin
markets where we have strong portfolio expertise, which reflectsin a 16 percent increase in quarter-to-date average outstanding
loans for this portfolio since the second quarter of 2013. Total quarter-to-date average loans increased 22 percent acrossall CMB
business lines as compared with the second quarter of 2013.
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The following table summarizes the IFRSs results for our CMB segment:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

NEL INLErESE INCOIME........oiieiieereree et $ 202 $ 172 % 30 17.4 %

Other OpErating INCOIME..........curieirieeirieerree et sr e 64 77 (13) (16.9)

Total OPErating INCOME........c.coiierirerereeieee e 266 249 17 6.8

L0an impairment Charges..........ooeeereereereere et 83 1 82 *

Net OPErating INCOIME.........c.oiiiiiiiiree s 183 248 (65) (26.2)

OPErating EXPENSES .....coveeerereerereerereesesreie e st se e se s seereseereseeresaesesresesrenesnenens 174 171 3 18

Profit DEFOIE 18X ........ceviececicicsc s $ 9 $ 77 $ (68)  (88.3)%

Increase (Decrease)

Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
NEL INLErESt INCOME........ccoiiiciiii $ 38 $ 342 % 47 13.7 %
Other 0perating iNCOME..........cooiiiiiiiiirrr e 132 142 (10) (7.0
Total OPErating INCOME.......vceiieerrierrie ettt 521 484 37 7.6
Loan impairment CREIgES. ........ccovv i 90 15 75 *
NEt OPErating INCOIME .......c.oiriiirieerereete ettt 431 469 (38) (8.1)
OPErating EXPENSES .....c.vveerereeeeeeresee s s e r e see s s 332 333 1) (-3
Profit DEFOrE taX......coveveeiereieeee et $ 99 $ 136 $ (37) (27.2)%

* Not meaningful.

Our CMB segment reported alower profit before tax during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, driven by lower other
operating income and higher loan impairment charges, partially offset by higher net interest income.

Net interest incomeincreased in the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 due to the favorable impact of higher |oan balances,
primarily in key growth markets, aswell as arelease of accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions which were settled with
the taxing authorities during the second quarter. These increases were partially offset by lower yields on newly originated loans
and, to alesser extent, loan repricing.

Other operating income was lower during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 due to the non-recurrence of asset sales
incommercial rea estateinthe prior year period and lower trade revenuesfrom managing risk with trading counterparties. Partially
offsetting were higher fees generated from an increase in credit commitments and higher Global Banking and Markets ("GB&M")
collaboration income due to an increase in debt and leverage acquisition financing activity.

Loan impairment charges were higher during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 largely due to arevision to certain
estimates used in our commercial loan impairment calculation which resulted in aloan impairment charge of approximately $72
million during the second quarter of 2014, aswell as higher charges due to loan growth and, in the three month period, increased
levels of reservesfor risk factors associated with emerging markets loan exposures.

Operating expenses increased during the three months ended June 30, 2014, driven by higher expense associated with variable
compensation accrualsand higher corporate function cost all ocations, while operating expenseswereflat in the year-to-date period.

Global Banking and Markets Our GB& M business segment supportsHSBC'semerging markets-led and financing-focused gl obal
strategy by leveraging the HSBC Group's advantages and scale, strength in devel oped and emerging markets and product expertise
in order to focus on delivering international productsto U.S. clients and local productsto international clients, with New York as
the hub for the Americas business, including Canada and Latin America. GB&M provides tailored financial solutions to major
government, corporate and institutional clientsaswell asprivateinvestorsworldwide. GB&M clients are served by sector-focused
teams that bring together relationship managers and product specialists to develop financial solutions that meet individual client
needs. With afocuson providing client connectivity between the emerging marketsand devel oped markets, GB& M aimsto develop
a comprehensive understanding of each client’s financial requirements with a long-term relationship management approach. In
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additionto GB& M clients, GB&M workswith RBWM, CMB and Private Banking ("PB") to meet their domestic and international
banking needs.

Within client-focused business lines, GB& M offers afull range of capabilities, including:

* Banking and financing solutions for corporate and institutional clients, including loans, working capital, trade services,
payments and cash management, and leveraged and acquisition finance; and

* A markets business with 24-hour coverage and knowledge of world-wide local markets which provides services in credit
and rates, foreign exchange, precious metals trading, equities and securities services.

Also included in our GB&M segment is Balance Sheet Management, which is responsible for managing liquidity and funding
under the supervision of our Asset and Liability Management Committee. Balance Sheet Management al so manages our structural
interest rate position within alimit structure.

We continue to target U.S. companies with international banking requirements and foreign companies with banking needs in the
Americas. Consistent with our global strategy, we are also focused on identifying opportunitiesto cross-sell our productsto CMB
and RBWM customers. Furthermore, we have seen higher corporate loan balances compared with the prior year. During the six
months ended June 30, 2014 U.S. financial market conditions reflected continued low interest rates and generally less volatile
credit spreads and foreign exchange prices, however average precious metals prices fell compared with the prior year periods.

The following table summarizes |FRSs results for the GB& M segment:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

NEL iNtErest iNCOME........cocviiiiieiiic s $ 109 $ 125 $ (16) (12.8)%

Other operating iINCOME.........ccviiiiiiii s 151 295 (144) (48.8)

Total Operating iNCOME™..........rrrvvirrrereeeesseeeseesss e ssess s sssssss 260 420 (160)  (38.1)

Loan impairment ChargesS........coooeeeererenire st 40 6 34 *

Net OpPErating INCOME ........ccviieiereceeeee s r e e nesre e e 220 414 (194) (46.9)

OPErating EXPENSES .......c.cucvieiiiisiisi s 239 250 (12) (4.4)

Profit (10SS) DEfOre taX..........coveviciiiciiciic s $ (199 $ 164 $ (183) *

Increase (Decrease)

Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

NEL INEEIESE INCOME......cueieeeeeeeeceeeeee et $ 206 $ 234 $ (28 (12.00%

Other operating iNCOME..........coueieieeee et e e s sresresresnesnens 445 677 (232) (34.3)

Total Operating iNCOME™............oovereeeeeeeeeeees s ees s 651 911 (260)  (28.5)

Loan impairment Charges........cooveereerne et 55 9 46 *

N[ Q0o 1= = 1110 [T o103 1= 596 902 (306) (33.9

OPErating EXPENSES ...c.veveeerereetereeresiesestesesseessesessessssesessesesseseesessesessesessasessessssenens 478 480 (2 (4

Profit DEfOIE taX ... .eueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 118 $ 422 $ (304) (72.0)%

* Not meaningful.

110



HSBC USA Inc.

@ Thefollowing table summarizes the impact of key activities on the total operating income of the GB&M segment:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(in millions)

CTEAID ..ot eeess st $ (10) $ 34 3 (44) *

RELES. ..o s 34 34 — —

Foreign Exchange and Metals 66 98 (32) (32.7)

Equities (11) 20 (31) *
Total GlODAl MEAKELS........c.coeiiicieiriteie bbb 79 186 (207) (57.5)
Capital FINANCING ... 55 61 (6) (9.8
Payments and Cash ManagemeNt ...........cvrerrireriririnireresiseses s 87 84 3 3.6
Securities Services 3 3 — —
Global Trade and Receivables Finance 12 9 3 333
Balance Sheet Management® ...............cooovvvooeeeeooeeeeeeeeeeeee e seeeesesesees s senes e 33 83 (50) (60.2)
Debit Valuation AQJUSIMENL............ccruiiieicieieiice et (13) (14) 1 71
ONEI e e 4 8 ) (50.0)
Total OPErating INCOME........cuiviuiieieieieieieieieie ittt $ 260 $ 420 $ (160) (38.1)%

Increase (Decrease)
Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

CrEIt® ...t $ 26 % 5 $ (33) (55.9)%

RELES. ... e e et n s 92 83 9 10.8

Foreign EXchange @and MELalS...........ceuveerrrieinneieeccse ettt 143 191 (48) (25.1)

EQUITIES ..voovvvvveeessne st sss sttt (10) 15 (25) *
Total GlODAl MAKELS........o.ceeeeicieiriteie st 251 348 97) (27.9)
Capital FINANCING ... 117 114 3 2.6
Payments and Cash ManagemMeN ... sesesesessesessessesssenes 172 162 10 6.2
SECUMTIES SEIVICES ...t s 6 7 1) (14.3)
Global Trade and Receivables FINANCE............cocceiiiiiiiiiciicee s 23 22 1 45
Balance Sheet Management®.............cccccvrvocverrssssiiosnnnssssssssenssssssssessssssssoseeess 97 245 (148) (60.4)
Debit Valuation AQJUSEMENL.........ccovimiici s (13) 7 (20) *
ONEN™ ettt st © 6 €) *
Total OPEratiNng INCOME.......ceuieeererreieerer et $ 651 $ 911 % (260) (28.5)%

* Not meaningful.

Credit includes losses of $9 million and gains of $26 million in the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively, compared with gains of
$35 million and $66 million in the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, respectively, of operating income related to structured credit products
and mortgage loans held for sale which we no longer offer.

®  Includes |osses on the sale of securities of $7 million and gains of $16 million in the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively,
compared with gains on the sale of securities of $23 million and $154 million in the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, respectively.

@ Other includes corporate funding charges and earnings on capital.

Our GB& M segment reported alower profit before tax during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, driven primarily by
lower trading revenue and lower gains on security sales within other operating income, as well as, lower net interest income and
higher loan impairment charges, partially offset by lower operating expenses.

Credit revenue decreased during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 from the performance of legacy credit products.
Changesin the fair value of legacy structured credit products resulted in losses of $6 million and gains of $24 million during the
three and six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively, compared with gains of $28 million and $55 million during the three and
six months ended June 30, 2013, respectively. Included in the changesin fair value from structured credit products were decreases
infair valueof $4 millionandincreasesinfair value of $12 million during thethreeand six monthsended June 30, 2014, respectively,
related to exposures to monoline insurance companies, compared with increases of $21 million and $41 million during the three
and six months ended June 30, 2013, respectively. Credit revenue also included valuation losses of $2 million and less than $1
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million during thethree and six monthsended June 30, 2014, respectively, related to thefair value of sub-primeresidential mortgage
loans held for sale compared with valuation gains of $6 million and $8 million during the three and six months ended June 30,
2013, respectively. Revenue from Ratesincreased during the year-to-date period due primarily to higher deal activity in emerging
markets related derivatives. Foreign Exchange and Metal s revenue declined during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014
from adeclinein metalsrelated client trading and lower fees. The decrease in Equities during the three and six months ended June
30, 2014 was driven by the impact of fair value adjustments on certain equity linked structured note liabilities, which were rel ated
to movements in our own credit spreads.

Capital Financing revenues benefited from increased corporate and asset backed lending during the three and six months ended
June 30, 2014. Theseincreased revenueswere more than offset by increased hedging costs during the three month period. Payments
and Cash Management revenue increased due to higher average deposit balances and higher income from transaction related
services.

Balance Sheet Management reflected lower gains from the sales of securities during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014,
partially offset by higher net interest income resulting from higher average investment balances.

Debit valuation adjustments on derivative liabilities decreased during the six months ended June 30, 2014, which reflected a
tightening of our spreads relative to 2013.

Loan impairment charges were higher during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 due to arevision to certain estimates
used in our commercial loan impairment calculation which resulted in aloan impairment charge of approximately $20 million
during the second quarter of 2014, aswell as higher expected |0ss on asingle name exposure and, to alesser extent, the revaluation
of aloan held for sale.

Operating expenses decreased during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 due primarily dueto lower performance based
compensation accruals which is correlated to the reduction in operating income.

Private Banking PB provides wealth management, business and family succession solutions to high net worth individuals and
familieswith local and international needs. Accessing the most suitable products from the marketplace, PB works with its clients
to offer tailored, coordinated and innovative waysto manage and preserve weal th while optimizing returns. PB, asaglobal business,
offers a wide range of products and services, including banking, liquidity management, investment services, custody, tailored
lending, trust and fiduciary services, family wealth and philanthropy advisory services. PB also works to ensure that its clients
have access to other products and services available throughout the HSBC Group, such as credit cards and investment banking,
to deliver total solutions for their financial and banking needs.

PB strategy is concentrated on three main areas: growth, streamlining and global standard. Areas of focus are banking and cash
management, investment advice including discretionary portfolio management, investment and structured products, residential
mortgages, as well as wealth planning and trusts services.

Client deposit level sdecreased $300 million or 3 percent compared with June 30, 2013 mainly frominternational market customers.
Total loans increased $250 million or 4 percent compared with the prior year from commercial and industrial, and residential
mortgage portfolios. Overall period end client assets were lower than June 30, 2013 by $600 million and $440 million lower than
December 31, 2013 primarily due to reductions in highly active institutional custody customer balances and deposits, partially
offset by higher PB wealth management and investment products.

The following table provides additional information regarding client assets during the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
(in millions)

Client assets at beginning of thE PEITOU.............c.oveeeeeeeeee e $ 44661 $ 46461
INEL NEW IMONEY ......cviitietiie ittt et et te s te st et e bese e s ese e e eaeeseeaeebeebestesbestetesteseensensensensenenas (1,454) (1,672
RV 0 T= o 7= o =P 1,008 16

Client assets at €nd Of PEITOM...........c.oveueuieiieeiereeeeee ettt ettt as e s seneas $ 44215 $ 44,805
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The following table summarizes |FRSs results for the PB segment.

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

NEL INEEIESE INCOME. ... .ot ittt ettt te e s e eae e sae s eebeeeneeenres $ 56 $ 49 $ 7 14.3%
Other OpErating INCOIME..........cureirieirieerree et 25 30 (5) (16.7)
Total OPErating INCOME........c.coiieiireiere e 81 79 2 25
Loan impairment charges (FECOVEITES) ......cuverirereriirieiesie e e — — — —
Net OPErating INCOME ......c.oveiiirereereee et 81 79 2 25
OPErating EXPENSES ...c.ceeeerererereresesese st se sttt st sttt sttt sttt sttt 61 67 (6) (9.0
0 T Ll 1= [0 (= = $ 20 $ 12 $ 8 66.7%

Increase (Decrease)

Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

NEL INLEreSt INCOME........ccoiiiciiiiir $ 105 $ 94 $ 11 11.7%

Other 0perating iNCOME..........coviiiiiiiirrr e 50 58 (8) (13.8)

Total OPErating INCOME.......vcvrieerrierrieer ettt 155 152 3 2.0

Loan impairment charges (TECOVENIES) ... ) 1 (6) *

NEt OPErating INCOIME .......c.eiriiireierere ettt e 160 151 9 6.0

OPErating EXPENSES .....c.vveerereeeeeereseere e s nes 116 127 (12) (8.7)

Profit DEfOre taX..........ccoveiiiiciiici $ 44 $ 24 $ 20 83.3%

* Not meaningful.

Our PB segment reported higher profit before tax during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 driven by higher net interest
income, lower loan impairment charges and lower operating expenses, partially offset by lower other operating income.

Net interest income was higher in the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 due to improved volumesin lending and liquidity
premiums on deposits, partially offset by lower net interest from reduced demand deposit and time deposit balances.

Other operating income was lower during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 mainly due to reductionsin other income
from affiliates and custody product fees.

Loan impairment chargeswere flat during the three months ended June 30, 2014 and decreased during the year-to-date period due
to releases of reserves due to loan pay downs and, in the year-to-date period, a recovery related to the payoff of atroubled debt
restructuring loan.

Operating expenses decreased during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 primarily dueto lower incentive compensation
expense as well as reduced indirect and intercompany costs.

Other The other segment primarily includes adjustments made at the corporate level for fair value option accounting related to
credit risk on certain debt issued, income and expense associated with certain affiliate transactions, adjustments to the fair value
on HSBC shares held for stock plans, interest expense associated with certain tax exposures and, prior to 2014, the economic
benefits from investing in low income housing tax credit investments.
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The following table summarizes |FRSs Basis results for the Other segment:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Net interest iNCOME (EXPENSE) ....c.ceveererirrereee ettt sttt $ 78 $ (14) $ 92 *
Gain (loss) on own fair value option debt attributable to credit spread................ (46) 53 (99) *
Other operating iNCOME..........coviveiiieiiieiie s 8 15 ) (46.7)
Total OPErating INCOME........cvveieuiuiiririereicc b 40 54 (14) (25.9)
Loan impairment Charges........coooeereeeree e e — — — —
Net OPErating INCOME ........cviiiiiii s 40 54 (14) (25.9)
OPEratiNg EXPENSES ...ueeveeetereetereete st sttt sttt ettt sttt se et seebeseebesaebeseeseseenesaeneas 28 22 6 27.3
Profit DEfOre taX.........cociuiiciiiiici i $ 12 % 32 $ (20 (62.5)%

Increase (Decrease)

Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Net interest iNCOME (EXPENSE) .......cucvrerreirerereeee s $ 65 $ (28) $ 93 *
Gain (loss) on own fair value option debt attributable to credit spread............... (27) 11 (38) *
Other operating iNCOME..........ccoiiiiiiiiirr e 14 40 (26) (65.0)
Total OPErating INCOME........vceiieeriierrie ettt 52 23 29 *
Loan impairment Charges........coooeereerne e e — — — —
Net operating income 52 23 29 *
OPErating EXPENSES .....c.vveurerieeieereseeree e e se s s s nes 53 43 10 23.3
LOSSEFOME taX ...ttt $ 1 % (20) 19 95.0 %

* Not meaningful.

Net interest income reflects an $87 million release of accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions which were settled with
the taxing authorities in the second quarter of 2014. Excluding this item, profit (loss) before tax decreased during the three and
six months ended June 30, 2014 primarily due to losses associated with changes in the fair value of our own debt for which fair
value option was el ected and rel ated derivatives and increased operating expenses which reflects afavorable fringe rate adjustment
in the prior year. The current year periods also reflect lower net revenues from low income housing tax credit investments as, due
to the significant involvement required by the business to manage the investments, afee arrangement isin place in 2014 to share
the net revenue of the investments with CMB and GB&M.

Reconciliation of Segment Results Aspreviously discussed, segment resultsarereported onan | FRSsbasis. For segment reporting
purposes, intersegment transactions have not been eliminated, and we generally account for transactions between segments as if
they were with third parties. Also see Note 14, "Business Segments,” in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for
areconciliation of our IFRSs segment resultsto U.S. GAAP consolidated totals.
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Credit Quality

In the normal course of business, we enter into a variety of transactions that involve both on and off-balance sheet credit risk.
Principal among these activities is lending to various commercial, institutional, governmental and individual customers. We
participate in lending activity throughout the U.S. and, on alimited basis, internationally.

Allowance for Credit Losses Commercial |oans are monitored on a continuous basis with aformal assessment completed, at a
minimum, annually. As part of this process, a credit grade and Loss Given Default are assigned and an allowance is established
for these loans based on a probability of default estimate associated with each credit grade under the allowance for credit losses
methodol ogy. Credit Review, an independent second line of defense function, providesan ongoing assessment of lending activities
that includes independently assessing credit grades and Loss Given Default estimates. When it is deemed probable based upon
known facts and circumstances that full interest and principal on an individual loan will not be collected in accordance with its
contractual terms, theloanisconsideredimpaired. Animpairment reserveisthen established based on the present val ue of expected
future cash flows, discounted at the loan's original effectiveinterest rate, or as a practical expedient, the loan's observable market
price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. Updated appraisals for collateral dependent loans are
generally obtained only when such loans are considered troubled and the frequency of such updates are generally based on
management judgment under the specific circumstances on a case-by-case basis. In addition, loss reserves on commercial loans
are maintained to reflect our judgment of portfolio risk factors which may not be fully reflected in the reserve calculations.

Our credit gradesfor commercial loansalign with U.S. regulatory risk ratings and are mapped to our probability of default master
scale. These probability of default estimates are validated on an annual basis using back-testing of actual default rates and
benchmarking of theinternal ratingswith external rating agency datalike Standard and Poor'sratingsand default rates. Substantially
all appraisals in connection with commercial real estate |oans are ordered by the independent real estate appraisal review unit at
HSBC. The appraisal must be reviewed and accepted by thisunit. For loansgreater than $250,000, an appraisal isgenerally ordered
when the loan is classified as Substandard as defined by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (the "OCC"). On average,
it takes approximately four weeks from the time the appraisal is ordered until it is completed and the values accepted by HSBC's
independent appraisal review unit. Subsequent provisions or charge-offs are completed shortly thereafter, generally within the
quarter in which the appraisal isreceived.

In situations where an external appraisal is not used to determine the fair value of the underlying collateral of impaired loans,
current information such asrent rollsand operating statements of the subject property are reviewed and presented in a standardized
format. Operating results such as net operating income and cash flows before and after debt service are established and reported
with relevant ratios. Third-party market datais gathered and reviewed for relevance to the subject collateral. Datais also collected
from similar properties within the portfolio. Actual sales levels of properties, operating income and expense figures and rental
data on a square foot basis are derived from existing loans and, when appropriate, used as comparables for the subject property.
Property specific data, augmented by market data research, is used to project a stabilized year of income and expense to create a
10-year cash flow model to be discounted at appropriate ratesto present value. These valuations are then used to determine if any
impairment on the underlying loans exists and an appropriate allowance is recorded when warranted.

For loans identified as troubled debt restructurings ("TDR Loans"), an allowance for credit losses is maintained based on the
present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans' original effective interest rate or in the case of certain loans
which are solely dependent on the collateral for repayment, the estimated fair value of the collateral less costs to sell. The
circumstancesin which we perform aloan modification involving aTDR loan at athen current market interest rate for aborrower
with similar credit risk would include other changes to the terms of the original |oan made as part of the restructure (e.g. principal
reductions, collateral changes, etc.) in order for the loan to be classified asa TDR Loan.

For poolsof homogeneousconsumer receivablesand certain small businessloanswhich do not qualify astroubl ed debt restructures,
probable losses are estimated using aroll rate migration analysis that estimates the likelihood that a loan will progress through
the various stages of delinquency, or buckets, and ultimately charge-off based upon recent historical performance experience of
other loansin our portfolio. This migration analysis incorporates estimates of the period of time between aloss occurring and the
confirming event of its charge-off. Thisanalysis considers delinquency status, |oss experience and severity and takes into account
whether loansarein bankruptcy or have been subject to account management actions, such asthere-age of accountsor modification
arrangements. The allowance for credit losses on consumer receivables also takes into consideration the loss severity expected
based on the underlying collateral, if any, for theloan inthe event of default based on historical and recent trendswhich are updated
monthly based on arolling average of several months' data using the most recently available information and is typicaly in the
range of 30-55 percent for first lien mortgage loans and 95-100 percent for second lien home equity loans. At June 30, 2014,
approximately 1 percent of our second lien mortgages wherethefirst lien mortgageisheld or serviced by us and has adelinquency
status of 90 days or more delinquent, were less than 90 days delinquent and not considered to be a troubled debt restructure or
aready recorded at fair value less coststo sell.
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Theroll rate methodology isamigration analysis based on contractual delinquency and rolling average historical loss experience
which captures the increased likelihood of an account migrating to charge-off as the past due status of such account increases.
Theroll rate models used were developed by tracking the movement of delinquencies by age of delinquency by month (bucket)
over a specified time period. Each "bucket" represents a period of delinquency in 30-day increments. The roll from the last
delinquency bucket results in charge-off. Contractual delinquency is a method for determining aging of past due accounts based
on the status of payments under the loan. Theroll percentages are converted to reserve requirements for each delinquency period
(i.e., 30 days, 60 days, etc.). Average roll rates are developed to avoid temporary aberrations caused by seasonal trends in
delinquency experienced by some product types. We have determined that a 12-month average roll rate balances the desire to
avoid temporary aberrations, while at the same time analyzing recent historical data. The cal culations are performed monthly and
are done consistently from period to period. We regularly monitor our portfolio to evaluate the period of time utilized in our roll
rate migration analysis and perform aformal review on an annual basis. In addition, loss reserves on consumer receivables are
maintained to reflect our judgment of portfolio risk factors which may not be fully reflected in the statistical roll rate calculation.

Our alowance for credit losses methodology and our accounting policies related to the allowance for credit losses are presented
infurther detail under the caption " Critical Accounting Policiesand Estimates' andin Note 2, " Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies and New Accounting Pronouncements," in our 2013 Form 10-K. Our approach toward credit risk management is
summarized under the caption "Risk Management" in our 2013 Form 10-K. There have been no significant revisionsto our policies
or methodol ogies during the first half of 2014.

The following table sets forth the allowance for credit losses for the periods indicated:

June 30, March 31, December 31,

2014 2014 2013
(dollars are in millions)

AHOWANCE FOF CrEAIT IOSSES ......oceeeeeeeeeeeceeeeee ettt ettt ettt e et eaeeaeeae e $ 624 $ 574 $ 606
Ratio of Allowance for credit losses to: -
Loans.®
L0 01100 - 7% .6% .6%
Consumer:

ReSIdeNntial MOMGAgES ......coveveerierieie ettt ettt st s 0.9 1.0 1.2

HOMeE eqUIty MOIGAJES .......c.coirirerieiiie s 2.2 2.7 2.4

Credit Card reCaIVADIES........coiecceeceesee e 5.7 6.6 5.9

Other CONSUMEN [0NS........c.cccuieiieiecee ettt sttt et sreesbe e e saeeaeesreennas 2.3 2.7 25

TOtal CONSUMEN [OANS......c.cceeuieieieeiese e steste e s ettt besaesa e e ae e e e e e e e eneeresreens 1.3 14 16
TOMaL. ettt ettt ettt et ebeehe b e beebeebeeheebesbesae s entent et eateaeeneeneere et ns .9% .8% .9%
Net charge-offs?®@:

(000107 o - SR 1,367.9% 317.5% 513.3%
L0 1S 1 1= R 215.2 274.2 301.0
o] - OO R 445.7% 295.9% 381.1%

Nonperforming loans'®:
(040101 (o | TSRSRRR 375.5% 246.4% 118.5%
L0 1S 1 1= T 24.8 26.3 28.3

LI L= T oSO U TSP TSP 58.2% 50.6% 46.1%

@ Ratios exclude loans held for sale as these loans are carried at the lower of cost or fair value.
@ Quarter-to-date net charge-offs, annualized.

See Note 5, "Allowance for Credit Losses," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for a rollforward of credit
losses by general 1oan categories for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013.

Theallowancefor credit losses at June 30, 2014 increased $50 million or 9 percent as compared with March 31, 2014 and increased
$18 million or 3 percent as compared with December 31, 2013, due to higher loss estimates in our commercial loan portfolio
partially offset by lower loss estimates in our consumer loan portfolio.
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Our commercia allowance for credit losses increased $75 million or 24 percent as compared with both March 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013 primarily duetoarevisionto certain estimatesused in our commercial |oanimpairment cal cul ation asdiscussed
above. Excluding this item, our commercial allowance for credit losses remained higher due to increased levels of reserves for
risk factors not fully reflected in the statistical reserve calculation, including emerging markets loan exposure, as well as higher
allowances associated with loan growth. Partially offsetting these increases were continued improvements in economic and credit
conditions which led to lower nonperforming loans and criticized asset levels and, in the year-to-date period, managed reductions
in certain loan exposures and improvements in the circumstances of certain customer relationships.

Our consumer alowance for credit losses decreased $25 million or 9 percent as compared with March 31, 2014 and decreased
$57 million or 19 percent as compared with December 31, 2013. The decreases in both periods were driven primarily by lower
loss estimates in our residential mortgage loan portfolio due to an improvement in home prices and continued improvements in
credit quality including lower delinquency levels and improvements in loan delinquency roll rates. These improvements were
partially offset in the three month period by increased | oss estimates associated with the remediation of certain mortgage servicing
activities. Our residential mortgage loan allowance for credit losses in both periods reflects consideration of certain risk factors
relating to trends such as recent portfolio performance as compared with average roll rates and economic uncertainty, including
housing market trends and foreclosure timeframes. Also contributing to the decrease was a lower allowance for credit losses for
our credit card portfolio due to improved economic conditions, including lower dollars of delinquency, improvements in
delinquency roll ratesand lower receivablelevels. Reservelevelsfor all consumer |oan categories however continueto beimpacted
by the slow pace of the economic recovery in the U.S. economy, including elevated unemployment rates and, as it relates to
residential mortgage loans, a housing market which isin the early stages of recovery.

The allowance for credit losses as a percentage of total loans at June 30, 2014 increased as compared with March 31, 2014 and
was flat as compared with December 31, 2013 for the reasons discussed above.

Theallowancefor credit |osses as a percentage of net charge-offsincreased as compared with March 31, 2014 largely dueto lower
dollars of commercial |oan net charge-offs, while the overall allowancefor credit |ossesincreased. The allowancefor credit losses
as a percentage of net charge-offsincreased as compared with December 31, 2013 driven by lower dollars of commercial loan net
charge-offs which outpaced the increase in total allowance levels.

The following table presents the allowance for credit losses by major loan categories, excluding loans held for sale:

% of % of % of
Loans to Loans to Loans to
Total Total Total
Amount  Loans®  Amount  Loans®  Amount  Loans®
June 30, 2014 March 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
(dollars are in millions)
COMMETCIAI®P ... $ 383 735% $ 308  724% $ 308 71.6%
Consumer:
Residential MOrtgages. ........covererereenieeereeeeereee e 149 223 156 23.1 186 23.4
HOme equity MOMQagES. .....cervevererrireeerieerieeree s 42 2.7 52 2.8 49 3.0
Credit card recalVabIES.........ccoeieeeceieceeceeeee e 39 9 45 1.0 50 1.3
OthEr CONSUMET .....ccveeiericeeeecete e steeeeeeetesste et s steesreessae s sbesseeesree s 11 6 13 7 13 7
TOtAl CONSUMET ......eeeiiriieceeie ettt e s eare e s s be e s s sbeeesanes 241 26.5 266 27.6 298 28.4

TOLA et $ 624 100.0% $ 574 100.0% $ 606 100.0%

@ Excluding loans held for sale.

@ SeeNote5, "Allowance for Credit Losses," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for components of the commercial allowance for credit
losses.

While our alowance for credit loss is available to absorb lossesin the entire portfolio, we specifically consider the credit quality
and other risk factors for each of our products in establishing the allowance for credit loss.
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Reserves for Off-Balance Sheet Credit Risk Wealso maintain aseparate reservefor credit risk associated with certain commercial
off-balance sheet exposures, including letters of credit, unused commitments to extend credit and financial guarantees. The
following table summarizes this reserve, which is included in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet. The related
provision is recorded as a component of other expense within operating expenses.

June 30, March 31, December 31,
2014 2014 2013

Off-balance ShEet Cradit FSK FESEIVE .......iiiveeceecee et s saeesbee e $ 68 66 $ 60

Theincreasein off-balance sheet reserves at June 30, 2014 as compared with both March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 largely
reflects new customer activity and higher estimated exposures on certain facilities. Off-balance sheet exposures are summarized
under the caption "Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements, Credit Derivatives and Other Contractual Obligations' inthisMD&A.

Delinquency Thefollowing table summarizesdollarsof two-months-and-over contractual delinquency and two-months-and-over
contractual delinquency as a percent of total loans and loans held for sale ("delinquency ratio"):

June 30, March 31, December 31,
2014 2014 2013

(dollars are in millions)

Delinquent loans:

COMIMETCIAL ...ttt et sttt et e eae et e eaeeebeeasesaeessesaeebesaaesbeeaaebenneenes $ 1010 $ 120 $ 135
Consumer:
Residential MOMQAgES.........ceureermrrereirerreeeres et 1,086 1,132 1,208
Home equity MOMQagES. ......c.ccuiiiiiic s 59 59 68
Total residential MOrGAgES Y@ ... 1.145 1,191 1276
Credit Card reCaIVADIES..........ccci i e e 15 19 21
(@1 0TS 001010 101 GRS 15 17 19
TOLAl CONSUMEN ......oiuiieecticteste st e te st et se et e e e e e ese s e e re st e s tesaesbesteseessentesessensensennennesens 1,175 1,227 1,316
TOMAL ..ottt ettt ettt ettt et aeeae e eteebeebeebeebeeteereatentetententeneeneens $1276 $ 1347 $ 1451
Delinquency ratio: -
(00010101 (o= RS .19% .24% .28%
Consumer:
ReSIdential MOMGAgES..........cvrveereeerierieee ettt 6.73 7.10 7.59
HOME EQUILY MOMJAOES. .....eeuerveeireeiirieirieeeiesie sttt bbb 3.08 3.04 3.38
Total residential MOMGAGESD ............ovveeeeeeeeceeeeeeeeeeeee e eeesseeseses s seesesaees 6.34 6.66 7.11
Credit Card reCaIVADIES..........coiiiice e 2.20 2.78 2.46
(@191 g eTo 1S T 10 1= SRR 2.78 311 3.32
TOLAl CONSUMEN ......eveieeetesieseestes e seesee e e se e e e e e e esesse s e ssestesaesaeseestesaessensensenennsenennnennesens 6.10 6.42 6.80
o 7= PO PSRR SO 1.76% 1.93% 2.14%

@ AtJune 30, 2014, March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, residential mortgage loan delinquency includes $983 million, $1,041 million and $1,074 million,
respectively, of loans that are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less costs to sell, including $18 million, $22 million and
$27 million, respectively, relating to loans held for sale.

@ Thefollowing table reflects dollars of contractual delinquency and delinquency ratios for interest-only loans and adjustable rate mortgage loans:
June 30, March 31, December 31,
2014 2014 2013
(dollars are in millions)

Dollars of delinquent loans:

INEENESE-ONIY TOBNS ... ottt ettt a et s s s s a et bbbt s s s st s s st et s s sns et s nsnaena $ 66 % 7% 58
ARM TOGNS ...ttt et st b bbb b e b e Rt £ A b e e b bR £ b Re e bkt e b e b b 302 323 304
Delinquency ratio:

INEEIESE-ONIY TOBNS ...ttt bbb bbbt ettt e b e et 1.81% 2.09% 1.59%
ARM TOGNS ...ttt et st b bbb b e b e Rt £ A b e e b bR £ b Re e bkt e b e b b 2.72 2.97 2.85
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Compared with March 31, 2014, our two-months-and-over contractual delinquency ratio decreased 17 basis pointsdriven by lower
dollars of two-months-and-over contractual delinquency in both our commercial and consumer loan portfolios and higher
outstanding loan balances primarily in our commercial loan portfolio. Our consumer loan two-month-and-over contractual
delinquency ratio at June 30, 2014 decreased 32 basis points from March 31, 2014 primarily due to lower levels of residential
mortgage loan delinquency and, to alesser extent, credit card loan delinquency, driven by continued improvements in economic
conditions, while total outstanding loan balances remained relatively flat. Residential mortgage loan delinquency levels however
continue to be impacted by an elongated foreclosure process which has resulted in loans which would otherwise have been
foreclosed and transferred to REO remaining in loan account and, consequently, in delinquency. Compared with March 31, 2014,
our commercial two-months-and-over contractual delinquency ratio decreased 5 basis points due to continued improvementsin
the credit quality of the portfolio and higher outstanding loan balances.

Compared with December 31, 2013, our two-months-and-over contractual delinquency ratio declined 38 basis points driven by
lower dollars of two-months-and-over contractual delinquency in both our commercial and consumer loan portfolios and higher
outstanding loan balances primarily in our commercial loan portfolio. Our consumer loan two-month-and-over contractual
delinquency ratio at June 30, 2014 decreased 70 basi s points from December 31, 2013 primarily dueto lower levels of residential
mortgage loan delinquency and, to alesser extent, credit card loan delinquency, driven by continued improvements in economic
conditions, while total outstanding loan balances remained relatively flat. Compared with December 31, 2013, our commercial
two-months-and-over contractual delinquency ratio decreased 9 basis points due to continued improvementsin the credit quality
of the portfolio, higher outstanding |oan balances and reductionsin certain loan exposuresincluding the charge-off of certain client
relationships.

Residential mortgage delinquency is significantly higher than home equity mortgage delinquency in all periodslargely dueto the
inventory of loans which are held at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell and are in the
foreclosure process. Given the extended foreclosure time lines, particularly in those states where HUSI has a large footprint, the
residential mortgage portfolio has a substantial inventory of loanswhich are greater than 180 days past due and have been written
down to the fair value of the collateral less cost to sell. Therefore, there are no additional credit loss reserves required for these
loans. There is a substantially lower volume of home equity mortgage loans where we pursue foreclosure less frequently given
the subordinate position of the lien. In addition, our legacy business originated through broker channels and loan transfers from
HSBC Financeis of alower credit quality and, therefore, contributes to an overall higher weighted average delinquency rate for
our residential mortgages. Both of these factors are expected to diminish in future periods as the foreclosure backlog resulting
from extended forecl osure time linesis managed down and the portfolio mix continuesto shift to higher quality loans asthe legacy
broker originated business and prior loan transfers run off.
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Net Charge-offs of Loans Thefollowingtablesummarizesnet charge-off (recovery) dollarsaswell asthenet charge-off (recovery)
of loans for the quarter, annualized, as a percentage of average loans, excluding loans held for sale, ("net charge-off ratio"):

June 30, March 31, June 30,
2014 2014 2013

(dollars are in millions)

Net Charge-off Dollars:

Commercial:
Construction and OthEr FEAl ESLALE .......c.cvvveueirerieerestreere ettt e e s s e seste e e s et e e e sesessseesenessssesesensenanens $ 5 $ 17 $ 8)
BUSINESS @Nd COMPOrate DANKING ......c.cviueiiireeteiteirie ettt sttt b et b e ebenan 5 2 8
GlODAl DANKING ..ot — 8 —
OthEr COMMEITIAL ...ttt ettt ettt b e sa e eb e be e eseetetessesessesseseebessenseseebensessssesneseesesens 3) 3 4
Total commercial 7 24 4
Consumer:
Residential mortgages....... - 14 14 10
Home equity mortgages. 2 @ 11
Total reSIAENtIal MOMTJAGES ... e v eveueerieieirirte sttt b ettt e et s b e b e et ebe s e s et et st b e b et se et e et sbebe st etenanens 16 13 21
Credit Card FECEIVANIES ........cuviiiieieieie ettt b bbb bbb bbb bbb bbbttt 10 10 10
ONEE COMSUITIEY ...ttt ettt b et e s s e e b e s b e st ne b e b e e e e e b e se e s eh e R e e e R e R e s e s e b e Rt ne e R e s et ne e b et s saeb et nreneneas 2 1 3
TOLAl CONSUIMEN ...ttt ettt sttt b et e st b b £ bRt e b b et ne e b e Rt £ e H b e £ e A e b e R £ e e bR e e b e b et ne e b et e b e b et et ebese e eee 28 24 34
10 = OO TSSOSO $ 35 $ 48 $ 30
NET Charge-0ff RALIO:.......c.ciieieieicieieie ettt ettt et a bbbt bbbt bbb b bbb et bbbt b et b e bt ebebebebebnbesesnsans
Commercia:
Construction and OtEr FEAl ESLALE ...........cvvieerrieeeerreie e 21% 75% (.38)%
BUSINESS @NA COMPOrate DANKING ......c.cviueiiireeietririeiereste ettt bbb bbb e nbenan 12 05 26
GlODAl DANKING ..ot — 15 —
Other commercial (.41) (.40) (.52)
TOUEl COMMEICIA ......ecveeteteiet ettt ettt bbbt e bbb bbb e bbb bbb b b e b b E bbb b b e bbb b bt bt es bt e st ebne bt enas .05 .20 (.04)
Consumer:
RESIAENTIAl MOMGAIES .......evviiieei bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb .35 .36 .25
HOME EQUITY MOTGAOES. .. ..veviveieieeeieieieie ettt bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb 42 (.20) 2.00
Total reSidential MOTGAJES .......c.cu vttt bbb b bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb s 36 30 A7
Credit Card FECEIVANIES ........ueiiiieieii et b bbb bbb bbb bbb bbbt 5.91 5.87 4.90
ONEE COMSUITIEY ...ttt ettt b et e s e e s e s b e st ne b e st e e e e b e s e e eh e R e e e A e R e R e s e b e Rt ne R e b e e ne e b et s naeb et nrenenna 1.65 81 2.05
TOLAl CONSUIMEN ...ttt etttk b et e st b b e b e Rt e b b e s e e b e Rt £ e H b e £ e A e R e R £ b e b e b e e b e b et ne e b et s e b e b et nt et e s e e ee .59 51 .70

.20% .29% 19 %

Our net charge-off ratio as a percentage of average loans decreased 9 basis points for the quarter ended June 30, 2014 compared
with the quarter ended March 31, 2014, due primarily to the sale or payoff of certain commercia exposures, largely in construction
and other real estate and global banking, which resulted in higher commercial |oan charge-offsin the prior quarter. This decrease
waspartially offset by anincreasein consumer loan net charge-offsdue primarily totherecovery of onelarge homeequity mortgage
loan exposure recorded in the prior quarter. Residential mortgage loan net charge-offs were flat as higher charge-offs associated
with corporate advances were offset by lower charge-offs due to continued improvements in economic conditions.

Compared with the year-ago quarter, our net charge-off ratio as a percentage of average loans remained relatively flat as higher
commercia loan charge-offs due to a higher level of recoveries reflected in the prior year were offset by lower charge-offsin
consumer loans, driven by lower home equity mortgage charge-offs, reflecting the impact of improved credit quality, including
lower delinquency levels experienced in prior quarters.
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Nonperforming Assets Nonperforming assets consisted of the following:

June 30, March 31, December 31,
2014 2014 2013

(dollars are in millions)

Nonaccrual loans:

Commercial:
Real Estate:
Construction and [and [0@NS...........ceeeririrneeenerreeesers et ssenens $ 17 $ 32 3 44
OtNEr TEAl BSEAIE ......ecvi ettt sttt 47 62 122
Business and corporate DanKing ...........coueere e e 28 21 21
GlODEl DANKING ... et s — — 65
Other COMMENCIAL .....c.veiueeieceeee ettt et be e e sre e e sreenesaeennens 2 3 2
ToOtal COMMEICIAL ......ccviieeciececteee ettt sb e e st s b e et e sbeenbeebeebeereennas 94 118 254
Consumer:
ReSIAENtial MOMQAgES......cveeerereee sttt st e e et e e e e eneeneens 879 912 949
HOME EQUILY MOIGAOES .....ccuerviriertietesie sttt s b bbbt s se e 69 71 77
Total residential MOrtGAGESY@® ...t eeenes 948 983 1,026
TOtA CONSUMES TOBNS......cueeeeiieiirieirie ettt bbb 948 983 1,026
Nonaccrual 10ans held for SAlE........oociriiiie s 65 79 25
Total NONACCIUING J0ANS.........ccoiiicice e e st $ 1,107 1,180 $ 1,305
Accruing loans contractually past due 90 days or more:
Commercial:
Business and corporate DanKing ..o 7 6 5
Other COMIMEICIAL .....c.civiieiiecieeeere bbb es 1 1 1
TOtAl COMMEICIA ...t ettt 8 7 6
Consumer:
Credit Card reCEIVADIES ..........coci e e e ee 11 14 14
OLNEE CONSUMIES ...ttt ettt sttt sttt st et e et e beeae e beeaeesbeeaeesaeennesreensesaneneens 11 13 14
TOtal CONSUMEY [OBNS.......coitiiieeitieie ettt ettt aesbe s sbe e b e sbeenbesbeenseebeenbeereennas 22 27 28
Total accruing loans contractually past due 90 days OF MOFe.........c.ccccvevirererenerienennn. 30 34 34
Total NONPErfOrmMINg l0ANS.........cccviiii e e 1,137 1,214 1,339
Other real SEAEE OWNEQ.........ooiiiiirere ettt sttt se e 47 47 47
Total NONPErTOrMING ASSELS......cciiuicieieciietece ettt st ae e $1184 $1261 $ 1,386
Allowance for credit losses as a percent of nonperforming loans'®: -
COMIMECIAL ...ttt ettt st e s e be s be et e s be e beere e beeaeesbesaeesaeennesreensesreensens 375.5% 246.4% 118.5%
CONSUIMIES ...ttt ettt r e e e e e e e s e st Rt eb e e bt s bt e Rt e R e s e se e b e b e se e e enn e e e e eneas 24.8 26.3 28.3

@ At June 30, 2014, March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, residential mortgage loan nonaccrual balances include $849 million, $853 million and $866
million, respectively, of loansthat are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell.

Nonaccrual residential mortgages includes all receivables which are 90 or more days contractually delinquent as well as loans discharged under Chapter 7
bankruptcy and not re-affirmed and second lien loans where the first lien loan that we own or service is 90 or more days contractually delinquent.

®  Residential mortgage nonaccrual loans for all periods does not include guaranteed loans purchased from the Government National Mortgage Association
("GNMA"). Repayment of these loans are predominantly insured by the Federal Housing Administration and as such, these loans have different risk
characteristics from the rest of our customer loan portfolio.

@ Representsour commercial and consumer allowancefor credit |osses, asappropriate, divided by the corresponding outstanding balance of total nonperforming

loansheld for investment. Nonperforming loansincludeaccruing loans contractual ly past due 90 daysor more. Ratio excludesnonperforming loans associ ated
with loan portfolios which are considered held for sale as these loans are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value.

Nonaccrual loans at June 30, 2014 decreased as compared with March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 due to lower levels of
both commercial and consumer nonaccrual loans. Commercial nonaccrual loans decreased due primarily to the sale or payoff of
certain commercial exposuresaswell ascustomer upgrades out of default outpacing new defaults. Our consumer nonaccrual loans
also decreased compared with March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 driven by lower nonaccrua residential mortgage loans
due to improved credit quality. Residential mortgage loan nonaccrual levels however continue to be impacted by an elongated
foreclosure process as previoudy discussed. Accruing loans past due 90 days or more were relatively flat compared with March
31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.
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Our policies and practices for problem loan management and placing loans on nonaccrual status are summarized in Note 2,
"Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and New Accounting Pronouncements,” in our 2013 Form 10-K.

See Note 4, "Loans," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for information regarding impaired loans, including
TDR Loans, aswell as certain other commercia and consumer loan credit quality indicators.

Concentration of Credit Risk A concentration of credit risk isdefined asasignificant credit exposure with anindividual or group
engaged in similar activities or affected similarly by economic conditions. We enter into a variety of transactions in the normal
course of business that involve both on and off-balance sheet credit risk. Principal among these activities is lending to various
commercial, institutional, governmental and individual customers. We participatein lending activity throughout the United States
and internationally. In general, we manage the varying degrees of credit risk involved in on and off-balance sheet transactions
through specific credit policies. These policies and procedures provide for a strict approval, monitoring and reporting process. It
isour policy to require collateral when it is deemed appropriate. Varying degrees and types of collateral are secured depending
upon management’s credit evaluation. As with any nonconforming and non-prime loan products, we utilize high underwriting
standards and price these loans in amanner that is appropriate to compensate for higher risk. We do not offer teaser rate mortgage
loans.

Our loan portfolio includes the following types of loans:

* Interest-only loans — A loan which allows a customer to pay the interest-only portion of the monthly payment for a period
of time which resultsin lower payments during the initial 1oan period.

e Adjustable rate mortgage ("ARM") loans— A loan which allows us to adjust pricing on the loan in line with market
movements.

The following table summarizes the balances of interest-only and ARM loans in our loan portfolios, including certain loans held
for sale, at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Each category is not mutually exclusive and loans may appear in
more than one category below.

June 30, December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Interest-only residential mortgage loans $ 3645 $ 3,643
ARM loans® 11,101 10,684

@ ARM loan balances above exclude $4 million and $11 million of subprime residential mortgage loans held for sale at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively. During the remainder of 2014 and during 2015, approximately $143 million and $188 million, respectively, of the ARM loans will experience
their first interest rate reset.

The following table summarizes the concentrations of first and second liens within the outstanding residential mortgage loan
portfolio. Amounts in the table exclude residential mortgage loans held for sale of $38 million and $91 million at June 30, 2014
and December 31, 2013, respectively.

June 30, December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Closed end:
TS 1= IO $ 16,097 $ 15,826
= o] o I 1= o T 123 137
Revolving:
= o] o I 1= o T 1,790 1,874
10 = | OO RO $ 18,010 $ 17,837
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Geographic Concentrations The following table reflects regional exposure at June 30, 2014 for certain loan portfolios:

Commercial Residential
Construction and Mortgages and Credit

Other Real Home Equity Card

Estate Loans Mortgages Receivables
NEW Y OIK SEBEE.....c.ee e st ene s 38.8% 33.7% 56.2%
L@ ) (o] = VTSRS 18.3 32.6 9.0
North Central United SEateS.........ccoveirereninerereses e 34 55 35
North Eastern United States, excluding New York State..........cccceeveeenenee. 13.0 9.4 124
Southern United SEAES ........cooveeeirireeeeiere e 20.6 144 138
Western United States, excluding California..........ccoceeeveveievcciciisceneenns 5.9 4.4 2.7
(@1 07 3SR — — 24
10 - T 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Credit Risks Associated with Derivative Contracts Credit risk associated with derivatives is measured as the net replacement
cost in the event the counterparties with contracts in a gain position to us fail to perform under the terms of those contracts. In
managing derivative credit risk, both the current exposure, which is the replacement cost of contracts on the measurement date,
as well as an estimate of the potential change in value of contracts over their remaining lives are considered. Counterparties to
our derivative activities include financia institutions, central clearing parties, foreign and domestic government agencies,
corporations, funds (mutual funds, hedge funds, etc.), insurance companies and private clients as well as other HSBC entities.
These counterparties are subject to regular credit review by the credit risk management department. To minimize credit risk, we
enter into legally enforceable master netting agreements which reduce risk by permitting the closeout and netting of transactions
with the same counterparty upon occurrence of certain events. In addition, we reduce credit risk by obtaining collateral from
counterparties. The determination of the need for and the levels of collateral will differ based on an assessment of the credit risk
of the counterparty.

Thetotal risk in a derivative contract is a function of anumber of variables, such as;

e volatility of interest rates, currencies, equity or corporate reference entity used as the basis for determining contract
payments;

e current market events or trends;

e country risk;

e maturity and liquidity of contracts;

e credit worthiness of the counterparties in the transaction;

« theexistence of a master netting agreement among the counterparties; and

e existence and value of collateral received from counterparties to secure exposures.
The table below presents total credit risk exposure measured using rules contained in the risk-based capital guidelines published
by U.S. banking regulatory agencies. Risk-based capital guidelines recognize that bilateral netting agreements reduce credit risk

and, therefore, allow for reductions of risk-weighted assets when netting requirements have been met. As aresult, risk-weighted
amounts for regulatory capital purposes are a portion of the original gross exposures.

The risk exposure calculated in accordance with the risk-based capital guidelines potentially overstates actual credit exposure
because the risk-based capital guidelines ignore collateral that may have been received from counterparties to secure exposures;
and the risk-based capital guidelines compute exposures over the life of derivative contracts. However, many contracts contain
provisionsthat allow usto close out the transaction if the counterparty failsto post required collateral. In addition, many contracts
give us the right to break the transactions earlier than the final maturity date. As a result, these contracts have potential future
exposures that are often much smaller than the future exposures derived from the risk-based capital guidelines.

June 30, December 31,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Risk associated with derivative contracts:
TOtal Credit FiSK EXPOSUIE........oueiieieeeeeeee ettt sttt ae e b e s ae b st esbeseeseenbe e e ne e e eneeneeneenenaas $ 41,369 $ 44,209
Less: collateral held 80aiNSt EXPOSUIE .......cveverieeirieerieres ettt st se et ettt se et seebe e 5,112 6,064
INEL CrEAit FISK EXPOSUIE.....c.eieteieeeieeeee ettt sttt et e e e e e et et e bt s be e bt ebesbesbesb e beseese e e e e e e eneeneeneene $ 36,257 $ 38,145
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Effectiveliquidity management isdefined asensuring wecan meet customer | oan requests, customer deposit maturities/withdrawals
and other cash commitmentsefficiently under both normal operating conditions and under unpredictabl e circumstances of industry
or market stress. To achievethisobjective, wehaveguidelinesthat requiresufficient liquidity to cover potential funding requirements
and to avoid over-dependence on volatile, less reliable funding markets. Guidelines are set for the consolidated balance sheet of
HSBC USA to ensure that it is a source of strength for our regulated, deposit-taking banking subsidiary, as well as to address the
more limited sources of liquidity available to it as a holding company. Similar guidelines are set for the balance sheet of HSBC
Bank USA to ensure that it can meet its liquidity needs in various stress scenarios. Cash flow analysis, including stress testing
scenarios, forms the basis for liquidity management and contingency funding plans.

During the first half of 2014, marketplace liquidity continued to remain available for most sources of funding. The prolonged
period of low interest rates continues to put pressure on spreads earned on our deposit base.

On June 26, 2014, HSBC and HSBC Bank USA submitted is annual resolution plan jointly to the FRB and the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") asrequired under Dodd-Frank and aruleissued by those bank regulatorsrelating to the resolution
of bank holding companies with assets of $50 billion or more and a FDIC rule relating to the resolution of insured depository
institutions with assets of $50 hillion or more.

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks totaled $23,946 million and $19,614 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively, which includes $22,240 million and $18,520 million, respectively, held with the Federal Reserve Bank. Balances
will fluctuate from year to year depending upon our liquidity position at the time and our strategy for deploying such liquidity.

Federal Funds Sold and Securities Purchased under Agreements to Resell totaled $2,311 million and $2,119 million at June
30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Balances will fluctuate from year to year depending upon our liquidity position at
the time and our strategy for deploying such liquidity.

Short-Term Borrowings totaled $12,906 million and $19,135 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. See
"Balance Sheet Review" in this MD& A for further analysis and discussion on short-term borrowing trends.

Deposits totaled $115,521 million and $112,608 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. See "Baance
Sheet Review" in this MD& A for further analysis and discussion on deposit trends.

Long-Term Debt increased to $24,604 million at June 30, 2014 from $22,847 million at December 31, 2013. Thefollowing table
presents the maturities of long-term debt at June 30, 2014, including secured financings and conduit facility renewals:

(in millions)
L 1 SRR $ 1,846
2201 TS 4,812
1220 GO SUURTRURPRR 1,591
2 U 2,722
120 1 SRR 3,069
QLIS £ 1 (= PR 10,564
LI L TSRS $ 24,604

Thefollowing table summarizesissuances and retirements of long-term debt during the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013:

Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013

(in millions)
LONG-TEIMN AEDE ISSUEH...... ..ottt sttt s e ee ettt e et bese s et eteseessaebese e ssetesessssssesesenanatas $ 387 $ 2875
LONG-ErM AEDE FEPAIT........coeeeeeeeereeeee et bttt e b et b e e b (2,392) (3,289)
NEL 10NG-tENMN AEDE ISSUEH ...ttt et es e s se et e se e e e s e re e e naese e neneas $ 1495 $ (419

See "Balance Sheet Review" in this MD&A for further analysis and discussion on long-term debt trends, including additional
information on debt issued during the six months ended June 30, 2014.

Under our shelf registration statement on file with the SEC, we may issue debt securities or preferred stock. The shelf hasno dollar
limit, but the amount of debt outstanding islimited by the authority granted by the Board of Directors. At June 30, 2014, we were
authorized to issue up to $21,000 million, of which $5,187 million was available. HSBC Bank USA &l so has a $40 billion Global
Bank Note Program of which $15,805 million was available at June 30, 2014.
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As a member of the FHLB, we have a secured borrowing facility which is collateralized by real estate loans and investment
securities. At June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, long-term debt included $1,000 million under this facility. The facility also
allows access to further borrowings of up to $5,077 million based upon the amount pledged as collatera with the FHLB.

Preferred Equity See Note 18, "Preferred Stock," in our 2013 Form 10-K for information regarding all outstanding preferred
share issues.

Common Equity During thefirst half of 2014, we did not receive any cash capital contributions from HSBC North Americalnc.
("HNAI") and we did not make any capital contributions to our subsidiary, HSBC Bank USA.

Selected Capital Ratios Capital amounts and ratios are calculated in accordance with banking regulations in effect as of June 30,
2014 and December 31, 2013. In managing capital, we devel op targets for common equity Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets,
Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets, Total capital to risk weighted assetsand Tier 1 capital to average assets (thislatter ratio, also
known asthe "leverageratio"). Our targets may change from time to time to accommodate changesin the operating environment,
regulatory requirements or other considerations such as those listed above.

The following table summarizes selected capital ratios for HSBC USA with detailed explanation below:

June 30, December 31,
2014 2013
Common equity Tier 1 capital t0 risk WeIghte GSSEES™ ........ccuveeveeeeieeseeeeeeeeeseeseessssesessss s snsensnes 10.42% 9.94%
Tier 1 capital t0 riSk WEIGhLE SSELS.......ccveviieiiciesie b 11.56 11.65
Total capital t0 risk WEIGhLEA @SSELS........eiviveierececeee st r e sre e 16.01 16.36
Tier 1 capital to average assetS (IeVerage ratio) ........coeoeeerererenere et 8.28 7.90
TOtal €QUILY 1O TOLBI BSSELS......cveueeeiiteert ettt b et b et n e 9.32 8.88

@ For December 31, 2013, the ratio presented is the Tier 1 common ratio calculated under Basel 1.

HSBC USA manages capital in accordance with the HSBC Group policy. The HSBC North America Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process ("ICAAP") works in conjunction with the HSBC Group's ICAAP. HSBC North America's ICAAP evaluates
regulatory capital adequacy, economic capital adequacy and capital adequacy under various stress scenarios. Our initial approach
isto meet our capital needsfor these stress scenarioslocally through activitieswhich reducerisk. To theextent that local alternatives
are insufficient or unavailable, we will rely on capital support from our parent in accordance with HSBC's capital management
policy. HSBC has indicated that they are fully committed and have the capacity to provide capital as needed to run operations,
maintain sufficient regulatory capital ratios and fund certain tax planning strategies.

Regulatory capital requirements are based on the amount of capital required to be held, as defined by regulations, and the amount
of risk weighted assets, also calculated based on regulatory definitions. Economic Capital is a proprietary measure to estimate
unexpected loss at the 99.95 percent confidence level over a 1-year time horizon. Economic Capital is compared to a calculation
of available capital resources to assess capital adequacy as part of the ICAAP. In addition, Risk Adjusted Return On Economic
Capital (RAROC) is computed for our businessesto allow for a comparison of return on risk.

As previously disclosed in our 2013 Form 10-K, U.S. regulatorsissued afinal rule implementing the Basel 111 capital framework
in the U.S. which, for banking organizations such as HSBC North America and HSBC Bank USA, took effect from January 1,
2014 with certain provisions being phased in over timethrough the beginning of 2019. Asaresult, beginning in 2014, capital ratios
are reported in accordance with the Basel 111 transition rulesin the final rule. At December 31, 2013, capital ratios were reported
according to Basel | rules and reflect the impact of the U.S. market risk final rule (known in the industry as Basel 2.5).

The Basdl 111 final rule established an integrated regulatory capital framework to improve the quality and quantity of regulatory
capital and introduced the " Standardized Approach” for risk weighted assets, which will replace the Basel 1 risk-based guidance
for determining risk-weighted assets as of January 1, 2015. In addition to phasing in acomplete replacement to the Basel | general
risk-based capital rules, theBasel |11 final rulea so buildson the" Advanced Approach" introduced by Basel |1, incorporates certain
changes to Basel 2.5 and implements certain other requirements of the Dodd-Frank Act.

The Advanced Approach introduced by Basel |1 includes an internal ratings based approach for credit risk and an advanced
measurement approach for operational risk andisapplicablefor banking organizationswith $250 billion or moreintotal consolidated
assets or $10 billion or more of foreign exposures (referred to as "Advanced Approach" banking organizations, which includes
banking organizations such as HSBC North America and HSBC Bank USA). Adoption of the Advanced Approach requires the
approval of U.S. regulators. Advanced Approach banking organizations, including HSBC North Americaand HSBC Bank USA,
arerequiredto operateinitially ina"paralel run" wherein they must report their risk-based capital ratiosusing risk-weighted assets
under both Basel | (and in 2015, the Standardized Approach) aswell asthe Advanced Approach to their primary federal regulator,
but publicly disclose only their capital ratios calculated using Basel | (or in 2015, the Standardized Approach) risk-weighted assets.
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Upon receiving approval to exit parallel run, Advanced A pproach banking organizations would then publicly disclosetheir capital
ratios calculated using Basel | (or in 2015, their Standardized Approach) and Advanced Approach risk weighted assets. Although
we began aparallel run period in January 2010, it is unclear asto when approval from the appropriate regulators will be received
in order to exit parallel run.

With regard to the elements of capital, the application of the Basel 111 final rule requires HSBC USA to phase trust preferred
securities issued prior to May 19, 2010 out of Tier 1 capital by January 1, 2016, with 50 percent of these capital instruments
includable in Tier 1 capital in 2014 and 25 percent includable in 2015. The trust preferred securities excluded from Tier 1 capital
may be included fully in Tier 2 capital during those two years, but must be phased out of Tier 2 capital by January 1, 2022. We
continue to consider options for redeeming our outstanding trust preferred securities which total $550 million at June 30, 2014.
In addition, any nonconforming Tier 2 subordinated debt issued prior to May 19, 2010 is required to be phased out by January 1,
2016. As aresult, approximately $200 million of our currently outstanding Tier 2 qualifying subordinated debt will be phased out
of capital under the final rule. Also under the final rule, Tier 1 capital generally includes only noncumulative perpetual preferred
stock, in addition to common stock, and thefinal rule removesthe limitation on the amount of Tier 2 capital that may be recognized
relativeto Tier 1 capital.

In February 2014, the FRB adopted a final rule requiring enhanced supervision of the U.S. operations of non-U.S. banks such as
HSBC. Therulerequires certain large non-U.S. bankswith significant operationsin the United States, such asHSBC, to establish
asingleintermediate holding company ("IHC") tohold all of their U.S. bank and non-bank subsidiaries. The HSBC Group currently
operatesintheUnited Statesthrough suchan IHC structure(i.e., HSBC North America), therefore, we do not expect thisrequirement
will have a significant impact on our U.S. operations. HSBC North America is developing its IHC implementation plan to be
submitted, as required, to the FRB by January 1, 2015. Under the final rule, IHCs, including HSBC North America and HSBC
USA, will be subject to the Standardized Approach unless they apply to be subject to the Advanced Approach. IHCswill be subject
to al other risk-based capital requirements, stress testing requirements, enhanced risk management standards and enhanced
governance and stress testing requirements for liquidity management, as well as other prudential standards. Under the final rule,
most of these requirements will become effective on July 1, 2016. Theimpact of the final ruleis being reviewed.

Aspreviously disclosed, U.S. bank holding companieswith $50 billion or morein total consolidated assets, including HSBC North
America, arerequired to submit annual capital plansfor review. Under the capital plan rules, the FRB will evaluate bank holding
companies annually on their capital adequacy, internal capital adequacy assessment process and plans for capital distributions,
and will approve capital distributions only for companies that are able to demonstrate sufficient capital strength after making the
capital distribution.

In addition, U.S. bank holding companies with $50 billion or more in total consolidated assets, including HSBC North America,
arerequired to comply with the FRB's CCAR program, which includes annual supervisory DFAST conducted by the FRB, aswell
as semi-annual bank holding company-run DFAST. HSBC North America submitted its first CCAR capital plan and its annual
company-run DFAST resultsin January 2014. In July 2014, HSBC North America submitted its mid-year company-run DFAST
results. HSBC Bank USA is subject to the OCC's DFAST requirements, which require certain banks to conduct annual bank-run
DFAST, and submitted its first DFAST results in January 2014. The company-run stress tests are forward looking exercises to
assess the impact of hypothetical macroeconomic baseline, adverse and severely adverse scenarios provided by the FRB and the
OCC for the annual exercise, and internally developed scenarios for both the annual and mid-cycle exercises, on the financial
condition and capital adequacy of a bank-holding company or bank over a nine quarter planning horizon.

HSBC North Americaand HSBC Bank USA are required to disclose the results of their annual DFAST under the FRB and OCC'’s
severely adversestressscenario. HSBC North Americaisrequired to disclosetheresultsof itsmid-cycle DFAST under itsinternally
developed severely adverse stress scenario. HSBC North America and HSBC Bank USA publicly disclosed their DFAST results,
as required, in March 2014. The FRB also publicly disclosed its own DFAST and CCAR results in March 2014. HSBC North
Americawill disclose its mid-cycle DFAST resultsin September 2014.

On March 26, 2014, the FRB informed HSBC North America, our indirect parent company, that it did not object to HSBC North
Americas capital actions, including payment of dividends on outstanding preferred stock and trust preferred securities of HSBC
North Americaand its subsidiaries. The FRB informed HSBC North Americathat it did object to its capital plan submitted for the
2014 CCAR submission due to weaknesses in its capital planning processes. The FRB does not permit bank holding companies
to disclose confidential supervisory information including the reason for an objection to acapital plan submitted for CCAR. HSBC
North Americais required to resubmit its capital plan, incorporating enhancements to its processes, by January 5, 2015, the due
date for the next annual CCAR submission. Stress testing results are based solely on hypothetical adverse scenarios and should
not be viewed or interpreted as forecasts of expected outcomes or capital adequacy or of the actual financial condition of HSBC
North America. Capital planning and stress testing for HSBC North America may impact our future capital and liquidity.

InJune 2014, U.S. regulatorsissued aproposal that would amend the CCAR capital planning and DFA ST supervisory stresstesting
rules. This proposal would shift the start date of the annual capital plan and supervisory and company-run stress test cycles back
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by one calendar quarter beginning with the 2015-2016 capital plan and stress test cycles. The proposal would make certain other
substantive changes to the capital plan and stress test regulations, including limiting a bank holding company's ability to make
capital distributions if its actual capital issuances in that quarter were less than the amount indicated in the capital plan. We are
reviewing the potential impact of the proposal on our capital planning and stress testing processes.

We and HSBC Bank USA are required to meet minimum capital requirements by our principal regulators. Risk-based capital
amounts and ratios are presented in Note 15 , "Retained Earnings and Regulatory Capital Requirements," in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

2014 Funding Strategy Our current estimate for funding needs and sources for 2014 are summarized in the following table.

Estimated
Actual July 1
January 1 through Estimated
through December 31,  Full Year
June 30, 2014 2014 2014
(in billions)
Funding needs:
[N = T =g I 11, 1 o S STR $ 6 $ 3% 9
Long-term debt MELUNTIES........ceiieieeeceeeeee e enea 2 1 3
Total fuNAING NEEAS........oceieeee e e ere s $ 8% 4% 12
Funding sources:
Liquidation of short-term iNVESIMENLS.........ccceeeeeririeresese e e $ 4% 4% 8
LONG-term debt ISSUANCE ......ooveieeeeeeeee et e en 4 — 4
Total FUNAING SOUICES........oieiiieieeeeee ettt se e e e neenensesnenrens $ 8% 4% 12

Theabovetablereflectsalong-term funding strategy. Daily balancesfluctuate aswe accommodate customer needs, while ensuring
that we have liquidity in place to support the balance sheet maturity funding profile. Should market conditions deteriorate, we
have contingency plans to generate additional liquidity through the sales of assets or financing transactions. Our prospects for
growth continue to be dependent upon our ability to attract and retain deposits and, to alesser extent, accessto the global capital
markets. Weremain confident in our ability to accessthe market for long-term debt funding needsin the current market environment.
We continue to seek well-priced and stable customer deposits as customers move funds to larger, well-capitalized institutions.

We will continue to sell a portion of new mortgage loan originations, largely to PHH Mortgage.

HSBC Finance ceased issuing under its commercial paper program in 2012 and instead isrelying on its affiliates, including HSBC
USA, to satisfy its funding needs.

HSBC Bank USA is subject to significant restrictionsimposed by federal law on extensions of credit to, and certain other "covered
transactions"’ with HSBC USA and other affiliates. Covered transactions include |oans and other extensions of credit, investments
and asset purchases, and certain other transactions involving the transfer of value from a subsidiary bank to an affiliate or for the
benefit of an affiliate. A bank's credit exposure to an affiliate asaresult of aderivative, securities lending/borrowing or repurchase
transaction is also subject to these restrictions. A bank's transactions with its non-bank affiliates are also required to be on arm's
length terms. Certain Edge Act subsidiaries of HSBC Bank USA are limited in the amount of funds they can provide to other
affiliatesincluding their parent. Amounts abovetheir level of invested capital have to be secured with U.S. government securities.

For further discussion relating to our sources of liquidity and contingency funding plan, see the caption "Risk Management” in
thisMD&A.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements, Credit Derivatives and Other Contractual Obligations

As part of our normal operations, we enter into credit derivatives and various off-balance sheet arrangements with affiliates and
third parties. These arrangements arise principally in connection with our lending and client intermediation activities and involve
primarily extensions of credit and, in certain cases, guarantees.

Asafinancial services provider, we routinely extend credit through loan commitments and lines and letters of credit and provide
financial guarantees, including derivative transactions having characteristics of a guarantee. The contractual amounts of these
financial instruments represent our maximum possible credit exposure in the event that a counterparty draws down the full
commitment amount or we are required to fulfill our maximum obligation under a guarantee.

The following table provides maturity information related to our credit derivatives and off-balance sheet arrangements. Many of
these commitments and guarantees expire unused or without default. As a result, we believe that the contractual amount is not
representative of the actual future credit exposure or funding requirements.

Balance at June 30, 2014

Over One Balance at
One Year through Over Five December 31,
or Less Five Years Years Total 2013
(in millions)

Standby letters of credit, net of participations™.............cco......... $ 6013 $ 2370 $ 12 $ 839 $ 8,409
Commercial letters of credit ... 421 176 — 597 528
Credit deriVatiVES®...........ooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eer s eseeeees 37,527 106,023 5,990 149,540 180,380
Other commitments to extend credit:

COMMENCIA® ... 15,077 53,452 5292 73,821 66,328

CONSUIMES ...ttt e sn e 6,755 — — 6,755 6,714
TOMAl .ttt ettt a bt $ 65,793 $162,021 $ 11,294 $239,108 $ 262,359

@ Includes $842 million and $865 million issued for the benefit of HSBC affiliates at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
@ Includes $36,920 million and $34,856 million issued for the benefit of HSBC affiliates at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
®  Includes $3,774 million and $3,763 million issued for the benefit of HSBC affiliates at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Other Commitments to Extend Credit Other commitments to extend credit include arrangements whereby we are contractually
obligated to extend credit in theform of loans, participationsinloans, leasefinancing receivables, or similar transactions. Consumer
commitments are comprised of certain unused MasterCard/Visa credit card lines, where we have the right to change terms or
conditions upon notification to the customer, and commitments to extend credit secured by residential properties, where we have
theright to changetermsor conditions, for cause, upon notification to the customer. Commercial commitments comprise primarily
those related to secured and unsecured loans and lines of credit and certain asset purchase commitments. In connection with our
commercia lending activities, we provide liquidity support to Regency, a multi-seller asset backed commercia paper ("ABCP")
conduit consolidated by our &ffiliate. See Note 16, "Variable Interest Entities," in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements for additional information regarding ABCP conduits and our variable interests in them.

We provide liquidity support to Regency in the form of lines of credit or asset purchase agreements. Under the terms of these
liquidity agreements, Regency may call upon usto lend money or to purchase certain assets in the event the conduit is unable or
unwilling toissue or rollover maturing commercial paper. The maximum amount that we could be required to advanceisgenerally
limited to the lesser of the amount of outstanding commercial paper related to the supported transaction and the balance of the
assets underlying that transaction adjusted by a funding formula that excludes defaulted and impaired assets. As a result, the
maximum amount that we would be required to fund may be significantly less than the maximum contractual amount specified
by the liquidity agreement.

Thefollowing tables present information on our liquidity facilitieswith Regency at June 30, 2014. The maximum exposureto |oss
presented in the first tabl e represents the maximum contractual amount of |oans and asset purchases we could be required to make
under the liquidity agreements. This amount does not reflect the funding limits discussed above and also assumes that we suffer
atotal loss on all amounts advanced and all assets purchased from Regency. As such, we believe that this measure significantly
overstates our expected |oss exposure.
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Conduit Assets Conduit Funding®
Maximum Weighted Weighted
Exposure Total Average Life  Commercial  Average Life
Conduit Type to Loss Assets (Months) Paper (Days)

(dollars are in millions)

HSBC affiliate sponsored (multi-seller).......ooooeveeecininicnnns $ 234 $ 1,459 16 $ 1460 12

@ The amounts presented represent only the specific assets and related funding supported by our liquidity facilities.

Average Credit Quality(l)

Average
Asset Class Asset Mix AAA AA+AA A A- BB/BB-
Multi-seller conduit
Debt securities backed by:
Autoloansand [€aSES........cccccvvveeeevevesese e 45% 69% —% —% —% —%
Traderecelvables..........cccooveviececiccececce e 35 — 100 100 — —
Credit card recelvables..........coccoeeveveeieece e, — — — — — —
Equipment 10ans..........ccceveveeieeeiecenese e 20 31 — — — —
100% 100% 100% 100% —% —%

@ Credit quality is based on Standard and Poor’s ratings at June 30, 2014.

Wereceivefeesfor providing theseliquidity facilities. Credit risk on these obligationsis managed by subjecting themto our normal
underwriting and risk management processes.

During the six months ended June 30, 2014, U.S. asset-backed commercial paper volumes continued to be stable as most major
bank conduit sponsors continue to extend new financing to clients. Credit spreads in the multi-seller conduit market have also
remained stable during the six months ended June 30, 2014 following a pattern that was prevalent across the U.S. credit markets.

The preceding tables do not include information on credit facilities that we previously provided to certain Canadian multi-seller
ABCPconduitsthat have been subject to restructuring agreementsaspart of the Montreal Accord. Aspart of the enhanced collateral
pool established for the restructuring, at December 31, 2013, we had provided a CAD $307 million Margin Funding Facility to a
Master Asset Vehicle, which was undrawn and expiresin July 2017. At June 30, 2014, the undrawn facility was reduced to CAD
$127 million.

We have established and manage a number of constant net asset value ("CNAV") money market fundsthat invest in shorter-dated
highly-rated money market securitiesto provide investorswith ahighly liquid and secure investment. These funds price the assets
in their portfolio on an amortized cost basis, which enables them to create and liquidate shares at a constant price. The funds,
however, are not permitted to price their portfolios at amortized cost if that amount varies by more than 50 basis points from the
portfolio's market value. In that case, the fund would be required to price its portfolio at market value and consequently would no
longer be able to create or liquidate shares at a constant price. We do not consolidate the CNAV funds because we do not absorb
the mgjority of the expected future risk associated with the fund's assets, including interest rate, liquidity, credit and other relevant
risks that are expected to affect the value of the assets.

Fair Value

Fair value measurement accounting principlesrequire areporting entity to takeinto considerationitsown credit risk in determining
thefair valueof financial liabilities. Theincorporation of our own credit risk accounted for anincrease of $39 million and adecrease
of $6 million in the fair value of financial liabilities during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively, compared
with decreases of $107 million and $98 million during the prior year periods.

Net income volatility arising from changes in either interest rate or credit components of the mark-to-market on debt designated
at fair value and related derivatives affects the comparability of reported results between periods. Accordingly, the gain (loss) on
debt designated at fair value and related derivatives during the six months ended June 30, 2014 should not be considered indicative
of the results for any future period.
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Control Over Valuation Process and Procedures We have established a control framework which is designed to ensure that fair
values are either determined or validated by afunction independent of the risk-taker. See Note 18, "Fair Value Measurements” in
the accompanying consolidated financia statements for further details on our valuation control framework.

Fair Value Hierarchy Fair value measurement accounting principles establish afair value hierarchy structure that prioritizesthe
inputs to determine the fair value of an asset or liability (the "Fair Value Framework™). The Fair Value Framework distinguishes
between inputs that are based on observed market data and unobservable inputs that reflect market participants’ assumptions. It
emphasizes the use of valuation methodol ogies that maximize observable market inputs. For financial instruments carried at fair
value, the best evidence of fair value is a quoted price in an actively traded market (Level 1). Where the market for a financial
instrument is not active, valuation techniques are used. The majority of our valuation techniques use market inputs that are either
observable or indirectly derived from and corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the financial
instrument (Level 2). Because Level 1 and Level 2 instruments are determined by observable inputs, less judgment is applied in
determining their fair values. In the absence of observable market inputs, the financial instrument is valued based on valuation
techniquesthat feature one or more significant unobservableinputs (Level 3). The determination of thelevel of fair value hierarchy
within which the fair value measurement of an asset or aliability is classified often requires judgment and may change over time
as market conditions evolve. We consider the following factors in developing the fair value hierarchy:

. whether the asset or liability istransacted in an active market with a quoted market price;
. the level of bid-ask spreads;

. alack of pricing transparency due to, among other things, complexity of the product and market liquidity;

. whether only afew transactions are observed over a significant period of time;

. whether the pricing quotations differ substantially among independent pricing services,

. whether inputs to the valuation techniques can be derived from or corroborated with market data; and

. whether significant adjustments are made to the observed pricing information or model output to determine the fair
value.

Level 1inputsare unadjusted quoted pricesin active markets that the reporting entity has the ability to access for identical assets
or liabilities. A financial instrument is classified asalLevel 1 measurement if it islisted on an exchange or isan instrument actively
traded in the over-the-counter ("OTC") market where transactions occur with sufficient frequency and volume. Weregard financial
instruments such as equity securities and derivative contracts listed on the primary exchanges of a country to be actively traded.
Non-exchange-traded instruments classified as Level 1 assets include securities issued by the U.S. Treasury or by other foreign
governments, to-be-announced ("TBA") securities and non-callable securities issued by U.S. government sponsored entities.

Level 2 inputs are those that are observable either directly or indirectly but do not qualify asLevel 1 inputs. We classify mortgage
pass-through securities, agency and certain non-agency mortgage collateralized obligations, certain derivative contracts, asset-
backed securities, corporate debt, preferred securities and leveraged / syndicated loans as Level 2 measurements. Where possible,
at least two quotations from independent sources are obtained based on transactions involving comparable assets and liabilitiesto
validatethefair value of these instruments. We have established a process to understand the methodol ogies and inputs used by the
third party pricing services to ensure that pricing information met the fair value objective. Where significant differences arise
among the independent pricing quotes and the internally determined fair value, we investigate and reconcil e the differences. If the
investigation results in a significant adjustment to the fair value, the instrument will be classified as Level 3 within the fair value
hierarchy. In general, we have observed that there is a correlation between the credit standing and the market liquidity of a non-
derivative instrument.

Level 2 derivative instruments are generally valued based on discounted future cash flows or an option pricing model adjusted for
counterparty credit risk and market liquidity. The fair value of certain structured derivative productsis determined using val uation
techniques based on inputs derived from observable benchmark index tranches traded in the OTC market. Appropriate control
processes and procedures have been applied to ensure that the derived inputs are applied to value only those instrumentsthat share
similar risks to the relevant benchmark indices and therefore demonstrate a similar response to market factors. In addition, a
validation process has been established, which includes participation in peer group consensus pricing surveys, to ensure that
valuation inputs incorporate market participants risk expectations and risk premium.

Level 3inputs are unobservable estimates that management expects market participants would use to determine the fair value of
the asset or liability. That is, Level 3inputsincorporate market participants assumptions about risk and the risk premium required
by market participants in order to bear that risk. We develop Level 3 inputs based on the best information available in the
circumstances. As of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, our Level 3 instruments included the following: collateralized debt
obligations ("CDOs") for which thereisalack of pricing transparency dueto market illiquidity, certain structured deposits aswell
as certain structured credit and structured equity derivatives where significant inputs (e.g., volatility or default correlations) are
not observable, credit default swaps with certain monoline insurers where the deterioration in the creditworthiness of the
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counterparty hasresulted in significant adjustmentsto fair value, U.S. subprime mortgage |oans and subprime rel ated asset-backed
securities, impaired commercial loans, mortgage servicing rights, and derivatives referenced to illiquid assets of less desirable
credit quality. See Note 18, "Fair Value Measurements' in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional
information on Level 3 inputs.

Transfers between leveling categories are recognized at the end of each reporting period.

We value uncollateralized derivatives by discounting expected future cash flows at a benchmark interest rate, typically Libor or
its equivalent. This approach has historically been adopted across the industry, and has therefore been an appropriate basis for fair
value. As previously disclosed in our 2013 Form 10-K, we and other industry participants are currently considering whether this
approach appropriately reflects the manner in which the derivatives are funded, which may occur at rates other than interbank
offer rates. No consensushasyet emerged on how such funding should bereflectedin thefair value measurement for uncol lateralized
derivatives. Inthefuture, and possibly in the second half of 2014, we may adopt a"funding fair value adjustment" to reflect funding
of uncollateralized derivatives at rates other than interbank offer rates.

Transfers Between Level 1 and Level 2 Measurements During the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 measurements.

Level 3 Measurements Thefollowingtableprovidesinformationabout Level 3assets/liabilitiesinrelationtototal assetg/liabilities
measured at fair value as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

June 30, December 31,

2014 2013

(dollars are in millions)
LEVEl BASSEISTD ..o $ 381 $ 3831
Total assets measured at fair VAIUEY ..............oo..oorvveerveeeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeseseeses s essss s 138,678 158,834
LEVE! B LIADITTIES. .. .ottt ettt ettt st st et e s e ebesaese st ese et e e ebe e ebe e ebeseeteseas 3,217 3,751
Total liabilities measured at fair VAIUEY ............cooooooorvvoecveieeeeeeeeeesee s 91,331 97,540
Level 3 assets as a percent of total assets measured at fair Value ..........ccocevereveniieneneeiceeeeeee 2.8% 2.4%
Level 3 liahilities as a percent of total liabilities measured at fair value..........cccoeeveinenninncncenns 3.5% 3.8%

@ Presented without netting which allows the offsetting of amounts relating to certain contracts if certain conditions are met.

@ Includes $3,803 million of recurring Level 3 assets and $48 million of non-recurring Level 3 assets at June 30, 2014. Includes $3,667 million of recurring
Level 3 assets and $164 million of non-recurring Level 3 assets at December 31, 2013.

®  Includes $138,457 million of assets measured on a recurring basis and $221 million of assets measured on a non-recurring basis at June 30, 2014. Includes
$158,149 million of assets measured on arecurring basis and $685 million of assets measured on a non-recurring basis at December 31, 2013.

Significant Changes in Fair Value for Level 3 Assets and Liabilities

Derivative Assets and Counterparty Credit Risk We have entered into credit default swaps with monoline insurers to hedge our
credit exposurein certain asset-backed securities and synthetic CDOs. We made $4 million negativeand $12 million positive credit
risk adjustments to the fair value of our credit default swap contracts during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014,
respectively, compared with positive adjustments of $21 million and $41 million during the three and six months ended June 30,
2013, respectively. These adjustments to fair value are recorded in trading revenue in the consolidated statement of income. We
have recorded a cumulative credit adjustment reserve of $52 million and $64 million against our monoline exposure at June 30,
2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The fair value of our monoline exposure net of cumulative credit adjustment reserves
equaled $233 million and $273 million at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Loans As of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we have classified $23 million and $46 million, respectively, of subprime
residential mortgage loans held for sale as a non-recurring Level 3 financial asset. These mortgage loans are accounted for on a
lower of amortized cost or fair value basis. Based on our assessment, we recorded gains of less than amillion during the three and
six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively, compared with gains of $5 million and $7 million during the three and six months
ended June 30, 2013, respectively. Thechangesinfair valuearerecorded in other revenuesin the consolidated statement of income.

Significant Transfers Into and Out of Level 3 Measurements During thethreeand six monthsended June 30, 2014, wetransferred
$104 million and $244 million, respectively, of depositsin domestic officesand $27 million and $98 million, respectively, of long-
term debt, which we have elected to carry at fair value, from Level 3to Level 2 asaresult of the embedded derivative no longer
being unobservable as the derivative option is closer to maturity and there is more observability in short term volatility. During
the second quarter of 2014, we transferred $119 million of government debt securitiesissued by foreign governments from Level
3to Level 2 dueto the availability of inputs in the market including independent pricing service valuations. Additionally, during
the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, we transferred $27 million and $95 million, respectively, of depositsin domestic
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offices, whichwehaveelectedto carry at fair value, from Level 2to Level 3asaresult of achangeintheobservability of underlying
instruments that resulted in the embedded derivative being unobservable.

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, we transferred $165 million and $244 million, respectively of depositsin
domestic offices and $179 million and $181 million, respectively, of long-term debt, which we have elected to carry at fair value,
from Level 3to Level 2 as aresult of the embedded derivative no longer being unobservable as the derivative option is closer in
maturity and thereis more observability in short term volatility. Additionally, during the three and six months ended June 30, 2013,
wetransferred $177 million and $160 million, respectively, of depositsin domestic offices, which we have elected to carry at fair
value, from Level 2to Level 3 asaresult of achangein the observability of underlying instruments that resulted in the embedded
derivative being unobservable.

See Note 18, "Fair Value Measurements," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for information on additions to
and transfers into (out of) Level 3 measurements during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 as well as for
further details including the classification hierarchy associated with assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

Assets Underlying Asset-backed Securities The following tables summarize the types of assets underlying our asset-backed
securities as well as certain collateralized debt obligations held as of June 30, 2014:

Total
(in millions)
Rating of securities:” Collateral type:
AAA .. CoMMErCial MOMQAGES. .....cueeereererereririeie ettt $ 86
Residential mortgages - AL Ao 89
Residential mortgages - SUBPIIME........c.cooiriieierenereeeeeeeesee s 1
TOU AAA .eeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeeee e eeneeerereeeeneeee T 176
A oo 0117 S - a2
A Residential mortgages - AL Ao T 11
Residential mortgages - SUBPIIME........c.cooivire e 58
HOME EQUILY - ATL Ao 94
SHUAENE TOBNS ... 81
L@ 11 SO STSSTSTTRORRRN 52
L e 1O T 296
BBB ... Residential mortgages - AL Ao 8
Collateralized debt obligations...........cccceevevieieseeeceeee e 260
R 1 =1=1J O T 268
CCC e Residential mortgages - SUBPIIME........c.ooivire e - 5
unrated .......ooovereveneeenecnecnenes Residential mortgages - AL Ao 1

$ 788

@ We utilize Standard & Poor's (“S&P") as the primary source of credit ratings in the tables above. If S& P ratings are not available, ratings by Moody's and
Fitch are used, in that order. Ratings for collateralized debt obligations represent the ratings associated with the underlying collateral.

Effect of Changes in Significant Unobservable Inputs Thefair value of certainfinancial instrumentsis measured using valuation
techniques that incorporate pricing assumptions not supported by, derived from or corroborated by observable market data. The
resultant fair value measurements are dependent on unobservabl einput parameters which can be selected from arange of estimates
and may be interdependent. Changes in one or more of the significant unobservable input parameters may change the fair value
measurements of these financial instruments. For the purpose of preparing the financial statements, the final valuation inputs
selected are based on management's best judgment that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing similar
assetsor liagbilities.

The unobservable input parameters selected are subject to the internal valuation control processes and procedures. When we
perform atest of all the significant input parameters to the extreme values within the range at the same time, it could result in an
increase of the overal fair value measurement of approximately $35 million or a decrease of the overall fair value measurement
of approximately $44 million as of June 30, 2014. The effect of changesin significant unobservableinput parametersare primarily
driven by mortgage servicing rights, certain asset-backed securities including CDOs, and the uncertainty in determining the fair
value of credit derivatives executed against monoline insurers.

132



HSBC USA Inc.

Risk Management

Overview Some degree of risk isinherent in virtually all of our activities. Accordingly, we have comprehensive risk management
policies and practices in place to address potential risks, which include the following:

. Credit risk is the potential that a borrower or counterparty will default on a credit obligation, as well as the impact
on the value of credit instruments due to changes in the probability of borrower default; Credit risk includes risk
associated with cross-border exposures.

. Liquidity risk isthe potential that an institution will be unable to meet its obligations as they become due or fund its
customers because of inadequate cash flow or the inability to liquidate assets or obtain funding itself;

. Interest rate risk is the potential impairment of net interest income due to mismatched pricing between assets and
liahilities aswell aslosses in value due to rate movements;

. Market risk isthe risk that movementsin market risk factors, including foreign exchange ratesand commaodity prices,
interest rates, credit spreads and equity prices, will reduce HSBC USA’s income or the value of its portfolios;

. Operational risk istherisk of lossresulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, or systems, or from
external events (including legal risk);

. Compliance risk isthe risk that we fail to observe the letter and spirit of all relevant laws, codes, rules, regulations
and standards of good market practice causing usto incur fines, penaltiesand damage to our business and reputation;

. Fiduciary risk is the risk of breaching fiduciary duties where we act in a fiduciary capacity as trustee, investment

manager or as mandated by law or regulation.

. Reputational risk is the risk arising from afailure to safeguard our reputation by maintaining the highest standards
of conduct at all timesand by being aware of i ssues, activitiesand associationsthat might poseathreat to thereputation
of HSBC locally, regionaly or internationally;

. Strategic risk is the risk that the business will fail to identify, execute, and react appropriately to opportunities and/
or threats arising from changes in the market, some of which may emerge over a number of years such as changing
economic and political circumstances, customer regquirements, demographic trends, regulatory developments or
competitor action;

. Security and Fraud risk istherisk to the business from terrorism, crime, incidents/disasters, cyber attacks and groups
hostile to HSBC interests;

. Model risk is the risk of incorrect implementation or inappropriate application of models. Model risk occurs when
amodel does not properly capture risk(s) or perform functions as designed; and

. Pension risk is the risk that the cash flows associated with pension assets will not be enough to cover the pension

benefit obligations required to be paid.

See"Risk Management” in MD& A in our 2013 Form 10-K for amore compl ete discussion of the objectivesof our risk management
system aswell asour risk management policies and practices. Our risk management processinvolvesthe use of various simulation
models. We believe that the assumptions used in these models are reasonable, but actual events may unfold differently than what
isassumed in the models. Consequently, model results may be considered reasonabl e estimates, with the understanding that actual
results may differ significantly from model projections.

Credit Risk Management Credit risk isthe potential that a borrower or counterparty will default on a credit obligation, aswell as
the impact on the value of credit instruments due to changes in the probability of borrower default. Credit risk includes risk
associated with cross-border exposures. There have been no material changes to our approach towards credit risk management
since December 31, 2013. See "Risk Management” in MD&A in our 2013 Form 10-K for a more complete discussion of our
approach to credit risk.

Credit risk isinherent in various on- and off-balance sheet instruments and arrangements, such as:

. loan portfolios;

. investment portfolios;

. unfunded commitments such as letters of credit and lines of credit that customers can draw upon; and

. derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate swaps which, if more valuable today than when originally

contracted, may represent an exposure to the counterparty to the contract.

While credit risk exists widely in our operations, diversification among various commercial and consumer portfolios helps to
lessenrisk exposure. Day-to-day management of credit and market risk isperformed by the Chief Credit Officer / Head of Wholesale
Credit and Market Risk North Americaand the HSBC North America Chief Retail Credit Officer, who report directly to the HSBC
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North America Chief Risk Officer and maintain independent risk functions. The credit risk associated with commercial portfolios
is managed by the Chief Credit Officer, while credit risk associated with retail consumer loan portfolios, such as credit cards,
installment loansand residential mortgages, ismanaged by the HSBC North AmericaChief Retail Credit Officer. Further discussion
of credit risk can be found under the "Credit Quality" caption inthisMD&A.

Liquidity Risk Management There have been no material changes to our approach towards liquidity risk management since
December 31, 2013. See “Risk Management” in MD&A in our 2013 Form 10-K for a more compl ete discussion of our approach
to liquidity risk. Although our overall approach to liquidity management has not changed, we continuously monitor the impact of
market events on our liquidity positions and continue to adapt our liquidity framework to reflect market events and the evolving
regulatory landscape and view asto best practices. Current regulatory initiatives encourage banksto retain aportfolio of extremely
highquality liquid assets. Assuch, wearemaintaining alarge portfolio of high quality sovereign and sovereign guaranteed securities.

Our liquidity management approach includes increased deposits and potential sales (e.g. residential mortgage loans) in liquidity
contingency plans. As previously discussed, HSBC Finance ceased issuing under its commercial paper program in 2012 and now
reliesonitsaffiliates, including HSBC USA, to satisfy itsfunding needsoutside of cash generated fromitsloan salesand operations.

In 2009, the Basel Committee proposed two minimum liquidity metrics for limiting risk: the liquidity coverage ratio ("LCR"),
designed to be a short-term measure to ensure banks have sufficient high-quality liquid assetsto cover net stressed cash outflows
over the next 30 days, and the net stable funding ratio ("NSFR"), which is alonger term measure with a 12-month time horizon
to ensure a sustainable maturity structure of assets and liabilities. The ratios are subject to an observation period and are expected
to become established standards, subject to phase-in periods, by 2015 and 2018, respectively.

In October 2013, the FRB, the OCC and the FDIC issued for public comment a rule to implement the LCR in the United States,
applicable to certain large banking institutions, including HSBC North America and HSBC Bank USA. The LCR proposal is
generally consistent with the Basel Committee guidelines, but is more stringent in several areas including the range of assets that
will qualify as high-quality liquid assets and the assumed rate of outflows of certain kinds of funding. Under the proposal, U.S.
institutions would begin the LCR transition period on January 1, 2015 and would be required to be fully compliant by January 1,
2017, as opposed to the Basel Committee's requirement to be fully compliant by January 1, 2019. The LCR proposa does not
address the NSFR requirement, which is currently in an international observation period. Based on the results of the observation
periods, the Basel Committee and U.S. banking regulators may make further changesto the LCR and the NSFR. U.S. regulators
are expected to issue a proposed rulemaking implementing the NSFR in advance of its scheduled global implementation in 2018.

In the first quarter of 2014, the FRB issued rules pursuant to section 165 of the Dodd-Frank Act, which established enhanced
prudential standards for U.S. bank holding companies and foreign banking organizations with total global consolidated assets of
$50 billion or more. The rules complement the capital planning, resol ution planning, and stresstesting requirementsthat have been
previously finalized. The rules require bank holding companies, such as HSBC North America, to comply with various liquidity
risk management standards and to maintain aliquidity buffer of unencumbered highly liquid assets based on the results of internal
liquidity stress testing. Bank holding companies are also required to meet heightened liquidity requirements, which include
qualitative liquidity standards, cash flow projections, internal liquidity stress tests, and liquidity buffer requirements by January
1, 2015. HSBC North Americais developing plans to meet the standard and we do not expect a significant impact to our business
model. From July 1, 2016, HSBC North Americawill betreated asan IHC owned by aforeign banking organization. Thistransition
is not expected to have a significant impact on our U.S. operations or change our liquidity management policies. HSBC North
Americais required to submit its IHC implementation plan to the FRB by January 1, 2015.

Webelievethat HSBC North Americaand HSBC Bank USA will meet theseliquidity requirementsprior totheir formal introduction.
The actual impact will be dependent on the specific final regulationsissued by the U.S. regulators to implement these standards.
HSBC North America and HSBC Bank USA may need to change their liquidity profile to support compliance with any future
final rules. We are unabl e at thistime, however, to determine the extent of changes we will need to make to our liquidity position,
if any.
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Our ahility to regularly attract wholesale funds at a competitive cost is enhanced by strong ratings from the major credit ratings
agencies. Thefollowing table reflects the long and short-term debt ratings we and HSBC Bank USA maintained at June 30, 2014:

Moody’s S&P Fitch pBrsY
HSBC USA Inc.:
Short-term BOrrOWINGS. ......cvoveeiererirereeees e P-1 A-1 Fl+ R-1 (middle)
Long-term/senior debt...........cocoveiviiiiiiiiiniiiiii, A2 A+ AA- AA (low)
HSBC Bank USA:
Short-term BOrrowWings. .......ccceeveereereeree e P-1 A-1+ F1+ R-1 (middle)
Long-term/Senior debt..........coovereernneiirre e Al AA- AA- AA (low)

(1) Dominion Bond Rating Service.

On February 6, 2014, Standard and Poor's published a request for comment regarding proposed revisions to their treatment of
Bank and Prudentially Regulated Finance Company Hybrid Capital Instruments. The adoption of any such revisions may
unfavorably impact the ratings of our preferred stock, trust preferred securities and subordinated debt.

Asof June 30, 2014, there were no pending actionsin terms of changesto ratings on the debt of HSBC USA or HSBC Bank USA
from any of the rating agencies.

Interest Rate Risk Management Various techniques are utilized to quantify and monitor risks associated with the repricing
characteristics of our assets, liabilities and derivative contracts. Our approach to managing interest rate risk is summarized in
MD&A in our 2013 Form 10-K under the caption “Risk Management”. There have been no material changes to our approach
towards interest rate risk management since December 31, 2013.

Present value of a basis point ("PVBP) isthe changein value of the balance sheet for a one basis point upward movement in all
interest rates. The following table reflects the PVBP position at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013:

June 30, December 31,
2014 2013
(in millions)
Institutional PVBP MOVEMENT TIMIT......ccvieieieceeeceeeeeeee ettt st st s et sresre s $ 80 $ 8.0
VA S o TS T (o T = oo = oo 2.1 6.8

Net interest income simulation modeling techniques are utilized to monitor a number of interest rate scenarios for their impact on
net interest income. These techniques include both rate shock scenarios, which assume immediate market rate movements by as
much as 200 basis points, aswell as scenariosin which ratesrise or fall by as much as 200 basi s points over atwelve month period.
The following table reflects the impact on net interest income of the scenarios utilized by these modeling techniques:

June 30, 2014 December 31, 2013
Amount % Amount %

(dollars are in millions)
Projected change in net interest income (reflects projected rate movements on July 1

and January 1):
Change resulting from a gradual 100 basis point increase in theyield curve............... $ 39 2 $ (5 —
Change resulting from a gradual 100 basis point decrease in the yield curve.............. (94) 4) (68) (3)
Change resulting from a gradual 200 basis point increase in theyield curve.............. 46 2 (43) 2
Change resulting from a gradual 200 basis point decrease in the yield curve.............. (188) 9 (@137 (6)
Other significant scenarios monitored (reflects projected rate movements on July 1 and
January 1):
Change resulting from an immediate 100 basis point increase in the yield curve........ 75 3 (7 —
Change resulting from an immediate 100 basis point decrease in the yield curve....... (175) (8) (109) (5
Change resulting from an immediate 200 basis point increase in the yield curve........ 128 6 (39) 2
Change resulting from an immediate 200 basis point decrease in the yield curve....... (310) (14)  (257) (12)
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The projections do not take into consideration possible complicating factors such as the effect of changes in interest rates on the
credit quality, size and composition of the balance sheet. Therefore, although this provides a reasonabl e estimate of interest rate
sensitivity, actual results will differ from these estimates, possibly by significant amounts.

Capital Risk/Sensitivity of Other Comprehensive Income Large movements of interest rates could directly affect some reported
capital balances and ratios. The mark-to-market valuation of available-for-sale securities is credited on a tax effected basis to
accumulated other comprehensiveincome (10ss). Thisvaluation mark isincluded in two important accounting based capital ratios:
tangible common equity to tangible assets and tangible common equity to risk weighted assets. Under the final rule adopting the
Basel 111 regulatory capital reforms, the valuation mark will be included in common equity Tier 1 capital and the impact of this
change for HSBC USA is being assessed along with the other Basel 111 changes being introduced. As of June 30, 2014, we had an
available-for-sale securities portfolio of approximately $44,778 million with a positive mark-to-market of $471 million included
in tangible common equity of $13,641 million. An increase of 25 basis pointsin interest rates of all maturities would lower the
mark-to-market by approximately $219 million to a net gain of $252 million with the following results on our tangible capital
ratios.

June 30, 2014 December 31, 2013
Actual Proforma® Actual Proforma®
Tangible common equity to tangible assetS........covvererereiercrereeeee 7.56% 7.49% 7.28% 7.20%
Tangible common equity to risk weighted assetS.........ccoeveveereeceveeeieseneenns 10.39 10.29 10.82 10.69

@ Proforma percentages reflect a 25 basis point increase in interest rates.”

Market Risk Management We have incorporated the qualitative and quantitative requirements of Basel 2.5, including stressed
valueatrisk ("VAR"), Incremental Risk Chargeand Comprehensive Risk Measureinto our processand received regul atory approval
to initiate these enhancements effective January 1, 2013. See “Risk Management” in MD& A in our 2013 Form 10-K for amore
complete discussion of our approach to market risk. There have been no material changes to our approach towards market risk
management since December 31, 2013.

Value at Risk VAR analysis is a technique that estimates the potential losses that could occur on risk positions as a result of
movements in market rates and prices over a specified time horizon and to a given level of confidence. VAR calculations are
performed for all material trading activities and as a tool for managing risk inherent in non-trading activities. VAR is calculated
daily for a one-day holding period to a 99 percent confidence level.

Trading Activities Our management of market risk is based on a policy of restricting individual operations to trading within an
authorized list of permissibleinstruments, enforcing new product approval procedures and restricting trading in the more complex
derivative products to offices with appropriate levels of product expertise and robust control systems. Market making trading is
undertaken within Global Banking and Markets.

In addition, at both portfolio and position levels, market risk intrading portfoliosis monitored and managed using acomplementary
set of techniques, including VAR and a variety of interest rate risk monitoring techniques as discussed above. These techniques
quantify the impact on capital of defined market movements.

Trading portfolios reside primarily within the Markets unit of the Global Banking and Markets business segment, which include
warehoused residential mortgage loans purchased with the intent of selling them, and within the mortgage banking subsidiary
included within the RBWM business segment. Portfolios include foreign exchange, interest rate swaps and credit derivatives,
precious metals (i.e. gold, silver, platinum), equities and money market instruments including “repos’ and securities. Trading
primarily occursasaresult of customer facilitation and economic risk hedging. Inthis context, economic risk hedging may include
forward contracts to sell residential mortgages and derivative contracts which, while economically viable, may not satisfy the
hedge accounting requirements.

Thetrading portfolios have defined limits pertai ning to items such as permissibleinvestments, risk exposures, lossreview, balance
sheet size and product concentrations. “Loss review” refers to the maximum amount of loss that may be incurred before senior
management intervention is required.
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The following table summarizes trading VAR for the six months ended June 30, 2014:

Six Months Ended June 30, 2014

June 30, December 31,
2014 Minimum Maximum Average 2013
(in millions)
Total trading.......ccccveveveeieeeerceeeceeeeee e $ 8 % 6 $ 12 % 8 $ 9
Foreign eXchange.........ccooeveeeereneneneneee e 5 4 8 6 7
Interest rate directional and credit spread...................... 7 7 14 9 10

The following table summarizes the frequency distribution of daily market risk-related revenues for trading activities during the
six months ended June 30, 2014. Market risk-related trading revenue excludes certain items such as fees, commissions, fair value
adjustments, net interest income and intra-day trading revenues. Analysis of the gain (loss) datafor the six months ended June 30,
2014 shows that the largest daily gain was $6 million and the largest daily |oss was $4 million.

Below $(5) $0 $5 Over
Ranges of daily trading revenue earned from market risk-related activities $(5) to $0 to $5 to $10 $10

(dollars are in millions)

Number of trading days market risk-related revenue was within
the Stated ranNQe......c.oceeee e s — 68 55 1 —

VAR - Non-trading Activities Interest rate risk in non-trading portfolios arises principally from mismatches between the future
yield on assets and their funding cost as a result of interest rate changes. Analysis of thisrisk is complicated by having to make
assumptions on embedded optionality within certain product areas such as the incidence of mortgage repayments, and from
behavioral assumptions regarding the economic duration of liabilitieswhich are contractually repayable on demand such as current
accounts. The prospective changein future net interest income from non-trading portfolioswill bereflected inthe current realizable
value of these positionsif they were to be sold or closed prior to maturity. In order to manage this risk optimally, market risk in
non-trading portfoliosis transferred to Global Markets or to separate books managed under the supervision of the local Asset &
Liability Committee ("ALCO"). Once market risk has been consolidated in Global Markets or ALCO-managed books, the net
exposure is typically managed through the use of interest rate swaps within agreed upon limits.

Non-trading VAR & so includes the impact of asset market volatility on the current investment portfolio of financial investments
including assets held on an available for sale (AFS) and held to maturity (HTM) basis. The main holdings of AFS securities are
held by Balance Sheet Management within GB& M. These positions which are originated in order to manage structural interest
rate and liquidity risk aretreated as non-trading risk for the purpose of market risk management. The main holdings of AFS assets
include U.S. Treasuries and Government backed GNMA securities.

The following table summarizes non-trading VAR for the six months ended June 30, 2014, assuming a 99 percent confidence level
for atwo-year observation period and a one-day "holding period":

Six Months Ended June 30, 2014

June 30, December 31,
2014 Minimum Maximum Average 2013
(in millions)
Total Accrual VAR. ... $ 56 $ 56 $ 100 $ 64 $ 104

Trading Activities MSRs — Trading occurs in mortgage banking operations as a result of an economic hedging program intended
to offset changes in the value of mortgage servicing rights. Economic hedging may include, for example, forward contractsto sell
residential mortgages and derivative instruments used to protect the value of MSRs.

MSRs are assets that represent the present value of net servicing income (servicing fees, ancillary income, escrow and deposit
float, net of servicing costs). MSRs are separately recognized upon the sale of the underlying loans or at the time that servicing
rights are purchased. MSRs are subject to interest rate risk, in that their value will decline as a result of actual and expected
acceleration of prepayment of the underlying loansin afalling interest rate environment.

Interest rate risk is mitigated through an active hedging program that uses trading securities and derivative instruments to offset
changes in value of MSRs. Since the hedging program involves trading activity, risk is quantified and managed using a number
of risk assessment techniques.
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Thefollowing table reflects the modeling techniques, primarily rate shock analyses, used to monitor certain interest rate scenarios
for their impact on the economic value of net hedged MSRs:

June 30, December 31,
2014 2013
(in millions)
Projected change in net market value of hedged M SRs portfolio (reflects projected rate
movements on July 1 and January 1):

Value of hedged M SRS POIFOlIO.......cueuiieeirieiriere e $ 186 $ 227
Change resulting from an immediate 50 basis point decrease in the yield curve:

Change limit (N0 WOISE ThaN) .......ccvruirieirieiirieere bbb (10) (20)

Calculated change in net Market VAlUE...........coccvciviicciic s (1) 2
Change resulting from an immediate 50 basis point increase in the yield curve:

Change limit (N0 WOrSE than) ..........ccoviiiiiiiiii s 4 8

Calculated change in Net Market VAIUE...........cccoveiriiiiiee e 1 3
Change resulting from an immediate 100 basis point increase in the yield curve;

Change limit (N0 WOISE ThaN) .......cceeuirieirieiirierere e e (6) (12)

Calculated change in Net Market VAIUE...........ccccveirieirise et enen 3 6

The economic value of the net hedged M SRs portfolio is monitored on adaily basis for interest rate sensitivity. If the economic
value declines by more than established limits for one day or one month, various levels of management review, intervention and/
or corrective actions are required.

The following table summarizes the frequency distribution of the weekly economic val ue of the M SR asset during the six months
ended June 30, 2014. This includes the change in the market value of the MSR asset net of changes in the market value of the
underlying hedging positions used to hedge the asset. The changesin economic value are adjusted for changesin MSR valuation
assumptions that were made during the course of the year.

Below $(2) $0 $2 Over
Ranges of mortgage economic value from market risk-related activities $(2) to $0 to $2 to $4 $4

(dollars are in millions)

Number of trading weeks market risk-related revenue was within
the Stated raNQe......c.oceeee e e s — 10 16 — —

Model Risk Management In order to manage the risks arising out of the use of incorrect or misused model output or reports, a
comprehensive Model Governance framework has been established that provides oversight and challenge to all models across
HSBC North America. This framework includes a HSBC North America Model Standards Policy that was enhanced during the
second quarter of 2014 and alignswith model risk management regul ations. Model governance is managed through HSBC's global
Model Oversight Committee ("MOC") structure, with business and functional MOCs in HSBC North America reporting into
corresponding global MOCs. Materiality levels of models are maintained through the HSBC North America Model Standards
Policy. A complete inventory of all HSBC North America models is maintained and is being updated in line with recent policy
enhancements.

There has been no other significant changesin our approach to model risk management since December 31, 2013.
Operational Risk There have been no material changes to our approach toward operational risk since December 31, 2013.
Compliance Risk There have been no material changes to our approach toward compliance risk since December 31, 2013.
Fiduciary Risk There have been no material changes to our approach toward fiduciary risk since December 31, 2013.
Reputational Risk There have been no material changes to our approach toward reputational risk since December 31, 2013.
Strategic Risk There have been no material changes to our approach toward strategic risk since December 31, 2013.

Security and Fraud Risk There have been no material changes to our approach toward security and fraud risk since December
31, 2013.

Model Risk There have been no material changes to our approach toward model risk since December 31, 2013.
Pension Risk There have been no material changes to our approach toward pension risk since December 31, 2013.
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CONSOLIDATED AVERAGE BALANCES AND INTEREST RATES

The following tables summarize the quarter-to-date average daily balances of the principal components of assets, liabilities and
shareholders' equity together with their respective interest amounts and rates earned or paid, presented on a taxable equivalent
basis. Net interest margin is calculated by dividing annualized net interest income by the average interest earning assets from
which interest incomeis earned. Loan interest for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 included fees of $15 million and
$34 million, respectively, compared with fees of $19 million and $43 million during the three and six months ended June 30, 2013,

respectively.
Three Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013
Average Average
Balance Interest Rate” Balance Interest Rate”
(dollars are in millions)
Assets
Interest bearing deposits With Danks............coverieerenrnnneseseseeee s $ 27229 $ 17 26% $ 23168 $ 14 .26%
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements 1,525 3 .69 1,862 2 37%
TrAdING @SSELS......ceveeecieeeeiereereere e 12,060 65 2.14 10,524 27 1.04
SECUMTIES. ... 48,183 198 1.65 57,794 230 1.60
Loans:
COMMENCIBL ..o 52,156 295 2.27 45,421 295 2.60
Consumer:
Residential MOMgageS. .......ccvueueururiririeieirieieieieie e 16,019 136 3.43 16,031 140 3.49
HOME EqUIty MOMGagES. ......c.eveveerrieirieieirieieieie e 1,928 16 3.35 2,197 18 3.27
CrEUIT CAIOS......evreeecreecee e 677 17 10.07 817 17 8.45
OLhEr CONSUIMIET ......cviiuireereiee ettt 545 7 5.30 649 8 4.67
TOtA CONSUMES.......ovuieireeeereeresere e 19,169 176 371 19,694 183 3.72
TOE [OBNS. ..o 71,325 471 2.65 65,115 478 294
OENEY .o e 3,314 12 1.29 2,847 11 1.49
Total iNtErest @arNIiNG ASSELS......ivveeurerrrreeererereireseseseesessessesssessssesssssesessssssesenns 163,636 $ 766 1.88% 161,310 $ 762 1.89%
Allowance for Credit I0SSES.......c.cvuiiiriiirieeee e (559) (573)
Cash and due from DaNKS..........ccorireireereeese e 938 1,133
OLhEr @SSELS......eveveereeereie e 21,173 22,032
TOLAI ASSELS......vveeerececiee e "$ 185,188 $ 183902
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity - -
Depositsin domestic offices:
SAVINGS AEPOSITS. ... $ 43,049 $ 13 12% $ 43964 $ 18 .16%
Other tiMe AEPOSITS .....cvveeeeriieceereeer s 22,476 21 .38 19,942 36 71
Depositsin foreign offices:
FOreign banks dEPOSITS.........oveueirrreeererteee s 6,760 1 .07 7,183 1 .07
Other interest bearing dePOSItS.........ccvvrreerrreiree s 5,894 1 .07 7,432 1 .08
Total interest DEAring dEPOSITS......c.covevreeerrieeireeees e 78,179 36 19 78,521 56 .28
SNOrt-tErM DOITOWINGS.......vveaereeteerireei s 25,306 14 22 16,688 8 .20
LONG-TEMM AEDL......coveeereeccr e 22,426 152 2.72 21,997 166 3.01
Total interest bearing deposits and debt............covceevcernccnnnieeneeereens 125,911 202 .64 117,206 230 .78
TaX NI@DITTIES ... 264 (113) (172.05) 504 9 7.76
Total interest bearing labilities...........ccerieiicccec e 126,175 89 .28 117,710 239 .81
Net interest income/Interest rate spread $ 677 1.60% $ 523 1.08%
NONINEEreSt DEAITNG QEPOSILS........c.oorveeeeeeeeeeeeseeeseesseeeeessesesssssesssssseessesseeens 29728 — 3083
Other [18DIlITIES.......cecveveceerccre e 12,440 17,554
Total sharehOlders’ EQUILY........ccv e 16,845 17,785
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity..........ccccvrcierveeresseee s m m
Net interest Margin on average Earning aSSELS...............vwweeereeeessssseesereeen - 1.66% 1.30%
Net interest income to average total aSSELS.........ccovreererieenireereenree s T 1.46% T 114%
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Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 2013
Average Average
Balance Interest Rate™ Balance Interest Rate®
(dollars are in millions)
Assets
Interest bearing deposits With DaNKS...........cc.cceevriicersinsssseseseseee s $ 24446 $ 31 26% $ 20292 $ 26 .26%
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements............ 1,387 5 .65 1,886 4 43
TrAAING BSSELS. ... cevvaeieerieie ittt 12,319 113 1.84 10,991 51 .93
SECUMTTIES. ... vereeesite ettt 52,124 409 1.58 60,107 463 155
Loans:
COMMENCIBl ..ttt 50,819 582 2.31 44,375 568 2.58
Consumer:
Residential MOrgages........cceueieuemiiieieicieceee e 15,988 272 3.43 15,895 286 3.62
Home equity MOMQagES. ........cvueverieiireieiereieieeie e 1,949 33 3.40 2,237 37 3.30
Credit CarS. .....c.euceiiieitce ettt 687 34 10.08 794 35 8.84
OtNEr CONSUMES ..ottt 551 14 521 648 16 5.06
Total consumer... 19,175 353 3.72 19,574 374 3.85
TOAl [OBNS......veeieiieeie ittt 69,994 935 2.70 63,949 942 297
OLNEY .ttt 3,436 22 1.24 3,034 21 143
Totdl interest earning assets.... . 163,706 $ 1,515 1.87% 160,259 $ 1,507 1.90%
Allowance for Credit I0SSES.........ciuiiiiieiiieiicceeee e (575) (603)
Cash and due from banks............ccoveiiiieciieceee e 949 1,130
Other assets.... . 21,207 23,494
BL0] = L 1 T=] £ RR m m
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity - -
Depositsin domestic offices:
SAVINGS EPOSITS. ...ttt $ 43,025 $ 26 12% $ 44262 $ 37 17%
Other timME dEPOSITS ..ot e 20,761 41 40 20,492 56 .55
Depositsin foreign offices:
Foreign banks dEPOSIES.........c.cueuiueueieiereieeieicieieeere e 7,431 2 .06 7,433 3 .07
Other interest bearing dEPOSITS...........cciiiiieiiciieeeeeeeeeeeee e 5,667 2 .08 6,759 3 .09
Total interest bearing deposits.... 76,884 71 19 78,946 99 .25
ShOrt-tErM DOMTOWINGS. .....veverireeeeerieieee st stenenens 26,082 23 .18 16,442 17 21
LONG-LEIM AEDL. ...t 22,620 322 2.87 22,036 333 3.04
Total interest bearing deposits and debt. 125,586 416 .67 117,424 449 a7
TaX 1IA0HTTIES ... 347 (101) (58.68) 495 25 10.26
Total interest bearing liabilitieS...........oeivrieireee e 125,933 315 .50 117,919 474 81
Net interest income/Interest rate spread $ 1,200 1.37% $ 1,033 1.09%
NONiNterest DEANNG QEPOSIES...........rvveerreeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeessseseseseseesessessseeseees 29982 — 3093
Other [1aDIITIES....... et 12,630 17,577
Total shareholders’ equity.........c.ccou..... 16,772 17,801
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equUIty..........cccovreerreeierree e m m
Net interest margin on average earning asSetS..............ooweeerrrereesereeressereeenns - 1.48% 1.30%
Net interest income to average total assets 1.31% 1.13%

@ Rates are calculated on amounts that have not been rounded to the nearest million.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Information reguired by this Item is included within Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operationsin the Risk Management section under the captions "Interest Rate Risk" and "Market Risk".

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures We maintain a system of internal and disclosure controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by HSBC USA in the reports we file or submit under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported on atimely basis. Our
Board of Directors, operating through itsAudit Committee, which is composed entirely of independent outside directors, provides
oversight to our financial reporting process.

We conducted an evaluation, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness
of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end
of the period covered by thisreport so asto alert them in atimely fashion to material information required to be disclosed in reports
we file under the Exchange Act.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting There has been no changein our internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the quarter ended June 30, 2014 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.

PART Il

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

See “Litigation and Regulatory Matters’ in Note 19, “Litigation and Regulatory Matters,” in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements beginning on page 77 for our legal proceedings disclosure, which isincorporated herein by reference.

Item 5. Other Information

Disclosures Pursuant to Section 13(r) of the Securities Exchange Act Section 13(r) of the Securities Exchange Act requires each
issuer registered with the SEC to discloseinitsannual or quarterly reportswhether it or any of itsaffiliateshave knowingly engaged
in specified activities or transactions with persons or entitiestargeted by U.S. sanctions programsrelating to Iran, terrorism, or the
proliferation of weapons of mass destruction, even if those activities are not prohibited by U.S. law and are conducted outside the
U.S. by non-U.S. affiliatesin compliance with local laws and regulations.

In order to comply with this requirement, HSBC Holdings plc (together with its affiliates, "HSBC Group") has requested rel evant
information from its affiliates globally. During the period covered by this Form 10-Q, HSBC USA did not engage in any activities
or transactions requiring disclosure pursuant to Section 13(r) other than those activitiesrelated to frozen accounts and transactions
permitted under relevant U.S. sanction programs described under “Frozen Accounts and Transactions” below. The following
activities conducted by our affiliates are disclosed in response to Section 13(r):

Loans in repayment Between 2001 and 2005, the Project and Export Finance division of HSBC Group arranged or participated in
a portfolio of loans to Iranian energy companies and banks. All of these loans were guaranteed by European and Asian export
credit agencies, and they have varied maturity dateswith final maturity in 2018. For thoseloansthat remain outstanding, the HSBC
Group continues to seek repayment in accordance with its obligations to the supporting export credit agencies and, in all cases,
with appropriate regulatory approvals. Details of these oans follow.

The HSBC Group has 11 loans outstanding to an Iranian petrochemical and energy company. These loans are supported by the
official Export Credit Agencies of the following countries: the United Kingdom, France, Germany, Spain, The Netherlands, South
Korea and Japan. The HSBC Group continues to seek repayments from the company under the existing loans in accordance with
the original maturity profiles. All repayments made by the Iranian company have received a license or an authorization from
relevant authorities. Repayments have been received under a number of the loans in the second quarter of 2014.
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Bank Méelli and Bank Saderat acted as sub-participants in two of the aforementioned loans. The repayments due to these banks
under the loan agreements were paid into frozen accounts under licenses or authorizations from relevant European governments,
although no such payments were made in the second quarter of 2014.

In 2002, the HSBC Group provided aloan to Bank Tejarat with a guarantee from the Government of Iran to fund the construction
of a petrochemical plant undertaken by a U.K. contractor. This loan was supported by the U.K. Export Credit Agency and is
administered under license from the relevant European Government. This loan has now matured, but claims for non-payment are
still being processed with the UK Export Credit Agency.

TheHSBC Group a so maintains sub-participationsin loans provided by other international banksto Bank Tejarat and Bank Mellat
with guaranteesfrom the Government of Iran. In relation to Bank Mellat, the HSBC Group has two sub-parti cipations, which were
supported by the Export Credit Agencies of the Netherlands and Spain. Both of the facilities have matured. In relation to Bank
Tejarat, the HSBC Group has one sub-participation supported by the Export Credit Agency of Italy, which has also has matured.
The payments due under the sub-participations have not been received from Bank Mellat or Bank Tejarat and claims are being
processed with the relevant European Export Credit Agencies. Licenses and relevant authorizations have been obtained from the
competent authorities of the European Union in respect of the transactions.

Estimated gross revenue to the HSBC Group generated by theseloansin repayment for the second quarter of 2014, which includes
interest and fees, was approximately $640,000. Estimated net profit for the HSBC Group during the second quarter of 2014 was
approximately $388,000. Whilethe HSBC Group intendsto continueto seek repayment under the existing loans, it does not intend
to extend any new loans.

Legacy contractual obligations related to guarantees Between 1996 and 2007, the HSBC Group provided guaranteesto anumber
of itsnon-lranian customersin Europe and the Middle East for various business activitiesin Iran. In anumber of cases, the HSBC
Group issued counter indemnities in support of guarantees issued by Iranian banks as the Iranian beneficiaries of the guarantees
required that they be backed directly by Iranian banks. The Iranian banks to which the HSBC Group provided counter indemnities
included Bank Tejarat, Bank Mélli, and the Bank of Industry and Mine.

The HSBC Group has worked with relevant regulatory authorities to obtain licenses where required and ensure compliance with
lawsand regul ationswhil e seeking to cancel the guarantees and counter indemnities. None were cancel ed during the second quarter
of 2014 and approximately 20 remain outstanding.

There was no measurabl e gross revenue to the HSBC Group for the second quarter of 2014. The HSBC Group does not allocate
direct costs to fees and commissions and, therefore, has not disclosed a separate profits measure. The HSBC Group is seeking to
cancel all relevant guarantees and does not intend to provide any new guarantees involving Iran.

Other relationships with Iranian banks Activity related to U.S.-sanctioned Iranian banks not covered el sewherein this disclosure
includes the following:

* The HSBC Group maintains a frozen account in the U.K. for an Iranian-owned, U.K.-regulated financial institution. In
April 2007, the U.K. government issued a license to allow the HSBC Group to handle certain transactions (operational
payments and settlement of pre-sanction transactions) for thisinstitution. In December 2013, the U.K. government issued
anew licenseto allow the HSBC Group to deposit certain check payments. Therewas somelicensed activity in the second
quarter of 2014.

* The HSBC Group has acted during the second quarter of 2014 as the trustee and administrator for a pension scheme
involving four employees of aU.S.-sanctioned Iranian bank in Hong Kong. Under the rules of these schemes, the HSBC
Group accepts contributions from the Iranian bank each month and allocates the funds into the pension accounts of the
four Iranian bank employees. The HSBC Group runs and operates the pension scheme in accordance with Hong Kong
laws and regulations. During the second quarter of 2014, notices of resignation were received for two of the employees.

* 1n 2010, the HSBC Group closed its representative office in Iran. The HSBC Group maintains alocal account with an
Iranian bank in Tehran in order to facilitate residual activity related to the closure. The HSBC Group has been authorized
by the U.S. Government (and by relevant non-U.S. regulators) to make these types of payments in connection with the
liquidation and deregistration of the representative office in Tehran. In the second quarter of 2014, the HSBC Group
initiated paymentsof approximately $22,000 from thisaccount to pay legal and administrativerelated expensesassociated
with the closure.

Estimated gross revenue to the HSBC Group in the second quarter of 2014 for all Iranian bank-related activity described in this
section, which includes fees and/or commissions, was approximately $109,000. The HSBC Group does not allocate direct costs
to fees and commissions and therefore has not disclosed a separate profits measure. The HSBC Group intends to continue to wind
down this Iranian bank-related activity and not enter into any new such activity.
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Activity related to U.S. Executive Order 13224 The HSBC Group maintains afrozen personal account for an individual sanctioned
under Executive Order 13224, and by the U.K. and the U.N. Security Council. Activity on this account in the second quarter of
2014 was permitted by alicenseissued by the U.K. There was no measurable gross revenue or net profits generated to the HSBC
Group in the second quarter of 2014.

Activity related to U.S. Executive Order 13382 The HSBC Group held an account for a customer in the Middle East who was
sanctioned under Executive Order 13382 in the first quarter of 2014. The HSBC Group closed the account in the second quarter.
There was no measurable gross revenue or net profits generated to the HSBC Group in the first and second quarters of 2014.

Other activity The HSBC Group holds alease of branch premisesin London which it entered into in 2005 and is due to expirein
2020. Thelandlord of the premisesisowned by the Iranian government and isaspecially designated national under U.S. sanctions
programs. The HSBC Group has exercised a break clause in the lease and is in the process of exiting the property. The HSBC
Group made no paymentsin the second quarter of 2014. There was no gross revenue or net profit to the HSBC Group.

Frozen accounts and transactions The HSBC Group and HSBC Bank USA maintain several accountsthat arefrozen under rel evant
sanctions programs and on which no activity, except as licensed or otherwise authorized, took place during the second quarter of
2014. In the second quarter of 2014, the HSBC Group and HSBC Bank USA also froze payments where required under relevant
sanctions programs. There was no gross revenue or net profit to the HSBC Group or HSBC Bank USA.
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Item 6. Exhibits

12

31

32

101.INS
101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred
Stock Dividends.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

XBRL Instance Document*?

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document®)

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document™
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document™®
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document®

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document®

L Pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T, includes the following financial information included in HSBC USA Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2014, formatted in eXentsible Business Reporting Language ("XBRL") interactive data files: (i) the Consolidated Statement of Income for the three and six months ended June
30, 2014 and 2013, (ii) the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, (iii) the Consolidated Balance Sheet
as of June 30, 2014 and December 31. 2013, (iv) the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, (v) the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, and (vi) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Index

Assets:
by business segment 47
consolidated average balances 139
fair value measurements 61
nonperforming 20, 26, 27, 121
trading 10, 90
Asset-backed commercia paper conduits 51
Asset-backed securities 11, 63, 75, 132
Balance sheet:
consolidated 5
consolidated average balances 139
review 87
Basel Il 125
Basel 111 50, 125
Basis of reporting 86
Business:
consolidated performance review 83
Capital:
2014 funding strategy 127
common equity movements 125
consolidated statement of changes 7
regulatory capital 50
selected capital ratios 50, 84, 125, 136
Cash flow (consolidated) 8

Cautionary statement regarding forward-looking statements 81

Collateral — pledged assets 57
Collateralized debt obligations 75, 132

Commercia banking segment results (IFRSs) 48, 108

Compliancerisk 133, 138
Controls and procedures 141
Credit card fees 97
Credit quality 115
Credit risk:
adjustment 59
component of fair value option 40
concentration 27, 122
exposure 133
management 133
related contingent features 37
related arrangements 53
Current environment 83
Deferred tax assets 105
Deposits 91, 124
Derivatives:
cash flow hedges 35
fair value hedges 34
notional value 38
trading and other 36
Equity:
consolidated statement of changes 7
ratios 50, 84, 125, 136

Equity securities available-for-sale 11
Estimates and assumptions 9
Executive overview 83
Fair value measurements:
assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on arecurring basis 62
assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on a non-recurring basis 72
control over valuation process 130
financial instruments 61
hierarchy 59, 130
transfersinto/out of level one and two 65
transfersinto/out of level two and three 65
valuation techniques 73
Fiduciary risk 133, 138
Financial assets:
designated at fair value 39
reclassification under IFRSs 48, 86
Financial highlights metrics 83
Financial liabilities:
designated at fair value 39
fair value of financial liabilities 61
Forward looking statements 81
Funding 127
Gain on instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives 40
Gains (losses) from securities 16, 97
Global Banking and Markets 48, 109
Geographic concentration of receivables 123
Goodwill 32
Guarantee arrangements 53
Impairment:
available-for-sale securities 14
credit losses 28, 95, 115
nonperforming loans 20, 26, 27, 121
impaired loans 21
Income (loss) from financial instruments designated at fair value, net 40
Income tax expenses 3, 105
Intangible assets 31
Interest rate risk 133, 135
Internal control 141
Key performance indicators 83
Legal proceedings 141
Liabilities:
commitments, lines of credit 128
deposits 91, 124
financid liabilities designated at fair value 39
trading 10, 90
long-term debt 44, 61, 91, 124
short-term borrowings 44, 61, 91, 124
Liquidity and capital resources 124
Liquidity risk 133, 134
Litigation and regulatory matters 77

145
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by category 18, 88
by charge-off (net) 28, 120
by delinquency 27, 118
criticized assets 25
geographic concentration 123
held for sale 30
impaired 21
nonperforming 20, 26, 27, 121
overall review 87
risk concentration 27, 122
troubled debt restructures 21
Loan impairment charges — see Provision for credit losses
L oan-to-deposits ratio 84
Market risk 133, 136
Market turmoil:
exposures 136
impact on liquidity risk 124
Monolineinsurers 15, 131
Mortgage lending products 18, 88
Mortgage servicing rights 31
Net interest income 92
New accounting pronouncements 80
Off balance sheet arrangements 128
Operating expenses 103
Operational risk 133, 138
Other revenue 97
Other segment results (IFRSs) 48, 113
Pension and other postretirement benefits 43
Performance, developments and trends 83
Pledged assets 56
Private banking segment results (IFRSs) 48, 112
Profit (loss) before tax:
by segment — IFRSs 48
consolidated 3
Provision for credit losses 28, 95
Ratios:
capital 50, 84, 125, 136
charge-off (net) 83, 116
credit loss reserve related 116
delinquency 118
earnings to fixed charges — Exhibit 12
efficiency 83, 103, 105
Reconciliation of U.S. GAAP results to |FRSs 86
Refreshed |oan-to-value 88
Regulation 50, 125, 141
Related party transactions 44

Reputational risk 133, 138
Results of operations 92

Retail banking and wealth management segment results (IFRSs) 48, 107

Risk elementsin the loan portfolio 122
Risk management:
credit 133
compliance 133, 138
fiduciary 133, 138
interest rate 133, 135
liquidity 133, 134
market 133, 136
operational 133, 138
reputational 133, 138
strategic 133, 138
Securities:
fair value 11
impairment 14
maturity analysis 16
Segment results - IFRSs basis:
retail banking and wealth management 48, 107
commercial banking 48, 108
global banking and markets 48, 109
private banking 48, 112
other 48, 113
overal summary 48, 107
Selected financial data 83
Sensitivity:
projected net interest income 135
Statement of changesin shareholders’ equity 7
Statement of changesin comprehensive income 4
Statement of income 3
Strategic risk 133, 138
Stress testing 124, 126
Table of contents 2
Tax expense 3, 105
Trading:
assets 10, 90
derivatives 10, 90
liabilities 10, 90
portfolios 10
Trading revenue (net) 97, 99
Troubled debt restructures 21
Value at risk 136
Variableinterest entities 51
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: August 4, 2014

HSBC USA INC.

By: /s GERARD MATTIA
Gerard Mattia
Senior Executive Vice President and
Chief Financia Officer
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Exhibit Index

12

31

32

101.INS
101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and
Preferred Stock Dividends.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

XBRL Instance Document®?

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document™®

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document®
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document”
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document®
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document®

L Pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T, includes the following financia information included in HSBC USA Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the

quarter ended June 30, 2014, formatted in eX entsible Business Reporting Language ("XBRL") interactive datafiles: (i) the Consolidated Statement of Income

for the three and six months ended June 30,, 2014 and 2013, (ii) the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the three and six months ended

June 30, 2014 and 2013, (iii) the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014 and December 31. 2013, (iv) the Consolidated Statement of Changesin
Shareholders' Equity for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, (v) the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the six months ended June 30,
2014 and 2013, and (vi) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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HSBC USA INC.
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

Six Months Ended June 30,
2014 2013

(dollars are in millions)
Ratios excluding interest on deposits:

Income (10SS) from CONtINUING OPEIELTIONS.......c..cirietirieiirieirie it $ 283 $ 363
INcome taX eXPENSE (DENEFIL) ...c.vciii et r e re st e s re s r et s (57) 196
Less: Undistributed eqUILY BArNINGS. ... ....coveerieririeierieirieeree sttt ss e see e ss e eenes — —
Fixed charges:

Interest on:
BOMOWED FUNGS ...t 23 17
LONG-LEIMN AEDL ... 322 333
ONEISP ..ottt (101) 25
One third of rents, net of iINCOME fromM SUDIEASES..........ccuveieeeieeeie ettt 14 17
Total fixed charges, excluding interest 0N dEPOSITS........cccceiiiererericree e 258 392
Earnings from continuing operations before taxes and fixed charges, net of undistributed equity
BBITINGS ..ttt bttt bttt e bbb et e b b e b bbb e b bbb £ A b e bbb b e b e b bbb b e b e b b e bbb e b e b b e b e b e bbb b e bt et ebebebebetas 484 951
Ratio Of €arniNgSt0 fIXEU CRAIGES.........c.evuveeeeeeie e ses et es s saens T 188 243
Total preferred Stock QiVIAENT FACIOI™ ..........oveeeeeeeeeeeeeees e eeeeeeeeeesee s eeeesseesessesesssesseses s eeesseseseeeens $ 59 $ 61
Fixed charges, including the preferred stock dividend factor..........oovvevevececcceccece e $ 317 % 453
Ratio of earnings from continuing operations to combined fixed charges and preferred stock -
(0 TRV 7o (= g o PSPPSRSO 1.53 2.10

Ratios including interest on deposits: -
Total fixed charges, excluding interest 0N dEPOSITS........veviiieerierereree e $ 258 $ 392
Add: INEErESE ON AEPOSITS. ... oottt sttt se e e e st e ae e e st sbesbesaesbesbeseeseenbanbeseans 71 99
Total fixed charges, including interest 0N dEPOSITS. ......ccvvvieieriere e $ 329 % 491

Earnings from continuing operations before taxes and fixed charges, net of undistributed equity ~—

EBITINDS ... vereeetee ettt sttt e bbb bbb bbb e b bbb £ b bbb bbb bbb b e bbb bbb bbb bbb bbbk b bbbt et ebena $ 484 $ 951
Add: INLErESE ON EPOSITS. ... vttt ettt b et se et b et b et se et se b e seebeseenea 71 99
TOLAL ..ttt bbbk bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb b bbb bbbttt $ 555 $ 1,050
Ratio Of €arningSt0 fiXEU CRAIGES..........c.evueecececie ettt T 169 214
Fixed charges, including the preferred stock dividend fACLON .............c.cueeceeeeeieeeeeseeeeeee e $ 317 $ 453
Add: INLErESE ON EPOSITS. ... vttt sttt ettt se et b et b e b et seebeneebesnene 71 99
Fixed charges, including the preferred stock dividend factor and interest on deposits...........cccceveueee

3 w3 5w

Ratio of earnings from continuing operations to combined fixed charges and preferred stock
(01 RY/T0 1= 00 LSRR 1.43 1.90

@ Preferred stock dividends grossed up to their pretax equivalents.

@ During the second quarter of 2014, we concluded certain state and local tax audits resulting in the settlement of significant uncertain tax positions covering
anumber of years. As aresult, we released tax reserves previously maintained in relation to the periods and issues under review. In addition, we released
our accrued interest associated with the tax reserves released which resulted in a $120 million benefit to interest expense in 2014.



EXHIBIT 31

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
I, Irene M. Dorner, President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of HSBC USA Inc., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of HSBC USA Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in al material respects the financia condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(€)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controlsand procedures, or caused such disclosure controlsand proceduresto be designed
under our supervision, to ensurethat material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, ismade
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in thisreport any change in the registrant’sinternal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. Theregistrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’sauditors and the audit committee of the registrant’sboard of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 4, 2014

/s IRENE M. DORNER

Irene M. Dorner

President, Chief Executive

Officer and Chairman of the Board




Certification of Chief Financial Officer
I, Gerard Mattia, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of HSBC USA Inc., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of HSBC USA Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in al material respects the financia condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(€e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controlsand procedures, or caused such disclosure controlsand proceduresto be designed
under our supervision, to ensurethat material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, ismade
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in thisreport any change in the registrant’sinternal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. Theregistrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to theregistrant’sauditors and the audit committee of the registrant’sboard of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
theregistrant’sinternal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 4, 2014

/Y GERARD MATTIA

Gerard Mattia

Senior Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The certification set forth below is being submitted in connection with the HSBC USA Inc. (the “ Company”) quarterly report on
Form 10-Q for the period ending June 30, 2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”) for the purpose of complying with Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code.

I, Irene M. Dorner, President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of the Company, certify that:
1. the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and

2. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results
of operations of HSBC USA Inc.

Date: August 4, 2014

/s IRENE M. DORNER

Irene M. Dorner

President, Chief Executive

Officer and Chairman of the Board




Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The certification set forth below is being submitted in connection with the HSBC USA Inc. (the “Company™) quarterly report on
Form 10-Q for the period ending June 30, 2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”) for the purpose of complying with Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code.

I, Gerard Mattia, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify that:
1. the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and

2. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results
of operations of HSBC USA Inc.

Date: August 4, 2014

/sy GERARD MATTIA

Gerard Mattia

Senior Executive Vice President and
Chief Financia Officer

These certifications accompany each Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to
the extent required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by HSBC USA Inc. for purposes of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Signed originals of these written statements required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 have been provided to
HSBC USA Inc. and will be retained by HSBC USA Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon request.
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